
 

 

 

 
Meeting 
 

Cabinet 
 

Date and Time 
 

Wednesday, 22nd December, 2021 at 9.30 am. 

Venue 
 

Walton Suite, Winchester Guildhall 

Note: This meeting is being held in person at the location specified above. In line 
with relevant legislation and public health guidance the following arrangements 
apply. Members of the public should note that a live audio feed of the meeting will be 
available from the councils website (www.winchester.gov.uk ) and the video 
recording will be publicly available on the council’s YouTube channel shortly after the 
meeting.  
 
For members of the public and “visiting councillors” who are unable to utilise this 
facility a limited number of seats will be made available at the above named location 
however attendance must be notified to the council at least 3 clear working days 
before the meeting.  Please note that priority will be given to those wishing to attend 
and address the meeting over those wishing to attend and observe. 
 

AGENDA 
 

 

PROCEDURAL ITEMS  

1.   Apologies  
 To record the names of apologies given. 

 

2.   Membership of Cabinet bodies etc.  
 To give consideration to the approval of alternative arrangements for 

appointments to bodies set up by Cabinet or external bodies, or the 
making or terminating of such appointments. 
 

3.   Disclosure of Interests  
 To receive any disclosure of interests from Members and Officers in 

matters to be discussed. 
Note: Councillors are reminded of their obligations to declare disclosable 
pecuniary interests, personal and/or prejudicial interests in accordance 
with legislation and the Council’s Code of Conduct. 
 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack



4.   To note any request from Councillors to make representations on an 
agenda item.  

 Note: Councillors wishing to speak about a particular agenda item are 
required to register with Democratic Services three clear working days 
before the meeting (contact: democracy@winchester.gov.uk or 01962 
848 264).  Councillors will normally be invited by the Chairperson to 
speak during the appropriate item (after the Cabinet Member’s 
introduction and questions from other Cabinet Members). 
 

BUSINESS ITEMS  

5.   Public Participation  
  

– to note the names of members of the public wishing to speak on general 
matters affecting the District or on agenda items (in the case of the latter, 
representations will normally be received at the time of the agenda item, after 
the Cabinet Member’s introduction and any questions from Cabinet 
Members).  
NB members of the public are required to register with Democratic Services 
three clear working days before the meeting (contact: 
democracy@winchester.gov.uk or 01962 848 264).   
 

Members of the public and visiting councillors may speak at Cabinet, provided 
they have registered to speak three working days in advance.  Please contact 
Democratic Services by 5pm on Thursday 16 December 2021 via 
democracy@winchester.gov.uk or (01962) 848 264 to register to speak and 
for further details. 

6.   Leader and Cabinet Members' Announcements  
 

 

7.   Central Winchester Regeneration (CWR) Outline Business Case (less 
exempt appendix) (Pages 5 - 286) 

 Key Decision (CAB3322) 

8.   EXEMPT BUSINESS:  

 To consider whether in all the circumstances of the case the public interest in 
maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the 
information. 
 
(i) To pass a resolution that the public be excluded from the meeting 

during the consideration of the following items of business because it is 
likely that, if members of the public were present, there would be 
disclosure to them of ‘exempt information’ as defined by Section 100 (I) 
and Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972. 

 
 
 
 

mailto:democracy@winchester.gov.uk


9.   Central Winchester Regeneration (CWR) Outline Business Case (exempt 
appendix)  

 Key Decision (CAB3322 Appendix E) 

Lisa Kirkman 
Strategic Director and Monitoring Officer 

All of the Council’s publicly available agendas, reports and minutes are 
available to view and download from the Council’s Website and are also open 
to inspection at the offices of the council.  As part of our drive to minimise our 
use of paper we do not provide paper copies of the full agenda pack at 
meetings. We do however, provide a number of copies of the agenda front 
sheet at the meeting which contains the QR Code opposite. Scanning this 
code enables members of the public to easily access all of the meeting papers 
on their own electronic device. Please hold your device’s camera or QR code 
App over the QR Code so that it's clearly visible within your screen and you 

will be redirected to the agenda pack. 

 

 
 
14 December 2021 
 
Agenda Contact: Nancy Graham, Senior Democratic Services Officer 
Tel: 01962 848 235, Email: ngraham@winchester.gov.uk 
 
*With the exception of exempt items, Agenda, reports and previous minutes are 
available on the Council’s Website www.winchester.gov.uk 
 
 
CABINET – Membership 2021/22 
 
Chairperson: Councillor Thompson (Leader and Cabinet Member for Partnership 
Working) 
Councillor Cutler (Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Finance and Service 
Quality) 
 
Councillor - Cabinet Member 
Clear - Cabinet Member for Communities and Wellbeing 
Gordon-Smith - Cabinet Member for Built Environment 
Learney - Cabinet Member for Housing and Asset Management 
Tod - Cabinet Member for Economic Recovery 
Williams - Cabinet Member for Climate Emergency 
 
Quorum = 3 Members 
 
Corporate Priorities: 
As Cabinet is responsible for most operational decisions of the Council, its work 
embraces virtually all elements of the Council Strategy. 
 
 
 
 
 

https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
http://www.winchester.gov.uk/


Public Participation at meetings 
Representations will be limited to a maximum of 3 minutes, subject to a maximum 15 
minutes set aside for all questions and answers.  
 
To reserve your place to speak, you are asked to register with Democratic 
Services three clear working days prior to the meeting – please see public 
participation agenda item below for further details.  People will be invited to speak in 
the order that they have registered, subject to the maximum time period allowed for 
speaking not being exceeded.  Public Participation is at the Chairperson’s discretion. 
 
 
Filming and Broadcast Notification 
This meeting will be recorded and broadcast live on the Council’s website. The 
meeting may also be recorded and broadcast by the press and members of the 
public – please see the Access to Information Procedure Rules within the Council's 
Constitution for further information, which is available to view on the Council’s 
website. 
 
Disabled Access 
 
Disabled access is normally available, but please phone Democratic Services on 
01962 848 264 or email democracy@winchester.gov.uk to ensure that the necessary 
arrangements are in place. 
 
Terms Of Reference 
 
Included within the Council’s Constitution (Part 3, Section 2) which is available here 
 

https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=352&MId=2032&info=1&Ver=4
https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=352&MId=2032&info=1&Ver=4
https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=352&MId=2032&info=1&Ver=4


  
 

CAB3322 
CABINET 

 
 
 

REPORT TITLE: CENTRAL WINCHESTER REGENERATION - OUTLINE 
BUSINESS CASE 
 
22ND DECEMBER 2021 

REPORT OF CABINET MEMBER: Cllr Kelsie Learney - Cabinet Member for 
Housing and Asset Management  
  

Contact Officer: Veryan Lyons    Tel No: 01962 848596   Email 
vlyons@winchester.gov.uk  
 
WARD(S):  TOWN WARDS  
 
 
 

 

 
PURPOSE 

Central Winchester Regeneration (CWR) is a once in a lifetime opportunity to 
transform the centre of our historic county city, bringing homes for local families, 
providing jobs for local people, making a visit to this heritage city one which will be 
remembered. The council recognises the role it plays in bringing forward sensitive 
development, adapting to the challenges faced by a new generation and critically to 
be delivered through the lens of responding to climate change. 
 
The CWR Development Proposals, based on the guidance of the CWR 
Supplementary Planning Document (SPD), can be seen at Appendix H. The 
proposals illustrate how the area can be transformed into a vibrant and creative 
quarter which includes creative and cultural space, a hotel, residential units and 
exemplary public realm and open spaces.  Following approval of the CWR 
Development Proposals at Cabinet on 10 March 2021 (CAB3281), Cabinet approved 
the Strategic Outline Case on 21 July 2021 (CAB3303) and that preparation of the 
outline business case and that preparation of the necessary procurement documents 
could commence. These documents would provide the framework for the 
procurement of a single development partner for the proposed development site (the 
Defined Site), located within the CWR Supplementary Planning Document red line 
area (CWR SPD area). 
 
This report sets out the Outline Business Case (OBC) for the Defined Site, building 
on work done to complete the SOC which identified the preferred way forward. The 
report sets out and recommends the procurement process to source a development 

Page 5

Agenda Item 7

mailto:vlyons@winchester.gov.uk


  CAB3322 
 

 

partner and sets out the key commercial principles that the council will apply during 
the procurement process.  

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

That Cabinet; 

1. Approves and adopts the Outline Business Case set out at Appendix D and 

Exempt Appendix E and notes that a Full Business Case will be presented to 

Cabinet for approval as indicated in the Outline Business Case and 

authorises the Strategic Director with responsibility for the Central 

Winchester Regeneration project to proceed with the preparation of the Full 

Business Case. 

That subject to the agreement of Full Council (rec 8 below), that Cabinet; 

2. Agrees to adopt a 70% quality to 30% commercial evaluation weighting as a 

derogation from the council’s Contract Procedure Rules (paragraph 29) in 

order to reflect the council’s aim for a high-quality scheme and to use the 

competitive dialogue procurement procedure. 

3. Agrees to adopt the Stage 1 Selection Questionnaire Suitability Technical 

Questions and associated weightings as set out at Appendix A. 

4. Agrees to adopt the procurement Stage 2 Evaluation Award Criteria and 

associated weightings as set out at Appendix B.  

5. Agrees to adopt the commercial approach contained in the Commercial 

Case of the Outline Business Case and the Commercial Principles Paper set 

out at Appendix C and in particular to note the Central Winchester 

Regeneration procurement will be on the basis of a single developer 

delivering the scheme under a development agreement as decided at 

CAB3303. 

6. Delegates authority to the Strategic Director with responsibility for the 

Central Winchester Regeneration project in consultation with the Portfolio 

Holder Asset Management to finalise all documentation for the procurement 

process, including any minor or necessary amendments and to progress 

such procurement, using the competitive dialogue procedure, approve and 

take forward short listed bidders. At the conclusion of the procurement 

process Cabinet approval will be sought for the appointment of the preferred 

development partner. 

7. Approve expenditure of £733,000 from the remaining £1.085m budget 

Page 6



  CAB3322 
 

 

allocated to the Central Winchester Regeneration project to enable officers 

to progress the procurement and preparation of a Full Business Case. 

That Cabinet refer to Full Council to; 

8. Authorise the Strategic Director with responsibility for the Central Winchester 

Regeneration project to initiate and conduct the procurement process for the 

selection of a development partner for the Central Winchester Regeneration 

project. 

 

Page 7



  CAB3322 
 

 

 

IMPLICATIONS: 
 
1 COUNCIL PLAN OUTCOME  

Regeneration of central Winchester is a key priority for the council and 
supports the Council Plan priorities by working to deliver vibrant new mixed 
use development that will be creative and innovative.  

1.1 Tackling the Climate Emergency and Creating a Greener District 

The city council has declared a Climate Emergency and is committed to 
sustainable development. Our Carbon Neutrality Action Plan ensures all 
council activity is undertaken with a view to supporting our commitment to 
achieving net zero carbon emissions. We will be working with partners to 
ensure that development in the Central Winchester Regeneration (CWR) area 
is undertaken sustainably. The proposed development would align to this 
ambition. 

1.2 Homes for all 

Development on the site will provide for residential units aimed at meeting the 
need of the younger generation. This approach contributes to the homes for 
all objective by filling the existing gap of affordable, smaller units that the 
market is unlikely to provide. By meeting the needs of the younger generation, 
resilience is built in to the local economy to balance the growing age gap. 

1.3 Vibrant local economy 

The CWR development proposals incorporate the objectives and guidance set 
out within the Central Winchester Regeneration Supplementary Planning 
Document (CWR SPD) and will support a vibrant local economy by working to 
fill the gap of affordable and flexible commercial space, enhancing the 
evening economy offer and creating an area aimed at attracting and retaining 
the young and creative talent in the city. 

The council’s Green Economic Development Strategy sets out the opportunity 
to build a cluster of national significance in creativity, design and related 
heritage and nature/land based professional services along with the 
opportunity to deepen a creativity network of scale. This development, 
together with other emerging proposals across the city, would therefore 
support the economic development in line with the council’s already stated 
ambitions 

1.4 Living well 

The provision of improved green and open space across the CWR area will 
encourage residents and visitors to spend and enjoy more time outside and, 
with the emphasis on pedestrians and cyclists, will also promote active travel 
and improve air quality. This will have positive impact on both physical and 

Page 8



  CAB3322 
 

 

 

mental health and work to promote the health and wellbeing of those living, 
working and playing in the area.  

1.5 Your services, your voice 

Public views have been taken into account through the adoption of the Central 
Winchester Regeneration Supplementary Planning Document (CWR SPD) 
and the subsequent CWR development proposals and as regeneration of the 
central Winchester area comes forward, there will continue to be regular 
opportunities for the public to engage in the process. 

 

2 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  

2.1 Following the commissioning of work in 2016 to produce and subsequently in 
2018; adopt the CWR SPD, Cabinet has previously approved revenue 
expenditure of £2.218m. This includes £915,000 that has been spent from the 
additional provisional sum of £2m approved as part of the general fund budget 
in February 2021. A total capital budget of £935,000 has been approved, all of 
which is either spent, committed or allocated. 

2.2 Revenue 

Spent Committed Allocated 

£1,460,569 £76,917 £680,642 

This includes the CWR SPD and 
supporting reports, specialist 
consultant advice, legal and 
accounting fees, archaeology 
investigation works, bus provision 
due diligence, the outline business 
case, procurement documentation 
preparation, communications and 
consultation support, lower high 
street and Broadway designs and 
feasibility studies for meanwhile 
uses, Kings Walk and a hotel. Site 
due diligence 

This includes 
further 
archaeology 
investigation 
works, legal 
fees, and 
communications 
and 
consultation 
support. 

This includes further 
archaeology 
investigation works, 
communications and 
consultation, 
planning strategy, 
marketing materials, 
legal fees and fees 
associated with 
Kings Walk 
meanwhile uses 
strategy. 

 

2.3 Capital 

Spent  Committed Allocated 

£81,342 £17,137 £836,521 

Page 9



  CAB3322 
 

 

 

This is the works to bring 
Coitbury House back into 
use as temporary 
accommodation and 
Friarsgate Medical Centre 
replacement interim public 
space design and pre-app 
fees. 

This includes 
fees for 
essential works 
to Coitbury 
House and 
Kings Walk, and 
survey work for 
Friarsgate 
Medical Centre. 

This includes outstanding 
works to Coitbury House, 
demolition of the Friarsgate 
Medical Centre and 
replacement interim public 
space. Immediate short 
term improvement works to 
the ground floor of Kings 
Walk and surrounding 
public realm. 

 

2.4 Included in the revenue expenditure detailed above is £986,600 of work 
commissioned from JLL and ARUP in their roles as key advisors to the CWR 
project.  Work carried out includes, but is not exclusive to, the CWR Roadmap 
Review, Competitive Positioning study, testing proposals for the site, 
assessing delivery models, advice and planning with regard to bus provision, 
ongoing work on viability, financial analysis, planning and soft market testing 
to support the CWR development proposals, land value calculations and 
preparation of the Strategic Outline Case and Outline Business Case.   In 
addition to JLL and Arup, specialist legal and financial advice has been taken 
throughout the process through the appointment of Browne Jacobson and 
31ten Consulting.  

2.5 All spend over £500 is published on the council’s website in accordance with 
the council’s transparency responsibilities. 

2.6 An initial review has been undertaken to ascertain the likely revenue budget 
required to progress the next stage of the project.  

a) £733,000 from the remaining £1.085m of the £2m budget (leaving 
£352,000) set aside for CWR is required to manage and complete the 
procurement process for a development partner:  

b) Preparation of the Full Business Case 

c) Market engagement and running the procurement process 

d) Concluding the development agreement with the selected development 
partner 

2.7 The financial Implications of the Outline Business Case are set out in Exempt 
Appendix E which sets out the proposal is commercially viable. However, the 
council will need to consider the loss of income generated from the Defined 
Site. Similarly the council will need to be cognisant of the financing costs 
relating to land assembly in recent years. 

2.8 The land assembly costs since 2014 have totalled £15m and included the 
acquisition of the Friarsgate Medical Centre, the Bus Station and the Kings 

Page 10



  CAB3322 
 

 

 

Walk/Middle Brook St properties.  £4.1m of this was financed from capital 
receipts and the remainder was funded by ‘internal borrowing’ from the 
council’s own cash balances. The financing costs for the £10.9m borrowing 
are met from the income generated from the assets.  That income will be lost 
to the council when assets are transferred to the development.  

2.9 The net revenue impact on the Council’s General Fund of the loss of income 
amounts to £669,000 per annum.  This does not take account of additional 
council tax or given the uncertainties on future business rates retention; any 
business rate income that the site will generate which will directly fund 
additional services to residents and businesses in the development.   

2.10 The procurement process requires the bidders to make proposals as to how 
they will address the impact on the council’s revenue, whether that be by the 
council retaining some income stream from the development; an increased 
overall value/capital receipt sufficient to offset these costs; or by securing 
additional grant funding to support the development. It could be that 
adjustments to the development quantum is proposed by the bidders although 
any such proposal would have to remain within the CWR SPD ranges.  

2.11 The details of how the development partner can address the above revenue 
impacts will form an important part of the procurement and the Full Business 
Case. At that stage, the council will need to determine whether the final 
proposals are acceptable and affordable and whether any residual costs can 
be absorbed within the council’s medium term financial strategy. 

2.12 The Financial Case makes no assumptions of grant funding from any external 
sources or additional contributions from the council’s Community 
Infrastructure Levy (CIL) funds, both of which provide scope to improve the 
overall affordability of the development. 

2.13 There are a number of grant opportunities currently for regeneration, 
infrastructure and affordable housing projects.  However, all require worked 
up detailed proposals and near “shovel ready” projects with clear delivery 
timetables.  Scope for grant funding to address the revenue impact of the 
development and the financing costs of land assembly will be included in the 
Full Business Case. 

2.14 Report CAB3292 March 2021 included a proposed CIL allocation of £2m 
towards the infrastructure costs of the CWR development. The council 
currently has CIL balances totalling £13.4m, £6m of which has been 
generated from development in Winchester.  £7m of this reserve is 
unallocated and this sum will increase annually (the CWR development will 
generate in the region of £1.5m CIL receipts alone).  The objective to deliver 
exceptional public realm and the infrastructure costs associated with 
complying with the CWR SPD will have a direct and significant impact on 
scheme values and viability.  Whilst a formal bid for CIL funding and outcome 
of the bid will only be possible once full details of the final scheme are known, 
it is considered appropriate to reserve up to £4m of CIL funding to support the 
delivery of the CWR SPD.  Further information on this will be included within 

Page 11



  CAB3322 
 

 

 

the next CIL Update report to Cabinet.  Ultimately, the level of CIL allocation 
required to support the delivery of the CWR SPD will be less if the Council or 
development partner is able to secure alternative infrastructure funding. 

 
3 LEGAL AND PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS 

3.1 The council has taken external legal advice from Browne Jacobson LLP on 
potential procurement options, and on the Commercial Case presented in the 
Outline Business Case (OBC). Legal implications are addressed under the 
following headings. 

Local Authority Powers 

3.2 Section 1(1) of the Localism Act 2011 introduced the “general power of 
competence” for local authorities, defined as “the power to do anything that 
individuals generally may do” and which expressly includes the power to do 
something for the benefit of the authority, its area or persons resident or 
present in its area”. The generality of the power conferred by subsection (1) is 
not limited by the existence of any other power of the authority which (to any 
extent) overlaps the general power. Therefore, this power may be relied on to 
carry out the regeneration of central Winchester as recommended in this 
report. 

3.3 Council has powers under section 9 the Housing Act 1985 to provide housing 
accommodation including by the disposal of land to a person who intends to 
provide housing accommodation on it. The council also has the power under 
section 123 of the Local Government Act 1972 to dispose of land held by it in 
any manner it wishes, but shall not dispose of land under that section for a 
consideration less than the best that can reasonably be obtained without the 
consent of the Secretary of State. The Secretary of State’s general consents 
are set out in the Local Government Act 1972 General Disposal Consent 
(England) 2003, under which disposal of land for less than the best 
consideration that can reasonably be obtained is permitted when the local 
authority considers that the purpose of the disposal is likely to contribute 
towards the promotion or improvement of economic, social or environmental 
well-being in respect of the whole or any part of its area or of all or any 
persons resident or present in its area, up to a maximum discount of 
£2,000,000. 

3.4 The general power of competence referred to above is subject to any express 
prohibitions, restrictions or prohibitions imposed by statute which mean that 
the Council is unable to rely on that general power. External legal advice 
confirms that there are no such express limitations preventing the adoption of 
the recommendations. 

3.5 The council’s objectives for the regeneration of Central Winchester 
Regeneration area are described in this report and its main purpose is not 
investment within the meaning of section 12 of the Local Government Act 
2003. The purpose is the advancement of the regeneration of the city, which 

Page 12



  CAB3322 
 

 

 

is a long-term public benefit. As such, the council is not under an obligation to 
have regard to statutory guidance on the exercise of investment powers under 
the Local Government Act 2003. Likewise, the council is not pursuing a 
commercial purpose requiring it to set up a company (pursuant to section 4 of 
the Localism Act 2011).  

3.6 Accordingly, Cabinet is advised that the adoption of the recommendations is 
within the powers of the council. 

Exercise of Local Authority Powers 

3.7 In reaching a decision, Cabinet members should consider whether resultant 
expenditure (and other financial consequences) is prudent, having regard to 
the Council’s general fiduciary duties. It must also reach a decision by 
reference to all relevant considerations, disregarding irrelevant ones, and be 
satisfied that the recommended course of action is a rational course of action 
for the Council. The Report details the justification for the regeneration of 
central Winchester including the financial implications involved.  

3.8 This report also sets out the results of engagement at Section 6 that has 
taken place since Cabinet’s approval of the Strategic Outline Case (SOC) on 
21 July 2021 section 6 and to which Cabinet should have regard.  

3.9 Consideration should also be given to the risks and costs involved including 
those set out in the CWR risk register at Appendix F. Other risk factors 
include the risk of legal challenge to the decisions now to be taken and 
throughout the procurement of a developer partner, having regard to the risk 
mitigation measures that will be applied. The representations made regarding 
the scheme (including any that intimate that there may be a legal challenge) 
are relevant factors to take into account, but do not of themselves oblige the 
council to take a particular course of action. 

3.10 It is also of importance for Cabinet members to give consideration to the 
alternative options for the delivery of the regeneration of central Winchester, 
but having regard to its previous consideration and decision on that issue in 
relation to the approval of the SOC. 

Procurement 

3.11 Full detail of the procurement approach is set out in section 13 and, the 
council, as a contracting authority, must adhere to the rules set out in the 
Public Contracts Regulations 2015 (the Regulations). The threshold above 
which the award of public services contracts must comply with the full rigour 
of the Regulations is £189,330 and for works contract the sum is £4,733,252. 
For over-threshold contracts, contracting authorities must, among other 
things, publish a contract notice and thereafter follow the Regulations.  

3.12 This project will exceed these thresholds and would qualify as a works 
contract because the terms intended for the development agreement will 
result in there being enforceable obligations to carry out specified works. 

Page 13



  CAB3322 
 

 

 

3.13 In conducting the procurement, the council will be bound to observe the 
general principles enshrined in the Regulations, namely openness, 
transparency, non-discrimination, and confidentiality. The council’s Contract 
Procedure Rules also recognise and require compliance with the Regulations. 
The procurement strategy described in the OBC and in Section 13 of this 
report likewise complies with the Regulations. 

3.14 In electing to adopt a competitive dialogue procedure under the Regulations, 
the council must be satisfied that one of the grounds for using that procedure 
applies; here the justification (under regulation 26) being that “the contract 
cannot be awarded without prior negotiation because of specific 
circumstances related to the nature, the complexity or the legal and financial 
make-up or because of risks attaching to them”. Browne Jacobson confirm the 
availability of this justification in relation to the procurement and this is 
referred to again at paragraph 13.3 of this report, together with further detail of 
the overall procurement strategy in that section 13. 

3.15 Cabinet will be aware that to enable the SOC to be prepared, soft market 
testing took place with certain developers. Under the Regulations (regulation 
40) market consultations “with a view to preparing the procurement and 
informing economic operators of their [the council’s] procurement plans and 
requirements” is permitted. The only caveat being that this must not “have the 
effect of distorting competition” or “result in a violation of the principles of non-
discrimination and transparency”. Accordingly, the procurement strategy and 
its implementation will ensure that no such distortion of competition of 
violation of procurement principles will occur, in particular by ensuring that all 
bidders have access to the same information and that the procurement 
process treats all bidders on an equal footing. 

3.16 The SOC recognised that a land disposal route would mean losing some 
control over how the site is developed. The options of setting up a 50/50 
corporate joint venture or the council acting as master developer were also 
considered but discounted. The conclusion was that securing a single 
developer had advantages over delivery through multiple developers for the 
red line site area. The single developer route will provide the council with 
sufficient control over delivery, in particular through incremental phased 
delivery. The OBC and Commercial Principles Paper describe the 
recommended commercial approach, alternative approaches considered to be 
unsuitable and consequently not recommended, being in summary:  

a) A development agreement with limited council control, other than through 
the council’s planning powers. This approach, whilst allowing a developer 
maximum flexibility and therefore attractive to the market, would risk a 
failure to ensure that core SPD objectives are met for CWR and would not 
enable the council to have any rights over design, phasing, and delivery; 

b) A development agreement that has some limited rights for the council to 
review and comment, but without having an ability to control key features 
of the development via the development agreement and development 

Page 14



  CAB3322 
 

 

 

brief. Although attractive to the market, this approach would also fail to 
achieve the sufficient degree of control and CWR SPD objectives delivery 
which the council is seeking; and 

c) A development agreement with total control vested in the council over all 
aspects of design, phasing and delivery of CWR. This approach would go 
further than the level of control envisaged by the agreed approach under 
the Strategic Outline Case (see paragraph 13.1), would deter market 
interest and transfer development risk to the council from the developer. 

Consideration of Compulsory Purchase Order 

3.17 The use of a public authorities compulsory purchase powers enables 
acquisition of third party interests in land compulsorily where the relevant 
statutory tests are met, and must be progressed concurrently with a strategy 
to acquire the land voluntarily. Compulsory purchase order powers should be 
used only where it is expedient to do so, and only be made and confirmed by 
Cabinet where there is a compelling case in the public interest. Section 226 of 
the Town & Country Planning Act 1990 empowers the council to acquire land 
compulsorily in order to deliver the proper planning of the area, subject to the 
council being satisfied that it thinks the proposed scheme will deliver 
economic, social or environmental wellbeing benefits to the community. 

3.18 As a safeguard to the council, it is proposed that the development agreement 
include a template compulsory purchase order indemnity agreement. The 
purpose of such inclusion is to alert a potential development partner that 
should the necessity arise that they are expected to provide an indemnity to 
the council in relation to the costs associated with the use of such powers, 
should these be required over third party land, and the council consider the 
relevant tests to be met. The indemnity protects the council, for example, 
against provision of all land acquisition costs which must be held by the 
council prior to issue of first notice of an intended acquisition.  

3.19 The CWR SPD states at paragraph 3.11.3 that it envisages that there will be 
no requirement for a CPO with regard to delivery of the site. The 
circumstances where the council would envisage use of the powers are for 
example a statutory undertaker who refuses to part with a small strip of land 
which is integral to the development proposal. It is considered that the use of 
a compulsory purchase order to enable development over an interest of that 
nature, in a manner correctly intended by Parliament, would not result in a 
departure from the CWR SPD. 

Section 123 of the Local Government Act 1972 

3.20 Local authorities are given powers under the Local Government Act 1972 
(LGA) to dispose of land held by them ‘in any manner they wish’ (s123(1) 
LGA). Constraint on this is imposed by s123(2) which states that the disposal 
must be for the best consideration reasonably obtainable unless the authority 
has consent from the Secretary of State. A ‘disposal’ under s123 includes:  

Page 15



  CAB3322 
 

 

 

a) Sale of the freehold interest;  

b) Granting of a lease; and 

c) Granting of an easement.  
 

3.21 The proposed commercial terms for the Central Winchester Regeneration will 
ensure that the best consideration (reasonably obtainable) is achieved for 
land transferred to the developer (whether under a lease or by sale). The 
development agreement will provide for land to only transfer on satisfaction of 
conditions land will transfer in phases on satisfaction of conditions, including 
the agreed phase delivery plan and satisfaction of the s123 duty. 

3.22 All land transfers under the development agreement will take place on the 
basis of an assessment of land value and with the benefit of valuation advice 
at the time. Should it be appropriate to consider a transfer of land at less than 
the best consideration reasonably attainable (subject to further Member 
decision) it would be possible for the council to rely on the Local Government 
Act 1972 General Disposal Consent (England) 2003 or seek specific consent 
from the Secretary of State (see paragraph 3.3 above).  

Subsidy control 

3.23 Browne Jacobson also confirms that the recommendations and their 
implementation give rise to no “Subsidy Control” concerns (i.e. former State 
aid), but that subsidy control will be kept under review and any further 
decisions sought where necessary. The OBC and related documents referred 
to in this report does not involve the provision of any undertaking with an 
unlawful subsidy.   

 

4 WORKFORCE IMPLICATIONS  

4.1 The redevelopment of central Winchester is a considered, deliverable and 
realistic objective.  As indicated in cabinet report CAB3318, pressures on 
council teams in relation to progressing significant regeneration work 
(progressing central Winchester and other regeneration feasibility work, etc) 
will require additional short term resources (£0.4m in 2021/22 and £0.6m in 
2022/23).   

4.2 Work streams and required resource to get to the next stage, which is 
preparation of the Full Business Case include:  

a) Market launch and procurement of a development partner. 

b) Appointment of a preferred developer. 

c) Preparation of the Full Business case including further work on 
affordability, management arrangements for the delivery, and contract 
monitoring and governance. 

Page 16



  CAB3322 
 

 

 

4.3 The council governance follows best practise in line with Prince 2 
methodology. The outline reporting structure, project roles and responsibilities 
are set out in the Management Case of the Outline Business Case Appendix 
D. 

4.4 This internal governance is supported by a cross party Reference Group 
including external experts within relevant specialist fields has been set up to 
provide early and regular engagement throughout the project. The Open 
Forum remains as the primary method to update residents. 

4.5 Clear governance arrangements that will remain in place throughout the life of 
the project will be incorporated in the terms and conditions of the development 
agreement. These are set out within the Commercial Case of the Outline 
Business Case. 

4.6 The final programme, terms of reference, roles and responsibilities will be 
detailed further as part of the Full Business Case. 

 

5 PROPERTY AND ASSET IMPLICATIONS  

5.1 The CWR SPD vision includes social, employment and urban design as 
important factors, and hence sets out a less commercial focus on proposed 
uses than could have been considered if optimising financial value was the 
over-riding priority.  

5.2 Consequently, in terms of making best financial use of assets, the council in 
adopting the CWR SPD, has already decided that the typologies of mixed 
uses proposed will afford a greater community benefit than a purely 
commercially-led scheme.  

5.3 Current net rental income from Council owned assets (including car parking 
income) in Middle Brook Street (properties), Kings Walk and the Bus Station 
(all within the DA defined site) amounts to £669,000 pa. This income will be 
lost unless replaced by alternative income from the new development.  

5.4 No decision has been made regarding the future ownership of land as this is a 
key element which will be considered during the procurement process, and for 
each phase brought forward by the Developer. Leasehold transfer is the 
council’s preferred operating model and default position as it brings the 
benefit of long term income but the developer may propose a different model 
including leasehold or freehold disposal. This may vary across phases and 
will be carefully considered in order that land issues over the ‘whole site’ can 
be properly managed. Particular mention has been made of management of 
public realm and at all times full access across the site will be maintained. 

5.5 The process for the transfer of the land will be such that it may transfer 
freehold or leasehold (or freehold by agreement) to the Developer, or may 

Page 17



  CAB3322 
 

 

 

entail transfer or lease direct to third parties where that is consistent with the 
phase in question (and agreed Development Phase Plan).  

 

6  CONSULTATION AND ENGAGEMENT  

Consultation prior to 21 July 2021 

6.1 Following an 18 month public engagement, a statutory consultation was 
undertaken on the draft Central Winchester Regeneration (CWR) 
Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) from 11 December 2017 and to 5 
February 2018. The CWR SPD was adopted 20 June 2018 by Cabinet.  

6.2 An Open Forum was held on 24 September 2019 to update members of the 
public and stakeholders on the status of the Central Winchester Regeneration 
Project. At the Open Forum,  

a) The council’s newly appointed Strategic Advisors were introduced and 
information given on the work carried out on the Competitive 
Positioning Report. The opportunity to meet the needs of the younger 
generation and enhance the offer for overnight visitors through the 
CWR project was highlighted as a key focus for the CWR project. 

b) Proposals for the refurbishment of Coitbury House were shared and 
comments noted. This project was later put on hold and no action has 
been taken. 

c) Proposals for the transformation of the public realm at the lower section 
of the High Street and Broadway were presented and comments noted. 
Views were incorporated, particularly around the use of water and 
reducing traffic on the Broadway, when the proposals were finalised.   

6.3 Based on the adopted CWR SPD, work was undertaken to explore 
development options for the CWR area and 3 scenarios were presented to 
stakeholders and the public at an Open Forum Event 17 February 2020. 
Feedback from these events was shared with the Open Forum Panel and set 
out in the Cabinet Member Decision Day on 10 March 2020 and considered in 
the preparation of the draft development proposals for the regeneration area. 

6.4 During the period March 2020 to October 2020, a number of stakeholder 
engagement events were held which included working with the community to 
develop public realm guidance, relocation of the bus station and options for 
Kings Walk. These discussions were fed into the draft CWR development 
proposals.  

6.5 Consultation was undertaken on the draft CWR development proposals from 
11 November 2020 to 12 January 2021. Due to COVID 19 restrictions, this 
was carried out virtually and via social media. All information was available via 
a virtual exhibition room which provided access to the formal feedback forms 

Page 18



  CAB3322 
 

 

 

on CitizenSpace. Regular posts were sent out on social media and feedback 
captured.  

6.6 Following the consultation an Open Forum was held on 26 January 2021 to 
share with the public including stakeholders the initial feedback from the 
consultation. Details of the consultation undertaken and feedback from the 
consultation were then shared at Cabinet in March 2021 and are set out in 
CAB3281. 

6.7 An internal briefing was held with all Members to share the conclusions of the 
SOC and preferred way forward on Monday 5 July 2021 in advance of the 
Open Forum to update them on progress and next steps for the CWR project 
Any comments were where appropriate taken into consideration moving 
forward. 

6.8 An Open Forum was held on 5 July 2021 to share with the public including 
stakeholders, the conclusions of the SOC and the proposed next steps for the 
project. The Open Forum was attended by over 90 people.  

Engagement since 21 July 2021 

6.9 Internal briefings were held with all Members week commencing 15th 
November to share the conclusions of the OBC and preferred way forward 
ahead of the Open Forum on Monday 22nd November. Key topics raised at 
the member sessions were; 

a) Greater understanding as to what the proposals include is needed 

b) Greater clarity around phasing is needed 

c) Greater clarity of benefits for older generations 

d) Better explanation as to implications of net zero carbon development 

6.10 The points raised at group briefings have been addressed in this report. 

6.11 The Open Forum was held on 22 November 2021 attended by over 80 people 
and responses to queries included: 

6.12 How are we ensuring that the project aligns with both the Movement Strategy 
and the Local Plan?  

Clear examples were given about how this is being achieved through close 
collaboration of teams working together across the Council and with 
Hampshire County Council. For example, officers are working with the 
Winchester Movement Strategy team and have published a joint statement, 
with Hampshire County Council, on our approach to the Winchester 
Movement Strategy. 

6.13 What are the figures included in the Economic Case based on, as well as the 
rationale for the demand for the spaces proposed - and how robust are they? 

Page 19



  CAB3322 
 

 

 

Explanation was provided about the methodology behind the figures and 
assumptions made, as well as the presence of the demographic likely to 
benefit from the development. The rationale is set out as part of the Economic 
Case in the OBC at section 3 and Appendix E – BCR Assumptions Research 
Sources. 

6.14 How we are reflecting the importance of climate change, in particular the 
importance of buses?  

Examples of how the scheme will improve the bus solution and increase 
capacity, based on best practice examples, were shared. In particular, Bath 
was referred to as an example which specifically illustrates an integrated bus 
and rail solution that works well. 

6.15 The greenhouse gas implications of the project versus leaving the site 
undeveloped  

It was explained that the process being followed is in line the Green Book 
guidance and that specific sustainability credentials and the bidder proposals 
will be rigorously assessed through the selection and tender process. This is 
reflected in the Stage 1 Selection Questionnaire Suitability Technical 
Questions at Appendix A and the Stage 2 Evaluation Award Criteria and 
associated weightings at Appendix B.  

6.16 The need for further consultation to be undertaken on the development brief 
Appendix G.  

It was highlighted that the creation of the development brief has been 
undertaken in light of previous consultations on the CWR SPD and the 
development proposals. 

6.17 The importance of ensuring that the regeneration of the area remains the 
focus of the project.  

Explanation was provided that regenerating the site is fundamental to the 
vision of the project.  

6.18 The importance of the public realm, and ensuring consistency with the CWR 
SPD, and not allowing the site to be dominated by privately owned public 
space.  

The public realm strategy was discussed and it was explained that this gives a 
clear direction of travel emphasising the importance of the public realm and 
decisions on the detail of this will be made in due course. The importance of 
public realm and ensuring consistency with the CWR SPD is reflected in the 
Stage 1 Selection Questionnaire Suitability Technical Questions at Appendix 
A and the Stage 2 Evaluation Award Criteria and associated weightings at 
Appendix B. 

Page 20



  CAB3322 
 

 

 

6.19 How will project risks and resource requirements be borne as between the 
council and developer?  

It was explained that the commercial terms will allocate roles and 
responsibilities between the parties from the outset based on who is best able 
to manage risks and provide resources. 

6.20 Throughout the above consultation reference has been made to the current 
process being no different to that of the previous Silver Hill scheme.  

6.21 The process for appointing a developer does differ in a number of respects 
from the previous Silver Hill scheme and there are important changes in 
overall approach which includes: a portion of the CWR SPD site area is being 
brought forward, ownership of the Defined Site is in control of the city council, 
the CWR SPD is in place which has been through extensive public 
consultation and sets the guidelines as to how development is to be brought 
forward and there is to be a statutory procurement process as described 
below. 

6.22 The recommendations request approval to initiate and undertake a regulated 
procurement process for the selection of a development partner which follows 
the statutory criteria on the commercial terms described in this report. In the 
previous scheme there was no competitive process to appoint the developer, 
the developer changed hands and the development agreement was varied on 
three occasions (from signing in 2009 through to 2014). The procurement 
approach proposed will be fundamentally different particularly in respect of 
there being a competitive process.   

6.23 Insolvency, abandonment and ceasing trading will be default events that 
entitle the council to terminate the agreement. The council will owe no liability 
to the developer and will be able to either agree an assignment to another 
developer (on the same terms) or re-procure. Land not yet transferred will 
remain in the council’s ownership and any land under development (where 
land has transferred following the satisfaction of conditions by the developer) 
will be subject to rights of step-in (to complete). A third party funder may enjoy 
prior rights to step-in. 

6.24 Particular mention was made of the importance of archaeology at the Scrutiny 
Committee and this is well recognised within the project. 

6.25 The council hosted an archaeology day on 6 October, offering local residents 
the chance to see some of the tools used in the investigations that have been 
undertaken thus far. Keith Wilkinson from ARCA, University of Winchester 
spoke to over 50 interested local residents on site during an informal drop-in 
session in the morning. This was followed by a presentation hosted online 
highlighting some of the findings so far, and a Q&A session with the Central 
Winchester Regeneration Archaeology Advisory Panel. Following the 
discussion and recommendation of the panel, an archaeology statement has 
been drafted that outlines the councils expectations to potential developers as 

Page 21



  CAB3322 
 

 

 

to how archaeology is to be approached and this forms appendix 9.7 to the 
Development Brief.  

6.26 The CWR Reference Group as outlined in CAB3303 has met 4 times in the 
period September to November 2021 to review documents and discuss 
progress. All comments made by the CWR Reference Group have been 
considered and where appropriate fed into the preparation of final documents 
and decisions. 

Consideration by the Scrutiny Committee 6 December 2021 

6.27 The draft Cabinet report and associated appendices were considered at a 
special single issue meeting of the council’s Scrutiny Committee on 6 
December 2021. The draft minutes from the meeting can be seen at Appendix 
J. 

6.28 A summary presentation of the CWR project was provided by the Head of 
Programme and members of the committee raised questions throughout the 
meeting that were addressed by the Head of Programme, the Strategic 
Director, the Cabinet Member and the council’s external advisors. In summing 
up the Chair of the Committee proposed the following points be forwarded to 
the Cabinet for consideration and are show at Appendix J. The points have 
been grouped so similar issues are set out together and are not set out in the 
order they were raised at committee. These points have been considered, 
with responses set out below and any updates to documentation highlighted. 

6.29 Additional narrative is required i.e. to demonstrate the bigger picture, 
how did we get here, where are we going? 

Additional narrative to highlight the progress of the project from the adoption 

of the CWR SPD in June 2018 has been added to section 11 of this report, 

Supporting Information. Section 14 of this report, Onward Timetable now 

contains information on the anticipated time line and process following Full 

Council in January 2022. 

No change in documentation proposed 

6.30 How does the council hold the developer to account and ensure they 
deliver the whole development and not cherry pick the most valuable 
bits and leave the rest? 

The Development Agreement will contain an obligation that the developer 

procures the carrying out and completion of the development in accordance 

with the Development Brief. This obligation will be met by reference to their 

Delivery Plan which will recognise phased delivery (and then by way of plans 

for each phase that are approved by the council). Therefore the phasing will 

not be a matter entirely for the developer to determine and if they abandon the 

development, that will be a default triggering a right to terminate and for the 

council to recover its costs by way of indemnity. The development will be 

Page 22



  CAB3322 
 

 

 

phased and the draw-down of land by the developer will only occur on prior 

satisfaction of certain conditions by the developer.  

No change to documentation proposed 

6.31 Freehold vs leasehold – can this be reworded to be clearer. 

This point has been further addressed in paragraph 5.4 of this report and in 

amendments to the Key Commercial Principles paper, paragraph 11.3 at 

Appendix C. 

Key commercial principles updated 

6.32 Consider removing use of compulsory purchase order powers. 

The legislative background and consideration of the use of compulsory 

purchase order powers and the envisaged circumstances has been 

addressed in paragraphs 3.17, 3.18 and 3.19 of this report. 

No change in documentation 

6.33 Reference of archaeology statement and whether the wording can be 
improved to make it clearer.  Archaeology report to be appended to 
Cabinet report 

The council is currently undertaking a geoarchaeological borehole survey with 
2021 findings showing that there is a considerable depth of archaeological 
deposits which are likely to be well preserved. The appointed development 
partner will be required through the development agreement to ensure a 
robust approach is undertaken to the treatment of archaeology with the 
objective to mitigate the impact of development on archaeology. The Local 
Planning Authority (LPA) will agree with the appointed development partner 
the scope and detail of the final archaeological requirements.  

The council has prepared an archaeology statement with input from the CWR 
Archaeology Panel which sets out what is expected with regard to the 
approach to archaeology on the Defined Site. This statement forms appendix 
9.7 of the Development Brief and the brief can be seen at Appendix G of this 
report.  

Should the archaeological requirements result in costs that render the 
development proposals unviable, the appointed development partner, in 
discussions with the LPA, will need to agree and adopt the appropriate 
mitigation measures as outlined in the technical guidance through the 
planning process.  

Development Brief updated 

6.34 Review risk register, developer goes bust, partial development, legal 
challenge, big archaeological challenge 

Page 23



  CAB3322 
 

 

 

The importance of archaeology is well recognised and paragraph 6.33 of this 

report has been added.  

Addressed in the risk register at Appendix F 

6.35 Review what the phases are called to avoid confusion - clarify please. 
Clarify phases for whole site of phasing in defined site financials 

There was considerable debate at the Scrutiny Committee which usefully set 

out that the phasing descriptions were not wholly clear due to similar 

descriptions being set out against the CWR SPD site and Defined Site. 

This has been addressed in OBC Appendix D – Phasing Options. The 

phasing accords with the phasing adopted in the Financial case calculations.  

Outline Business Case updated 

6.36 Repayment costs, confirmation required that no borrowing requirement 
to fund CWR 

Additional commentary regarding the land assembly costs and how they were 

financed have been included in section 2. An illustration of the potential 

impact of “gap funding” has also been included in the Exempt Appendix E. 

No change in documentation proposed 

6.37 The absolute adherence to carbon neutrality plans should be firmed up 
in some of the descriptions 

The Development Brief has been reviewed which clearly sets out expectations 

that a development partner is expected to adhere to the council’s Carbon 

Neutrality Action Plan. 

Regarding the revenue implications, it is widely understood that delivering net-

zero carbon development and best in class sustainability can result in higher 

development costs. There is also a growing evidence base to demonstrate 

that occupiers and residents will pay more for sustainable space. Therefore 

an increase in build costs associated with sustainability measures should also 

be coupled with an increase in the values or rents achieved for the built 

product. 

No change to documentation proposed 

6.38 Please re look at the questions to ensure they are focused on the people 
who delivered the relevant example rather than the company.  

The questions in stage 1 Selection Questions have been reviewed. The 

important point is that the track record and experience of the potential 

development partner is evaluated because it is important to understand the 

capability of the wider company resources. But at Stage 2 (i.e. tender stage) 

bidders are required to identify their core team (and the individuals) and have 

been asked to submit CVs in order to assist with an understanding and 

Page 24



  CAB3322 
 

 

 

evaluation of competence and expertise. Terms will be included in the 

development agreement to tie that core team into delivery. 

 No change to documentation proposed 

6.39 “Design” is imperative, consider reviewing the 1,000 - word count to 
enable better demonstration 

Bidders are required to provide responses to the questions set out in the 

Selection Questionnaire and ITPD within set word limits. The word limits, 

which have been set for each section, have been carefully considered by the 

project team through reference to the weighting applied to each section and 

the number of minimum requirements bidders are required to respond to. 

Word limits have been set to ensure that bidders provide concise and 

purposeful answers which directly address the questions whilst referring to 

case studies to further support their responses where appropriate.  

No change to documentation proposed 

6.40 Capital - the evaluation of financial standing will be assessed elsewhere 
– could we have clarification. 

The evaluation criteria for the financial standing of bidders are set out in Part 

B of the Stage 1 Selection Stage Questionnaire (Appendix 1). Applicants are 

required to provide two years’ accounts and the evaluation approach is 

addressed in paragraph 13.15 of this report.  

No change to the documentation proposed 

Additional explanation in para 13.15 

6.41 How will we ensure we look for local people to be involved in the 
development? 

The Stage 2 Evaluation Criteria, set out in Appendix B has been reviewed and 

appropriate text has been added to address this point. Bidders will be asked 

to articulate how their procurement approach would support the local 

economy.  

Evaluation Criteria updated 

6.42 Clarify how we would engage as part of the procurement process 

The council’s process of procurement is set out in Section 13 of this report 

with additional commentary set out in Section 3: Legal and Procurement 

Implications. However, it is important that the process of procurement in 

understood and where possible local residents are informed, this is addressed 

in Section 14 of this report, Onward Timetable. 

6.43 Page 129 - use the posts rather than names of staff 

This has been addressed in the Management Case of the OBC, Appendix D. 

Page 25



  CAB3322 
 

 

 

Outline Business Case updated 

6.44 Appendix G - ref the sources in the business case - what are the 
assumptions and sources as referenced in the economic business case 
- please check.  Economic Case – Background sources not listed 

This has been addressed in the OBC which can be seen at Appendix D to this 

report. The OBC includes, at appendix E, information on the sources and 

assumptions used to calculate the Benefits Cost Ratio in the Economic Case. 

No change to documentation required 

In addition, this ‘challenge’ has now been inserted to the project risk register, 

seen at Appendix F. 

Risk Register updated 

6.45 CWR to come back to Scrutiny as an interim update item – i.e. early new 
municipal year. 

Addressed in Section 14, Onward Timetable. 

6.46 In addition to the comments made by Scrutiny Committee, a public speaker 

set out that the chosen approach is complicated and does not allow for 

effective competition together with concerns around approach to archaeology. 

6.47 The chosen approach approved in CAB3303 has followed due process and 

been approved at each stage by Cabinet. Additionally numerous public, 

stakeholder and Member engagement events have been held as outlined at 

Section 6 of this report. Responses at these events has been fed back into 

the process and proposals by the project team. The procurement process is 

statutory and set up to enable effective completion and laid out in detail in 

Section 13.  Archaeology is addressed at paragraph 6.33 of this report. 

6.48 The City of Winchester Trust also addressed the meeting and made reference 
to a letter sent to all members of the committee. The Cabinet member 
indicated that she had not seen the letter and a copy was later provided. 

6.49 The Trust made a number of comments regarding the procurement process, 
archaeology, single development partner, site boundaries and the Movement 
Strategy. 

 

7 ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS 

7.1 The regeneration of the central Winchester area has the opportunity to 
showcase sustainable development and help meet the council’s priority of a 
carbon neutral district. The concept of city centre living and the 15 minute city 
also help shape a sustainable community with consideration of the carbon 
emission impact of development, transport implications, nitrate mitigation and 
the sustainability of the scheme is a critical part of the development process. 

Page 26



  CAB3322 
 

 

 

The final CWR development proposals will be sit within the policy framework 
set by the CWR SPD, Air Quality SPD, the Council Plan and the Council’s 
Carbon Neutrality Action Plan.  

7.2 Several other policies support the council’s commitment to sustainability, 
notably the Green Economic Development Plan and the commitment to 
develop sustainable new build housing through the Housing Asset 
Management Plan. The Council Plan priority of tackling the climate 
emergency and creating a greener district will be a key influencer in the 
development proposals 

7.3 In addition to the council’s in house team, JLL provide advice on matters of 
sustainability and more locally WinACC are engaged through the Open Forum 
Panel.  

7.4 Consideration has been given to the carbon impact of wider re-use of existing 
structures on the development site, rather than wholescale demolition. But the 
advantages of this approach should be balanced against the additional 
challenges of creating a carbon neutral building in an existing structure. 
Clearly the proposals for all buildings will be carefully evaluated in any 
development proposal. 

7.5 The council acknowledges that taking steps to contribute towards net zero 
carbon will incur costs but that the resulting uplift in values may compensate 
or even exceed the extra cost involved. At the OBC stage of the business 
case process there is insufficient detail to identify the true cost and revenue 
impact of adopting Net Zero Carbon but this will be further explored at the Full 
Business Case.  

7.6 The ecological aspects of the central Winchester regeneration is an area that 
will require careful consideration to ensure that the necessary ecological 
report requirements for a planning permission decision to be made are in 
place. This will be carried out as the plans for the regeneration progress. 

7.7 Any relevant environmental targets set by the Secretary of State in the 
exercise of his powers under the Environment Act 2021 will be properly taken 
into account, as and when they are implemented and the council will comply 
with its obligations under the Local Air Quality Management Framework 
introduced under the Act. As noted above, the project is intended to promote 
active travel and improve air quality. 

 

8 EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSEMENT 

8.1 As progress on delivery of the CWR development moves forward, the needs 
of individuals who fall within the protected groups defined in the Equality Act 
2010 will be considered at each stage. Winchester Access for All is one of the 
key stakeholder organisations identified to support the council with this and 
engagement with all relevant groups is a priority for this project. 

Page 27



  CAB3322 
 

 

 

8.2 Under s149 (1) of the Equality Act the council must have due regard, in the 
exercise of its functions, to the need to:  

a) Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct 
prohibited by the Act. 

b) Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share relevant 
protected characteristics and persons who do not share them. 

c) Foster good relations between persons who share relevant protected 
characteristics and persons who do not share them. 

 
8.3 The completed redevelopment should (being well designed and delivered) 

provide a positive benefit to all protected groups through improved design of 
buildings and public realm to increase legibility, accessibility and improve 
secured by design performance.  By seeking to meet the council’s planning 
policy on affordable housing and criteria within the CWR SPD, then the needs 
of protected groups should be better met and hence equality of opportunity 
advanced through the delivery of new, highly accessible, good quality 
housing, public realm and accessible links into the city centre. 

8.4 In particular, the recommendations and proposed mitigations are aimed at 
ensuring that: 

a) Housing strategy should seek to meet the council’s planning policy on 
affordable housing so as to benefit protected groups. 

b) Good design teams will be procured and there will be a focus on quality 
during delivery so that new facilities are better than existing and the future 
public realm is high quality. 

 
8.5 Consultation and engagement have not given rise to representations that 

there will be adverse effects from the proposed development on protected 
groups. 

8.6 Due regard has been given to the council’s duties as set out above in the form 
of an initial review and it is considered that detailed assessments are not 
necessary at this stage and will be undertaken at a later stage.  The decision 
to be taken in this report is considered to contribute towards advancing 
equality of opportunity and is consistent generally with the public sector 
equalities duty and its objectives. 

 
9 DATA PROTECTION IMPACT ASSESSMENT 

9.1 Having had regard to the Council’s obligations under the Data Protection Act 
2018 and General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) 2018, it is considered 
that a Data Processing Impact Assessment (DPIA) is not required for this 
report. 

Page 28



  CAB3322 
 

 

 

9.2 Any data collected as a result of the procurement process, any event, 
consultation and engagement with the project will be held in accordance with 
the Data Protection Act 2018 and General Data Protection Regulations 2018. 

 
10 RISK MANAGEMENT  

10.1 The CWR risk register can be seen at Appendix F, with an amendment made 
in respect of Archaeology and legal challenge following consideration by the 
Scrutiny Committee. 

10.2 Members should review this risk register to aid their decision making in this 
matter.  

 
11 SUPPORTING INFORMATION: 

11.1 Without doubt, the public engagement undertaken over many years has 
demonstrated that there is widespread support for the central Winchester area 
of the city to be repurposed for future generations.  Regeneration of the area 
in line with the CWR SPD guidance will support a vibrant local economy by 
working to fill the gap of affordable and flexible commercial space, enhancing 
the evening economy offer for the district and creating an area aimed at 
attracting and retaining the young and creative talent and respecting the 
heritage of the City.  It is vital the Council invests now to ensure the city 
continues to attract people to live, shop, visit and work.  

11.2 The CWR Development Proposals demonstrate that there is the opportunity 
to deliver a vibrant mixed use scheme in line with the objectives and 
aspirations of the CWR SPD which includes provision of creative and cultural 
space, independent retail units, extra hotel capacity, residential offer with mix 
of tenures and exceptional public realm and open spaces which will be 
accessible for all to enjoy.  This is outlined further in Appendix H. 

11.3 To support this approach and to reflect the desire to bring regeneration to the 
heart of the city, the Central Winchester Regeneration (CWR) Supplementary 
Planning Document (SPD) was adopted in June 2018 following an eighteen 
month period of public engagement and consultation, reference CAB3034. 
Views and comments were collected from around the Winchester district via 
roadshows, workshops and a community engagement weekend and feedback 
received was taken in to account in the CWR SPD.  

11.4 The resultant vision for the Central Winchester Regeneration area is set out in 
the CWR SPD: 

“the delivery or a mixed-use, pedestrian friendly quarter that is distinctly 
Winchester that supports a vibrant retail and cultural/heritage offer which is 
set in exceptional public realm and incorporates the imaginative re-use of 
existing buildings” 

Page 29



  CAB3322 
 

 

 

11.5 Additionally the CWR SPD sets out the following objectives which are to be 
key considerations for any development proposal: 

 Vibrant mixed use quarter 

 Winchesterness 

 Exceptional Public Realm 

 City Experience 

 Sustainable Transport 

 Incremental Delivery 

 Housing for All 

 Community 

 Climate Change and Sustainability 

11.6 The CWR SPD provides guidance for developers and landowners who seek 
to bring forward a development proposal on key aspects for the city such as 
archaeology, heights and roofscape, scale and massing, views and skylines, 
public realm; streets, spaces and water and the mix and quantum of land 
uses.   

11.7 Following the appointment of the councils’ strategic advisors in 2019, a study 
was carried out looking at the competitive positioning of Winchester and the 
report, which can be seen on the CWR website pages, shows the challenges 
we face as a city. These include the lack of affordable living opportunities, 
workspace and employment opportunities which are a barrier to younger 
generations staying or settling in Winchester. A limited night time economy 
provides little reason for younger age groups to visit the city centre and has 
led to a lack of over-night tourism. This must change to support a sustainable 
community in the future.  

11.8 This trend combined with the emerging impact of COVID-19 on the national 
economy shows that this regeneration opportunity in central Winchester can 
place the city on the front foot to enhance a unique heritage city. It is therefore 
vital we move forward now to ensure our city will continue to attract people to 
live, shop, visit and work.  This approach will bring positive changes to the city 
centre by delivering a dynamic mix of uses which will reinforce the 
cultural/heritage and retail heart of the city, alongside additional residential 
space. 

11.9 Work was carried out to explore development scenarios for the CWR area 
based on the CWR SPD guidance and testing different emphasis on mixes of 
land use allowed in the CWR SPD ranges. Three scenarios were developed 
and, following an open forum on 17th February 2020, feedback was 

Page 30



  CAB3322 
 

 

 

considered and incorporated in to the CWR Development Proposals that went 
to consultation in November 2020, reference CAB3271. 

11.10 The council is committed to ensure that a development scheme reflects the 
objectives in the CWR SPD and the CWR development proposals (the 
Defined Site) which are based on the CWR SPD.  Public views were taken in 
to account through the consultation process on the development proposals 
and CWR SPD, can be seen at Appendix H. The CWR Development 
Proposals were approved at Cabinet in on 10th March 2021, ref CAB3281. 

11.11 The proposals outline a mix of uses to reflect the mid-range of the land use 
quantums in the CWR SPD and includes residential units, creative hub, 
independent retail and flexible office space, a cultural and heritage offer, hotel 
and exceptional public realm. Delivering the proposals will provide a city 
space that attracts more people, supports the economy, welcomes overnight 
visitors and enables more of our young people to stay – to build a career in 
their home district, to live, work and play.  

11.12 In more recent years, 2018 and 2019, the council has acquired land and 
buildings at Kings Walk, the bus station and Friarsgate Medical centre. The 
rationale behind this approach was to increase the council’s landholdings  and 
enable the council to take the lead in bringing forward regeneration of the 
area to support the High Street and local businesses and work to build a 
strong and resilient economy in the city and for the district.  

11.13 Following a comprehensive consultation exercise, carried out through 
November 2020 to January 2021, the CWR Development Proposals were 
approved at Cabinet on 10 March 2021 and approval was given to work on 
and complete the Strategic Outline Case (SOC). 

11.14 The SOC, which can be seen at Appendix I, was completed and presented to 
Cabinet on 21st July 2021, reference CAB3303. The document outlined the 
strategic aims for the project together with the options for delivery and the 
preferred way forward.  

11.15 The SOC identified key policies that delivery of the CWR development 
proposals would meet (section 2.3 Strategic Case), outlined the investment 
objectives (section 2.3.3 Strategic Case) and Critical Success Factors 
(section 3.2 Economic case) and explored the different routes to delivery 
(section 3.4 Economic case). 

11.16 Options for delivery of the development proposals included council delivery 
through to disposal of the site to a third party. The SOC analysed the differing 
delivery mechanisms available and  in doing so considered aspects such as 
planning process, financing, development risk and levels of control and 
affordability and these considerations can be seen in the table below: 

Criteria Descriptor 
Cost What is the expected level of direct cost to WCC 
Control How much control does WCC have over the development 

Page 31



  CAB3322 
 

 

 

Criteria Descriptor 
Planning risk How much of the planning risk lies with WCC 
Development risk How much of the development risk lies directly with WCC 
Resourcing / 
expertise 

Does WCC have the required internal resources/expertise 

Speed How well does the delivery option align to the required delivery timelines 
Return (profit share) What level of profit share return will WCC receive 
Return (land receipt) What level of land receipt returns will WCC receive 
Market appetite What is the likely market appetite for the Solution delivery option 

 

11.17 The delivery options identified in the SOC and then explored were; 

Option 3.1 Option 3.2 Option 3.3 Option 3.4 Option 3.5 Option 
3.6 

Disposal- Freehold or Long 
Leasehold 

WCC to 
bring 
forward 
Kings 
Walk 
Creative 
Quarter 
and deliver 
the on-
street bus 
solution. 
Remaining 
land 
parcels 
within the 
defined 
site 
disposed 
of on a 
Freehold 
basis and 
brought 
forward by 
multiple 
developers 

WCC to 
bring 
forward 
Kings Walk 
Creative 
Quarter and 
deliver the 
on-street 
bus solution.  
Followed by 
a 
development 
agreement 
with one 
development 
partner to 
bring 
forward the 
remaining 
land parcels 
within the 
defined site 

WCC to 
bring forward 
Kings Walk 
Creative 
Quarter. 
Development 
Agreement 
with one 
development 
partner for 
the 
remainder of 
the defined 
site 

Development 
agreement 
across the 
defined site 
with one 
development 
partner 

WCC 
acting as 
master 
developer 

 

11.18 Advantages and disadvantages were considered for each delivery option, 
together with the level of associated risk and control, and the analysis can be 
seen in the following table: 

 Option 3.1 Option 3.2 Option 3.3 Option 3.4 Option 3.5 Optio
n 3.6 

Descriptor Disposal- 
Freehold or 
Long 
Leasehold 

WCC to bring 
forward Kings 
Walk Creative 
Quarter and 
deliver the on-

WCC to bring 
forward Kings 
Walk Creative 
Quarter and 
deliver the on-

WCC to bring 
forward 
Kings Walk 
Creative 
Quarter. 

Development 
agreement 
across the 
defined site 
with one 

WCC 
acting 
as 
master 
develop

Page 32



  CAB3322 
 

 

 

 Option 3.1 Option 3.2 Option 3.3 Option 3.4 Option 3.5 Optio
n 3.6 

street bus 
solution. 
Remaining 
land parcels 
disposed of on 
a Freehold 
basis and 
brought 
forward by 
multiple 
developers 

street bus 
solution.  
Followed by a 
development 
agreement 
with one 
development 
partner to bring 
forward the 
remaining land 
parcels in the 
defined site 

Development 
Agreement 
with one 
development 
partner for 
the 
remainder of 
the defined 
site 

development 
partner 

er 

Cost 4 1 1 3 4 0 
Control 0 2 3 3 3 4 
Planning 
risk 

4 0 0 3 3 0 

Developm
ent risk 

4 2 2 4 4 2 

Resourcin
g / 
expertise 

4 1 1 3 4 0 

Speed 1 1 1 2 3 2 
Return 
(profit 
share) 

0 1 1 1 0 0 

Return 
(land 
receipt) 

3 2 2 2 2 2 

Market 
appetite 

4 2 1 3 4 0 

Total 
Score 
(out of 40) 

24 12 12 24 27 10 

 

11.19 Taking the outcome of the SOC analysis, the long list options were either 
ruled out or further investigated in the short list as follows; 

 Excluded – Option 3.1 as the council would have little control over what 
the developer delivers other than through the planning process. 
 

 Excluded – Option 3.2 as this route would require the council to secure 
a hybrid panning consent for the whole defined site and invest capital 
and take delivery risk in relation to Kings Walk and the on-street bus 
solution. 

 Excluded – Option 3.3 as although the council would retain some 
control over the development there may be some complexity in WCC 
delivering portions of the development themselves and a lack of market 

Page 33



  CAB3322 
 

 

 

appetite for remaining land and the council would need to secure a 
hybrid planning consent for the defined site. 

 Shortlisted – Option 3.4 as the council would retain some control over 
the development via the development partner procurement process 
and the deal structure outlined in the development agreement. 
However there is complexity and significant cost associated with WCC 
delivering the Kings Walk element of the development themselves 

 Shortlisted – Option 3.5 as it enables development to be brought 
forward in a comprehensive manner by one party, whilst also allowing 
the council to retain some control over the development through the 
development agreement. In addition, the council has control over the 
development partner selection process and can therefore choose a 
partner that shares the same aspirations for the site 
 

 Excluded – Option 3.6 because the full cost and planning risk will 
remain with WCC and this route would require a high degree of 
expertise. 
 

11.20 As a result of the analysis in the SOC, the short list was identified (section 
3.9.1 Economic Case) as follows; 

 Option 3.4 the council to deliver Kings Walk with a development 
partner delivering the remainder of the defined site; 

 Option 3.5 the council to procure a development partner to deliver the 
defined site. 

11.21 Further analysis on the short listed options arrived at the preferred option 
(section 3.9.3 Economic case) that the council finds a development partner to 
develop the council owned land, the defined site, through a single 
development agreement and this was approved by Cabinet 21July 2021. 

11.22 The summary of this analysis can be seen here; 

Delivery Option 3.4- shortlisted  
WCC to bring forward Kings Walk Creative 
Quarter. Development Agreement with one 
development partner for the remainder of 

the defined site 
 

Option 3.5- preferred  
Development agreement (i.e. contractual 
Joint Venture) across the defined site with 

one development partner 

CSF1: Alignment 
to city needs 

4 4 

CSF2: Alignment 
to SPD 

4 4 

CSF3: Alignment 
to investment 
objectives 

4 4 

CSF4: Achieving 
the benefits 

3 3 

Page 34



  CAB3322 
 

 

 

Delivery Option 3.4- shortlisted  
WCC to bring forward Kings Walk Creative 
Quarter. Development Agreement with one 
development partner for the remainder of 

the defined site 
 

Option 3.5- preferred  
Development agreement (i.e. contractual 
Joint Venture) across the defined site with 

one development partner 

optimisation 

CSF5: 
Affordability 

1 3 

CSF6: Planning 
permission   

2 3 

CSF7: Political 
Risk 

3 2 

Total (out of 20) 21 23 

 

11.23 It can be seen from the table above that Option 3.4 was excluded this option 
delivers well against the CSF’s, it does require significant capital expenditure 
by the council to deliver Kings Walk and is therefore deemed as less 
affordable to the Council.  

11.24 Option 3.5 was identified as the preferred option which will be assessed 
further at OBC stage. This option delivers very well against the CSF’s with no 
significant capital expenditure by the council. 

11.25 The SOC concluded that delivery of the CWR Development Proposals with 
the preferred development approach would meet the strategic objectives set 
out and this included adherence to the CWR SPD, a key policy document and 
material consideration in the planning process.  The SOC was approved at 
that Cabinet session and approval was given to proceed to progress the 
Outline Business Case (OBC) which has been completed. 

 

12 OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE 

12.1 The Outline Business Case (OBC) can be seen at Appendix D and the 
following paragraphs summarise the key aspects. 

12.2 The council is guided by the framework of the HM Treasury Green Book using 
the Five Case Model to identify best value for spending public sector money, 
taking in to account the direct and indirect benefits of the proposals. 

12.3 The Business Case is developed incrementally and the process can be seen 
in the graphic below; 

Stage Stage 0 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 
Stage 
outcome 

 Strategic 
Assessment 

 Strategic 
Outline Case 

 Outline 
Business 
Case 

 Full Business 
Case 

Stage  Determine the  Scoping the  Planning the  Procuring the 

Page 35



  CAB3322 
 

 

 

activities strategic 
context 

scheme 
 Making the 

case for 
change 

 Explore the 
preferred 
way forward 

scheme 
 Determine 

potential value 
for money 
(VfM) 

 Preparing for 
the potential 
deal 

 Ascertaining 
affordability 
and funding 
requirement 

 Planning for 
successful 
delivery 

solution 
 Contracting for 

the deal 
 Ensuring 

successful 
delivery 

5 Case Model 
completeness 
expectation 

   Strategic 
50% 

 Economic 
40% 

 Commercial 
20% 

 Financial 
30% 

 Management 
10% 

 Strategic 80% 
 Economic 

70% 
 Commercial 

60% 
 Financial 60% 
 Management 

50% 

 Strategic 100% 
 Economic 

100% 
 Commercial 

100% 
 Financial 100% 
 Management 

100% 

Gateway 
review 

0: Strategic 
assessment 

1: Business 
justification 

2: Delivery 
strategy 

3: Investment 
decision 

 

12.4 The OBC is stage 2 of the Full Business Case process and builds on the 
conclusions of the Strategic Outline Case (SOC). 

12.5 The conclusion from the SOC was that there is a strong case for bringing 
forward the regeneration of central Winchester and that the preferred delivery 
option is for a single development agreement with a chosen partner to deliver 
development across a defined site, including Kings Walk. 

12.6 Following the decision at Cabinet in July not to retain Kings Walk, work has 
been carried out to look at impact of a new building on viability, phasing and 
affordability for the council. 

12.7 The output from the OBC is to detail the proposed delivery strategy for the 
project, including: 

a) Further development of the Economic Case with the analysis of the 
Benefit Cost Ratio,  

b) The approach for procurement and key commercial principles 

c) Work on the financial case to further detail phasing, viability and 
affordability 

Page 36



  CAB3322 
 

 

 

12.8 The OBC is based on these amended CWR Development Proposals. 

 

Outline Business Case summary 

12.9 The purpose of the OBC is to provide further analysis on the preferred 
delivery option agreed in the July 2021 SOC and support decision making on 
approval to initiate and undertake the procurement process. 

12.10 The OBC aims to further assess the preferred option in the context of the 
expected economic benefits, viability and affordability to the council to 
undertake a procurement process, and to put in place the necessary funding 
and management arrangements for successful scheme delivery. The OBC 
provides the structure for the preferred delivery option of a single 
development agreement using the following framework: 

a) Strategic Case – to confirm that strategic objectives remain current and 
agreement to the recommended preferred option to achieve; 

b) Economic Case – to determine that the proposal provides good public 
value for money through economic appraisals for quantitative and 
qualitative benefit assessment; 

c) Commercial Case – to prepare for the potential deal structure by 
considering the delivery model options, commercial viability, procurement 
and engagement; 

d) Financial Case – to ascertain the affordability and funding requirement; 

e) Management Case – to plan for successful deliver; 

12.11 This OBC expands on the work undertaken at the SOC stage and examines 
all 5 elements following the Green Book approach being: Strategic, Economic, 
Commercial, Financial and Management cases. Such work undertaken by the 
CWR project team analyses: the potential strategic and economic benefits 
from implementing the proposed development; financial modelling to 
determine affordability; and to further expand on the proposed commercial 
approach and management of the development going forward.  

12.12 This OBC concludes that each case of the Green Book guidance is made but 
flags the loss of income associated with repurposing the existing estate and 
that further work will be required at Full Business Case stage. 

a) Strategic Case – The Strategic Case identifies and documents the city 
need for homes for all, filling the current gap in affordable and flexible 
commercial space, and attracting and retaining the young and creative 
talent in the city. It demonstrates that the CWR site will deliver the 
council’s investment objectives whilst fulfilling the aspirations of the CWR 
SPD.  

Page 37



  CAB3322 
 

 

 

b) Economic Case – The Economic case details the significant economic 
benefits to the Winchester economy from the development of the CWR 
site. Quantifiable benefits include additional employment opportunities, 
increased footfall and stimulation of the city’s night-time economy. When 
coupled with the qualitative benefits it is clear the CWR development will 
have a lasting positive impact on the city.  

c) Commercial Case – The Commercial case outlines the commercial 
arrangements and procurement approach to support the preferred delivery 
option, being a contractual agreement with a single development partner. 
This approach provides the council with the necessary level of control over 
delivery in order to achieve its investment objectives. The procurement 
approach will ensure a competitive market process to secure a 
development partner that best meets the Council’s requirements.  

d) Financial Case – The Financial case demonstrates that there is a 
significant annual cost to the council for the proposed delivery option, 
caused by the loss of the income the council currently receives on its 
assets within the red line development area.  However, this needs to be 
balanced against the wider economic benefits set out in the economic 
case. The ongoing revenue cost will need to be met from within existing 
budgets or by finding savings. Further work is recommended to address 
affordability to the council through the dialogue process with potential 
development partners.  

e) Management Case – The Management case concludes that the 
redevelopment of central Winchester is a considered, deliverable and 
realistic objective. The responsibility for delivery of the CWR scheme will 
be with the Development Partner, and activities will be at the Development 
Partner’s cost and risk. A risk register is in place to monitor business risks, 
service risks and external risks, and it is recommended that this risk 
register is built on further as the project progresses.  

12.13 The full narrative can be seen in the OBC but the following paragraphs outline 
key points from the document. 

Strategic Case: 

12.14 The Strategic Case of the OBC builds on that of the SOC. It confirms that the 
regeneration of central Winchester brings forward proposals to meet the 
Council’s strategic objectives through the development and regeneration of 
the Central Winchester Regeneration (CWR) defined area to deliver a vibrant, 
mixed use, pedestrian friendly quarter in line with the Central Winchester 
Regeneration Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) and supports 
objectives of the Council Plan 2020 - 2025.  

12.15 The findings in the SOC are also confirmed along with  the key objectives 
from the relevant policies are highlighted. It is outline how delivering the CWR 
development proposals will work both to deliver the Council Plan key priorities 
of tackling the climate emergency, housing for all, vibrant local economy and 

Page 38



  CAB3322 
 

 

 

living well and also deliver the vision and objectives of the CWR SPD for a 
vibrant, mixed use scheme with a cultural offer set in exceptional public realm 
with the imaginative re-use of existing buildings. The OBC shows how 
development of the defined area will provide new creative spaces, revitalise 
others and forge something exceptional which serves the whole community in 
a balanced approach and creates an inspirational legacy. 

12.16 The OBC also revisits and confirms the Investment Objectives identified in the 
SOC and also sets out again the case for change, highlighting the current 
situation in the area, the city needs and site constraints together with risks 
associated with the project. 

12.17 The Strategic Case identifies and documents the city need for homes for 
all, filling the current gap in affordable and flexible commercial space, 
and attracting and retaining the young and creative talent in the city. It 
demonstrates that the CWR site will deliver the Council’s investment 
objectives whilst fulfilling the aspirations of the CWR SPD. 

12.18 THIS CASE HAS BEEN MADE 

Economic Case: 

12.19 The Economic Case revisits the areas covered in the SOC, confirms the 
Critical Success Factors (CSFs) and recaps on the process of evaluating the 
long list of options to arrive at the preferred delivery option. The preferred 
option is further explored in the Economic Case with an appraisal of the net 
present social value (NPSV) that could be gained from delivering the 
regeneration project. 

12.20 The NPSV is calculated using a benefits cost ratio (BCR) analysis. This 
provides a means of calculating the positive economic return of the 
development to the Public Purse and to the Local Economy. 

12.21 The BCR of the socio-economic benefits of the proposed development of the 
CWR programme has been prepared. BCR is a ratio used to summarise the 
overall relationship between the relative costs and benefits of CWR. If a 
project has a BCR greater than 1, the project is expected to deliver a positive 
net present value to council. 

12.22 The BCR analysis has included: 

a) An assumption log of inputs that drive the cost benefit analysis for socio-
economic benefit; 

b) A cost benefit analysis, considering the ‘deadweight’ (do nothing / 
minimum) scenario, and the ‘additionality’ (incremental benefits), leakage, 
substitution, multiplier, and displacement of development; 

c) The BCR outputs – which are detailed below in paragraph 12.23; 

Page 39



  CAB3322 
 

 

 

d) Sensitivity analysis and optimism bias to demonstrate impact of changes 
to cost inputs / benefit outputs. 

12.23 The BCR takes in to account both quantitative and qualitative benefits and the 
tables in the following paragraphs show the analysis and findings as to the 
impact on both the local economy and the public purse.  

Quantitative benefit analysis: 

12.24 The CWR project team and advisors used the investment objectives as a 
basis for determining the key economic benefits themes for the development. 
Five key themes were identified where the benefit in financial terms may be 
quantified.  

12.25 These five themes are: 

a) Employment opportunities: The new development will create additional 
workspaces and attract new businesses providing local residents with 
employment opportunities. 

b) Increased footfall to the area: A rejuvenated and vibrant CWR is likely to 
positively impact the number of visitors to the area, resulting in additional 
spend in the local economy. 

c) Increase in Council income from new housing and businesses: The 
proposed housing and new business premises will positively contribute to 
increased Council Tax and Business Rates income. 

d) Keeping residents local: The inclusion of housing in CWR as well as new 
job opportunities from the office, retail and cultural space will result in 
Winchester residents remaining local, positively impacting on commuting 
and sustainability. 

e) Increase in overnight tourism: Creating a vibrant mixed use quarter and in 
particular the proposed hotel is expected to increase overnight tourism in 
Winchester which will lead to increased local economy spend. 

f) In calculating the benefits of the above, benchmarked data, local tourism 
data and a number of researched market reports have been used. 

12.26 The categories of benefits included in this analysis are: 

a) Council tax receipts.  

b) Increase in local spend due to increased footfall to the area. 

c) Increase in local spend from new residents in the new build houses.  

d) Increase in local spend from workers during the duration of the 
development. 

Page 40



  CAB3322 
 

 

 

e) Business rates through development of office and hotel buildings. 

f) SDLT from the sale of new homes. 

g) Increased local spend due to increase in overnight tourism/night life.   

12.27 The below table summarises the results of the BCR analysis, categorising the 
themes into two benefit types: Local Economy and Public Purse. 

a) Local Economy: benefits that will directly affect the local Winchester 
economy and potentially have a multiplier effect on the wider economy. 

b) Public Purse; benefits generated that will directly benefit the council or the 
National Government by taxation of other means. 

12.28 These two categories of benefits are combined to calculate the All Economy 
benefit highlighted in the BCR calculations. The table below, using Office of 
National Statistics data, summarises the findings. Full details can be seen in 
the OBC: 

 

 

Qualitative benefit analysis: 

12.29 In addition to the quantitative, there are a number of qualitative benefits. 
These include: 

a) Wellbeing of workers and residents: through the addition of exceptional 
public realm and increased pedestrianisation the physical and mental 
wellbeing of local workers and residents will increase. Physical wellbeing 
is achieved through the additional exercise benefits from the 
pedestrianised zone. The mental health improvements are derived from 
the benefits of being surrounded by plants, calming water features, natural 
lights and fresh air. Transport for London have developed a method to 
calculate the financial benefits of reduced vehicle accidents and deaths as 
a result of increased pedestrianisation, but currently there is insufficient 
evidence and associated data to apply the methodology for CWR.  

Benefit Theme Rationale

Local 

Economy 

Benefit

Public Purse 

Benefit

All Economy 

Benefit

Increased 

employment
300-400 new office, retail, hosptiality jobs contributing Income Tax, 

National Insurance contributions and local economy spend
£83m £39m £122m

Increased footfall
The new development is expected to further increase day tourist 

footfall by 5% capturing additional local spend
£118m £118m

Increased overnight 

tourism
The new hotel will add additional capacity generating direct 

accommodation income and local economy spend
£45m £45m

New housing and 

businesses
The development will add new businesses and residences that will 

attract Council Tax, Business Rates and Stamp Duty receipts
£9m £9m

Reduced commuting
Proximity of offices and affordable homes will reduce commuting 

times for those residents
£2m £2m

£248m £48m £296m

Page 41



  CAB3322 
 

 

 

b) Increased land values for surrounding areas: the positive development of 
the site into a vibrant mixed-use quarter is expected to directly benefit the 
asset values of the surrounding areas. To quantify this benefit would be 
too speculative and the calculations have therefore focused only on the 
development of the CWR site. 

c) Sustainable transportation benefits: changing to sustainable transport 
methods within the CWR development (particularly increased cycling and 
walking in the pedestrianised arears) will have both a financial and carbon 
reduction benefit to the council, but it is not possible to reliably to quantify 
this benefit. It is nevertheless considered that this will contribute to the 
Council’s pledge to achieve carbon neutrality by 2024 and for the 
Winchester District to be carbon neutral by 2030.  

d) Future re-use and flexibility of the creative workplace units; quantifying the 
future re-use and flexibility of the creative workplace units will enable land 
owners, which include the developers and the council, to ensure a quick 
change of tenancy when the new units become vacant. This ensures that 
economic benefit is continually generated throughout the life of the 
development. Flexibility of development will also accommodate a change 
in use easier without the requirement for redevelopment, saving costs and 
reducing the embedded carbon impact. 

e) Contribution to retention of a younger generation: the provision of 
affordable housing, entrepreneurial workspaces and increase in available 
nightlife activities through the CWR development is expected to contribute 
positively towards the council’s objective to retain a younger generation, 
especially those that have graduated from the University of Winchester 
and other education institutions in the city. The financial benefit on the 
local economy outside of the elements already calculated has not been 
included in the analysis. 

12.30 The table below summarises these findings;                                

 

12.31 The benefits are then divided by the Development Costs (estimated cost to 
complete the development) to determine the ratio. The economic results of 

Page 42



  CAB3322 
 

 

 

the BCR are shown in the table below which illustrates the benefits over a 15 
year period: 

12.32 Summary £’m 

Total value of benefits £296.3m 

Present value of All Economy Benefits  £215.5m 

Present value of Public Purse Benefits £35.0m 

Present Value of Developer Costs £80.5m 

BCR for All Economy 2.68 

BCR for Public Purse 0.43 

 

12.33 The base position, without any allowance for optimism bias, shows an 
illustrative All Economy Benefit of 2.68 to 0.43 on Public Purse benefit.  

12.34 The implied assumption able to be made being that over the assumed 15 year 
period to 2035, in Present Value terms the regeneration programme will 
produce £2.68 of total economic benefit for every £1 spent by the developer – 
a favourable return.  

12.35 Sensitivity analysis has been conducted to adjust for any optimism bias, 
mitigating the tendency to be over optimistic about the amount of benefit that 
will be generated from the development.  

12.36 The outcomes have been adjusted for low (5%), medium (10%) and high 
(20%) optimism bias scenarios. This is because there can be a tendency to 
be over optimistic. Explicit adjustments have therefore been made to the 
estimates in order to account for this and the results are shown in the table 
below. 

  Base Low Medium High 

All Economy 2.68 2.54 2.41 2.14 

Public Purse 0.43 0.41 0.39 0.35 

 

12.37 A BCR result of £1 and above reflects a positive return. Therefore, with an All 
Economy return of £2.68 the above analysis on CWR indicates a favourable 
return on the development. A favourable return is still indicated if adjustments 
are made for optimism bias. 

Page 43



  CAB3322 
 

 

 

12.38 The Economic case details the significant economic benefits to the 
Winchester economy from the development of the CWR site. 
Quantifiable benefits include additional employment opportunities, 
increased footfall and stimulation of the city’s night-time economy. 
When coupled with the qualitative benefits it is clear the CWR 
development will have a lasting positive impact on the city. 

12.39 THIS CASE HAS BEEN MADE 

Commercial Case: 

12.40 The SOC explored the options for delivery, arrived at a short list of two and 
then went on to identify the preferred delivery option of finding a development 
partner to deliver development of a defined area via a development 
agreement. 

12.41 The Commercial Case section of the OBC outlines the commercial 
arrangements and procurement approach that will support the preferred 
delivery option outlined in the Economic Case.  

12.42 The OBC provides a detailed consideration of the proposed deal structure, 
procurement method and contractual arrangement of the preferred delivery 
option. 

12.43 The procurement approach will be designed to ensure that there is a robust, 
open, fair and transparent methodology for selection of bidders and the 
eventual award of the contract to the successful bidder.  

12.44 The opportunity will be the subject of a competitive process, full details can be 
seen in the Commercial case of the OBC, based on five key stages: 

a) Contract notice: Issue of the Contract notice to publish details of the 
opportunity to enable interested parties to express interest. On publication 
of the contract notice the procurement documents including the selection 
questionnaire and draft tender invitation documents, the draft development 
brief and the draft development agreement will also be made available to 
those considering expressing interest. 

b) Selection stage: interested developers will be required to submit a 
completed selection questionnaire (SQ) with supporting information in 
order for the council to select a shortlist to invite to tender.  

c) Tender stage: a competitive dialogue procedure will be undertaken with a 
view to establishing the solution best suited to the Council’s requirements 
as described via the SPD and Development Brief. Dialogue will enable the 
council to conduct a staged process, so that bidders are able to refine and 
improve their proposals before making final submissions. 

Page 44



  CAB3322 
 

 

 

d) Tender evaluation: final submissions will be evaluated and may involve 
fine tuning and clarification before reaching a decision on the preferred 
developer. 

e) Preferred bidder: The successful bidder will be appointed, and then final 
steps taken to reach a contract close. 

12.45 The OBC outlines the key commercial principles that underpin the 
development agreement that the council will enter into with the appointed 
developer. The agreement will; 

a) Regulate delivery of CWR and the relationship between the council and 
the Developer; 

b) Set out the core objectives of the council for CWR and the obligations 
placed on each party; 

c) Enable decisions to be made throughout the term of the Agreement; 

d) Determine outcomes, including the development outcomes and financial 
terms (e.g. land payments); 

e) Address the exit strategy – both at the completion of the scheme and 
where an early termination maybe required; 

12.46 The key terms can be seen in the Key Commercial Principles document at 
appendix C but include the anticipated term of the agreement, obligations and 
objectives for both parties, financial and governance arrangements, change 
control, dispute arrangements and exit arrangements.    

12.47 The Commercial Case outlines the commercial arrangements and the 
procurement approach that will support the preferred delivery option, a 
contractual agreement with a single development partner across the 
defined site. This was selected as the recommended route as it provides 
the council with an acceptable level of control over delivery and timings 
whilst delivering on the investment objectives and critical success 
factors. The commercial process outlined will ensure that a competitive 
market process is undertaken to secure a development partner that best 
meets the council’s requirements.  

12.48 THIS CASE HAS BEEN MADE 

 Financial Case 

12.49 The Financial Case explores the overall affordability of the preferred option for 
the council and identifies the associated financial risks.  

12.50 The financial analysis uses the residual land value as a measure and is based 
on the assumption that the council procures a development partner through a 
competitive tendering process as outlined above. A 12-month procurement 

Page 45



  CAB3322 
 

 

 

process has been adopted to secure a development partner to bring forward 
the scheme by way of a development agreement with the council.  

12.51 This route assumes that the development partner delivers the development 
proposal, followed by a phased draw-down of land in line with the updated 
CWR development proposals and analysis carried out to ascertain the 
residual land values for each phase.  

12.52 At this stage, the analysis indicates that the first phase generates the largest 
capital receipt. It is anticipated that the later phases of the development would 
benefit from future uplift in values created by the regeneration and would be 
optimised at the point of delivery. 

12.53 The finance case looks at the impact on the council’s revenue budget of the 
preferred option over the life of the scheme. The analysis assesses the 
affordability of the preferred option to demonstrate:  

a) A financial summary of the preferred approach; 

b) Set out the value and timing of expected capital receipts; 

c) The revenue consequences, including costs, income and forgone income; 

d) The overall impact on the Council’s financial position;  

e) High-level sensitivity analysis 

12.54 The analysis outlined above includes looking at the impact of capital receipts 
and their timing on the revenue budget; the effect on the Council’s Capital 
Financing Requirement (CFR); and carries out sensitivity testing on the 
outcomes.  

12.55 The Financial Case demonstrates that the proposed development 
delivers a capital receipt. The prudent approach to determining 
affordability reflects an ongoing, annual cost to the council which will 
need to be met from within existing budgets or by finding 
savings.  Further work on the affordability in the wider context of the 
council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy is required but it is not 
expected that the budget challenge will be insurmountable given the 
expectation that the preferred development partner will address the 
financial impact to the council through a combination of value 
engineering, retaining elements of the council’s existing income stream 
and/or through securing additional grant funding. Further work is 
recommended to address the affordability through the dialogue process 
with potential development partners. This needs to be balanced against 
the wider economic benefits set out in the economic case.  

12.56 THIS CASE HAS BEEN MADE BUT FURTHER WORK ON 
AFFORDABILITY WILL BE REQUIRED IN THE FULL BUSINESS CASE 

Page 46



  CAB3322 
 

 

 

Management Case: 

12.57 This section of the OBC addresses the ‘achievability’ of the scheme. Its 
purpose is to set out the actions that will be required to ensure the successful 
delivery of the scheme in accordance with best practice. 

12.58 The redevelopment of central Winchester is a considered, deliverable and 
realistic objective taking in to account the key elements of vacant possession, 
planning and viability. 

12.59 The project will be managed in accordance with the Council’s major projects 
and programme management requirement of PRINCE 2 methodology. There 
is a programme plan overseen by the Head of Programme and project 
manager. 

12.60 The council has a risk register that is monitored and updated as needed. 

12.61 The Management Case concludes that the redevelopment of central 
Winchester is a considered, deliverable and realistic objective. The 
responsibility for delivery of the CWR scheme will be with the 
development partner, and activities will be at the development partner’s 
cost and risk. A risk register is in place to monitor business risks, 
service risks and external risks, and it is recommended that this risk 
register is built on further as details of the development agreement are 
finalised.  

12.62 THIS CASE HAS BEEN MADE 

 

13  PROPOSED PROCUREMENT APPROACH 

13.1 As approved at Cabinet in July 2021 (CAB3303), the approach is to procure a 
primary contract with a single development partner, for the defined Central 
Winchester Regeneration site, on the basis of a development agreement. This 
was Option 3.5 under the SOC and the benefits of that approach in 
comparison with other delivery solutions were identified and considered at 
that time. 

13.2 To procure a development partner, the Council will follow prevailing 
procurement legislation. At the time of this report, the Public Contracts 
Regulations 2015 (PCR2015) are due to be replaced by primary legislation 
but that is unlikely to be before 2023. A working assumption, based on the 
current programme, would be for the procurement to be governed by 
PCR2015 and that once commenced it will remain so but nonetheless, the 
OBC describes the potential for the procurement to be governed by that new 
legislation. In the OBC, the possible introduction of the new procurement 
regime is referred to but any benefit in waiting for that to be introduced is 
outweighed by the disadvantage of delay. 

Page 47



  CAB3322 
 

 

 

13.3 Consideration has been given to the procurement procedures available under 
PCR2015 and the Competitive Dialogue (CD) procedure is the most 
appropriate for the CWR opportunity. The CD procedure may be used where 
“the contract cannot be awarded without prior negotiation because of specific 
circumstances related to the nature, the complexity or the legal and financial 
make-up or because of risks attaching to them”. 

13.4 In the case of CWR, whilst the council’s objectives are set out in the 
Development Brief (building on other documents, including the CWR SPD), 
the exact means by which CWR is to be delivered and (for example) the 
phasing, cannot be specified in advance. Through dialogue the Council may 
therefore engage with prospective Developer partners (i.e. the bidders) to 
“identify the solution or solutions which are capable of meeting its needs”. 

13.5 Through dialogue with bidders, the council may better ensure that the 
appointed developer has submitted proposals which align with the objectives 
of the council and the requirements that will be set out in the Development 
Brief, including the key requirements.  

13.6 A Restricted Procedure under PCR2015 would not allow for any degree of 
negotiation/dialogue and would therefore be inappropriate. The Competitive 
Procedure with Negotiation allows for negotiation but is generally used only 
where it may be feasible to make a contract award without any negotiation 
stage based on initial tenders made. 

13.7 The developer market, whilst averse to protracted procurement under CD, is 
familiar with the procedure and will respond to the opportunity provided that 
the council’s overall approach is proportionate and that the tender 
requirements are not unduly onerous. Accordingly, the procurement strategy 
has been designed to avoid lengthy dialogue and will be streamlined, efficient 
and focused. In particular, the procurement approach (and the requirements 
of the tender stage) will not require bidders to produce designs. Instead, the 
procurement will establish the abilities of the appointed developer to work with 
the council to deliver on the Development Brief and their approach. This is 
reflected in the recommended Stage 2 Evaluation Award Criteria and 
associated weightings as set out at Appendix B. 

13.8 The 2015 Regulations lay down the process that the council must follow and 
is tied to general principles, namely the council shall “treat economic 
operators equally and without discrimination and shall act in a transparent and 
proportionate manner”. There is also an obligation to treat bidders’ proposals 
as confidential (where flagged as such) and the council must observe that 
requirement. 

13.9 The procurement approach has been designed to ensure that there is a 
robust methodology for selection of bidders and the eventual award of the 
contract to the successful bidder via the recommended Stage 2 Evaluation 
Award Criteria and weightings.   

Page 48



  CAB3322 
 

 

 

13.10 Due to the nature of this procurement, it would not be appropriate to assign a 
significant percentage of the evaluation award criteria purely to price as would 
be standard in a basic procurement exercise.  The model proposed has been 
carefully considered to ensure delivery of the right development partner - 
based on their approach to working with the council and ability to deliver 
against the Development Brief (and by extension the CWR SPD). The 
Procurement is not therefore aimed at securing designs or detailed scheme 
proposals.  

13.11 Accordingly, the council’s standard evaluation model of 60% cost / 40% 
quality is not deemed to be appropriate and approval is sought for a departure 
from this to 30% commercial / 70% quality.  This will better focus on the 
quality elements of the bidders’ submissions and ensure that sufficient weight 
is attached to the quality-focused evaluation criteria (including in relation to 
sustainability and public realm). 

13.12 Via the Commercial section, bidders will be tested on their financial approach 
and assumptions via a ‘base case’ using the Development Proposal areas.  It 
is important to note that the Commercial and Quality sections are inherently 
linked to ensure both viability and deliverability are realistic.  

13.13 In completing the Commercial section, bidders will provide a financial 
submission that captures their approach to development.  It will include the 
costs and incomes for their solution as demonstrated through the case study 
of the first phase of the scheme based on the development quantums set by 
the council.  This submission will demonstrate the different uses, costs and 
incomes relevant to each Bidder’s offer, as well as appropriate supporting 
evidenced that these assumptions are valid and deliverable.  This submission 
will also capture key metrics that they will fix in the legal documents such as 
profit levels. This first phase case study will be used for evaluation purposes 
but will not necessarily be the first phase in the scheme delivery. 

13.14 Through this approach, it is also important to note that the Commercial and 
Quality sections are inherently linked to ensure that relevant responses in 
different questions are captured in the commercial submission to ensure both 
viability and deliverability are realistic. 

13.15 The opportunity will be the subject of a competitive process in keeping with 
the statutory criteria in the Public Contract Regulations 2015 and the council’s 
Contract Procedure Rules and is therefore based on five key stages listed 
below:  

a) Published Contract Notice – advertising the opportunity to the market and 
asking for expressions of interest via the Council’s e-procurement system. 

b) Selection Stage - Developers wishing to express interest will be required 
to submit a completed selection questionnaire (SQ) with supporting 
information (e.g. annual accounts). This is in a standard prescribed format, 
apart from the recommended Stage 1 Selection Questionnaire Suitability 
Technical Questions and associated weightings as set out at Appendix A.   

Page 49



  CAB3322 
 

 

 

In particular, prospective developer partners will be asked to put forward 
relevant case studies to illustrate their experience of carrying out projects 
of a similar nature. The questions being asked have been carefully drawn 
up to elicit experience of relevance to CWR and the investment/strategic 
objectives.  The Project Team have engaged internally with officers and 
with Cabinet and the CWR Reference Group on the questions and 
associated weightings for the SQ questions. 

Bidders’ financial stability (or parent company if the bidder is seeking to 
reply on this) will be assessed at SQ stage on a pass/fail basis in 
accordance with PCR2015.  A three stage appraisal will be undertaken 
that comprises of: 

Stage 1 - Ratio analysis scoring 

The council will use the accounts (or other financial information) submitted 
in response to the SQ to carry out analysis on five ratios;  

 

i. Cash to Current Assets  
ii. Current Ratio, 
iii. Gearing % 
iv. Return on Capital Employed % and  
v. Net Profit Margin % 

 

Stage 2 – Dun and Bradstreet Assessment (or equivalent) 

The assessment will be based upon two factors: 
 

i. Risk of Business Failure and  
ii. Tangible Net Worth 

   
Stage 3 – Risk Assessment 

If a Bidder has fails either Stage 1 or Stage 2, or both, the Council will 
make a request to the Bidder, that it submits evidence to support its 
financial standing and to try to demonstrate its financial resilience.  This 
information could include, but is not limited to: 

 
i. Audited management accounts for periods not covered by the financial 

statements initially submitted; 
ii. Representations from the Board; 
iii. Further supporting financial information to evidence financial standing 

 
The evidence required to satisfy the Council will depend on the nature and 
severity of the risk which needs to be addressed.  

 

Page 50



  CAB3322 
 

 

 

Based on the submitted SQs, an evaluation based on the criteria and 
method set out in the published SQ with be undertaken in order to shortlist 
bidders. 

c) Tender stage – In accordance with PCR2015, a competitive dialogue will 
be undertaken with a view to establishing the solution best suited to the 
Council’s requirements (as described via the Development Brief). The 
Invitation to Tender will set out the form of the required submission (i.e. 
tender) and the evaluation criteria and evaluation methodology of the 
Council. The draft Tender Evaluation Criteria and associated weightings 
can be seen at Appendix B.  The criteria and weightings have been 
carefully considered and designed to ensure that proper weighting is given 
to financial and quality factors and to the key investment objectives, by 
reference to the CWR SPD and Development Brief.   As with the SQ 
questions, the Project Team have engaged with the CWR Reference 
Group on the questions and associated weightings for the tender 
evaluation questions and weightings. 

Dialogue will enable the council to conduct a staged process, so that 
bidders are able to refine and improve their proposals before making final 
submissions. 

d) Tender evaluation - The final submissions will be evaluated against the 
evaluation criteria set out at Appendix B and as permitted by PCR2015, 
may involve fine tuning and clarification before reaching a decision on the 
preferred developer. The preferred developer will be the one that scores 
the highest overall. 

The Public Contract Regulations 2015 and the Contract Procedure Rules 
set out the process that must be followed in the award of any contract and 
the evaluation process must be undertaken by the officer team and 
dependent on value a recommendation of award must be made to 
Cabinet. Contract Procedure Rules states that; Elected Members shall not 
participate in the tender evaluation procedure but may in appropriate 
cases be invited to attend any presentations given by tenderers and to 
review submission documents. Any such Elected Member participation 
shall be on the basis that Elected Members shall treat all information as 
commercially sensitive and confidential. A further report will be brought to 
Cabinet setting out further details of the selection process, details of 
officers to be involved and any external specialist expertise required to 
assist the selection panel, in due course. 

e) Preferred Bidder - The successful bidder will be appointed, and then final 
steps taken to reach a contract close i.e. signing of the development 
agreement). 

The key documents at commencement of in the procurement process will 
be: 

Page 51



  CAB3322 
 

 

 

i. Selection Questionnaire (SQ) Stage 1 – this includes the Technical 
Questions (Stage 1 Selection Questionnaire Suitability Technical 
Questions and associated weightings) - looking at financial standing, 
previous experience, resources and overall suitability.  

ii. Draft Invitation to Tender Stage 2 – this includes the Tender Evaluation 
Criteria and associated weightings focussed on how potential partners 
would propose to work with the council and deliver to the Development 
Brief (the criteria and weightings cannot be changed after publication). 

iii. Development Brief – confirming and setting out the council’s 
requirements. 

iv. Commercial principles - setting out the key elements of the 
development agreement and commercial position taken by the council. 

v. Development agreement – being the terms of contract between the 
council and developer (being in draft form to allow for bidders to 
reasonably propose amendments or add value).  

 

14 ONWARD TIMETABLE 

14.1 Subject to Cabinet approval, approval will be sought at Full Council in January 
2022 to proceed with the procurement of a development partner as outlined in 
this report. Should approval be given in January, the documents for 
publication will be prepared and the procurement process will commence 
shortly after with publication of the contract notice as set out in the table 
below. 

14.2 The selection stage of the procurement process is expected to take 2 months 
after which the shortlisted bidders will enter the dialogue stage. 

14.3 The dialogue stage is expected to take 6 months after which the final tenders 
will be evaluated in accordance with the published evaluation criteria. 

14.4 When the preferred bidder (the highest scoring in accordance with the 
published evaluation criteria) has been identified through the evaluation 
process and the Full Business Case completed on the proposals contained in 
the final bid, a report will be brought back to Cabinet for approval to award a 
contract and enter in to the development agreement, likely to be in early 2023. 

14.5 Anticipated timeline: 

 February 2022  Issue contract notice 

 March    Stage 1 Selection Questionnaire deadline 

 March    ITPD issued to shortlisted bidders 

 April to October  Bidder dialogue period 

 November   Final tender submission deadline 

Page 52



  CAB3322 
 

 

 

 December to January Evaluation of final bids and FBC preparation  

 Spring 2023   Appointment of development partner 

14.6 The council is committed to continue the high level of engagement that has 
been put in place since the creation of the CWR SPD and throughout this 
process, at appropriate key points, there will be stakeholder and  public 
updates 

14.7 Further information on the process, including information on the evaluation 
panels, attendees at the dialogue sessions and attendees at bidder 
presentations will be set out at a later date. 

 

15 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED  

15.1 Other options for delivery of the Central Winchester Regeneration project 
were explored through preparation and completion of the Strategic Outline 
Business case. These options ranged from the council developing and 
delivering the scheme directly to the council acting as master developer right 
through to selling the site for a third party to bring forward in line with the 
CWR SPD. 

15.2 These options were evaluated and two shortlisted options were identified: 

a) The council would retain Kings Walk and deliver to deliver the creative hub 
with a development partner delivering the remainder of the council owned 
land; 

b) A development partner to deliver the council owned land, including a new 
building at Kings Walk. 

15.3 The preferred option was identified as being to find a development partner to 
deliver a scheme to regenerate the council owned land including Kings Walk 
and all other options were rejected. 

15.4 This approach was approved at Cabinet in July 2021. 

15.5 At this stage, there is still the option not to progress to the procurement stage 
and: 

a) Revisit justification and objectives for the project; 

b) Do nothing and continue with the current arrangements. 

15.6 Public engagement and consultation has taken place through the adoption of 
the CWR SPD and the subsequent CWR Development Proposals and there is 
a clear need and desire to progress with the CWR project. If the council 
decided to either revisit the justification for the project and potentially start 
again or continue with current arrangements, regeneration of the area would 

Page 53



  CAB3322 
 

 

 

be delayed which would jeopardise the future resilience and prosperity of the 
city. The objectives of the CWR SPD and Council Plan would not be met or 
achieving these objectives would be significantly delayed, expenditure on the 
project to date would be wasted and the opportunity to address the gaps 
identified in the Competitive Positioning report would be missed. 

15.7 The OBC concludes that by delivering a development in line with the CWR 
SPD and the CWR Development Proposals, there would be a positive, long 
lasting benefit to the wider economy and work to build a strong and resilient 
economy. The associated suite of documents set out risks to the council 
which should be considered during the decision making process.  

15.8 The options to do nothing or revisit objectives for the site have therefore been 
rejected.  

 
 
  
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:- 

Previous Committee Reports:- 

CAB3034 Central Winchester – Adoption of SPD - June 2018 

DD17 Cabinet Member for Housing and Asset Management Decision Day CWR 
Project Update – 12 October 2020 

CAB3271 CWR Development Proposals - November 2020 

CAB3281 CWR Development Proposals and Delivery Strategy – March 2021 

CAB3303 CWR Strategic Outline Business Case – July 2021 

Other Background Documents:- 

Available on the WCC website: 

CWR SPD 

Competitive positioning report 

Road map review 

CWR bus provision - Working draft 

Kings Walk feasibility study 

CWR development proposals  

CWR Consultation Nov-Jan 21 Summary 

Page 54

http://sharepoint/sites/policyprojects/ProjectList/Central%20Winchester%20Regeneration/CWR%20Consultation%20Nov-Jan%2021%20Summary.pptx


  CAB3322 
 

 

 

CWR Arup Kings Walk Structural Survey Report 24 10 19 

 

APPENDICES: 

Appendix A Draft Stage 1 Selection Questionnaire Suitability Technical Questions 

Appendix B Draft Stage 2 Evaluation Award Criteria 

Appendix C Draft Commercial Principles Paper 

Appendix D Draft Outline Business Case 

Appendix E Draft Outline Business Case Exempt Appendices [Exempt] 

Appendix F CWR Risk Register 

Appendix G Draft CWR Development Brief 

Appendix H CWR Development Proposals 

Appendix I Strategic Outline Case 

Appendix J Draft Scrutiny 061221 Extract of Minutes 

 
 

 

 

Page 55

http://sharepoint/sites/policyprojects/ProjectList/Central%20Winchester%20Regeneration/CWR%20Arup%20Kings%20Walk%20Structural%20Survey%20Report%2024%2010%2019.pdf


This page is intentionally left blank



CAB3322 – Appendix A  DRAFT 

 

 

CWR DRAFT SQ Technical Questions  

 

Section 6 Technical and Professional Ability  

 

 This section will be scored in accordance with the scoring criteria 
set out at the end of this document. 

A consortium Bidder should provide a consolidated response 
ensuring that the relevant input of its constituent members is 
addressed within that consolidated response. 

Bidders should state how their chosen case studies/experience 
relate to the particulars of this opportunity and the Council’s 
objectives as more particularly described in the Development Brief.  

Bidders should address each of the specific requirements detailed 
in the questions below, including clear and comprehensive relevant 
supporting information and evidence. 

Responses to the questions under Section 6 must be given by way 
of individual separate documents using the ‘SQ Response 
Template’  

Bidders can use the same case study as evidence for more than 
one area but must tailor the response to ensure it demonstrates 
experience of the specific requirements of each question.  The 
introduction and overview of a case study need not be repeated for 
each question and bidders can refer to the relevant question / para 
in their response to avoid duplication. 

For each case study referenced, Bidders should name the main 
professional consultant team used and organisational structure. 
This could include: planning, master-planning, design, public 
realm, sustainability, cost consultancy/multi-disciplinary, 
community engagement and transport and infrastructure.  Please 
note this is separate to the word limit for each question. 

 

Please note the word limits for each question below.  Any words 
submitted that exceed the maximum number stated will not be 
considered as part of the evaluation.  Responses should be 
submitted in Ariel font size 11 point. 

 

Question 
number 

Question 

6.1  Collaborative Working (15%)  

In no more than 2,000 words, please demonstrate, with reference to up to three 
case studies which are current or have been completed within the past five 
years, evidence of your participation in partnerships to facilitate the delivery of 
mixed-use development projects. 

Page 57



CAB3322 – Appendix A  DRAFT 

 

 

Section 6 Technical and Professional Ability  

 

  

Your answer should address the following requirements: 

 previous involvement in long term partnerships with public sector 
organisations to deliver mixed-use development projects, with local 
authorities where possible, and describing how conflicts due to opposing 
views, objectives or priorities were mitigated; 

 previous experience of bringing together and then working with multiple 
local stakeholders, together with effective, transparent and frequent 
community engagement. 

As part of the relevant supporting information and evidence requested, Bidders 
should provide two referees to support the case studies presented in response 
to this question. For clarity, a total of two referees are required, not two referees 
per case study. Referees are not included within the 2,000 word count.  

 

Each case study submitted in response to this question will not be evaluated in 
isolation. The Council will evaluate the answer as a whole in accordance with 
the scoring. As such, you do not need to address each of the specified 
requirements above in each of the case studies (if there is more than one 
referenced), although all of the requirements should be addressed within your 
answer. 

6.2 Development Experience (20%) 

In no more than 2,000 words, please evidence, with reference to up to three 
case studies which are current or where phases have been completed within 
the past five years, your participation in master planning a mixed-use 
development, with a city/town centre regeneration focus if possible, as well as 
developing marketing, sale and letting strategy for those schemes.  

 

Your answer should address the following requirements: 

 previous experience of delivering mixed-use town/city centre schemes 
on a phased (incremental) basis;  

 evidence of delivering meanwhile uses prior to development;  

 previous experience of assembling and managing a professional team 
delivering exemplary quality outcomes, including where working with 
more than one architectural practice; 

 experience of delivering development in a heritage setting with in - situ 
archaeology;  

 understanding of the global and UK real estate markets for residential, 
commercial and creative workspace, including the creation and 
execution of a marketing strategy for each of these; and 

 your approach to maximising social value during the development 
period (e.g. jobs, training, supply chain, meanwhile uses). 

Each case study submitted in response to this question will not be evaluated in 
isolation. The Council will evaluate the answer as a whole in accordance with 
the scoring criteria. As such, you do not need to address each of the specified 
requirements above in each of the case studies (if there is more than one 
referenced), although all of the requirements should be addressed within your 
answer. 

Page 58



CAB3322 – Appendix A  DRAFT 

 

 

Section 6 Technical and Professional Ability  

 

6.3 Long term placemaking (20%) 

In no more than 1,500 words, please demonstrate, with reference to up to three 
case studies which are current or that have been completed within the past five 
years, how you have successfully delivered projects with a strong placemaking 
agenda and long-term vision.  

 

Your answer should address the following requirements: 

 evidence of successful delivery of exemplary ground floor spaces and 
public realm which is activated and curated;  

 experience of working with adjacent landowners to create a cohesive, 
permeable and attractive environment; 

 creation of long term social and financial value to the wider area through 
community initiatives or similar strategies; and 

 approach to the long-term management, activation and curation of a 
completed development including experience of sourcing and 
contracting with appropriate operators capable of curating varied 
tenants at different price-points. 

Each case study submitted in response to this question will not be evaluated in 
isolation. The Council will evaluate the answer as a whole in accordance with 
the scoring criteria. As such, you do not need to address each of the specified 
requirements above in each of the case studies (if there is more than one 
referenced), although all of the requirements should be addressed within your 
answer. 

6.4 Design and Planning Approach and Implementation (12.5%) 

In no more than 1,000 words, please demonstrate, with reference to up to three 
case studies which are current or that have been completed within the past five 
years, your approach to masterplanning and achieving planning consent.   

 

Your answer should address the following requirements: 

 successfully working with defined planning frameworks (e.g. a 
Supplementary Planning Document  (SPD) and Heritage Area) and 
obtaining planning permission for major mixed-use schemes. Your 
response should include how you worked up any masterplan and 
subsequent detailed phases, and how you addressed planning 
challenges; and 

 effective approach to the preservation of archaeology; and 

 successfully progressing and concluding Section 106 agreement 
negotiation. 

 

Each case study submitted in response to this question will not be evaluated in 
isolation. The Council will evaluate the answer as a whole in accordance with 
the scoring criteria. As such, you do not need to address each of the specified 
requirements above in each of the case studies (if there is more than one 
referenced), although all of the requirements should be addressed within your 
answer. 

6.5 Sustainability (12.5%)  

Page 59



CAB3322 – Appendix A  DRAFT 

 

 

Section 6 Technical and Professional Ability  

 

In no more than 1,500 words, please demonstrate, with reference to up to three 
case studies which are current or that have been completed within the past five 
years, your approach to sustainability and the delivery of sustainable 
developments. 

 

Your answer should address the following requirements: 

 evidence your track record of delivering net zero carbon development or 
where you have delivered development which exceeds regulatory 
requirements from a sustainability perspective. This should include how 
you set, monitored and delivered the sustainability standard and if 
possible, evidence the ‘in use’ performance outcomes;  

 your approach to delivering and measuring social value;  

 previous experience of bringing sustainable design, construction and 
technical innovation to developments; and 

 your approach to delivering sustainable transport infrastructure. 

 

Each case study submitted in response to this question will not be evaluated in 
isolation. The Council will evaluate the answer as a whole in accordance with 
the scoring criteria. As such, you do not need to address each of the specified 
requirements above in each of the case studies (if there is more than one 
referenced), although all of the requirements should be addressed within your 
answer. 

6.6 Capital and Financing (10%) 

In no more than 1,000 words, please demonstrate, with reference to up to three 
case studies which are current or that have been completed within the past five 
years, how you have accessed and secured capital and/or financing to fund 
similar projects to this opportunity.  

 

Your answer should address the following requirements: 

 similar projects where finance has been sourced; 

 track record with funding partners; 

 approach to securing funding; 

 type of funding secured; and  

 management of funding over the lifecycle of projects. 

 

Each case study submitted in response to this question will not be evaluated in 
isolation. The Council will evaluate the answer as a whole in accordance with 
the scoring criteria. As such, you do not need to address each of the specified 
requirements above in each of the case studies (if there is more than one 
referenced), although all of the requirements should be addressed within your 
answer. 

6.7 Management of Construction Delivery (10%) 

In no more than 1,000 words, please demonstrate, with reference to up to three 
case studies which are current or that have been completed within the past five 
years, how you have managed the procurement of construction and supply 
chains for similar projects to the opportunity.  

Page 60



CAB3322 – Appendix A  DRAFT 

 

 

Section 6 Technical and Professional Ability  

 

 

Your answer should address the following requirements: 

 experience in different forms of procurement and approach to risk and 
quality management; 

 experience of managing supply chains to ensure high quality output and 
standards are maintained; 

 effective cost management and contingency planning;  

 minimising long-term costs over the lifecycle of projects; and 

 managing health, wellbeing and safety of subcontractors. 

 

Each case study submitted in response to this question will not be evaluated in 
isolation. The Council will evaluate the answer as a whole in accordance with 
the scoring criteria set. As such, you do not need to address each of the 
specified requirements above in each of the case studies (if there is more than 
one referenced), although all of the requirements should be addressed within 
your answer. 

 

Scoring Q6.1 – Q6.7 (Section Six - Technical and Professional Ability); 

Weighted questions will be evaluated in line with the below scoring criteria:  

Score Description 

0 

Unanswered –  

  
The response fails to meet any or the majority of the minimum 
requirements as set out in the question.   

  
The response lacks relevant supporting information and 
evidence in relation to those minimum requirements which are 
addressed.    

  
Submissions which receive a ‘0 - Unanswered’ will not be 
considered further.  

  

2 

Not at required level –  

  
The response meets the majority of the minimum 
requirements as set out within the question but with isolated 
reservations or omissions. 

  
The response lacks relevant supporting information and 
evidence in relation to some of the minimum requirements 
which are addressed.    

  

5 

Satisfactory –  

  
The response meets the minimum requirements as set out 
within the question. 

Page 61



CAB3322 – Appendix A  DRAFT 

 

 

  
The response provides a satisfactory degree of relevant 
supporting information and evidence in relation to each of the 
minimum requirements. 

  

8 

Good –  

  
The response meets and in some cases exceeds the minimum 
requirements as set out within the question. 

  
The response provides detailed relevant supporting 
information and evidence in relation to each of the minimum 
requirements. 

  

10 

Excellent –  

  
The response meets and in the majority of cases exceeds the 
minimum requirements as set out within the question. 

  
The response provides clear and comprehensive relevant 
supporting information and evidence in relation to each of the 
minimum requirements. 
  

  

 

Page 62



CAB3322 – Appendix B 

 

 

Draft ITPD evaluation criteria and questions 

Summary of evaluation criteria  

ITPD Evaluation Criteria 

Evaluation Criteria Section Weighting Evaluation Sub-criteria Weighting 

Quality          70% 1. Approach  45% Approach to delivering a mixed-use quarter 10% 

Approach to high quality public realm and 
placemaking 

10% 

Approach to engagement  10% 

Approach to sustainability  10% 

Approach to meanwhile uses 5% 

2. Planning  10% Planning Strategy  10% 

3. Team  15% Deployment of Core Team   10% 

Partnering and Procurement  5% 

Commercial 30% 4. Market  7.5% Market understanding  7.5% 

5. Finance  12.5% Financial 12.5% 

6. Legal 10% Legal  10% 

 

 

Proposed scoring matrix  

Score Meaning  

10 Exceptional - A response that exceeds the minimum requirements as set out within the question by 
providing evidence of two or more items of significant added value, and is fully aligned to the overall 
Investment Objectives.  

8 Very Good - A response that exceeds the minimum requirements as set out within the question by 
providing evidence of one item of added value, and is fully aligned to the overall Investment Objectives. 

6 Good - A response that fully meets the minimum requirements as set out within the question with no 
reservations that reflect no risk to the overall delivery of the Investment Objectives. 

4 Adequate - A response that meets the majority of the minimum requirements as set out within the 
question but with isolated/minimal reservations or omissions that represent a minimal risk to the overall 
delivery of the Investment Objectives. 

2 Poor - A response that meets a limited number of the minimum requirements as set out within the 
question with a number of concerns or omissions that are considered to be of significant risk to the 
overall delivery of the Investment Objectives (including a “material inconsistency”). 

0 Unacceptable - A response that fails to meet the minimum requirements as set out in the question with 
fundamental concerns or omissions and a response that has no consideration of the overall Investment 
Objectives (including a “material inconsistency”). 

 

Scoring matrix to be read in conjunction with the Investment Objectives as set out at 4.2 of the Development Brief 
(Document 4). The scoring above will factor in the consistency between the Quality answers and Commercial 
answers as referred to in Q2 (Planning), Q4 (Market) and Q5 Part B (Structure and Finance), such that a “material 
inconsistency” will be taken into account. 

Please Note the following: 

Page 63



CAB3322 – Appendix B 

 

 

1. In addressing the Quality Questions, Bidders are not required to undertake or submit 

designs as part of their responses. The extent to which materials of a design nature may 

support the dialogue discussions and any presentations will be discussed with Bidders in 

an early stage of dialogue. 

2. In addressing the Quality and Financial Questions, please ensure that your answers are 

aligned and that the approach or solution you put forward under a Quality question is 

then reflected in how you make your commercial offer (and vice versa). The extent to 

which there is material inconsistency will be taken into account as referenced under the 

scoring matrix. 
Quality 

1. Approach (45%) 

SECTION – Approach WEIGHTI
NG 

Approach to delivering the mixed-use quarter   

In no more than 2,500 words please describe how you would approach the delivery of the Central 
Winchester Regeneration vision and investment objectives in practical terms. This should address, but 
not be limited to: 

 Your concept for realising the vision for the development site and the aims and objectives of 
the Council; 

 How you will enable the site for development;  

 Please provide your evidence-based assessment of three key things which could be done to 
optimise the existing development proposal. (Note these elements should not be included 
within the financial submission unless they relate to the uses already included within the Phase 
1 case study).  

 How you will protect and maintain the long-term vision for the development site throughout 
the delivery of each phase of the project; 

 Your approach to contingency planning including the mitigation of delays to the project; 

 Your approach to ensuring overall viability; and  

 How your approach to the scheme will (as appropriately as possible) replace the revenue loss to 
the Council from existing occupiers. Please outline possible solutions. (Note these elements 
should not be included within the financial submission unless they relate to the uses already 
included within the Phase 1 case study). 

As a minimum requirement Bidders should address all of the above bullet points. 

10% 

Approach to high quality public realm and placemaking  

In no more than 2,000 words, please describe your approach to developing scheme proposals for the 
development site as a whole. This should address, but not be limited to: 

 How you will ensure exemplary design quality across the development site’s uses, phases and 
public realm;  

 Your approach to ensuring that the special qualities found in the heart of Winchester are 
preserved and enhanced, ensuring that the development is compatible with the City’s historic 
and natural character; 

 How your approach will support a vibrant retail, cultural and heritage offer; 

 Your approach to the preservation of archaeology on site;  

 Your approach to ensuring increased permeability and accessibility throughout the site; and 

10% 

Page 64



CAB3322 – Appendix B 

 

 

 Your approach to the long term estate management of the whole site over time including the 
approach to activation and curation of the ground floor.  

As a minimum requirement the Bidder should be able to address all of the above with reference to the SPD, 
the Winchester Public Realm Strategy Report 2020, and the Winchester High Quality Places SPD.  

Approach to engagement  

In no more than 1,500 words please detail your approach to: 

 Meaningful engagement with stakeholders (articulating your assessment of who the 
stakeholders in this scheme will be and why they are important);  

 Community engagement throughout the development process; 

 Engaging and working with transport stakeholders to ensure the optimal public transport and 
bus solution is secured for the site; and  

 Engaging and working with neighbouring land owners, as outlined in section 5.3 and 7 of the 
Development Brief.  

As a minimum requirement the Bidder should be able to clearly address all of the above bullet points. 

10% 

Approach to Sustainability  

In no more than 1,500 words, please describe your approach to delivering a best-in-class sustainable 
development. This should address, but not be limited to: 

 Your understanding of the Council’s sustainability commitments and your approach to 
ensuring that the development will align with and achieve the stated objectives;  

 How you will ensure principles of sustainable development are incorporated in the design 
and delivery; 

 Your approach to net zero carbon, circular economy and the enhancement of 
biodiversity;  

 Your approach to the delivery of sustainable modes of travel;  

 Your approach to achieving building accreditations such as, but not limited to, BREEAM 
and Passivhaus; and  

 Your approach to ensuring the long-term improvement of the economic, social and 
environmental wellbeing of the area and the City; and   

As a minimum requirement Bidders should address all of the above bullet points above with reference to 
the SPD and the Council’s Green Economic Development Strategy.  

10% 

 Approach to meanwhile uses 

In no more than 1,000 words, please describe your approach to incorporating meanwhile uses into the 
development of the site in accordance and coordination with the development phasing. This should 
address, but not be limited to: 

 Your approach to early activation of the site through the delivery of meanwhile uses;  

 How you will ensure your meanwhile use strategy delivers benefits to address short term 
need but also constructs a longer term legacy for the development site; and  

As a minimum requirement Bidders should address all of the above bullet points. Note, Bidders are not 
asked to make financial proposals in the regard.  

5% 

OVERALL WEIGHTING FOR THIS SECTION 45% 

2. Planning (10%) 

Page 65



CAB3322 – Appendix B 

 

 

The responses to the questions below should articulate a Bidder's approach to create a high-quality 

environment, amenity and buildings across all uses. 

SECTION – Planning  WEIGHTING 

 Planning Strategy 

The chosen developer will be required to work with the Council to produce overall scheme 
proposals for the Site prior to securing an outline planning permission for the development site 
and a detailed planning permission for the first phase of development. The developer is required 
to adopt a clear planning strategy, underpinned by a collaborative approach towards design 
development, demonstrating innovation, flexibility and in accordance with the SPD.  

With this in mind and in no more than 2,000 words please: 

 Describe your proposed planning strategy for the site, including how you would 
approach the preparation and submission of a planning application(s) and associated 
planning and highways agreements; 

 Please explain how your planning strategy will enable you to secure consents on future 
phases of development and how you will seek to optimise the development proposals 
through the planning process; and  

 Please highlight how you would mitigate any potential planning risk.  

As a minimum requirement the Bidder should be able to address all of the above bullet points 
and how responses align with the Council’s objectives and the SPD. 

10% 

OVERALL WEIGHTING FOR THIS SECTION 10% 

3. Team (15%) 

The Council is seeking a Bid which will involve the deployment of an appropriate team resource to deliver the 
development. 

Bidders should demonstrate a commitment and capacity across the team to provide the "key roles" as set out 
in Section 5 of the Development Brief. 

SECTION – Team WEIGHTING 

Deployment of Core Team 

Please provide details of the core team that will be assigned to the Project, demonstrating a 
coherent approach to resourcing the Project throughout, including interface with the Council 
and potential funders. This response should articulate a full appreciation of the roles required in 
a long-term development project of this nature and therefore may include a lead designer 
(urban design, landscape or architect), engineers, sustainability consultant and community 
engagement consultant (or resourced internally). This answer should include, but not be limited 
to:  

Define key roles, responsibilities and why they have been chosen to fulfil those roles (5%):  

 One A3 page size organogram setting out your team structure and key personnel for all 
stages of the Project. This response should include each team member's role and 
responsibilities; 

 Please provide CVs for all key personnel using the template found at appendix X. 
Please ensure that CVs are submitted for the following roles:  

o Accountable Senior Executive with oversight (Board level Project Sponsor) 

o Project Director (if different from above)  

10% 

Page 66



CAB3322 – Appendix B 

 

 

o Project Manager (manages day to day responsibility) 

o Technical Director / Lead (planning, design, sustainability and construction 
methods)  

o Commercial Director / Lead (market, viability and product)  

o Relationship Manager (if different from any of the above)  

o Lead Architect 

 Please explain how named firms and individuals have been identified and will be 
deployed in long term roles recognising that the Council is looking for a high quality 
team to be embedded upfront and retained.  

In no more than 1,000 words please provide (5%):  

 Details of your processes for undertaking ongoing management throughout the project 
to deliver a consistently high quality service and continuity of resource;  

 Clear demonstration of how the time of the individuals named above will be 
committed / guaranteed throughout; 

 Clear demonstration of your succession planning should named individuals leave 
during the life of the Project; and 

 Details of your client engagement process to ensure effective communication, 
governance and accountability, to be upheld throughout the Project. 

As a minimum requirement the Bidder must demonstrate the deployment and retention of a 
core team that has the expertise and Competence necessary to undertake the "key roles" as set 
out in Section 5 of the Development Brief. 

Partnering and Procurement  

The Council are looking to secure a development partner for the delivery of the whole 
development site. Please demonstrate how you would manage your obligations and 
relationships. In no more than 1,000 words;  

 Please articulate your approach to delivering the development in partnership with the 
Council, as a public sector organisation; 

 Please articulate your approach to procuring contractors and other significant 
members of your supply chain (including professionals) to deliver value for money and 
how you will ensure their shared commitments to the Council’s regeneration vision 
and investment objectives; 

 Please articulate your approach to the appointment of other architects, noting the 
SPD’s preference for the involvement of multiple practices; and 

 Please articulate your approach to ensuring that best practice is embedded in your 
approach (including but not limited to sustainability, diversity and inclusion, modern 
slavery, use of SMEs, and other social value imperatives).  

As a minimum requirement your Bid should be able to address all of the above bullet points, 
ensuring alignment with the Development Brief. 

5% 

OVERALL WEIGHTING FOR THIS SECTION 15% 

 

 

Commercial questions 

4. Market (7.5%) 

Page 67



CAB3322 – Appendix B 

 

 

SECTION – Market  WEIGHTING 

Market understanding 

Attracting appropriate occupiers to the development site is crucial for the successful delivery of 
the Council’s vision and investment objectives. In no more than 2,000 words: 

 Your evidenced-based assessment of the appropriate mix of space to be delivered as a 
‘creative quarter’ and the target end users; 

 Your evidence-based assessment of the appropriate mix of ground floor tenants to act 
as ‘activators’ for the site and view on market demand;  

 Your evidence-based assessment of the appropriate mix of residential products;  

 Your approach to marketing and letting of the commercial space; and, 

 How this market assessment impacts on your proposals for delivery.  

In assessing the response, the extent to which your response is consistent with the Quality 
responses and the Financial responses in question 5 will be taken into account, and any 
material inconsistency will be negatively scored.  

As a minimum requirement your Bid should be able to address of the above bullet points with 
regard to the Vision for the development site and the investment objectives, as well as the factors 
identified in the Development Brief and SPD that have a bearing.  

7.5% 

TOTAL SCORE AVAILABLE FOR SECTION 7.5% 

5. Financial (12.5%) 

SECTION – Financial WEIGHTING 

Financial  

Please use the Excel document titled ‘Financial Template’ to complete the worked example. The 
financial template completed at Part A acts as a case study to test bidders on their assumptions 
for a hypothetical phase 1 development. By completing this template Bidders are not 
committing to deliver this mix of phase 1 uses and this does not constitute a land payment offer. 
This case study will be used as a hypothetical test to understand each bidders’ approach to 
maximising the residual land value.  

The following bidder inputs to the Financial Template will, however, form part of a Bidders offer 
and will be fixed as part of the development agreement:  

 Profit (% on cost or GDV) levels required for different use types / tenures  

 Development Management Fee (% of cost or GDV)  

Part A (7%) 

 Bidders are asked to make their financial submission by completing the Financial 
Template provided (using the MS Excel workbook located within the procurement 
portal) based on the instructions contained within it, and the following guidance.  

 The financial assessment is based on the delivery of the first phase of the scheme as 
detailed in the Arup Development Proposals area schedule which forms part of the 
Bidder information pack.  

 The accommodation schedule for the first phase of the scheme has been included in 
the “Phase 1 Assumptions” tab with total development quantums expressed as Gross 
internal Areas (GIAs) for each use class.  Bidders are to use this tab to populate the 
accommodation schedules by allocating their breakdown of type, tenure and use from 
these totals to demonstrate their proposed first phase scheme on the site.   

12.5% 

Page 68



CAB3322 – Appendix B 

 

 

 It should be noted that Bidders cannot change the total GIA, they should simply 
allocate their uses based on these totals 

 Bidders should then include their underlying assumptions within the “Phase 1 
Assumptions” sheet including costs, income, sales rate, values, timescales, 
development management fee, finance rate, contingency and profit as per the relevant 
tables in the worksheet  

 These entries should then be used as the basis to complete the Phase 1 Appraisal 
worksheet which will establish a case study land value for the Phase 1 scheme.   

 Finally bidders should input the timing of the Phase 1 payment on the Residual Land 
Value sheet.  These are then discounted to establish the Overall Financial impact (OFI) 
of the case study residual land value that is used for the evaluation of Bidders’ financial 
submissions for this question 

Part A – Scoring Approach 
 
The calculation of the score for the OFI will be carried out as follows. 
 
The bid submission OFI and the highest tendered OFI submitted are used as reference points. The 
individual Bidder’s OFI is divided by highest OFI submitted and then multiplied by the percentage 
weighting allocated to this question (7%). 
 
The highest OFI will receive the maximum percentage score available. Remaining OFIs will then 
be scored relative to the highest OFI offer which will be as per the following formula: 
 
Bidder's submitted OFO        x     Maximum available score (7%) 
Highest submitted OFO 
 
The Price evaluation carries 7% of the overall marks and, for example, if there are four tenders 
received to be evaluated which are priced at £15,000,000, £30,000,000, £23,000,000 and 
£32,000,000 scores would be as in the following table: 
 

 Tenderer A Tenderer B Tenderer C Tenderer D 

Total Bid Price £15,000,000 £30,000,000 £23,000,000 £32,000,000 

Score out of 7% 3.28% 6.56% 5.03% 7.00% 

 
Bidder D is the highest (£32,000,000) and thus would score the maximum 7.00% points. The 
other Bidders would be marked as per the table. 
 
The above example is for illustrative purposes only and all scores have been rounded to two (2) 
decimal places (as will be the case for the Bidders’ scores). 

Part B (5.5%)  

In no more than 4,000 words, Bidders are asked to provide a commercial narrative that provides 
justification and evidence to support the assumptions included in their completed Financial 
Template in answer to PART A. 

 The narrative should include but not necessarily be limited to the following aspects of 
your Financial Template: 

o The development, construction and sales phases of the phase 1 case study 

o Estimated scheme revenues.  These should be broken down by use type and 

tenure mix.  They should show the detailed assumptions behind the 

information included in the Financial Template; 

o Comparable evidence and analysis to demonstrate that the revenue 

assumptions adopted for sales rates, capital values, rentals, incentive packages 

and investment yield across all relevant property sectors are robust and 

Page 69



CAB3322 – Appendix B 

 

 

achievable; 

o Development specification, cost plan and disposal strategy for the scheme 

o Details of other development cost assumptions along with rationale for their 

adoption including: 

 Contingency rates; 

 Development management fees;  

 Profit rates; and 

 Finance costs and interest rate assumptions, including peak funding 

requirements; 

o As part of the submission Bidders should identify the key delivery risks within 

the proposal. 

o Identification of funding requirements and timings for the successful delivery 

of the scheme; and 

 Bidders should detail the research they have undertaken, including references to their 
own market analysis and third party evidence for all assumptions included in the 
template. 

In assessing the response, the extent to which the Part A & B response is consistent with the 
Quality responses will be taken into account, and any material inconsistency will be negatively 
scored.  

Tenderers should note that at Final Tender stage, this question will have a threshold score of 
4. A Tenderer who scores less than a 4 in this question at Final Tender stage will be 
disqualified and excluded from any further participation in this procurement process. 

TOTAL SCORE AVAILABLE FOR SECTION 12.5% 

 

6. Legal (10%) 

SECTION – Legal  WEIGHTING 

Legal  

Having regard to the Commercial Principles Paper, please provide the following:  

 Please provide a clean copy and a comparison mark-up with accompanying explanatory 
commentary on commercial and legal principles contained within the Key Commercial 
Principles document;  

 Please provide a clean copy and a comparison mark-up with accompanying explanatory 
commentary on commercial and legal principles contained within the draft Development 
Agreement; 

 Please indicate which elements of your proposals (as outlined in your responses to the 
questions above) you would be prepared to commit to contractually and, where 
appropriate, how this commitment will be secured e.g., by guarantee. (Note, as per the 
Financial question, Bidders inputs for profit and development management fees will be 
fixed in the Development Agreement);   

 Please highlight any major risks or concerns over your ability to deliver any of your 
responses as contractual commitments;  

 Please include any proposals which, for the Council, may be a beneficial change to the Key 
Commercial Principles or Development Agreement; and 

 Please indicate how you intend to contract with the Council (directly, via SPV or specify 
alternative).  

10% 

Page 70



CAB3322 – Appendix B 

 

 

Bidders responses to this question should be consistent with their Quality and Commercial 
submission (Question 5 – Finance and Structuring). 

Bidders will be evaluated on the basis as to whether the proposed change will be beneficial to the 
Council in terms of transfer of risk from the Council to the developer in relation to the significant 
provisions as listed in the draft Key Commercial Principles document.  

TOTAL SCORE AVAILABLE FOR SECTION 10% 

 

Page 71



 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

Page 72



CAB3322 – Appendix C 
Document 5 – Key Commercial Principles  

CWR: Document 5 Key Commercial Principles  

LEGAL\52628522v3 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DEVELOPMENT PARTNER FOR CENTRAL WINCHESTER REGENERATION  

 

DOCUMENT 5 – KEY COMMERCIAL PRINCIPLES 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 73



 

CWR: Document 5 Key Commercial Principles  

LEGAL\52628522v3 

Contents 

1 Background ........................................................................................ 3 

2 Overall approach ................................................................................. 3 

3 Development Agreement (Overview) ........................................................ 5 

4 Guarantee ......................................................................................... 6 

5 Governance ....................................................................................... 6 

6 Development Brief and Delivery Plan ........................................................ 6 

7 Design .............................................................................................. 7 

8 Community and Stakeholder Engagement Plan ............................................ 6 

9 Phase delivery .................................................................................... 7 

10 Variations ....................................................................................... 7 

11 Land transfer approach ...................................................................... 7 

12 Finance .......................................................................................... 8 

13 Exit and termination .......................................................................... 8 

14 Other matters dealt with in the Development Agreement ............................ 9 

 

Page 74



 

CWR: Document 5 Key Commercial Principles  

LEGAL\52628522v3 

 

1 Background  

1.1 Winchester City Council (the Council) is procuring a development partner to 
deliver the redevelopment of the Development Site (as identified as the defined 
site in the Development Brief (Document 4)), working with the Council, and as 
described in the Development Brief (the Development). 

1.2 The purpose of this document is to explain the key commercial principles under-
pinning the approach that the Council will take in structuring its commercial 
arrangements with the Developer and for delivery of the Development.  

1.3 The Developer will, subject to conditions, have the exclusive right to develop that 
part of the town centre described in the Development Brief as the defined site in 
accordance with the terms of the Development Agreement. The Development Brief 
sets out the Council’s core requirements and vision for the Central Winchester 
Regeneration and will be a Schedule to the Development Agreement (subject only 
to final revisions that are agreed by the Council (and as necessary in order to be 
scheduled to the Development Agreement)). The Developer’s approach (i.e. 
Delivery Plan) will be settled through the competitive process and will also be a 
Schedule to the Development Agreement.  

1.4 This document sits alongside the issued Draft Development Agreement (Document 
7). Where any inconsistency exists between this document and the Draft 
Development Agreement, the latter will take precedence.  

1.5 At ITPD stage Bidders will be required to review, accept and/or mark-up the Draft 
Development Agreement (and its Schedules) in accordance with Question 6 (Legal) 
of the Part [B] – Technical Evaluation section of the Invitation to Participate in 
Dialogue (Document 3) (the ITPD). The legal mark-up will be supported by a 
detailed commentary table to explain and justify proposed amendments. The form 
of commentary table to be used is provided [as an Appendix to the in ITPD]. These 
responses will be evaluated in accordance with the scoring and weighting given in 
the ITPD. 

2 Overall approach  

2.1 The Council’s key objectives and core requirements for the Central Winchester 
Regeneration are described in the Development Brief (which in turn refers to a 
number of important supporting documents, including the Supplementary Planning 
Document). It is therefore of crucial importance to the Council that the Developer 
has a clear plan for the delivery of the Development which satisfy the core 
requirements of the Development Brief. This principle is further amplified in 
paragraph 7. The Council also expects the Developer to commit appropriate 
financial and human capital resources to meet these objectives.  

2.2 The Council and the Developer will be parties to the Development Agreement, the 
Developer supported by a parent company guarantee where this is required by the 
Council. The Council and Developer will work in partnership to deliver the 
Development and both will play an active role in engaging with other landowners 
and the wider community. 

2.3 The Council will commit its land interests to the scheme and will oversee any 
further land assembly (the Developer having obligations to facilitate land assembly 

Page 75



 

CWR: Document 5 Key Commercial Principles  

LEGAL\52628522v3 

and vacant possession, all as will ultimately be written into the Delivery Plan). 
Independently of its role as landowner the Council will perform its statutory 
functions as planning authority. 

2.4 The Developer will contribute funding and provide expertise in respect of the 
delivery of the Development and will have responsibility for sourcing third party 
funding. The parties will work together to identify and secure available grant or 
other sources of financial support for the scheme. 

2.5 Funding of pre-development costs will be for the Developer (other than in relation 
to any residual land assembly that the Council has agreed to fund or in respect of 
statutory consents that only the Council may obtain).  

2.6 The drawdown of the Council’s land will be governed by the Development 
Agreement and will be in phases, subject to satisfaction of primary conditions, and 
for a value established under the Development Agreement which will satisfy the 
Council’s duty to obtain best consideration. 

2.7 Development finance is anticipated to be sourced externally or from the 
Developer’s own resources. The Council will wish to have the ability (but not an 
obligation) to provide the required finance itself (or part thereof) should that be 
beneficial in terms of viability. 

2.8 All financial arrangements will need to comply with the “subsidy control” regime 
replacing State aid, and the Council’s land must be drawn down on terms which 
satisfy its statutory duty to obtain best consideration. 

2.9 As part of the phase delivery process under the Development Agreement the 'exit 
strategy' for each land parcel will be agreed, including the long-term ownership of 
any private rental or commercial units constructed as part of the development 
works. Equally important will be the arrangements for the long-term stewardship 
of public realm delivered by the scheme. 

2.10 Each phase of development will be subject to a Development Phase Plan originated 
by the Developer and agreed with the Council (and also describing the exit strategy 
and long-term public realm stewardship). Its content may generally mirror that of 
the overall Delivery Plan, but at the phase-specific level of detail. 

2.11 For these purposes “exit strategy” means how an asset might be held by the 
Developer, sold to an investor, leased to an occupier (direct form the Council), or 
howsoever dealt with as will be proposed and agreed. 

2.12 The Developer will be responsible for providing or procuring the provision of its 
professional team in support of planning, design, and other disciplines, as well as 
the contractor and wider supply chain delivering each phase. The principle 
members of the professional team will be identified during the procurement 
process and will be embedded within the Development Agreement. Through the 
Delivery Plan the Council will be looking for assurance of value for money (and 
quality). Moreover, the Council will expect the Developer’s Delivery Plan to 
articulate how the Developer will ensure that each phase has the right blend of 
professional support, especially in respect of design, sustainability and public 
realm. 

2.13 Delivery of the Development will be phased and therefore the Phasing Plan of the 
Developer will be a crucial component of its Delivery Plan. The Development 

Page 76



 

CWR: Document 5 Key Commercial Principles  

LEGAL\52628522v3 

Agreement will reference target dates and longstop dates, the latter being a 
trigger for termination. 

3 Development Agreement (Overview) 

3.1 Development Brief. The Development Agreement sets out the objectives and core 
requirements of the Council by reference to the Development Brief (Schedule 1 of 
the Development Agreement). 

3.2 Delivery. The Developer shall be under a general obligation to procure the carrying 
out of and completion of the Development and shall pursue all or some of the 
following activities to achieve the scheme objectives for each phase (all as further 
regulated by the Delivery Plan (Schedule 2), which may (and is likely to) be 
updated from time to time by agreement, and each agreed Delivery Phase Plan): 

3.2.1 the pre-development activity needed to bring forward each 
phase of the development, e.g. the planning and design process; 

3.2.2 ongoing engagement and communication with stakeholders, 
which includes landowners, interest groups and statutory 
stakeholders in collaboration with the Council;  

3.2.3 consultation and communication with the wider community and 
interest groups in collaboration with the Council; 

3.2.4 obtaining planning and other consents; 

3.2.5 commissioning construction phases and entering into appropriate 
construction contracts; 

3.2.6 entering into development management contracts and estate 
management and maintenance contracts in relation to a phase 
(and its related infrastructure/public realm); 

3.2.7 marketing and managing sales and entering into any necessary 
sales agency contracts; 

3.2.8 deciding the long-term ownership of the development phases, 
including where rental income is to be retained by the Council as 
a strategic investment; 

3.2.9 entering into partnering agreements, development/works 
agreements or services contracts with third parties to deliver the 
scheme; 

3.2.10 securing third party funding; and 

3.2.11 all such other activities as necessary or desirable to achieve the 
objectives and core requirements of the Council. 

3.3 Land assembly. The roles of the Council and the Developer in respect of land 
assembly will be regulated by the Development Agreement. 

3.4 Land Transfer. The Council’s land will transfer (on a phased basis) on satisfaction 
of phase conditions and for best consideration. Phase conditions will cover an 

Page 77



 

CWR: Document 5 Key Commercial Principles  

LEGAL\52628522v3 

approved Development Phase Plan, planning consent, other necessary consents, 
funding, construction contract entered into, occupiers secured (where relevant), 
vacant possession, and any other pre-conditions that must be satisfied. The value 
will be ascertained through a valuation methodology set out in the Development 
Agreement, and so as to secure best consideration.   

4 Guarantee 

The Council reserves the right to require the Developer to procure a parent 
company guarantee (PCG) in relation to its obligations under the Development 
Agreement (save where the developer has no parent and/or is of sufficient 
standing in its own right). Where no PCG is required when entering into the 
Development Agreement, the agreement will nonetheless require a guarantee in 
the event of a permitted assignment or a later change in the financial standing of 
the Developer. 

5 Governance 

5.1 The Development Agreement will regulate the engagement between the Council 
and Developer throughout the life of the Development and ensures regular 
reporting and decision-making. The relevant Schedule anticipates a Board and 
separate Project Team. In core areas under the Development Agreement, matters 
are subject to the Council’s prior agreement/consent and Bidders should make 
themselves aware of these. 

5.2 Bidders should pay particular attention to these governance arrangements and, in 
dialogue, develop their proposals for structured and meaningful engagement with 
the Council and wider stakeholders (see Section 6 of this paper).  

6 Community and Stakeholder Engagement Plan  

The Community and Stakeholder Engagement Plan (attached to the Development 
Agreement at Schedule 18) is binding on the Developer. It will be a product of the 
competitive process but aligned with the Council’s requirements (under the 
Development Brief) and policies, as well as any statutory or other legal 
requirements. 

7 Development Brief and Delivery Plan 

7.1 The Development Agreement shall have appended to it the Development Brief (at 
Schedule 1). This will establish the Council’s objectives and core requirements 
under the Development Agreement. 

7.2 The Agreement will allow for a limited right of review of and variations to the 
scheme as a whole and to each phase delivery plan. The Agreement will regulate 
the process by which changes can be proposed and agreed. Given the phasing of 
the scheme and the likely need to make adjustment for changes in market 
conditions over time, this mechanism is essential. However, the right to vary the 
Agreement will be limited and the Agreement will anchor the scheme to certain 
core requirements (in the Development Brief). In addition, the Council will have 
the ability (reasonably) to refuse changes.  

7.3 Sitting alongside the Development Brief will be the Developer’s Delivery Plan. This 
will be developed with the successful Bidder during the preferred bidder stage, 
based on the competitive dialogue and the successful Bidder’s final tender 

Page 78



 

CWR: Document 5 Key Commercial Principles  

LEGAL\52628522v3 

submission. It will be capable of periodic and justified amendment by agreement, 
both parties acting reasonably. The Development Agreement therefore prescribes 
how the Developer may propose changes to its Delivery Plan and the basis on which 
that must be justified to, and approved by, the Council.  

7.4 The Delivery Plan will address all aspects of the Development, including phasing, 
proposed uses in each phase, programme, infrastructure and public realm, design 
ethos and approach, the core delivery team and wider professional support, and so 
on. 

8 Design proposal 

8.1 The Development Agreement will, in addition to the Delivery Plan, contain a Design 
Proposal. Like the Delivery Plan, this will derive from the successful Bidder (and 
therefore dialogue) and will be the overall framework for subsequent design work 
and planning applications. It will not contain actual designs for any of the scheme 
but will complement the Development Brief as a framework from which subsequent 
designs will be generated. 

8.2 The Development Brief (either itself or by reference to other documents) 
emphasises the importance placed on the quality of “design” both in relation to 
buildings and public realm. Accordingly, this framework for design is critically 
important to the Council. Bidders should therefore pay particular attention to how 
they will meet this objective and build that into their submission.  

9 Phase delivery  

9.1 The Development Agreement places obligations on the Developer for delivery of 
the Development. In particular, the Developer will be under obligation to pursue 
the necessary phase conditions for carrying out the development on a phased basis, 
and for overall development of the defined site. This will include: the design; 
planning application; obtaining of funding; and securing of occupiers/purchasers. 
These activities will be at the Developer’s cost and risk. The appointment of 
suitable professionals and contractors will be by the Developer in line with a 
collaborative approach established and agreed during the procurement process. 

9.2 For each phase, the Development Agreement requires the Developer to bring 
forward more detailed Development Phase Plans – for review and approval by the 
Council. 

9.3 The Council’s core obligation will be to obtain vacant possession and to transfer 
land for development (on a phased basis). The Developer may also have a role to 
play in securing vacant possession, for example by way of relocations and the 
carrying out of demolition works (where that is needed). 

10 Variations 

No amendment or variation of the Development Agreement itself will be valid or 
binding unless agreed by the Council, made in writing and executed by both 
parties. 

11 Land transfer approach  

11.1 The Council will be entitled to receive payments for the value of land transferred 
(on a long lease unless agreed otherwise). 

Page 79



 

CWR: Document 5 Key Commercial Principles  

LEGAL\52628522v3 

11.2 Land value payments may be made on an upfront basis or where agreed deferred 
(and include overage); the approach will be discussed in the procurement and may 
differ between phases. The Council will be looking to secure an uplift in the overall 
land payment where higher values are achieved above the level which underpins 
the land transfer price.  

11.3 The process for the transfer of the land will be such that it may transfer freehold 
or leasehold (by agreement) to the Developer, or may entail transfer or lease 
direct to third parties where that is consistent with the phase in question (and 
agreed Development Phase Plan). Leasehold transfer is the Council’s default 
position and freehold transfers will only occur where the Council agree. 

12 Finance  

12.1 The Development Agreement obliges the Developer to fund the development costs 
– both pre and post planning. It may do so from its own resources or by introducing 
third party development finance. 

12.2 The Development Agreement governs how the Developer may establish the viability 
of each phase, by reference to a financial model (attached to the agreement). This 
will fix the Developer’s profit and the development management fee - by reference 
to that model. The Development Agreement also governs how the residual land 
value is to be calculated (i.e. the land value payable to the Council), and will 
provide for a method of valuation that satisfies the Council’s obligation to obtain 
best consideration. 

12.3 The final make-up of each land value payment will depend on the phase and its 
overall financial make-up (and might include the Council taking a revenue stream). 
This will be determined by reference to the Developer’s overall Delivery Plan and 
the more detailed development of each Development Phase Plan. 

12.4 Where a phase (or scheme as a whole) is not viable the Development Agreement 
provides a mechanism for the parties to assess how best to achieve viability or to 
proceed with the development on a different financial basis (by agreement) but 
subject to the position on the Development Brief articulated in paragraph 7.  

12.5 The Council will recover its procurement costs from the Developer as an upfront 
payment (being the external advisor fees incurred by the Council in relation to the 
procurement). The timing (and quantum) of that payment will be settled in 
dialogue as well the terms that may govern any repayment. 

12.6 The Council will also oblige the Developer to fund (in whole or part) the Council’s 
project monitoring costs through the life of the scheme (recognising that this will 
be treated as a development cost and therefore impacting on land value). 

13 Exit and termination  

13.1 The Development Agreement provides for a natural expiry on completion of the 
overall development. In addition, terms provide for early termination in the event 
of default. This covers Developer insolvency, material defaults, and failure to meet 
longstop dates. Where an early termination occurs, the Council will have rights to 
recover land transferred (including under the relevant lease but subject to any 
third party’s position), and any direct losses by way of indemnity. Where desirable, 
the Development Agreement allows for completion of a phase under development 
(i.e. the termination will only cover future phases). Where undeveloped phases are 

Page 80



 

CWR: Document 5 Key Commercial Principles  

LEGAL\52628522v3 

handed back following termination for default, the Developer shall meet any costs 
for making good the site and indemnify for the Council’s losses (including re-
procurement costs. The Development Agreement recognises the rights of any third-
party funder (enjoying step-in rights).  

13.2 Council default is provided for and a mechanism to compensate the Developer in 
that event (by reference to recovery of sunk costs). 

14 Other matters dealt with in the Development Agreement  

14.1 Disputes. Provision is made for resolving disputes by means of escalation and then 
arbitration/mediation. There will also be terms for the parties to refer matters for 
expert determination, where the matter at hand is amenable to that.  

14.2 Tax. The basis on which tax matters are to be dealt with (i.e. SDLT, VAT) is 
covered. 

14.3 Indemnities. These are provided for in circumstances of death and personal injury, 
loss or damage to property and third party claims, where arising from breach, 
performance and non-performance of the Development Agreement by the 
Developer. The Developer is also indemnified by the Council where the Council is in 
breach (for abortive costs). 

14.4 Insurance. The Development Agreement prescribes the insurances that the 
Developer is required to take out or procure for the scheme. 

14.5 Assignment and change of control. Under the Development Agreement, the 
Developer can only assign, novate or otherwise transfer its rights and obligations to 
an entity which is associated with it (i.e. a member of its corporate group) and in 
each case, this will be subject to the Council’s consent. The Development 
Agreement also recognises the ability of the Developer to assign for funding 
purposes. Any consent may be conditional on a deed of covenant. Assignment to a 
third party will be subject to the Council’s consent (in its absolute discretion). 
Change of control is also regulated. These terms are important for the Council. 

14.6 Confidentiality and FOI. The Development Agreement governs the way in which 
matters are to be kept confidential and how any freedom of information request is 
to be dealt with. 

14.7 Open book. The Development Agreement is premised on, and provides for, an open 
book approach.  

14.8 Anti-corruption. The Development Agreement provides for termination where this 
occurs (as a Developer default). 

14.9 Data Protection. This is provided for. 

14.10 Modern Slavery. This is provided for. 

14.11 Non-fetter. The Development Agreement expressly states that nothing under the 
agreement fetters the discretion of the Council when acting in a statutory capacity 
(e.g. as planning authority). 

Page 81



 

CWR: Document 5 Key Commercial Principles  

LEGAL\52628522v3 

14.12 Non-compete. The Development Agreement includes terms to prevent the 
Developer from carrying out or being involved in developments which compete 
with, or are likely to compete with, this development. 

END 

Page 82



 

United Kingdom | November 2021 

           CAB3322 – Appendix D 
 

 
  

Outline Business Case 
Winchester City Council 

Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

 

Page 83



  
  

 

Outline Business Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

Contents 

1 Executive summary ........................................................................................................................................................................................ 4 

1.2 Introduction and project background ........................................................................................................................................................ 4 

1.3 OBC purpose ........................................................................................................................................................................................... 5 

1.4 Gateway review arrangements ................................................................................................................................................................ 6 

1.5 Development Site Boundaries .................................................................................................................................................................. 7 

1.6 Conclusion ............................................................................................................................................................................................... 9 

2 The Strategic Case ........................................................................................................................................................................................ 11 

2.2 Strategic context .................................................................................................................................................................................... 11 

2.3 The case for change .............................................................................................................................................................................. 14 

2.4 List of investment objectives .................................................................................................................................................................. 15 

2.5 Existing arrangements ........................................................................................................................................................................... 15 

2.6 City needs .............................................................................................................................................................................................. 16 

2.7 Potential business scope and key service requirements ....................................................................................................................... 17 

2.8 Main benefits criteria .............................................................................................................................................................................. 17 

2.9 Main risks ............................................................................................................................................................................................... 18 

2.10 Constraints ............................................................................................................................................................................................. 19 

2.11 Dependencies ........................................................................................................................................................................................ 20 

2.12 Conclusion ............................................................................................................................................................................................. 21 

3 The Economic Case ...................................................................................................................................................................................... 22 

3.2 Introduction ............................................................................................................................................................................................ 22 

3.3 Critical success factors (CSF) ................................................................................................................................................................ 22 

3.4 The long-listed options ........................................................................................................................................................................... 23 

3.5 Short-listed options ................................................................................................................................................................................ 24 

3.6 Economic appraisal net present social value (NPSV) findings .............................................................................................................. 26 

3.7 Conclusion ............................................................................................................................................................................................. 32 

4 The Commercial Case .................................................................................................................................................................................. 33 

4.2 Introduction ............................................................................................................................................................................................ 33 

4.3 Procurement strategy and implementation timescales .......................................................................................................................... 33 

4.4 Service stream requirements and required output ................................................................................................................................. 37 

4.5 Potential risk apportionment ................................................................................................................................................................... 39 

4.6 Financial mechanisms ............................................................................................................................................................................ 40 

4.7 Key contractual arrangements ............................................................................................................................................................... 40 

4.8 Personnel implications ........................................................................................................................................................................... 44 

4.9 Accountancy treatment .......................................................................................................................................................................... 44 

Page 84



  

  3 

4.10 Conclusion ............................................................................................................................................................................................. 44 

5 The Financial Case ....................................................................................................................................................................................... 46 

5.1 Overview / Introduction .......................................................................................................................................................................... 46 

5.2 Residual land value analysis for preferred option .................................................................................................................................. 46 

5.3 Residual Land Values ............................................................................................................................................................................ 48 

5.4 Affordability Approach ............................................................................................................................................................................ 49 

5.5 Financial Performance and Evaluation .................................................................................................................................................. 51 

5.6 Sensitivity Analysis – risk profiling ......................................................................................................................................................... 54 

5.7 Options to increase the affordability ....................................................................................................................................................... 55 

5.8 Conclusion ............................................................................................................................................................................................. 59 

6 The Management Case ................................................................................................................................................................................. 61 

6.2 Introduction ............................................................................................................................................................................................ 61 

6.3 Deliverability ........................................................................................................................................................................................... 61 

6.4 Programme and project management governance and arrangements .................................................................................................. 61 

6.5 Outline project plan ................................................................................................................................................................................ 62 

6.6 Risk management arrangements ........................................................................................................................................................... 63 

6.7 Project funding ....................................................................................................................................................................................... 65 

6.8 Conclusion ............................................................................................................................................................................................. 65 

7 Sources .......................................................................................................................................................................................................... 66 

8 Appendices .................................................................................................................................................................................................... 67 

8.2 Appendix A – Phasing Options .............................................................................................................................................................. 67 

8.3 Appendix B – Development Proposal .................................................................................................................................................... 72 

8.4 Appendix C – Selection Questionnaire questions .................................................................................................................................. 73 

8.5 Appendix D – Stage 2 ITPD Evaluation Criteria ..................................................................................................................................... 74 

8.6 Appendix E – BCR Assumptions Research Sources ............................................................................................................................. 75 

 

  

 

 

Page 85



  
 

 

Outline Business Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

 4 

1 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.2 Introduction and project background 

An Outline Business Case (“OBC”) is required for Gateway review 2 by the Winchester City 

Council (“Council”) to progress implementation of the Central Winchester Regeneration (“CWR”) 

programme. This programme is following the recommended Green Book approach to developing 

business cases to support programme and project decisions as outlined in the below table.   

Business case development process 
Stage Stage 0 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 
Stage outcome  Strategic 

Assessment 
 Strategic Outline 

Case 
 Outline Business 

Case 
 Full Business 

Case 
Stage activities  Determine the 

strategic context 
 Scoping the 

scheme 
 Making the case 

for change 
 Explore the 

preferred way 
forward 

 Defining the 
proposal and 
delivery 
parameters   

 Determine 
potential value 
for money (VfM) 

 Preparing for the 
potential deal 

 Ascertaining 
affordability and 
funding 
requirement 

 Planning for 
successful 
Procurement 

 Procuring the 
solution 

 Contracting for 
the deal 

 Ensuring 
successful 
delivery 

 5 Case Model 
completeness 
expectation 

   Strategic 50% 
 Economic 40% 
 Commercial 20% 
 Financial 30% 
 Management 

10% 

 Strategic 80% 
 Economic 70% 
 Commercial 60% 
 Financial 60% 
 Management 

50% 

 Strategic 100% 
 Economic 100% 
 Commercial 

100% 
 Financial 100% 
 Management 

100% 
Gateway review 0: Strategic 

assessment 
1: Business 
justification 

2: Delivery strategy 3: Investment 
decision 

Guide to developing the project business case 

To date, there has been significant work undertaken to develop the development proposals for the 

site and on stakeholder engagement, including public consultation across a range of stakeholders 

to enable inclusion of the widest group possible. The SOC was approved by the Cabinet on 21st 

July 2021 with the recommendation to progress to the OBC stage in order to provide further 

analysis on the preferred delivery route. The SOC evaluated two shortlisted options (described as 

Page 86



  
 

 

Outline Business Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    5 

Option 3.4 and 3.5). Option 3.41 was discounted due to affordability for the Council and the risk of 

limited market appetite. Cabinet selected Option 3.52 as the preferred option upon which to 

undertake further evaluation through an OBC.  

Progress to date has enabled the CWR project team to provide a SOC in accordance with the HM 

Treasury Green Book approach and to further progress elements of the 5 Case Model, including 

more detailed assessment of the delivery solution for the preferred option, and with progress made 

on the financial appraisal.  

Cabinet approval of this OBC would therefore enable the CWR project team to progress through 

Stage 2 and onto the Full Business Case in Stage 3. The full business case would be developed 

alongside the procurement process and would be completed based on the selected preferred 

bidder.  

The Cabinet and full Council decision to approve this OBC and the associated procurement 

documentation will provide delegated authority for Council Officers to commence the procurement 

process. The ‘Investment Decision’ taken at the FBC stage will be based on a recommendation to 

proceed to enter into the development agreement with the preferred bidder or to not enter into the 

agreement. In the instance that the preferred bidder satisfies the requirements of the procurement 

the recommendation would be for the Cabinet to decide to proceed to enter into the development 

agreement.   

1.3 OBC purpose 

The purpose of this OBC is to provide further analysis on the preferred delivery option agreed in 

the July 2021 SOC and to gain approval for the procurement approach. 

The OBC aims to further assess the preferred option in the context of the expected economic 

benefits, viability and Council affordability; prepare the scheme for procurement; and put in place 

the necessary funding and management arrangements for successful scheme delivery. 

This OBC provides the structure for the preferred option delivery using the following framework: 

 Strategic case – to confirm that the strategic objectives remain current and obtain 

agreement to the recommended option to achieve those objectives 

 Economic case – to determine that the proposal provides good public value for money 

through economic appraisals for quantitative and qualitative benefit assessment 

                                                                 
1 WCC to bring forward Kings Walk Creative Quarter with a Development Agreement with one development partner for the remainder of the site 
2 Development agreement across the whole site with one developer partner 

Page 87



  
 

 

Outline Business Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    6 

 Commercial case – to prepare for the recommended deal structure by explaining the 

delivery model, procurement and engagement 

 Financial case – to ascertain the affordability and funding requirement 

 Management case – to plan for successful delivery 

1.4 Gateway review arrangements 

Gateway reviews are recommended, and the agreed arrangements are that Cabinet will sign-off 

all Gateway reviews. Cabinet have confirmed that the CWR project team can request Cabinet 

meetings to undertake these reviews.  

The key gateway review points are as follows and will be subject to Cabinet decision. 

Gateway Reviews 
Gateway Descriptor Review report Expected review 

date 
Gateway 0 ‘Strategic Assessments’ on an ongoing 

assurance of programmes at the start, 
delivery and closing stages 

Included in Strategic Outline 
Case 

21 July 2021 

Gateway 1 ‘Business Justification’ prior the detailed 
planning phase. 

Strategic Outline Case 21 July 2021 

Gateway 2 ‘Delivery Strategy’ prior to the 
procurement phase. 

Outline Business Case 15 December 2021 

Gateway 3 ‘Investment Decision’ prior to contract 
signature. 

Full Business Case Q1 2023 

Gateway 4 Contract signature. ‘Readiness for 
Service’ prior to ‘going live’ and 
implementation of the scheme.  

  

Gateway 5 ‘Operational Review and Benefits 
Realisation’ following delivery of the 
project, establishment and/or 
decommissioning of the service 

  

Guide to developing the project business case 

  

Page 88



  
 

 

Outline Business Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    7 

1.5 Development Site Boundaries 

The map below shows the boundaries of the defined site, which would be subject to the 

development agreement:  

  

 

 The area outlined in red represents the defined site that would be included within a 

Development Agreement, therefore representing the area to be brought forward and examined 

in this business case. The area to be included in a Development Agreement includes only 

Council-owned land excluding the M&S leased land and is referred to as the ‘defined site. 

Areas A and B comprise 3.68 acres (1.49 ha). The area hatched denoting WCC freehold, 

highways adopted and access rights to St Clements Surgery comprises 0.06 acres (0.02 ha). 

Page 89



  
 

 

Outline Business Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    8 

 

 The area outlined in black illustrates the area defined in the CWR Supplementary Planning 

Document (SPD) (see section 2.2.1 of this document) which includes the Middle Brook Street 

Car Park, the Brooks Shopping Centre, Kings Walk block, Friarsgate Medical Centre, the Bus 

Station and the Broadway. The area comprises 11.48 acres (4.65 ha).  

         

        SPD Boundary  

Page 90



  
 

 

Outline Business Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    9 

 

 The area outlined in blue illustrates the area considered by the CWR development proposals, 

which includes Kings Walk block, Friarsgate Medical Centre, the Bus Station and Middle Brook 

Street Car Park. The total area comprises 6.45 acres (2.61 ha). The development proposals 

are attached in Appendix A and B of this business case.  

1.6 Conclusion 

This OBC expands on the work undertaken at the SOC stage and examines all 5 elements 

following the Green Book approach being: Strategic, Economic, Commercial, Financial and 

Management cases. Such work undertaken by the CWR project team analyses: the potential 

strategic and economic benefits from implementing the proposed development; financial modelling 

to determine affordability and viability; and to further expand on the proposed commercial 

approach and management of the development going forward.  

This OBC concludes the following for each element of the Green Book approach: 

 Strategic case – The Strategic Case identifies and documents the city need for homes for 

all, filling the current gap in affordable and flexible commercial space, and attracting and 

retaining the young and creative talent in the city. It demonstrates that the CWR site will 

deliver the Council’s investment objectives whilst fulfilling the aspirations of the SPD.  

         

      Development Proposals  

Page 91



  
 

 

Outline Business Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    10 

 Economic case – The Economic case details the significant economic benefits to the 

Winchester economy from the development of the CWR site. Quantifiable benefits include 

additional employment opportunities, increased footfall and stimulation of the city’s night-

time economy. When coupled with the qualitative benefits it is clear the CWR development 

will have a lasting positive impact on the city.  

 Commercial case – The Commercial case outlines the commercial arrangements and 

procurement approach to support the preferred delivery option, a contractual agreement 

with a single development partner. This approach provides the Council with an acceptable 

level of control over delivery whilst delivering on their investment objectives. The 

procurement approach will ensure a competitive market process to secure a development 

partner that best meets the Council’s requirements.  

 Financial case – The Financial case demonstrates that the proposed development 

generates a capital receipt. The prudent approach to determining affordability reflects an 

ongoing, annual cost to the Council which will need to be met from within existing budgets 

or by finding savings. Further work is recommended to address the affordability through the 

dialogue process with potential development partners. However, this needs to be balanced 

against the wider economic benefits set out in the economic case.  

 Management case – The Management case concludes that the redevelopment of Central 

Winchester is a considered, deliverable and realistic objective. The responsibility for 

delivery of the CWR scheme will be with the Development Partner, and activities will be at 

the Development Partner’s cost and risk. A risk register is in place to monitor business 

risks, service risks and external risks, and it is recommended that this risk register is built 

on further as details of the development agreement are finalised.  

 

Based on the above, it is advised that this OBC is presented to Cabinet as the basis for decision 

making on whether to proceed with the next steps; which include undertaking a procurement 

exercise; the preparation of the Full Business Case; and to select a development partner.  

Signed: 

Date:  

Senior Responsible Owner 

Project team  

Page 92



  
 

 

Outline Business Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    11 

2 THE STRATEGIC CASE  

2.2 Strategic context 

The regeneration of central Winchester brings forward proposals to fulfil the Council’s strategic 

objectives through the development and regeneration of the CWR defined area. 

The transformation of the CWR site is of key strategic importance to the Council and the people of 

Winchester. The vision for the area is for a mixed-use, pedestrian friendly quarter that is distinctly 

Winchester and supports a vibrant retail and cultural / heritage offer which is set within an 

exceptional public realm and incorporates the imaginative re-use of existing buildings. The 

development offers a variety of opportunities to create new spaces, revitalise others and forge 

something exceptional which serves the whole community in a balanced approach and creates an 

inspirational legacy. The development must set a benchmark quality standard for future 

development in the City.  

2.2.1 Strategic background documents 

The strategic objective is to ensure delivery and to maximise the overall quality of a new 

development. The policy background and policy decisions are summarised below: 

 Council Plan 2020-25 

The Council Plan 2020-25 was refreshed for 2021 and adopted by the Council on 24 February 

2021.  It sets out the priority outcomes for the Council and identifies the important issues that will 

be addressed over the life of the Plan through the work of the Council and its partners. 

The Council Plan is focused on five key outcomes that the Council want to achieve in the coming 

years in a way that is consistent across their aims. These priority outcomes are: 

 Tackling the climate emergency and creating a greener district 

 Homes for all 

 Vibrant local economy 

 Living well 

 Your services, Your voice. 

The outcome of the Council’s combined aims will be a district where everyone enjoys the 

opportunities and quality of life that come from living in the Winchester District. 

Page 93



  
 

 

Outline Business Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    12 

 CWR Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) objectives 

The CWR SPD was developed to ensure that the special qualities found in the heart of Winchester 

are retained and enhanced and that any future development is of a high-quality design, 

coordinated and sustainable.  

The SPD derives from relevant planning policies from the National Planning Policy Framework 

(NPPF), the Local Plan Part 1 (March 2013) and the Local Plan Part 2 (April 2017), particularly 

policies within the LPP2 which include WIN2 – Town Centre, WIN3 – Views & Roofscape, WIN4 – 

Silver Hill Mixed Use Site, DM15 – Local Distinctiveness, DM26 – Archaeology, and DM27 – 

Development in Conservation Areas.  

The nine objectives of the SPD are: 

 Objective 1 – Vibrant Mixed-Use Quarter 

 Objective 2 – “Winchesterness” 

 Objective 3 – Exceptional Public Realm 

 Objective 4 – City Experience 

 Objective 5 – Sustainable Transport 

 Objective 6 – Incremental Delivery 

 Objective 7 – Housing for All 

 Objective 8 – Community 

 Objective 9 – Climate Change and Sustainability 

 National Planning Policy Framework and Planning Practice Guidance 

The NPPF and Planning Practice Guidance prioritise sustainable development and set out core 

principles for the design of the built environment, requiring local authorities to seek opportunities to 

meet the development needs of the area through the planning process. 

The NPPF promotes competitive town centre environments which provide customer choice and a 

diverse retail offer whilst reflecting the individuality of the place. A range of other uses are 

expected to support the viability and vitality of the town centre, including leisure, offices, markets 

and a wide choice of quality homes. 

Page 94



  
 

 

Outline Business Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    13 

 Movement Strategy 

The Winchester Movement Strategy 2019 (WMS) provides the overall framework for transport 

improvements across Winchester City over the next 20-30 years. The proposals include 

improvements to the city centre through changes to the one-way system. The push for sustainable 

ways of transport will be supported by the introduction of high-quality cycle/walking improvements 

that will contribute to form a network of routes.  

Winchester Bus Station currently forms part of the development site. The redevelopment of the 

site requires the reprovision of bus facilities. In order to facilitate the development and secure 

vacant possession of the existing bus station, the Council has undertaken significant collaboration 

with the bus operators and Hampshire County Council to come up with a solution that retains the 

most used bus stops right in the heart of the city (e.g. Silver Hill and Tanner Street) and creates 

new on-street bus stops as part of public realm improvements to the city’s streets. A bus solution 

for the City centre has been agreed as a way forward to facilitate Winchester’s transport needs 

and to enable the site to be redeveloped. 

 Sustainability 

The Council declared a climate emergency in June 2019. The Council is committed to becoming a 

carbon neutral Council by 2024 and is aiming for the wider district to be carbon neutral by 2030.  

The development of the site is required to adhere to the following policy documents:  

 The Carbon Neutrality Action Plan 2020-2030  

 The Biodiversity Action Plan 2021 

 Air Quality SPD  

The Green Economic Development Strategy (Council Plan 2021) is currently going through the 

formal approval process and will comprise the Council’s latest policy objectives. The strategy will 

provide a road map of practical steps to transition to a greener, inclusive and more technologically 

driven, creative economy. An economy where existing businesses can grow sustainably; new 

businesses can be created and thrive, particularly those operating in the green growth sectors, and 

high quality job opportunities are provided for all demographics across the district.  

2.2.2 Summary 

Progress on CWR supports the Council plan and national planning priorities by working to deliver 

a vibrant new mixed-use development that will be creative and innovative to help reach the net 

Page 95



  
 

 

Outline Business Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    14 

carbon zero targets for the wider Winchester District by 2030. The CWR SPD details aims and 

objectives for the scheme and a planning and urban design framework which are in alignment with 

the Council plan priorities. 

The residential element of the development will facilitate the delivery of the ‘Housing for all’ 

objective. It will support a vibrant local economy by working to fill the gap of affordable and flexible 

commercial space, enhancing the evening economy offer and creating an area aimed at attracting 

and retaining the young and creative talent in the City. 

The SPD covers the area within the red line site boundary shown in the map in Section 1.5.  

2.3 The case for change 

Affordability for the Council is an important factor in shaping the CWR project. The current 

financial constraints facing the Council, exacerbated by the impact of Covid-19, mean this is a key 

consideration in decision making. Nevertheless, it is recognised by the Council that financial gain 

or investment in CWR for profit is not an outcome objective of this project. The wider and more 

important, non-financial benefits of the CWR project are explored in detail in the Economic Case 

[section 3].  

The SPD sets out a vision and objectives for the area. The SPD is derived from 18 months of 

research and analysis, working with residents and local organisations through extensive 

consultation to establish a vision that will revitalise this central area of city and provide a place that 

can be enjoyed by everyone.   

Research which followed the adoption of the SPD has further broadened our understanding of 

gaps in the market and how the central Winchester area can help to address these. 

JLL undertook a Competitive Positioning study in 2019 which assessed the strengths, 

weaknesses, opportunities and threats for the city. The analysis has shown that the structure of 

Winchester’s population is not balanced in terms of age demographics. There is an ageing 

population living within Winchester and the city struggles to retain young talent due to a lack of 

affordable living opportunities, workspace and employment. 

This imbalance will pose significant threat to Winchester’s future prosperity and resilience. It is 

vital the Council invests now to ensure the city continues to attract people to live, shop, visit and 

work.  

Page 96



  
 

 

Outline Business Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    15 

2.4 List of investment objectives 

The following objectives have been identified to help address the issues which are currently 

contributing to Winchester’s imbalanced age demographic whilst delivering to the SPD objectives 

and fulfilling the vision set out in the SPD which so many helped to shape. 

The list of investment objectives was determined by initially reviewing the SPD and applying these 

through a process of competitive position analysis and the ‘Three Scenarios’ work. These 

investment objectives formed part of a public consultation in November 2020, were reviewed 

taking on board comments for that consultation and approved by the Cabinet in May 2021 and 

subsequently included in the SOC.  

 
# Investment Objective Description 
1 Work Provide creative, flexible workspaces to help grow start-up businesses and 

allow like-minded professionals to support each other by sharing skills, ideas 
and resources. 

2 Live Provide housing suitable for a range of people, including young people and 
families. A mix of private and affordable housing is needed with new homes 
for key workers and homes for rent. 

3 Play Create high quality exceptional public places where people want to spend 
time, to enjoy outside spaces, to experience new things or to get involved in 
something that interests them. 

4 Student experience Create a mix of uses which is attractive to students and young people. Which 
encourages them to visit the centre of Winchester instead of going elsewhere 
and gives them reason to want to stay in the city beyond their time at 
university. 

5 Overnight tourism Create an attractive night-time offering to complement the existing city 
quarters and encourage residents and tourists to visit the area in the 
evening. 

6 Sustainable development Work towards the city carbon neutrality target through choice of building 
materials, measures to minimise energy use, re-use of buildings where 
appropriate and encouraging suitable modes of transport. 

WCC stakeholder engagement 

 

 

 

 

2.5 Existing arrangements 

 Dated area 

The prominence of the CWR area is of paramount importance. Yet current perception is negative 

in that it represents a dated area of the city centre. Many buildings are vacant, unsightly and have 

Page 97



  
 

 

Outline Business Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    16 

fallen into disrepair. Businesses are struggling due to lack of footfall / desire from others to move 

into / visit the area.  

 

 Antisocial behaviour and squatting 

Issues with antisocial behaviour and squatting are not uncommon, creating security issues and 

further costs for the Council. 

 

 Cost to Council 

The Council currently pays out sums of money towards business rates and maintenance fees for 

unoccupied buildings.  The net budgeted income/cost for the existing buildings is set out in table 

5.4.1. 

 

 Unbalanced age demographic 

A Competitive Position Study to assess the strengths, weaknesses, opportunities and threats for 

the city has demonstrated that the structure of Winchester’s population is not balanced in terms of 

age demographics. There is an ageing population living within Winchester and the city struggles to 

retain young talent due to a lack of affordable living opportunities, workspace and employment 

opportunities. 

 

 COVID-19 impact on tourism and wider economy 

The impact of COVID-19 on the national economy along with the reduction in tourism income 

poses a significant threat to Winchester’s prosperity and resilience. In order to address this the 

Council will need to consider ways to encourage and attract overnight tourism. 

 

2.6 City needs 

 Rejuvenation of the city centre 

Without investment into the area, the issues referred to above will continue to escalate resulting in 

degradation of central Winchester, potentially creating a downward spiral of falling footfalls, lower 

retail demand (particularly from blue-chip tenants) and falling rents. It’s therefore vital the Council 

invests now to ensure the city continues to attract people to live, shop, visit and work. 

Page 98



  
 

 

Outline Business Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    17 

 COVID-19 Pandemic recovery 

There is a need to work towards ensuring Winchester’s recovery from the COVID-19 pandemic, 

whilst recognising the challenges this pandemic poses to resources and the financial situation 

across the local government sector.  

 Mitigate Council reputational risk 

Residents and local organisations have been waiting a long while for the area to be improved. 

Council has promised to regenerate and although there is a reputational risk to the Council if it 

fails to do so now, the Council will only approve a development provided that the outcomes are 

successful in meeting the investment objectives. 

2.7 Potential business scope and key service requirements 

The scope of the proposal is to redevelop the Central Winchester site in line with the strategic 

objectives extracted from the background documents which include the Council Plan and SPD and 

distilled into the investment objectives. As part of the SOC, a “Do Nothing” option was presented 

as a baseline with three different options considered under the redevelopment proposals. The 

options considered were as follows: 

List of potential project scope options 
Do nothing Do minimum Do more than minimum Do maximum 
Continue managing and 
operating the area in the 
current way 

Demolish Friarsgate 
Medical Centre and 
develop into interim public 
space 

Demolish Friarsgate 
Medical Centre and 
develop into interim public 
space and refurbish Kings 
Walk to provide a creative 
quarter 

Redevelop the defined site 
into a mixed-use node 

WCC and JLL 

The outcome of the SOC was that a “Do Maximum” approach was seen as the best possible 

option as it was the only option that adequately fulfilled the investment objectives. 

2.8 Main benefits criteria 

This section describes the main outcomes and benefits associated with the implementation of the 

potential scope in relation to the city needs. 

 Improve employment opportunities  

 Create flexible workspaces to help grow start-up and small businesses 

 Enhance the local economy / assist in recovery from COVID19 impact 

 Reduce issues with antisocial behaviour 

Page 99



  
 

 

Outline Business Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    18 

 Provide housing for all 

 Improve the night-time offering 

 Encourage sustainable movement 

 Minimise energy use 

 Resilience to impacts of climate change such as flooding 

Development of the CWR site will deliver the Council’s investment objectives whilst fulfilling the 

aspirations of the SPD. 

2.9 Main risks 

The main risks to the project are: 

Main risks and mitigating actions 
Risk Mitigating action 
Lack of timely decision on the procurement 
documentation for the preferred option for delivery 

Ensure sufficient stakeholder engagement prior to 
presentation of the OBC and procurement documentation 
to Council for decision in December 21 

The development does not deliver on the SPD and 
Investment Objectives 

The Council to ensure that a delivery model is selected 
that ensures alignment to the SPD and the Investment 
Objectives 

Resistance from the neighbouring landlords and 
residents could delay or impede the project 

Stakeholder engagement with the neighbouring landlords 
and residents 

General economic risk of there being lower than 
expected take-up of the developed facilities 

Detailed market research and advanced marketing to 
secure the right mix of tenants 

Political risk of failing to deliver the project Deliver meanwhile uses to show short-term progress and 
activation of the site whilst progressing delivery of the 
project 

Loss of income from the site and options for 
replacement income streams   

Detailed modelling of various scenarios with probability / 
sensitivity analysis / optimism bias to identify affability in 
the context of the Council’s Medium Term Financial 
Strategy.  

WCC and JLL 

  

Page 100



  
 

 

Outline Business Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    19 

2.10 Constraints 

The project is subject to the following constraints: 

 Affordability 

It is important to consider the affordability in the context of the Council’s overall financial position 

and one of the key principles of the CWR project is affordability to the Council. The development 

will be affordable to the Council if the revenue consequences (i.e. the ongoing annual cost) of the 

investment in CWR can be sustainably subsumed within the annual budget and Medium Term 

Financial Strategy (e.g. by using existing resources; making offsetting savings; and/or generating 

additional income). 

 

 Viability 

Viability assessment is a process of assessing whether a site is financially viable, by looking at 

whether the value generated by a development is more than the cost of developing it. It is 

important to ensure the commercial viability of the site. The mix of uses which meet the investment 

objectives for the project will likely not return the highest land value to the Council. In this regard, 

viability will be determined by a developer as a function of whether their development costs and 

scheme revenues will generate an acceptable financial return. Any surplus is then the residual 

land value that is paid for the land being transferred. The investment objectives for CWR are such 

that the land value will be supressed, but in return for the achievement of the investment 

objectives (since these have not been established merely in order to generate a maximum land 

value for the Council). 

 

 COVID-19  

The current pandemic may have an impact on how quickly the Council can move forward with the 

development. In the short term this may involve issues related to funding and resource. The 

impacts of the pandemic longer term are currently unknown, but this is likely to involve further 

decline in the already struggling retail market as well as presenting challenges for housing and 

changes to working patterns / operations. The development proposals have been created to 

enable flexibility across the different mix of uses and the phasing. 

 

 

 Funding 

Page 101



  
 

 

Outline Business Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    20 

The Council will be looking to apply for relevant external funding grants at appropriate points as 

the development moves forward. The funding available and the success of any applications 

submitted will have an impact on how quickly the Council can move forward with certain elements 

of the scheme. 

2.11 Dependencies 

The project is subject to the following dependencies that will be carefully monitored and managed 

throughout the lifespan of the scheme. 

 

 Winchester Movement Strategy 

The development proposals for the site include a solution for bus traffic which will work within the 

existing road network and current one – way system in the city, in order to create new on-street 

bus stops as part of public realm improvements to the city’s streets. As the outputs from the 

Movement Strategy come forward and the development progresses there is an opportunity to 

revisit the solution for the bus operations and potentially re-route the buses away from the centre 

of the site. The Council continues to work closely with Hampshire County Council to ensure 

proposals for CWR and the outputs of the Movement Strategy are aligned. 

 

 Landownership and tenancies 

Within the DA defined site, some parts of the site will be available for redevelopment sooner than 

others, and the timings as to how development will come forward in a series of phases need to 

take this into consideration. For example, the provision of an alternative solution for bus operations 

will assist the Council to gain vacant possession of the existing bus station. The Council working 

with the development partner will work closely with the tenants and other landowners as the 

development proposals are progressed. [Proposals for phasing will be considered during the 

procurement process and the Development agreement will enable appropriate phased delivery to 

be determined.] 

 

 

 

 Climate change 

Page 102



  
 

 

Outline Business Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    21 

The Council’s Carbon Neutrality Action Plan commits to review its own activities to reach carbon 

neutrality by 2024 and sets the same ambitious goal for the wider district by 2030. Consideration 

of the carbon emission impact of development, transport implications and the sustainability of the 

scheme is therefore critical to the development process. 

2.12 Conclusion 

The Strategic Case demonstrates that there is a city need for homes for all, filling the gap of 

affordable and flexible commercial space, and attracting and retaining the young and creative 

talent in the city. The development of the CWR site will deliver the Council’s investment objectives 

whilst fulfilling the aspirations of the SPD. It is vital that the Council invests now to ensure the city 

continues to attract people to live, shop, visit and work. 

Page 103



  
 

 

Outline Business Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    22 

3 THE ECONOMIC CASE  

3.2 Introduction 

In accordance with the requirements of HM Treasury’s The Green Book (Central Government 

Guidance on Appraisal and Evaluation) and HM Treasury’s Guide to Developing Project Business 

Case 2018 (Better Business Cases - For Better Outcomes), this section of the OBC summarises 

the wide range of options that were considered during the SOC in response to the potential scope 

identified within the Strategic Case. 

Furthermore, the Economic Case assesses and demonstrates that the project provides good 

public value to society, including wider social and environmental benefits at both a public purse 

and local economy level. Both the qualitative and quantitative benefits expected to be delivered by 

this project have been explored.  

3.3 Critical success factors (CSF) 

The key CSFs for the project were developed iteratively over time through a mix of key 

stakeholder engagement and public participation. The final set of CSFs were presented to the 

Council Cabinet on 15 June 2021 and were endorsed by them at this meeting. 

These CSFs were used alongside the investment objectives in the Economic Case section of the 

SOC to evaluate the long list of possible options. 

Critical Success Factors 
CSF  Descriptor 

1 Alignment 
to City 
Needs 

How well the option satisfies the existing and future needs of the city as identified in the 
Competitive Positioning Study as well as the Council’s 5 key outcomes as outlined in the 
Council Plan 2020-25, namely: 
 Tackling the climate emergency and creating a greener district 
 Homes for all 
 Vibrant local economy 
 Living well 
 Your services. Your voice. 

2 Alignment 
to the SPD 

How well the option aligns to the 9 key objectives in the CPD, namely: 
 Vibrant Mixed-Use Quarter 
 “Winchesterness” 
 Exceptional Public Realm 
 City Experience 
 Sustainable Transport 
 Incremental Delivery 
 Housing for All 
 Community 

Page 104



  
 

 

Outline Business Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    23 

CSF  Descriptor 
 Climate Change and Sustainability 

3 Alignment 
to the 
Investment 
Objectives 

How well the option is aligned to the 6 Investment Objectives, namely: 
 Work 
 Live 
 Play 
 Student and young person experience 
 Overnight tourism 
 Sustainable development 

4 Achieving 
the benefits 
optimisation 

How well the option assists in improving the local economy in areas such as: 
 Job creation and employment opportunities 
 Increase in rates and taxes 
 Tourism economy benefits 
 Delivery of affordable housing  

5 Affordability Assessment on the Council’s ability to fund the required level of expenditure – namely, 
the capital and revenue consequences associated with the proposed investment. 

6 Obtaining 
planning 
permission 

Ability of the proposed solution to meet planning requirements and obtaining the 
necessary planning permission promptly 

7 Mitigating 
Political 
Risk  

Political risk of not delivering on public declarations in a timely manner  

WCC and JLL 

3.4 The long-listed options 

The long list of options, explored at SOC stage, were generated from a number of key stakeholder 

workshops, Council cabinet Member’s discussion groups and a public participation forum. 

The evaluation was undertaken in accordance with how well each option met the investment 

objectives (as listed in the Strategic Case) and the CSFs.  

The long list of options for this development were generated using the Green Book options 

framework. This generated options within the following four key categories of choice, which have 

been assessed in a linear process: 

1. Solution options – choices in terms of specifications and coverage of the development (the 
“what”) 

2. Implementation options – choices in terms of the delivery timescale (the “when”) 

3. Solution delivery options – choices in terms of method of delivery (the “how”) 

4. Funding options – choices in terms of financing and funding (the “who”) 

3.4.1 The long list: inclusions and exclusions 

The long list has appraised a wide range of possible options (solution, implementation, solution 

delivery, and funding) detailed in the below table. The table below provides a summary of all 

inclusions and exclusions which have been outlined in detail in the SOC.  

Page 105



  
 

 

Outline Business Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    24 

Summary of inclusions and exclusions 
Option Descriptor Finding 
Assessment 1: Solution 
1.1 Do nothing Excluded. Will result in the city 

centre continuing to degenerate 
1.2 Do minimum Excluded. Will not result in the 

required vibrant mixed-use quarter 
1.3 Do more than minimum Excluded. Will not result in the 

required vibrant mixed-use quarter 
1.4 Do maximum Included. Option most closely 

aligned with the investment 
objectives 

Assessment 2: Implementation 
2.1 Single phase Excluded. Not aligned to SPD 

phased development approach 
2.2 Incremental Included 
Assessment 3: Solution delivery 
3.1 Disposal- Freehold or Long Leasehold Excluded. Insufficient control of the 

development.  
3.2 WCC to bring forward Kings Walk Creative Quarter and deliver 

the on-street bus solution. Remaining land parcels disposed of 
on a Freehold basis and brought forward by multiple developers 

Excluded. Insufficient control over 
the development of the sold land 
parcels. 

3.3 WCC to bring forward Kings Walk Creative Quarter and deliver 
the on-street bus solution.  Followed by a development 
agreement with one development partner to bring forward the 
remaining land parcels in the defined site 

Excluded. High WCC expenditure 
and resource requirement. Lack of 
market appetite.  

3.4 WCC to bring forward Kings Walk Creative Quarter. 
Development Agreement with one development partner for the 
remainder of the defined site 

Included as shortlisted option 

3.5 Development agreement across the defined site with one 
development partner 

Included as preferred shortlisted 
option 

3.6 WCC acting as master developer Excluded. Requires significant 
capital expenditure, resources, and 
expertise.  

Assessment 4: Funding 
4.1 Private funding Included as a blend of both private 

and public funding is preferred 
4.2 Public funding Included as a blend of both private 

and public funding is preferred 
JLL 

3.5 Short-listed options 

The below table provides a summary of the included elements which were considered for the 

short-list at SOC stage. An illustrative financial analysis of these options was prepared at SOC 

stage and coupled with a final review against the project’s critical success factors. This determined 

the preferred shortlisted option to be taken forward to the OBC. 

Page 106



  
 

 

Outline Business Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    25 

3.5.1 Shortlisted Options 

As assessment categories 1 (scope), 2 (implementation) and 4 (funding) are identical across all 

included options, the assessment category 3 options have been used as the included options 

descriptors. 

Included options for short-list consideration  
Assessment 
category 

Included options 

Solution Option 1.4 Do maximum 

Implementation Option 2.1 Incremental implementation 
 

Delivery Option 3.4- shortlisted  
WCC to bring forward Kings Walk Creative 
Quarter. Development Agreement with one 
development partner for the remainder of 
the defined site 
 

Option 3.5- preferred (endorsed)  
Development agreement (i.e. contractual 
Joint Venture) across the defined site with 
one development partner 
 

Funding Blend of private & public funding 

JLL 

 

Shortlisted option 3.4 was discounted due to the lack of affordability for the Council of undertaking 

the refurbishment of Kings Walk to provide the creative quarter and risk to developer market 

appetite through the reduction in the size of the development opportunity. On 21st July 2021, the 

Cabinet endorsed the SOC recommendation to move forward with preferred delivery option 3.5 for 

further assessment in this OBC.    

Delivery option 3.5 provides WCC with an acceptable level of control over delivery and timings. 

This route is able to meet the investment objectives and the critical success factors. Whilst 

delivered via one development partner, this route still enables incremental and phased delivery 

with multiple stakeholders and design teams (as desired in the SPD). This route retains the 

opportunity/ability for WCC and the chosen development partner to appoint specialist entities to 

deliver phases and/or blocks, whilst retaining overarching control through the development 

agreement. This route also enables better sharing of infrastructure and public realm related costs 

across land parcels and allows for cross-subsidy across the site enabling higher value uses to 

support the delivery of lower value uses (such as affordable housing and community spaces). 

Page 107



  
 

 

Outline Business Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    26 

3.6 Economic appraisal net present social value (NPSV) findings 

As part of this OBC, a benefits cost ratio (BCR) of the socio-economic benefits of the proposed 

development of the CWR programme has been prepared. BCR is a ratio used to summarise the 

overall relationship between the relative costs and benefits of CWR. If a project has a BCR greater 

than 1, the project is expected to deliver a positive net present value to Council.  

The benefit themes identified were discussed and confirmed by Cabinet in a workshop on the 26th 

August 2021 and subsequent workshops with the other political parties in the week of 13th 

September 2021 identified Cabinet’s key priorities for CWR.  

The BCR analysis has included: 

 An assumption log of inputs (Appendix E)  that drive the cost benefit analysis for socio-

economic benefit; 

 A cost benefit analysis, considering the ‘deadweight’ (do nothing / minimum) scenario, and 

the ‘additionality’ (incremental benefits), leakage, substitution, multiplier, and displacement 

of development; 

 The BCR result; 

 Sensitivity analysis and optimism bias to demonstrate impact of changes to cost inputs / 

benefit outputs. 

3.6.1 Benefits appraisal – an additionality approach  

When assessing the benefits for the CWR programme, the principle taken was one of 

“additionality”. The rationale for this approach is that the current buildings within the site are, for 

the most part, at the end of their useful life and no longer represented the best possible use. The 

development types and unit sizes, outlined in the development proposal, are based on addressing 

current shortage of supply as indicated by JLL market research. It is anticipated that any resulting 

vacancies from existing tenants outside of the CWR moving into the new development will be 

backfilled by existing demand. 

3.6.2 Quantitative benefits 

The CWR project team used the investment objectives as a basis for determining the key 

economic benefits themes for the development. Five key themes were identified where the benefit 

in financial terms may be quantified. These five themes are: 

 Employment opportunities 

Page 108



  
 

 

Outline Business Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    27 

The new development will create additional workspaces and attract new businesses 

providing local residents with employment opportunities 

 Increased footfall to the area 

A rejuvenated and vibrant CWR is likely to positively impact the number of visitors to the 

area, resulting in additional spend in the local economy 

 Increase in Council income from new housing and businesses 

The proposed housing and new business premises will positively contribute to increased 

Council Tax and Business Rates income 

 Keeping residents local 

The inclusion of housing in CWR as well as new job opportunities from the office, retail and 

cultural space will result in Winchester residents remaining local, positively impacting on 

commuting and sustainability 

 Increase in overnight tourism 

Creating a vibrant mixed use quarter and in particular the proposed hotel is expected to 

increase overnight tourism in Winchester which will lead to increased local economy spend 

 

In calculating the benefits of the above, the CWR project team used benchmarked data, local 

tourism data and a number of researched market reports to align our assumptions. Details of the 

assumptions and documents used can be found in Appendix E. 

The categories of benefits included in this analysis are: 

- Council tax receipts  

- Increase in local spend due to increased footfall to the area 

- Increase in local spend from new residents in the new build houses  

- Increase in local spend from workers during the duration of the development 

- Business rates through development of office and hotel buildings 

- SDLT from the sale of new homes 

- Increased local spend due to increase in overnight tourism/night life   

The below table summarises the results of the BCR analysis, categorising the themes into two 

benefit types: Local Economy and Public Purse. 

 Benefit types: 

Page 109



  
 

 

Outline Business Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    28 

 Local Economy – benefits that will directly affect the local Winchester economy and 

potentially have a multiplier effect on the wider economy  

 Public Purse – benefits generated that will directly benefit Council or the National 

Government by taxation or other means 

These two categories of benefits are combined to calculate the All Economy benefit highlighted in 

the BCR calculations. 

The benefits are then divided by the Development Costs (estimated cost to complete the 

development) to determine the ratio.  

Summary table of quantifiable benefits 
Benefit Theme Hypothesis Assumptions Benefit 

Type 

Benefit 

£’m 

Low Medium High 

1 

Mixed-use 

development will 

attract businesses 

requiring employees 

and create contractor 

jobs which increase 

local spend and 

generate increased 

Tax and NI 

contributions.  

Development of the 

property will require 

local contractors. 

Assumed Council 

will maximise the 

use of local 

contractors at an 

average salary of 

£30k per annum for 

3 years. Income 

Tax and NI 

contributions 

contribute to the 

Public Purse 

Assumed 60% net 

of £30-£35k salary  

will be spent locally3 

Local 

Economy 
     £10.2 5% 10% 20% 

Income Tax and NI 

Contributions based 

on under 65 year 

old employee 

Public 

Purse 
        £5.9  5% 10% 20% 

The fully developed 

site will create:  

126 Small Business 

jobs at 1 per 10m2 

216 Retail jobs at 1 

per 10m2 

55 Upscale Hotel 

jobs at 1 per 2 

rooms 

26 Cultural jobs at 

1 per 50m2 

Assumed 60% net 

of £30-£35k salary  

will be spent locally3 

Local 

Economy 
     £72.7  5% 10% 20% 

Income Tax and NI 

Contributions based 

on under 65 year 

old employee 

Public 

Purse 
     £32.7 5% 10% 20% 

2 

Development will 

increase expected 

footfall to the area, 

benefitting local retail 

businesses.  

Higher retail spend, 

increased VAT 

receipts and rental 

rate increases.  

 Footfall is expected 

to increase by 5% 

due to the CWR. 

Local 

Economy 
 £117.9  5% 10% 20% 

                                                                 
3 Based on Office for National Statistic 2020 average household spend data.  

Page 110



  
 

 

Outline Business Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    29 

Benefit Theme Hypothesis Assumptions Benefit 

Type 

Benefit 

£’m 

Low Medium High 

3 

The development of 

homes and new 

businesses will result 

in an increase in 

council tax receipts, 

business rates and 

SDLT.  

Increased council 

tax receipts, 

business rates and 

increased retail 

spend contribute to 

Government 

targets. Also 

positively contribute 

to the retention of a 

younger generation 

in Winchester.  

Council tax receipts 

generated 4from 

new residential at 

Band D 

Business rates 

generated from the 

new Hotel and 

Office space at a 

rate of 0.512 of 

ERV 

SDLT on 60% of 

new residential - 

affordable housing 

will not trigger SDLT  

Public 

Purse 
£8.8 5% 10% 20% 

4 

Increased WFH and 

flexible working 

solutions, coupled 

with a vibrant city 

centre will keep local 

residents local 

Keeping residents 

local will reduce 

average journey 

length, thereby 

reducing carbon 

emissions. 

57% of the new 

residents and 

contract workers will 

half the amount of 

days they commute 

per year 

Local 

Economy 
£2.2 5% 10% 20% 

5 

Increase in overnight 

tourism with retail and 

hotel development 

Creative quarter 

expects to 

positively impact 

overnight tourism, 

leading to higher 

hotel 

accommodation, 

entertainment and 

retail spend for 

Winchester.  

Tourism to increase 

by 10% and 

therefore average 

daily spend to 

increase 

New hotel to 

generate new 

guests at 75% 

occupancy rate 

which increases 

hotel and local daily 

spend 

Local 

Economy  
£45.8 5% 10% 20% 

 

3.6.3 Qualitative benefits 

In addition to the quantitative benefits included in the following sub-section, there are a number of 

qualitative benefits which have not yet been quantified. These include: 

 Wellbeing of workers and residents  

Through the addition of exceptional public realm and increased pedestrianisation the 

physical and mental wellbeing of local workers and residents will increase. Physical 

wellbeing is achieved through the additional exercise benefits from the pedestrianised zone. 

The mental health improvements are derived from the biophilic benefits of being 

surrounded by plants, calming water features, natural lights and fresh air. Transport for 

                                                                 
4 Note that the benefit numbers presented do not include the increase in costs associated with providing additional Council services. This will be 
investigated further at the Full Business Case stage.  

Page 111



  
 

 

Outline Business Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    30 

London have developed a method to calculate the financial benefits of reduced vehicle 

accidents and deaths as a result of increased pedestrianisation, but currently there is 

insufficient data to apply the methodology for CWR.  

 Increased land values for surrounding areas 

The positive development of the site into a vibrant mixed-use quarter is expected to directly 

benefit the asset values of the surrounding areas. To quantify this benefit would be too 

speculative and the calculations have therefore focussed only on the development of the 

CWR site. 

 Sustainable transportation benefits 

Changing to sustainable transport methods within the CWR development (particularly 

increased cycling and walking in the pedestrianised arears) will have both a financial and 

carbon reduction benefit to the Council, but in is not possible to reliably quantify this benefit.  

However it remains considered that this will contribute to the Council’s pledge to achieve 

carbon neutrality by 2024 and for the Winchester District to be carbon neutral by 2030.  

 Future re-use and flexibility of the creative workplace units 

Quantifying the future re-use and flexibility of the creative workplace units will enable land 

owners, which include the developers and the Council, to ensure a quick change of tenancy 

when the new units become vacant. This ensures that economic benefit is continually 

generated throughout the life of the development. Flexibility of development will also 

accommodate a change in use easier without the requirement for redevelopment, saving 

costs and reducing the embedded carbon impact. 

 Contribution to retention of a younger generation 

The provision of affordable housing, entrepreneurial workspaces and increase in available 

nightlife activities through the CWR development is expected to contribute positively 

towards the Council’s objective to retain a younger generation, especially those that have 

graduated from the University of Winchester and other education institutions in the City. 

The financial benefit on the local economy outside of the elements already calculated has 

not been included in the analysis. 

 

Further work on these elements will be undertaken at the FBC stage. 

 

 

The economic results of the BCR are: 

Summary table of illustrative benefits over the 15-year period 

Summary £’m 

Page 112



  
 

 

Outline Business Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    31 

Total value of benefits £296.3m 

Present value of All Economy Benefits  £215.5m 

Present value of Public Purse Benefits £35.0m 

Present Value of Developer Costs £80.5m 

BCR for All Economy 2.68 

BCR for Public Purse 0.43 

JLL Analysis using a wide range of sources 

The base position, without any allowance for optimism bias, shows an illustrative All Economy 

Benefit of 2.68 to 0.43 on Public Purse benefit. The implied assumption able to be made being that 

over the assumed 15 year period to 2035, in Present Value terms the regeneration programme will 

produce £2.68 of total economic benefit for every £1 spent by the developer – a very favourable 

return.  

It is important to note that if the development proposals are to change then the BCR result could 

also change. The nature of the Green Book business case stage 3 approach will mean that the 

BCR result will become more reliable following dialogue with more stakeholders, such as the 

developers.  

It is also worth noting that the BCR has been calculated using Developer funded costs, not Council 

funded costs, so the BCR based on Council funding will be considerably higher. 

3.6.4 Preferred option and sensitivity analysis 

Sensitivity analysis has been conducted based on our estimate of potential volatility for each 

benefit theme. This analysis adjusts for any optimism bias, mitigating the tendency to be over 

optimistic about the amount of benefit that will be generated from the development.  

The base [BCR outcomes] have been adjusted for low (5%), medium (10%) and high (20%) 

optimism bias scenarios. This is because there can be a tendency to be over optimistic. Explicit 

adjustments have therefore been made to the estimates in order to account for this.  

The results of the sensitivity analysis are: 

  Base Low Medium High 

All Economy 2.68 2.54 2.41 2.14 

Page 113



  
 

 

Outline Business Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    32 

Public Purse 0.43 0.41 0.39 0.35 

 

Having evaluated the BCR for All Economy, the benefits could range from a base estimate of 

£2.68 to a high optimism bias adjustment of £2.14 of benefit generated for every £1 spent on the 

development. This creates a range of £0.54 if the benefit estimations were to be over optimistic.  

The results of the BCR for Public Purse show the benefits could range from a base estimate of 

£0.43 to a high optimism bias adjustment of £0.35 of benefit generated for every £1 spent on the 

development. This creates a range of £0.07 if the benefit estimations were to be over optimistic.  

A BCR result of £1 and above reflects a positive return. Therefore, with an All Economy return of 

£2.68, the above analysis on CWR indicates a favourable return on the development. Whilst the 

Public Purse BCR of £0.43 appears to indicate that it is not a good development for generation 

Council income, it must be noted that the BCR is based on total development cost, not total 

Council funded cost, so in reality the Public Purse return is beneficial.  

For the development to become unfavourable with an All Economy BCR below 1.0, there would 

need to be a reduction in benefits and /or increase in development cost totalling £116m.  

Even when the optimism bias sensitivity analysis is set at 60% (as above this was tested at 5%, 

10% and 20%), the All Economy BCR is still 1.07 which indicates a favourable return on the 

development.  

3.7 Conclusion 

The Economic case demonstrates that the regeneration of the CWR site will deliver significant 

economic benefits to the Winchester economy and will also favourably contribute to achieving the 

investment objectives of the Council as laid out in the SPD. Quantifiable benefits to the local 

economy and public purse include the creation of additional employment opportunities, increased 

footfall and stimulation of the city’s night-time economy. This, coupled with qualitative benefits 

such as the projected increase in wellbeing of workers and residents and provision of sustainable 

transport, will have a lasting positive impact on the city.  

Page 114



  
 

 

Outline Business Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    33 

4 THE COMMERCIAL CASE  

4.2 Introduction 

The Commercial Case section of the OBC outlines the commercial arrangements and 

procurement approach that will support the preferred delivery option outlined in the Economic 

Case.  

Building on the recommendations in the SOC, the Council will require the procurement of the 

following primary contract: 

 A development partner, for the defined site, on the basis of a development agreement. 

Please note that a copy of the draft Selection Questionnaire suitability questions and weightings 

(Stage 1) and the Invitation to Participate in Dialogue evaluation award criteria and weightings can 

be found at Appendices C and D.  

This option was shortlisted in the SOC as the preferred option as it enables development to be 

brought forward in a comprehensive manner by one party, whilst also allowing WCC to retain 

some control over the development through the development agreement. In addition, WCC has 

control over the development partner selection process and can therefore choose a partner that 

shares the same aspirations for the site. This route still enables the opportunity for phased delivery 

and bringing forward projects on individual sites by multiple design and contractual teams, as 

envisaged in the SPD. This route would ensure the optimal outcome for the site as it would allow 

for the cross-subsidy of high value uses to support the delivery of lower value uses and the 

comprehensive delivery of the associated public realm. This route would be acceptable to the 

market and capable of ensuring competitive tension through the procurement process. 

This section of the OBC is a detailed consideration of the proposed deal structure, procurement 

method and contractual arrangement of the preferred delivery option.  

4.3 Procurement strategy and implementation timescales 

To procure a development partner, the Council will follow prevailing procurement legislation. At the 

time of this OBC, the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 (2015 Regulations) are due to be 

replaced in 2022 by primary legislation. 

Page 115



  
 

 

Outline Business Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    34 

Therefore, and depending on when the new legislation comes into force (and on the transition 

from the 2015 Regulations to the new procedures), the Council will need to determine how best to 

frame its detailed procurement strategy. A working assumption, based on the current programme, 

would be for the procurement to be governed by the 2015 Regulations and that once commenced 

it will remain so. 

Nonetheless, the OBC describes the potential for the procurement to be governed by that new 

legislation. 

4.3.1 The Green Paper: Transforming Public Procurement 

The Green Paper was the subject of a consultation exercise which has now closed. The legislation 

will not follow the Green Paper in every respect, but the stated intention was to anchor the new 

procurement rules to six principles: public good; value for money; transparency; integrity; fair 

treatment of suppliers; and non-discrimination. 

In addition, the Green Paper proposed a change to the existing procedures for awarding public 

contracts. In particular, the procurement procedure(s) of relevance to CWR will be abolished and 

replaced by a new, competitive flexible procedure. This will give contracting authorities more 

autonomy to produce their own tender processes and to negotiate with bidders.  

The Green Paper proposed a new central platform to allow bidders to submit pre-qualification 

information. In addition, authorities will also be able to use a wider range of information to carry out 

selection criteria verification (including for significant poor performance on previous public 

contracts).  

In order to widen the scope of criteria for evaluating tenders, the Green Paper proposed to change 

the overall basis of tender evaluation from seeking to achieve the “most economically 

advantageous tender” (“MEAT”) to a much broader criteria of “most advantageous tender” 

(“MAT”). The intention is that this will encourage authorities to place further weight on factors such 

as social value and environmental impact (although the approach to be adopted by the Council 

does that).  

It is expected that authorities will no longer have to provide individual feedback to bidders about 

award decisions. They will only be required to publish basic disclosure information about the 

procurement which will be publicly available. 

The Green Paper also proposed a new process for challenging procurement contract awards. The 

suggested changes include an expedited trial process and a tribunal system to allow challenges to 

Page 116

https://www.clarkewillmott.com/legal-services/corporate-commercial-law/procurement-law/


  
 

 

Outline Business Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    35 

be heard in a faster and cheaper manner. The Green Paper also proposes to place a cap on the 

award of damages even if a contract award is successfully challenged by an aggrieved bidder. 

Given the fact that a developer for the CWR scheme will be selected from a competitive process, 

and that the conduct of that procurement will adhere to principles of good procurement practice, 

there is no benefit in waiting for the new legislation to come into effect. The consequential delay is 

not outweighed by any material gains in procurement strategy.  

4.3.2 The 2015 Regulations 

On the basis that the procurement will be under the 2015 Regulations, the Council will go to 

market under the Competitive Dialogue procedure (CD). That procedure may be used where “the 

contract cannot be awarded without prior negotiation because of specific circumstances related to 

the nature, the complexity or the legal and financial make-up or because of risks attaching to 

them” (Regulation 26). 

In the case of CWR, whilst the Council’s objectives are set out in the Development Brief (building 

on other documents, including the SPD), the exact means by which CWR is to be delivered and 

(for example) the phasing, cannot be specified. Through dialogue the Council may therefore 

engage with prospective Developer partners (i.e. the bidders) to “identify the solution or solutions 

which are capable of meeting its needs” (Regulation 30). 

Through dialogue with bidders, the Council may better ensure that the appointed Developer has 

submitted proposals which align with the objectives of the Council and the requirements that will 

be set out in the Development Brief (including the key requirements).  

A Restricted Procedure under the 2015 Regulations would not allow for any degree of 

negotiation/dialogue and would therefore be wholly inappropriate. The Competitive Procedure with 

Negotiation allows for negotiation but is generally used only where it may be feasible to make a 

contract award without any negotiation stage based on initial tenders made. 

The Developer market, whilst averse to protracted procurement under CD, are familiar with the 

procedure and will respond to the opportunity provided that the Council’s overall approach is 

proportionate and that the tender requirements are not unduly onerous. Accordingly, the 

procurement strategy will be designed to avoid lengthy dialogue and will be streamlined, efficient 

and focussed. 

The 2015 Regulations lay down the process that the Council must follow and is tied to general 

principles, namely the Council shall “treat economic operators equally and without discrimination 

Page 117



  
 

 

Outline Business Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    36 

and shall act in a transparent and proportionate manner”. There is also an obligation to treat 

bidders’ proposals as confidential (where flagged as such) and the Council will observe that 

requirement. 

4.3.3 Procurement method 

Leaving aside the need to comply with prevailing legislation, the procurement approach will be 

designed to ensure that there is a robust methodology for selection of bidders and the eventual 

award of the contract to the successful bidder. 

The opportunity will be the subject of a competitive process based on five key stages, namely: 

 Contract notice: A published notice giving interested parties full opportunity to assess 

whether to express interest. This will involve providing access (via the procurement portal 

adopted by the Council) to the procurement documents (i.e. selection questionnaire; 

development brief; draft development agreement; draft tender invitation document; and 

other supporting background materials). The published contract notice will be augmented 

by additional publication in relevant media (e.g. the Estates Gazette). 

 Selection Stage: Developers wishing to express interest will be required to submit a 

completed selection questionnaire (SQ), with supporting information (e.g. annual accounts). 

This will be in a standard prescribed format, apart from a number of project specific 

questions aimed at eliciting relevant prior experience and at enabling consideration of 

financial standing. In particular, prospective Developer partners will be asked to put forward 

relevant case studies to illustrate their experience of carrying out projects of a similar 

nature. The questions being asked have been carefully drawn up to elicit experience of 

relevance to CWR and the investment/strategic objectives. Based on the submitted SQs, 

the Council will carry out an evaluation based on the criteria and method set out in the 

published SQ in order to shortlist bidders. 

 Tender stage: Under the 2015 Regulations, a competitive dialogue will be undertaken with 

a view to establishing the solution best suited to the Council’s requirements (as described 

via the Development Brief). The tender invitation will set out the form of the required 

submission (i.e. tender) and the evaluation criteria and evaluation methodology of the 

Council. The criteria have been designed to ensure that proper weighting is given to 

financial and quality factors (and then to key investment objectives, by reference to the SPD 

Page 118



  
 

 

Outline Business Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    37 

and Development Brief). Dialogue will enable the Council to conduct a staged process, so 

that bidders are able to refine and improve their proposals before making final submissions. 

 Tender evaluation: The final submissions will be evaluated and may involve fine tuning 

and clarification before reaching a decision on the preferred Developer. As explained, the 

evaluation criteria will be a mixture of focussed and relevant weighted price and quality 

factors and the preferred Developer will be that that scores the highest overall. 

 Preferred Bidder: The successful bidder will be appointed, and then final steps taken to 

reach a contract close (i.e. signing of the development agreement (“the Agreement)). This 

stage may involve some clarifications and confirmations prior to signing. 

4.3.4 Soft market testing 

Although the Council have carried out valuable soft market testing in order to frame its approach, 

the procurement will be conducted on terms which give no advantage to any particular party, 

whether involved in the soft market testing or not.  

4.3.5 Council as contracting party 

There is no benefit for the Council in procuring a Developer jointly with any other public body, 

given that it is (for these purposes) the sole landowner and project promoter; the Council is best 

placed to act as the counter-party to the Agreement and the introduction of other public sector 

parties would create unnecessary complexity (with no obvious benefit). 

4.4 Service stream requirements and required output 

The scope of the required outputs (the Council’s objectives) is articulated in the SOC and then 

further developed in this OBC. These will be captured by the Development Brief taken to market 

and against which prospective Developer partners will make proposals. The Development Brief 

will expressly refer to the core objectives (and therefore key requirements) for CWR. 

As such, the project requirements will be in the nature of “outputs” rather than prescribed 

specifications, but by explicit reference to the SPD, Local Plan(s) and CWR Development 

Proposals.  

For example, no detailed designs will be prescribed but the Developer will be under obligation to 

bring forward development proposals within the framework laid down by the Development Brief. 

This approach will enable innovation in how CWR is delivered, based on contractual terms which 

Page 119



  
 

 

Outline Business Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    38 

establish a basis for the Council and other stakeholders to be engaged in how those proposals are 

to be brought forward and approved. This approach (set out in the Agreement - see below) will 

focus on the key project requirements expressly drawn out in the Development Brief (including 

design quality, sustainability, public realm). 

The terms of the Agreement between the Developer and the Council in relation to phased 

development will likewise govern the programme and ensure that momentum is maintained 

throughout delivery of CWR; this will be regulated by reference to an agreed overall phasing 

strategy, programme and longstop dates. 

The procurement will be aimed at the appointment of a suitably qualified, resourced, and funded 

Developer, and based on the evaluation of their overall tender submission. That submission will be 

against prescribed requirements for how they will deliver CWR (covering quality and financial 

factors), evaluated against the criteria laid down by the tender invitation. 

The successful bidder’s proposals will then be captured in Agreement as the Developer’s “Delivery 

Plan”. The Agreement will allow for a degree of flexibility in how CWR is to be delivered on a 

phased basis but within the strict parameters and key requirements of the Development Brief (and 

other important supporting documents such as the SPD) and the Developer’s Delivery Plan. 

The appointed Developer will have obligations under the Agreement to bring forward each phase 

of development (together with wider public realm and other works necessary to deliver the whole 

scheme). These obligations will extend to: the submission of planning applications; obtaining other 

consents; carrying out detailed design; securing occupiers; appointing the professional team(s) 

and contractors; securing funding; and doing all other things necessary for a successful delivery of 

CWR. 

The Council will have rights under the Agreement (e.g. in respect of considering and approving 

planning applications and the design approach and detail) and will also carry obligations (notably 

in relation to securing vacant possession). 

4.4.1 Stakeholders 

Whilst the Council will be the primary stakeholder, the Council will continue to engage in wider 

public consultation (including with other landowners and local organisations). This will build on the 

stakeholder engagement already carried out, but with the involvement and support of the 

appointed Developer partner. Their plan for engagement will be built into the Development 

Agreement and the Developer under obligation to adhere to that plan. 

Page 120



  
 

 

Outline Business Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    39 

4.4.2 Options for variation in the existing and future scope for services 

The terms of Agreement will necessarily allow for some flexibility in the delivery of CWR where 

driven by changes in the market or other legitimate factors. The Agreement will prescribe how the 

Developer may propose changes to its Delivery Plan and the basis on which that must be justified 

to, and approved by, the Council. Equally, and where appropriate, the Agreement will enable the 

Council to bring forward changes to its requirements under the Development Brief (e.g. to respond 

to new legislation, changes in planning policy, and stakeholder views). 

4.4.3 Development phases 

The CWR scheme is to be delivered in phases and the Agreement will govern programme delivery 

and therefore how detailed plans for each phase is to be brought forward in a manner consistent 

with the Development Brief. 

4.5 Potential risk apportionment  

The Agreement will place responsibility for delivery of the CWR scheme with the Developer. The 

Developer will be under obligation to pursue the necessary pre-conditions for carrying out the 

development on a phased basis. This will include: the design; planning application; appointment of 

professionals and contractors; obtaining of funding; and securing of occupiers/purchasers. These 

activities will be at the Developer’s cost and risk. 

These obligations will not mean that the Council has no control over the CWR scheme, but does 

remove the costs and risks from the Council. 

The Council’s will carry certain obligations to obtain vacant possession and to transfer land for 

development (on a phased basis). The Developer may also have a role to play in securing vacant 

possession, e.g. by way of dealings with occupiers, relocations and the carrying out of demolition 

works (where that is needed). 

Risk in relation to the actual returns to be made from the development (i.e. market risk) will sit with 

the Developer. 

Public realm will be vital component of the scheme and through the terms agreed with the 

Developer under the procurement, a position settled with them on how high quality public realm is 

to be delivered and then how the upkeep of public realm is to be funded and managed. 

Page 121



  
 

 

Outline Business Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    40 

In taking the scheme to market, the allocation of risk will be based on market norms for a 

development of this nature (and not therefore seeking to allocate risk on an atypical basis), whilst 

at the same time recognising the particular requirements of the Council for CWR. 

The Agreement will also provide for the Developer’s professional team and contractors to be 

properly insured and for them to provide collateral warranties to the Council (enabling direct 

recourse where necessary). 

4.6 Financial mechanisms 

The Agreement will oblige the Developer to fund the development costs – both pre and post 

planning. It may do so from its own resources or by introducing third party development finance. 

The Council will be entitled to receive payments for the value of land transferred (on a phased 

basis), based on a properly carried out and auditable appraisal (per phase). The value will be 

ascertained through a valuation methodology set out in the Development Agreement. 

Through the procurement, the Council may also seek to recover its procurement costs and oblige 

the Developer to fund (in whole or part) its project monitoring costs through the life of the scheme 

(recognising that this will be treated as a development cost and therefore reduced land value). 

Land value payments may be made on an upfront basis or deferred (and may include overage – 

planning and sales); this will be assessed in the procurement and may differ between phases. 

4.7 Key contractual arrangements 

The report to Cabinet accompanying this business case sets out the commercial/ legal principles 

and arrangement which underpin that the Council will enter into the Agreement with the appointed 

Developer on these terms. That Agreement will: 

 Regulate delivery of CWR and the relationship between the Council and the Developer; 

 Set out the key objectives of the Council for CWR and the obligations placed on each party; 

 Enable decisions to be made throughout the term of Agreement, including where variations 

need to be agreed; 

 Determine outcomes, including the development outcomes and financial terms (e.g. land 

payments); 

 Address exit strategy – both at the completion of the scheme and where an early 

termination maybe required. 

 

Page 122



  
 

 

Outline Business Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    41 

The Agreement will be based on established precedents and in a form that will be recognised in 

the market, whilst being suitably adapted for the needs of the CWR scheme and the Council’s 

requirements.  

The key terms will address: 

 Parties: the parties will be the Council and the Developer; 

 Guarantee: The Council reserves the right to require the Developer to procure a parent 

company guarantee (PCG) in relation to its obligations under the Development Agreement 

(save where the developer has no parent and/or is of sufficient standing in its own right). 

Where no PCG is required when entering into the Development Agreement, the agreement 

will nonetheless require a guarantee in the event of an a permitted assignment or a later 

change in the financial standing of the Developer. 

 Term: The Agreement will be for the anticipated duration of the delivery of CWR. The 

Agreement will contain the Developer’s programme and target dates for each stage of 

delivery. Although the Agreement will recognise delay events (where legitimate), there will 

be longstop dates to enable early termination by the Council; this will avoid protracted 

delays and provide a means for early exit by the Council; 

 Objectives: The Council’s objectives (and its key objectives) will be laid down by the 

Development Brief and this will be a Schedule to the Agreement. Alongside the 

Development Brief will be the Developer’s Delivery Plan (based on their successful tender). 

These documents will therefore represent the Council’s requirements and the Developer’s 

solution. 

The Developer’s Delivery Plan will cover the CWR scheme as a whole and therefore capture their 

overarching vision and programme for CWR. For each phase, the Agreement will require the 

Developer to bring forward more detailed phase delivery plans – for review and approval by the 

Council; 

 Obligations: The Developer will be responsible for delivery of the scheme and therefore 

the key activities needed to bring forward each phase. This will include by way of examples:  

o the satisfaction of the pre-conditions for draw down of land from the Council: 

o managing the design and planning process (and other consents);  

o viability (see below);  

Page 123



  
 

 

Outline Business Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    42 

o ensuring proper financial planning, management and accounting; 

o identifying and pursing funding;  

o tendering and appointment of contractors;  

o pre-lets (where relevant); and 

o Regular monitoring reporting.  

Once pre-conditions are satisfied, the Developer will be entitled to draw down land for 

development (i.e. the relevant parcel) and will then be under obligation to carry out 

development in accordance with the consented scheme and terms of the Agreement. The 

Agreement will, independently of any planning conditions, regulate the way in which each 

phase is to be delivered and provide the Council with rights to monitor progress (including 

an ability to review/approve design elements). 

The main obligation falling on the Council will be to secure vacant possession of the land 

being drawn down by the Developer (in phases). The Council may also have an obligation 

to obtain statutory consents (where these can only be obtained by Council). In addition, the 

Council will have obligations to respond to notices and other request made by the 

Developer (e.g. to approve planning applications, designs, etc). N.B. In relation to planning 

and related functions of the Council as local planning authority, the Agreement will make 

clear that the Agreement does not fetter any of the Council’s discretions in these respects. 

 Financial arrangements: The Agreement will govern how the Developer may establish the 

viability of each phase, by reference to a financial model (attached to the Agreement). This 

will fix the Developer’s profit and the development mamanegemtn fee - by reference to that 

model. The Development Agreement also governs how the residual land value is to be 

calculated (i.e. the land value payable to the Council), and will provide for a method of 

valuation that satisfies the Council’s obligation to obtain best consideration. 

The land value may be payable upfront or deferred and may also include overage. This will 

depend on the phase and its overall financial make-up (and might include the Council 

taking a revenue stream). This will be determined by reference to the Developer’s overall 

the Delivery Plan and the more detailed development of each phase delivery plan. 

Where a phase (or scheme as a whole) is not viable the Agreement will provide a 

mechanism for the parties to assess how best to achieve viability or to proceed with the 

development on a different financial basis (by agreement).  

Page 124



  
 

 

Outline Business Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    43 

Where a phase delivery plan is contemplating the sale of an asset, the Council will have an 

ability to pre-empt that sale and offer terms for the Council to acquire as an income 

producing asset (on terms acceptable to the Developer). 

 Change control: The Agreement will allow for a limited right of review of and variations 

to the scheme as a whole and to each phase delivery plan. The Agreement will regulate 

the process by which changes can be proposed and agreed. Given the phasing of the 

scheme and the likely need to make adjustment for changes in market conditions over 

time, this mechanism is essential. However, the right to vary the Agreement will be 

limited and the Agreement will anchor the scheme to certain core requirements (in the 

Development Brief). In addition, the Council will have the ability (reasonably) to refuse 

changes.  

 Exit: The Agreement will provide for a natural expiry on completion of the overall 

development. In addition, there will be terms to provide for early termination in the event 

of default. This will, as would be normal, cover Developer insolvency, material defaults, 

and failure to meet longstop dates. Where an early termination occurs, the Council will 

have rights to recover land transferred (including under the relevant lease but subject to 

any third party’s position), and any direct losses by way of indemnity. Where desirable, 

the Agreement will allow for completion of a phase under development (i.e. the 

termination will only cover future phases). Where undeveloped phases are handed back 

following termination for default, the Developer shall meet any costs for making good the 

site and indemnify for the Council’s losses (including re-procurement costs. The 

Development Agreement recognises the rights of any third-party funder (enjoying step-in 

rights). 

 Governance: The Agreement will allow for a forum for the parties to meet and make 

decisions on a collaborative basis. Each party will appoint representatives to engage on 

a day to day basis (and in the case of the Council there may be rights to appoint 

independent agents to represent the Council in its dealings with the Developer). 

 Disputes: There will be provision for resolving disputes by means of escalation and 

then arbitration/mediation. There will also be terms for the parties to refer matters for 

expert determination, where the matter at hand is amenable to that.  

 Other terms: The Agreement will also regulate matters, which are typically covered by 

this type of agreement, such as: 

Page 125



  
 

 

Outline Business Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    44 

o Tax – the basis on which tax matters are to be dealt with (e.g. SDLT, VAT, Capital 

Allowances); 

o Indemnities – to give protection to the Council against claims etc. made on the 

Council due to the acts or omissions of the Developer;  

o Insurance – the insurances that the Developer is required to take out or procure for 

the scheme; 

o Assignment and change of control – to ensure that, in each case, this is subject to 

appropriate safeguards and levels of control by the Council; and 

o Confidentiality and FOI – to address the way on which matters are to be kept 

confidential and how any freedom of information request is to be dealt with. 

4.8 Personnel implications 

The CWR scheme will not involve any TUPE staff transfers or other impacts on employees of 

Council in terms of personnel/HR factors. 

However, to resource the procurement and then the relationship with the appointed Developer and 

contract management, there will be an ongoing requirement for sufficient internal resources 

(suitably qualified). Although these requirements can be supported by way of external adviser 

support, it is in the interests of the Council (especially after signing the Agreement) for these 

resources to be internal rather than external. 

4.9 Accountancy treatment 

The accountancy treatment for the development transaction will vary depending on the chosen 

course of action.  

Once greater clarity is received in terms of the Council, and the markets, preferred approach, the 

accountancy treatment will be able to be unpacked in greater detail as part of the Full Business 

Case. 

4.10 Conclusion 

The Commercial case in the OBC outlines the commercial arrangements and procurement 

approach that will support the preferred delivery option, a contractual agreement with a single 

development partner across the defined site. This was selected as the recommended route as it 

provides the Council with an acceptable level of control over delivery and timings whilst delivering 

on the investment objectives and critical success factors. The commercial process outlined will 

Page 126



  
 

 

Outline Business Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    45 

ensure that a competitive market process is undertaken to secure a development partner that best 

meets the Council’s requirements.  

 

 

Page 127



  
 

 

Outline Business Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    46 

5 THE FINANCIAL CASE 

5.1 Overview / Introduction 

The Finance Case section of the OBC tests whether the preferred option, outlined in the Economic 

Case, represents a financially affordable and sustainable proposition.  

The financial case explores the overall affordability of the preferred option for the Council and 

identifies the associated financial risks and accounting considerations.  

As the CWR project has regeneration at its core, the timescale of the financial review is set over 

the long-term to ensure that it capture the full effect of the scheme on future revenues. The 

timeframe in the analysis allows for a 40-year period. 

The analysis presented in the Finance Case relies upon the same scheme details presented in the 

Economic Case. This includes all information regarding the uses, areas, costings, project 

timescales, revenues and values and the reported residual land values for each identified phase of 

the scheme. The same construction phasing is applied to the premises within the regeneration site 

boundary where the Council currently receive a revenue, and when therefore this revenue would 

cease.   

5.2 Residual land value analysis for preferred option 

This section outlines the process and findings of JLL’s residual land value analysis of the preferred 

option, as determined by the shortlisting assessment in the SOC as summarised in the Economic 

Case. There have been a number of updates to the information used since commercial viability 

was assessed at SOC stage. The key updates that have been carried out to inform this OBC are 

as follows:  

 Update to the development proposal areas to reflect a demolished and re-built Kings Walk 

building. 

 Updated cost plan based on revised areas and infrastructure apportionment.  

 Revised phasing assumptions, building on from the public consultation documents issued in 

Q4 2020. The current phasing seeks to ensure each phase is deliverable and viable.  

Please refer to Appendix A and B for the development proposal and phasing. 

Page 128



  
 

 

Outline Business Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    47 

As in the SOC, the analysis only assesses the land within the Council’s ownership and control. For 

clarity, Woolstapler’s Hall and the residential block on Woolstapler’s car park, depicted in Phase 4 

phasing plan in Appendix A, has not been included in the financial analysis. This is outside of the 

Council’s ownership and would not be subject to the Development Agreement.  

The numbers outlined below are indicative viability numbers only. These figures have been 

prepared for consultancy purposes only and do not constitute a formal RICS Red Book 

valuation.  

The following assumptions underpin all the financial analysis which have assisted towards the 

conclusions in this business case:  

 Based on the development proposals and phasing which can be seen at Appendix A and B;  

 Kings Walk is demolished and replaced by a purpose-built Creative Quarter;  

 Excludes any costs below ground e.g. archaeology (survey work ongoing); 

 Fixed profit level per phase to target a land value;  

 Phased as per the updated phasing dated September 2021, building on the consultation 

documentation (excluding land outside of Council’s control); 

 Traditional residential market values (i.e. assumes 40% affordable housing provision and 

private for sale units); 

 S106 costs excluded for commercial development. Estimated S.106 costs included for 

residential units (totalling c.£XXXXX);   

 Does not include land assembly costs;  

 Does not include any additional costs associated with achieving sustainability measures 

(benchmarked sustainability measures and BREEAM uplift at an additional cost of 5.5% for 

residential assets and 12.5% for commercial assets to achieve net zero carbon targets by 

2030 (published UKGBC research.)) 5; 

 Only includes Council owned and controlled land; 

 Costs associated with demolition, enabling works and infrastructure have been distributed 

across the three phases according to total GIA per phase.  

                                                                 
5 Due to the stage of the projects, the increased cost associated with delivering sustainability measures would rely upon benchmarks and would 
not be specific to the site. An increase in costs associated with sustainability measures should also be coupled with an increase in the values or 
rents achieved for the built product. At this stage we have not included either in order to avoid layering assumptions on top of assumptions.  

Page 129



  
 

 

Outline Business Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    48 

5.3 Residual Land Values 

The financial analysis is based on the assumption that the Council procures a development 

partner through a competitive tendering process as outlined above. A 12-month procurement 

process has been adopted to secure a development partner to bring forward the scheme by way 

of a development agreement with Council. This route assumes that the development partner 

delivers the development proposal, followed by a phased drawn down of land in line with the 

updated development proposal phasing (Appendix A).  

The Council’s land holdings include commercial properties and no residential properties and all 

are held in the General Fund. The properties are therefore available for use by the Council as 

equity for this General Fund project as the receipt can be used by the General Fund for 

regeneration purposes.  The legal agreements are recommended to include a CPO indemnity 

agreement to provide security for cost for the Council in the form of an indemnity from the 

developer in the unexpected event that the Council be required to undertake the use of its CPO 

statutory powers.  

The table below outlines the estimated land receipts of each parcel and the wider site total.  

Residual land values per phase 

 Residual Land Values 

 Phase 1 Phase 2 Phase 3 Site Wide Total 

Wider Site 
delivery 

£X.Xm £X.Xm £X.Xm £X.Xm 

JLL 

Xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx 

xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx 

xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx 

xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx 

xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx 

xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx 

xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx 

xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx It is 

anticipated that the later phases of the development would benefit from future uplift in values 

created by the regeneration and would be optimised at the point of delivery. It is likely that an 

incoming Developer partner would look to optimise the development phasing to ensure that all 

Page 130



  
 

 

Outline Business Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    49 

phases of development were delivering optimum value and were commercially viable. At this 

stage, potential future value uplifts to later phase capital receipts have not been included in 

residual land values outlined in the table above.  

It should be noted that the above values and the appraisal in section 5.5 below make no 

assumptions in relation to potential grant funding (Homes England grant to support the delivery of 

affordable housing provision for example) or additional contributions from the Council’s 

Community Infrastructure Levy funds. 

5.4 Affordability Approach 

The analysis within the Finance Case is based on appraising the impact on the Council’s revenue 

account of the preferred option over the given 40-year timeframe. The analysis assesses the 

affordability of the preferred option to demonstrate;  

 A financial summary of the preferred approach 

 Set out any capital receipts  

 Revenue consequences, including costs, income and forgone income 

 Overall impact on the Council’s financial position  

 High-level sensitivity analysis 

5.4.1 The Council’s Existing Assets  

The Council currently owns a number of assets within the CWR site; the majority of which 

generate a positive net income.  These include the following assets. 

Location Annual net budgeted 
Income/ (Cost) 

Friarsgate surface car park (long stay) £143,000 

Bus station (includes access / offices/ café £128,000 

Middlebrook Street properties £345,000 

Kings Walk and Antiques Market £101,000 

Friarsgate Medical Centre (£1,000) 

Coitbury House (£47,000) 

Total £669,000 

 

The current properties generate a net income to the Council of £669,000 per annum which will 

cease once the properties are redeveloped.  However, the associated liabilities of these assets 

would also cease at this point.  

Page 131



  
 

 

Outline Business Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    50 

The Council has invested over £15m on site assembly to gain control of the assets within the 

CWR Area and in recent years, including: 

Friarsgate Medical Centre £5,267,675 
Bus Station £4,776,542 
Kings Walk & Middle Brook St properties £5,000,000 

 £15,044,217 

The acquisition values of the Council’s land assets are reflected in the financial analysis through 

the Council existing revenue from the corresponding assets.   

5.4.2 Financing Assumptions and Key Inputs  

The following key assumptions and inputs have been used;   

 PWLB Interest Rate     3% 

 MRP6 Period      48 years  

 MRP Rate       2.1% 

 MRP Profile       Annuity  

 Discount Rate     6.09% 

 Capitalised interest     Zero 

 Income losses timeframe: 
o Car Park & Bus Station    For the life of the scheme  
o Kings Walk and Antiques Market   10 years  
o Middlebrook Street properties   25 years  

5.4.3 Development Phasing 

The development phasing signal the current estimate for the cessation of revenues and costs from 

each of the assets.  These will be used to calculate the net impact on the Council arising from the 

CWR redevelopment.   

1. Car Parks:              

a. Friarsgate Surface Car Park (Long Stay)  Phase 2 

2. Bus Station (includes Access / Offices / Café)         Phase 2 

3. Other Non-Investment Property:        

a. Middlebrook St Properties    Phase 2 

b. Kings Walk and Antiques Market   Phase 1 

c. Friarsgate Medical Centre    Phase 2 

d. Coitbury House      Phase 3  

4. Tanner St Car Park - Lease of Land (M&S)   Not included 

                                                                 
6 Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) is an annual charge to the revenue budget that is equivalent to the principal repayment of a loan 

Page 132



  
 

 

Outline Business Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    51 

5.4.4 Analysis of programme, costs and income  

The scheme viability results presented in the Economic Case established the residual land 

receipts per phase of the Development Proposals. This is as follows:  

 Residual Land Values 

 Phase 1 Phase 2 Phase 3 Site Wide Total 

Wider Site 
delivery 

£X.Xm £X.Xm £X.Xm £X.Xm 

 

The residual land values equate to an estimate of the capital return and benefit the Council might 

expect to realise if it were to implement the preferred option via the assumed Development Partner 

delivery approach.  

The associated programme assumes the following time period for each construction phase and 

assumes receipts would be realised at the start of each of these periods; 

 
 

5.4.5 Funding Sources: 

The preferred Development Partner approach means the Council does not have to spend any 

significant capital upfront to realise the £X.Xm land value receipt. The only cost that would be 

incurred relates to the early professional and legal advice associated with securing a Development 

Partner. The cost of which has been assumed at £260,000 and is treated as a revenue cost for the 

purpose of this assessment.   

 

5.5 Financial Performance and Evaluation 

5.5.1 Overall Impact on the Council’s financial position:  

As there is no borrowing or required funding of capital expenditure; the Council’s Capital Financing 

Requirement is not impacted by the preferred option.  As a result, no MRP or borrowing is 

required.  

Capital Receipt Timings 

Phase 1 Phase 2 Phase 3 

August 2024 March 2027 November 2028 

Page 133



  
 

 

Outline Business Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    52 

The preferred option results in a negative revenue position for the Council when taking account of 

the loss of current income streams as a result of the redeveloped assets.  

These results are summarised in the following schedule.  

 

TABLE REMOVED AS COMMERCIALLY SENSITIVE  

 

 

5.5.2 Capital receipts, costs and peak borrowing:  

The preferred option via the assumed Development Partner delivery model would yield a Net 

Capital position of c.£X.Xm, which represents the sum of the phased land receipts that would be 

payable by the Development Partner. The timing of this payment will ultimately be based on the 

commercial offer agreed but are generally either lump sum payments or staged payments as the 

development progresses.   

As stated, it is assumed that no capital expenditure would be required to bring this opportunity to 

market. 

5.5.3 Revenue consequences:  

In terms of revenue considerations, the preferred option via a Development Partner route has 

been assumed to not generate any future revenue i.e. no income is due to the Council once the 

development has been completed. The development partner procurement exercise will however 

test this and bidders will be asked to put forward financial solutions with could generate an income 

stream for the Council.   

The Council will lose the annual income stream associated with the current site and this loss of 

income must be assessed when considering the affordability of the future development. The Net 

Revenue position reflects the associated Council revenue expenditure, which has been assumed 

as a one off charge of £260k for associated professional and legal fees of bringing the opportunity 

to the market, and any changes to the Council borrowing costs or MRP. As no borrowing is 

required for the preferred option, both the interest and MRP are zero.  

Page 134



  
 

 

Outline Business Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    53 

However, the capital receipts generated from the site can be used to repay existing internal 

borrowing (from previous capital expenditure on other assets) on which the general fund is 

currently paying MRP. Under this scenario, the Council will make revenue savings by reducing its 

capital financing costs. The savings on capital financing costs (Opportunity Saving) equates to 

£X.Xm.  

xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx

xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx

xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx 

The graph below sets out the impact on the revenue account of this lost revenue. The graph 

shows an initial period where the capital land receipts limit the impact of lost income. After this 

period, the loss of income starts to cumulate before flattening when the income is assumed to 

have ceased.  

 

The following graph shows the discounted position of the impact on the revenue account of this 

lost revenue. It naturally displays a similar pattern to the Cumulative Revenue Position illustrated 

above, but to a lesser degree, given that the future lost income is discounted back to present 

values.  

 

Page 135



  
 

 

Outline Business Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    54 

5.6 Sensitivity Analysis – risk profiling   

Approach:  

The high-level sensitivity analysis has been undertaken in two parts. Firstly, a Monte Carlo 

Simulation has been undertaken which is used to estimate the possible outcomes given an 

uncertain event. This analysis demonstrates a risk adjusted position with 95% confidence based 

on the inputted parameters. This exercise outputs a ‘Downside’ position, which is effectively the 5th 

percentile result from the simulation analysis and is intended to reflect the outcome if market 

conditions considerably diverge from predicted base case assumptions. 

Furthermore, a series of sensitivity analysis based on market sales and construction cost 

sensitivity, i.e. +/- 10% has been applied to demonstrate the effect on the following key financial 

performance outputs;  

 Council land value 

 Council gross funding  

 Council revenue, i.e. the NPV 

Results: 

The results of the Monte Carlo Simulation show that the preferred option produces a marginally 

negative net capital position, and therefore could be considered marginally viable on a risk-

adjusted basis.  Translated into “% Chance” outcomes, there is a 93% chance the preferred option 

produces a positive net capital position. 

Monte Carlo Simulation shows a very low chance of a positive revenue position (both discounted 

and un-discounted) with the preferred option <1% chance of having a positive impact on the 

revenue account. 

 

TABLE REMOVED AS COMMERCIALLY SENSITIVE  

 

Furthermore, the following ‘heat charts’ demonstrates that changes in either market sales or 

construction costs have the biggest impact on both the Council’s land value and revenue position. 

The Council’s gross funding position is least sensitive as funding is not required 

Page 136



  
 

 

Outline Business Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    55 

 

 TABLE REMOVED AS COMMERCIALLY SENSITIVE  

 

5.7 Options to increase the affordability 

The Finance Case sets out a reduction in annual income of £669,000 per annum as a result of the 

redevelopment of the Council’s existing assets. 

This section looks at a number of options that could be explored to see if the identified revenue 

budget gap could be reduced.  At this stage, these options do not include the potential of 

additional income to the Council that will be generated through the additional council tax and 

business rates as set out in the economic case.  An appraisal of the additional burden and costs to 

existing Council services that arise from the development would be required although some 

additional benefit is expected and will be assessed as part of the full business case. 

 

Using the capital receipt to reduce future borrowing requirements 

The Council could use its capital receipt to repay existing internal borrowing or support future 

projects, outside of the CWR scheme.  This would reduce the capital financing cost to the general 

fund for existing borrowing / negate the need to borrow (as expenditure financed by capital 

receipts will not impact on the Council’s Capital Finance Requirement) accordingly.  As such, the 

capital receipt could be used to offset financing costs including interest payments and any 

Minimum Revenue Provision. 

The “all in” rate currently used by the Council for additional borrowing is 3.9%. xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx 

xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx 

 

Possible options to forgo capital receipts for future scheme generated revenues   

The Council could explore contractual vehicles to maintain a stake in the future development in an 

income bearing asset in lieu of its capital receipt.  By retaining this interest in the development the 

Council could de-risk the development for any partner by reducing the cashflow requirements of 

the developer i.e. the capital receipt, and by giving the developer a guaranteed exit from an 

element of the scheme.  Both of these positions could mean that the developer could value the 

Page 137



  
 

 

Outline Business Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    56 

Council return at a higher rate. For the purposes of this section of the analysis however, a prudent 

view has been taken and the initial capital receipt of £X.xx m has been assumed. 

Further exploration of any possible options to retain an interest, and the risks associated with 

doing so, will need to be explored to ensure they are prudent and in accordance with accounting 

codes.  However, the following scenarios illustrate the Council’s position if it were possible to forgo 

all of its capital receipts in lieu of a corresponding income bearing asset, and if it were to forgo only 

50%, with the remaining 50% being used to reduce its future borrowing requirements.  

xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx

xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx

xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx 

 Residential use:  x.x % 

 Office use:  x.x % 

 Retail use:   x.x % 

 

xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx

xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx

xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx 

 

TABLE REMOVED AS COMMERCIALLY SENSITIVE  

 

Xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx

xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx

xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx

xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx

xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx 

xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx

xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx 

xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx

xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx

xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx 

TABLE REMOVED AS COMMERCIALLY SENSITIVE  

Page 138



  
 

 

Outline Business Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    57 

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX   

5.7.1 Potential additional revenue - geared ground rent (GGR) 

The Council have the ability to create a mechanism to enable them to benefit from a long term 

income stream if they sell a long leasehold to a Developer. This income stream would be 

generated from upwards only GGR tracking alongside the passing rent achieved on the 

commercial elements. The GGR has not been applied to the residential elements to ensure 

ongoing affordability for residents. Furthermore, the existence of ground rents on residential 

leasehold properties has received political criticism and media attention in recent years due to 

negative impact on leasehold homeownerships and is therefore not recommended.  

 

 

 

 

                                Geared ground rent on commercial element  

Gearing Ground Rent 

Gearing 
Annual Income to Council 

Capital Receipt 
(merged phases)  

5.00% £xxxxx  £xxxxx  

7.50% £xxxxx £xxxxx  

10.00% £xxxxx £xxxxx  

12.50% 
£xxxxx  £xxxxx  

15.00% 
£xxxxx  £xxxxx  

                            JLL 

At this stage a GGR on the hotel element is not included in the development appraisal, as there is 

currently insufficient detail to properly understand the potential result of an income stream that 

could be derived from this asset class. Ground rent is linked to hotel’s EBITDA (performance of 

the asset), and as such the information will not be available until a hotelier is secured. However, in 

theory a ground rent could also be created on a hotel which formed part of the future development.  

Page 139



  
 

 

Outline Business Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    58 

Please also note that the above figures are an interpretation of the potential ground rent income 

stream based on the current development proposals. In the event that the scheme changes and/or 

the market optimises the site, the annual income to the Council and the associated capital receipt 

are subject to change. 

xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx

xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx If the GGR was to 

go over the recommended level, the market would likely push back on this and the capital receipt 

received for the land would be significantly impacted.  

Scope for External Funding 

Whilst the financial case assumes a capital receipt, additional costs in relation to archaeology or 

compliance with the council’s Carbon Neutrality policies could impact on values and viability.  The 

case also makes no provision for meeting the costs of land assembly, which by November 2028 

will still amount to £9.4m.  As with most regeneration schemes, the Full Business Case will need 

to consider the scope for additional grant funding to address these issues. 

There are a number of grant opportunities currently for regeneration, infrastructure and affordable 

housing projects.  However, all require worked up detailed proposals and near “shovel ready” 

projects with clear delivery timetables.  Scope for grant funding to address the revenue impact of 

the development and the financing costs of land assembly will therefore be included in the Full 

Business Case. 

The table below is purely for illustrative purposes and indicates how grant funding could address 

the above issues: 

Finance Amount  Comment 

Capital Costs:   

Land Assembly £9,400,000 
Residual capital financing costs associated 
with Land Assembly at November 2028 

Potential Receipts:   

Land Value XXXXXX 
 
 

Infrastructure funding -£3,400,000 
This may be from national grant programmes, 
Council CIL reserves or a mix of the two 

Affordable Housing Grant -£2,400,000 
Assumes £30k grant for 80 units. Higher 
grants have been awarded for recent schemes 

Net Capital Impact          XXXXXX 
additional grant needed to address any further 
infrastructure/archaeology costs 

 

Page 140



  
 

 

Outline Business Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    59 

Note:   This scenario addresses the capital costs to the Council but not the full impact of lost 

revenue as set out in this Financial Case.  The ground rent proposal set out above will assist with 

this but further measures will need to be agreed with the Development Partner to address the 

revenue impact as part of the Full Business Case. 

 

Next Steps:  

As the procurement of the Development Partner commences and dialogue starts there may be a 

range of options to consider in terms of financial outcomes. For example, it may be possible to 

forego capital receipt and instead receive/retain ownership of certain revenue generating elements 

of the CWR scheme. Such an approach could yield mutual benefits to both parties, with the 

Council securing future revenue and the Development Partner realising less risk associated with 

the equivalent ‘off-plan’ disposal this would represent and similarly, not having to pay out the land 

receipt as construction commences.   

The Council will need to decide in due course how any budget deficits in future revenues that 

cannot be addressed through the development process or by securing additional grant to support 

the scheme would be afforded and ultimately if this is acceptable given the other associated 

social-economic and town centre regeneration benefits associated with the CWR scheme.  

The associated financial implications will be explored in detail during the procurement process and 

then considered as each phase solution is brought forward.   

5.8 Conclusion 

The Financial case demonstrates that the proposed development delivers a capital receipt. The 

prudent approach to determining affordability reflects an ongoing, annual cost to the Council which 

will need to be met from within existing budgets or by finding savings.  Further work on the 

affordability in the wider context of the Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy is required but it 

is not expected that the budget challenge will be insurmountable given the expectation that the 

preferred development partner will address the financial impact to the Council through a 

combination of value engineering, retaining elements of the Council’s existing income stream 

and/or through securing additional grant funding. Further work is recommended to address the 

affordability through the dialogue process with potential development partners. This needs to be 

balanced against the wider economic benefits set out in the economic case.  

Page 141



  
 

 

Outline Business Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    60 

 

Page 142



  
 

 

Outline Business Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    61 

6 THE MANAGEMENT CASE  

6.2 Introduction 

This section of the OBC addresses the ‘achievability’ of the scheme. Its purpose is to set out the 

actions that will be required to ensure the successful delivery of the scheme in accordance with 

best practice. 

6.3 Deliverability 

The redevelopment of central Winchester is a considered, deliverable and realistic objective. Key 

elements of this assessment are: 

Vacant possession   

The Council will be required to obtain vacant possession and to transfer land for development (on 

a phased basis). The Developer may also have a role to play in securing vacant possession, e.g. 

by way of dealings with occupiers, relocations and the carrying out of demolition works (where that 

is needed). 

Planning  

A sound planning policy and strategic policy framework exist. The approach to secure planning 

permission will be based on compliance with local and national requirements, early and continued 

involvement with the local planning authority including the entering into of a Planning performance 

agreement, a programme of Member and stakeholder and landowner engagement, public 

consultation and a commitment to high quality design and management standards. 

Viability 

The financial business case is set out above in section 5 of this business case.  

6.4 Programme and project management governance and arrangements 

The project will be managed in accordance with the Council’s major projects and programme 

management requirements PRINCE 2 methodology. 

6.4.1 Outline project reporting structure, project roles and responsibilities 

The Council internal project team will be as follows: 

 Decision approval body 

Page 143



  
 

 

Outline Business Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    62 

The Council Cabinet will sign-off on all required project approvals 

 Core team: 

 Programme Sponsor: Cabinet Member for Housing and Asset Management 

 Programme Director: Strategic Director - Place 

 Head of Programme 

 Project Managers 

 Specialist service leads 

 Corporate Head of Asset Management  

 s151 Officer  

 Corporate Head of Finance  

 Service Lead: Legal and Deputy Monitoring Officer 

 Service Lead: Corporate Support (Procurement) 

The final programme terms of reference, roles and responsibilities will be detailed further as part of 

the FBC. 

6.5 Outline project plan 

The diagram below sets out the key project milestones and the tasks within each stage. An 

explanation as to what each task involves has been provided with estimated timescales. The 

timeline and key milestones will be kept under continual review by the project team and reported 

to Members as project updates. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Illustrative timeline for the project 
 

Page 144



  
 

 

Outline Business Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    63 

 

6.6  Risk management arrangements  

The Head of Programme will prepare and monitor risks on behalf of the Council. The nature of the 

development and the risks and benefits will evolve, for example through the planning process. 

Some of these will be technical or operational but others will be strategic and these will be 

escalated as appropriate. 

The Council has in place an active risk register which is periodically updated by the project 

manager and programme manager; 

 In compliance with the Council’s Risk Management Policy and Risk Score Card, risks are 

actively identified and recorded in the project risk register, analysing the potential impact of 

the risk and the likelihood and project exposure it could cause. The register also identifies 

the appropriate implemented mitigating actions that are to be put in place; 

 Where risks require further action, this is noted in the register where the risk will be flagged 

for future actions by a relevant date and the current status. This is managed by the project 

manager who will involve relevant members of the project team and advisors as necessary; 

 The risks in the register will be assigned specific owners within the Council, regular risk 

register review meetings are held where risk mitigation methods will be monitored and 

managed to lower the risk level to an acceptable level/close.  

Page 145



  
 

 

Outline Business Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    64 

The below table includes a summary of the risks expected to be encountered on a development of 

this type as well as an indication of where the burden of risk lies. As details of the development 

agreement are finalised it will be possible to update this table and assign percentages of risk share 

where appropriate. 

 
Summary of risks 

Risks Description Council Developer Shared 

Business risk The risk that the organisation cannot meet its business imperatives.     

Reputational risk The risk that there will be an undermining of resident’s/customer’s/media’s 
perception of Winchester City Councils ability to fulfil its strategic objectives 

Y   

Legal Challenge 
Risk 

The risk that the Council is accused of failing to meet procurement 
regulations / acting unlawfully in respect of the procurement process adopted. 

Y   

Service risk The risk that the service is not fit for purpose.    

Design risk The risk that design cannot deliver the services to the required quality 
standards. 

 Y  

Planning risk The risk that the implementation of a project fails to adhere to the terms of the 
planning permission or that detailed planning cannot be obtained; or, if 
obtained, can only be implemented at costs greater than in the original 
budget. 

 Y  

Build risk The risk that the construction of physical assets is not completed on time, to 
budget and to specification. 

 Y  

Environmental risk The risk that the nature of the project has a major impact on its adjacent area 
and there is a strong likelihood of objection from the general public. 

  Y 

Procurement risk The risk that can arise from the contractual arrangements between two 
parties – for example, the capabilities of contractors when a dispute occurs 

  Y 

Demand risk The risk that the demand for developed product does not match the levels 
planned, projected or assumed.  

 Y  

Volume risk The risk that actual usage of the development varies from the levels forecast.  Y  

Occupancy risk The risk that a property will remain untenanted – a form of demand risk.  Y  

Funding risk The risk that the availability of funding leads to delays and reductions in 
scope. The risk of developer liquidation. 

  Y 

Residual value risk The risk relating to the uncertainty of the values of physical assets at the end 
of the contract period. 

 Y  

Archaeology Risk The risk where planning conditions require excavation, findings result in 
requirement for further more detailed / costly investigations 

  Y 

External risks The risks that affect all society, and are not connected directly to the 
programme or project. 

   

Policy risk The risk of changes in policy direction leading to unforeseen change.   Y 

 

In taking the scheme to market, the allocation of risk will be based on market norms for a 

development of this nature (and not therefore seeking to allocate risk on an atypical basis). This 

will include: 

 Placing responsibility for delivery of the CWR scheme with the Developer. This means that 

the Developer will be under obligation to pursue the necessary pre-conditions for carrying 

out the development on a phased basis, including: the design; planning application; 

appointment of professionals and contractors; obtaining of funding; and securing of 

occupiers/purchasers. These activities will be at the Developer’s cost and risk. 

 The Developer’s professional team and contractors to be properly insured and for them to 

provide collateral warranties to the Council (enabling direct recourse where necessary) 

Page 146



  
 

 

Outline Business Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    65 

 Risk in relation to the returns to be made from the development (i.e. market risk) will sit with 

the Developer 

 Public realm will be an important component of the scheme and through the terms agreed 

with the Developer under the procurement, a position settled with them on how the upkeep 

of public realm is to be funded and managed (based on the starting assumption that this will 

be a risk borne by the Developer). 

The Council’s core obligation will be to obtain vacant possession and to transfer land for 

development (on a phased basis). The Developer may also have a role to play in securing vacant 

possession, e.g. by way of relocations and the carrying out of demolition works (where that is 

needed). 

6.7 Project funding  

Finding investors both private and public that are aligned with this proposal will be a top priority. 

The aim would be to find funding providers that want to invest in Winchester for the long term and 

want to bring about the transformation not just for the CWR site but for the benefit of the wider 

local community and economy. 

The Council’s preference is for a blend of both private and public finance. Drawing on both 

sources of funding will likely be required in order to make the scheme financially viable.  

The exact form of the funding model to be followed will be assessed in greater detail during the 

FBC process, but for the purpose of this OBC, a blended funding option has been assumed.  

6.8 Conclusion 

The Management case concludes that the redevelopment of Central Winchester is a considered, 

deliverable and realistic objective. The responsibility for delivery of the CWR scheme will be with 

the Development Partner, and activities will be at the Development Partner’s cost and risk. A risk 

register is in place to monitor business risks, service risks and external risks, and it is 

recommended that this risk register is built on further as details of the development agreement are 

finalised.    

Page 147



  
 

 

Outline Business Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    66 

7 SOURCES  

The following sources have been referenced in the development of this OBC: 

 Winchester City Councils website 

- Central Winchester Regeneration  

- Winchester District Local Plan – Your Place Your Plan 

 Appraisal summary’s dated September 2021 

 City of Winchester Movement Strategy 2019 

 CWR Hotel Report October 2020 

 The Economic Impact of Tourism on Winchester 2017 

 Winchester Hotel Market Fact File July 2019 

 Winchester Commuter Flows 2011 

 HM Treasury Green Book and Business Case tool and templates published 16th November 

2020 

 HM Treasury The Green Book, central government guidance on appraisal and evaluation 

dated 3rd December 2020 

 Homes England Employment density guide (3rd edition) published November 2015 

 Office of National Statistics Family Spending Report March 2021 

 Strategic Outline Case dated September 2021 

 Transport for London – Valuing the Health benefits of transport Schemes  

 JLL COVID-19 Global Real Estate Implications Paper II 

 

Page 148

https://www.winchester.gov.uk/projects/5744/central-winchester-regeneration
https://www.localplan.winchester.gov.uk/
https://www.jll.co.uk/content/dam/jll-com/documents/pdf/research/jll-covid-19-global-real-estate-implications-20-apr.pdf


  

LEGAL\51823829v1 

8 APPENDICES 

8.2 Appendix A – Phasing Options  

  

P
age 149



  

 

Source: JLL & Arup, Central Winchester 

Regeneration Development Proposal, October 2021 

  

P
age 150



  

 

Source: JLL & Arup, Central Winchester 

Regeneration Development Proposal, September 

2021 

 

Source:: JLL & Arup, Central Winchester 

Regeneration Development Proposal, October 2021 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

P
age 151



  

 

Source:: JLL & Arup, Central Winchester 

Regeneration Development Proposal, October 2021 

 

  

P
age 152



  

 

Source: JLL & Arup, Central Winchester Regeneration 

Development Proposal, October 2021 

 

  

P
age 153



  

 

Source: JLL & Arup, Central Winchester Regeneration 

Development Proposal, October 2021 

 

8.3 Appendix B – Development Proposal  

P
age 154



  

LEGAL\51823829v1 

8.4 Appendix C – Selection Questionnaire questions    

  

Page 155



  

 

8.5 Appendix D – Stage 2 ITPD Evaluation Criteria   

Page 156



  

 

8.6 Appendix E – BCR Assumptions Research Sources 

 

Theme Assumption Source 
Theme 1: 
Increased 
employment 

Use of local contractors through the construction 
process:  

 60% of new salary is spent locally. 

 Average salary from PayScale Salary Guide 
(professional team and contractors) 

 Excludes housing, utilities, holidays, credit 
payments, insurance and communications 
related costs 

Office of National Statistics Family Spend 2021 

 Completed Development employment: 

 Employment numbers based on average 
number of jobs created per property type (co-
working office, small retail and cultural. Hotel 
employee numbers provided by hotel industry 
expert. 

Homes England Employment Density Guide v3 2015 
Melvin Gold, hotel industry expert 

 Average salaries based on average salary for 
different types of workers.  

 Average salary of £33k for construction 
(professional team and contractors) 

 Hotel Worker salary £22.5k 

 Local Salary of £30 - £35k 

Payscale Salary Guides 

Theme 2: 
Increased 
footfall 

4,66m day visitors to Winchester per annum (2018). 
Assumed 5% uplift on 2018 figure based on future  
cultural attraction, hotel conferencing, small 
business and retail.  

Economic Impact of Tourism on Winchester Report 2018 

 Annual day trips multiplied by average day spend of 
£43 per visitor.  

CWR Hotel Report 2020 

Theme 3: New 
housing and 
businesses 

Council Tax: 189 new homes, classified as Band D, 
with 20% exempt for Council Tax 

WCC Council Tax Rates to March 2022 
JLL market rent assumptions 

 Business Rates: Assumed retail and cultural will be 
exempt. Rates calculated on estimated hotel 
turnover. Offices based on estimated rental. UBR of 
0.512 applied to both 

https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/business-rates-information-
letters 

 Stamp Duty Land Tax: Assumed affordable homes 
do not attract SDLT. Therefore, 113 market units 
with an average value of £445k. SDLT balance 
calculated at 5%. 

https://www.gov.uk/stamp-duty-land-tax/residential-property-rates 

Theme 4: 
Reduced 
commuting 

189 new homes at an average of 1.5 workers per 
home will not need to commute in Winchester as 
they either work in Winchester or walk to station. 
Average reduction of 15 miles round trip 2.5 times 
per week 
 

Commuter Analysis Report 
WSP Carbon Calculator 2019 
National Travel Survey NTS0412 
 

Theme 5: 
Increased 
overnight 
tourism 

 110 room, upper-class hotel at an average 
room rate of £100 per night.  

 75% occupancy, based on current Winchester 
occupancy trend. 

 Includes average visitor spend of £43 per 
person 

 New hotel targets clientele not serviced by 
current hotel stock 

CWR Hotel Report 2020 
Melvin Gold, hotel industry expert 

 

Page 157

https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/business-rates-information-letters
https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/business-rates-information-letters
https://www.gov.uk/stamp-duty-land-tax/residential-property-rates


  

 

 

 

 

 

Page 158



 
CAB3322 

APPENDIX E 
 

 
In accordance with SCHEDULE 12A of the LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT, 1972, 
PART I. Schedule 12 A exemptions include any figures, or the basis of such figures 
proposed or to be proposed by or to the authority relating to or in the course of 
negotiations through the procurement process. 
 
Exempt - Commercially Sensitive 
 

Page 159



This page is intentionally left blank



CAB3322 – Appendix F 

Title  Risk Causes Risk Causes  Consequences  Mitigation / Current Controls Immediate Actions 

1. Failure to implement an 
appropriate delivery strategy 
for the CWR area as set out in 
the SPD 

Failure to gain approval for 
procurement process for the 
chosen delivery strategy 
Political instability and policy 
change 

Low Failure to deliver comprehensive 
redevelopment of CWR 
Loss of trust in the Council abilities 
to deliver 
Reputational/political damage to 
the administration 
Damage to the local economy 

Maintain cross party political and 
community support to move the project 
forward  
Continue to engage with key landowners, 
partners and stakeholders  
Ensure aspirations of the SPD are met 
when developing proposals and 
considering planning applications 
Continue to monitor and adapt the project 
plan 
Develop an appropriate procurement 
strategy through development of the 
Outline Business Case (OBC) 

Continue to work with JLL and 
other external consultants to 
develop the procurement 
process for the chosen 
delivery strategy 
Continue with cross party 
engagement 

2. Failure to secure external 
funding 

Lack of confidence in 
Winchester City Council in the 
market / with developers 
National economic conditions 
Proposals not considered 
viable 

Medium Failure to deliver comprehensive 
redevelopment of CWR  
Loss of trust in the Council abilities 
to deliver 
Reputational/political damage to 
the administration 
Damage to the local economy 

Continue to engage with key partners and 
stakeholders, 
Develop Winchester marketing approach 
targeted at inward investment,  
Ensure development proposals 
realistically assessed for viability 

Hold next steps conversations 
with potential funding partners 

3. Lack of cooperation from 
landowners and support from 
stakeholders and general 
public 

WCC cannot secure support to 
deliver aspirations of the SPD 

Low Objections and challenge from 
stakeholders and general public 
Failure to deliver cohesive 
redevelopment of CWR 

Continue to engage with key landowners, 
occupiers and general public. 

Continue to hold regular public 
engagement sessions and 
implement stakeholder 
management plan 

4. Insufficient internal 
resources to manage work 
streams 

Insufficient resourcing in WCC 
project team  
Insufficient capacity and skills 
in other Council departments 

Low Delay in project programme, 
Errors occurring where there are 
gaps in knowledge / expertise 

Continue to closely monitor capacity 
within the project team,  
Seek external expertise where required,  
Continue to monitor and adapt the project 
plan, including resources component,  
Have clear milestones and priorities for 
the project team 

At the earliest opportunity 
make other teams aware 
when their input will be 
required and for how long,  
Regular monitoring meetings 
with HoP and PM 

5. Perceived conflict of interest 
between Council as landowner 
and local planning authority 

Inconsistent or unpopular 
planning decisions 
Lack of transparency 

Low Reputational damage,  
Potential challenge 

When making decisions be clear on the 
capacity in which the Council is acting, 
Continue to act in an open and 
transparent manner where legally 
permitted 
Adhere to approach laid out in the SPD 
distinguishing relationship between WCC 
and the LPA 

  

6. Development proposals 
arising from the SPD are not 
financially viable 

Market changes,  
Unrealistic expectations for the 
scheme 
Political instability and policy 
change 

High Compromises have to be met on 
the SPD aspirations unless 
external funding can be found 

Undertaking high level testing of viability, 
engaging specialist consultants where 
required 
Continuing engagement with WCC 
members and other key stakeholders 
Develop ambitious, high quality and 
realistic development proposals with 
viability and funding considered at an 
early stage together with design 
Further interrogation through production 

Continue to work with JLL to 
develop appropriate 
proposals, testing viability and 
engaging other specialist 
consultants if and when 
necessary 
Explore opportunities for 
external funding 
Continue with cross party 
engagement. 

P
age 161



CAB3322 – Appendix F 

of the Outline Business Case (OBC). 

7. Development proposals 
arising from the SPD are not 
affordable to the council 

Market changes,  
Unrealistic expectations for the 
scheme 
Political instability and policy 
change 

High Compromises have to be met on 
the SPD aspirations unless 
external funding can be found 

Undertaking extensive financial 
modelling, engaging specialist 
consultants where required 
Continuing engagement with WCC 
members and other key stakeholders  
Full interrogation through production of 
the Financial Case for the Outline 
Business Case (OBC) 

Continue to work with 31Ten 
to run financial appraisals and 
modelling 
Explore alternative options 
such as income retention 
Continue with cross party 
engagement. 

8. Failure to implement plans 
to improve the Lower High 
Street Re-paving and 
Broadway 

Plans for the wider 
development of the CWR site 
and movement of the bus 
station result in a decision not 
implement concept design,  
Failure to secure funding 
Political instability and policy 
change 

Low Expectations raised by the work 
commissioned up to end of RIBA 
stage 2 could result in reputational 
damage 

Liaise with Highways Authority, JLL and 
Transport Planners 

Liaise with JLL and Transport 
Planners 
When appropriate explore 
funding opportunities 

9. Data collected from 
archaeology investigations is 
insufficient  / unreliable and 
therefore of little value to 
potential developers 

Unexpected environmental 
influences or failure of 
equipment 

Low Potential financial loss to WCC and 
delay to the programme 

Seek specialist expertise to help form 
appropriate recommendations for 
investigations, 
Continue to work with JLL as SPC, with 
regards to land value 

Finalise the draft CWR 
Archaeology Statement with 
the CWR Archaeology Panel 
to ensure the right approach is 
adopted going forward 

10. Lack of interest from 
potential developers / investors 

Unrealistic expectations for the 
scheme 
Lack of market demand  
Lack of confidence in 
Winchester City Council in the 
market 
National economic conditions 
Proposals not considered 
viable / attractive 

Medium Failure to deliver comprehensive 
redevelopment of CWR,  
Loss of trust in the Council abilities 
to deliver,  
Reputational/political damage to 
the administration,  
Damage to the local economy 

Develop Winchester marketing approach 
targeted at inward investment,  
Develop ambitious, high quality and 
realistic development proposals with 
viability and funding considered at an 
early stage together with design 

Ensure the documents and 
strategy is market friendly 

11. Lack of consensus around 
interim bus solution  

SPD aspiration to have bus 
station on Middle Brook Street 
car park, 
Recent publication of the Bus 
Back Better Strategy and its 
support for retention of bus 
stations 
Perception that an on-street 
solution could mean poorer 
facilities for drivers and 
passengers 
Political instability and policy 

Medium Vacant possession of the bus 
station is delayed resulted in 
delayed development on the site 

Continue working with key stakeholders 
to build confidence in the proposals  

Ensure appropriate tone for 
public messaging i.e. retention 
of most well used bus stops in 
city centre 
Continue with cross party 
engagement 

P
age 162



CAB3322 – Appendix F 

changes 

12. Conflict between the 
outputs of the Winchester 
Movement Strategy and the 
proposals for CWR 

The outputs of the Winchester 
Movement Strategy and the 
proposals for CWR are not 
aligned 

Medium Failure to deliver comprehensive 
redevelopment of CWR, 
Potential issues in bringing forward 
short to medium term 
improvements to Kings Walk and 
demolition of Friarsgate Medical 
Centre 
Reputational/political damage to 
the administration   
Ongoing maintenance and repair 
costs 

Continue working with WMS officer team 
both at WCC and HCC as proposals for 
CWR and outputs of the Movement 
Strategy are progressed to ensure close 
monitoring and alignment joint narrative 
for the proposed CWR bus solution and 
WMS development with HCC, and bus 
operators consulted. 

Continue liaising with HCC 
and bus operators and plans 
for both CWR and WMS 
progress. 

13. Lengthy procurement 
processes for chosen delivery 
model  

Multiple stakeholders involved 
in developing the brief, 
marketing materials and 
reviewing proposals. 

Low Loss of appetite / interest from 
potential developers / investors  
Failure to launch into market at 
appropriate time 

Set clear expectations around process for 
procurement and where stakeholders can 
be involved - ensure they are aware of 
any potential risks surrounding lengthy 
procurement and review processes 

Agree attendees for evaluation 
and dialogue throughout the 
procurement process. 

14. Construction cost 
increases  

Impact of Brexit and the 
Covid19 pandemic resulting in 
shortage of materials and skills 
leading to a delay in the project 
and / or affect the viability of 
the scheme. 

High Implications for viability and 
affordability of the scheme, leading 
to potential delays 
Council / Developer forced to make 
undesirable compromises  

Regular close monitoring of construction 
market supply and demand.   

Ensure procurement 
documents include 
consideration for discussion 
and dialogue going forward.  

15. Detailed planning cannot 
be obtained or, if obtained, can 
only be implemented at costs 
greater than in the original 
budget. 

The implementation the 
scheme fails to adhere to the 
terms of the planning 
permission. 

Low Failure to deliver comprehensive 
redevelopment of CWR, 
Loss of trust in the Council abilities 
to deliver, 
Reputational/political damage to 
the administration,  

Ensure clear expectations with regards to 
planning requirements are agreed at the 
earliest opportunity, 
Develop CWR Planning Statement setting 
out expectations   

Ensure CWR Planning 
Statement is made available 
to potential development 
partners as part of the 
procurement process. 

16. The demand for the 
scheme does not match the 
levels projected / assumed and 
/ or the usage of the 
development varies from the 
levels forecast 

Lack of or changes in market 
demand, 
National economic conditions 

Low The projected benefits of the 
scheme are not realised, 
Potential financial loss to WCC, 
Reputational/political damage to 
the administration,  

Ensure thorough analysis of projected 
benefits, developed through the 
Economic Case in the Outline Business 
Case (OBC), 
Continue to monitor market demand 

  

17. Chosen development 
partner is unable to take 
development forward due to 
lack of funding, insolvency. 

Developer entering into 
agreement with Council goes 
into liquidation  

Low 

Financial loss to WCC, 
Further delays to regeneration of 
the area, 
Loss of trust in Council abilities to 
deliver, 
Reputational/political damage to 
the administration 

Ensure robust vetting process is in place 
throughout procurement process to 
ensure minimum financial thresholds are 
met and sufficient supporting evidence is 
provided by bidders 
Seek appropriate procurement and 
financial expertise involvement in 
developing procurement documents and 
throughout process 

Continue to work with financial 
and procurement specialists 
throughout process 

P
age 163



CAB3322 – Appendix F 

18. Planning requirements 
related to archaeology result in 
delays or potentially stop the 
development progressing 

Where planning conditions 
require excavation, findings 
result in requirement for further 
more detailed / costly 
investigations 

Medium Implications for viability and 
affordability of the scheme 
Further delays to regeneration of 
the area 
Council / developer forced to make 
undesirable / costly compromises 
in relation to site layout / building 
design 

Produce Archaeology Statement in 
conjunction with the CWR Archaeology 
Panel setting out requirements in relation 
to approach archaeology on the site 

Ensure CWR Archaeology 
Statement is made available 
to potential development 
partners during the 
procurement process 

19. Process for procuring the 
development partner is subject 
to legal challenge  

Council is accused of failing to 
meet procurement regulations / 
acting unlawfully in respect of 
the procurement process 
adopted 

Medium Failure to procure development 
partner for the site 
Further delays to regeneration of 
the area 
Loss of trust in Council abilities to 
deliver 
Reputational/political damage to 
the administration 
Financial loss to WCC 

Seek appropriate legal and procurement 
advice / support to develop procurement 
documentation 
Engage with specialist legal and 
procurement experts throughout to 
ensure thorough and robust process 

Continue to work with legal 
and procurement specialists 
throughout process 

 

P
age 164



 

LEGAL\52451314v3 

CAB3322 – Appendix G 

 

  

Jones Lang LaSalle Incorporated  

Central Winchester 

Regeneration 
 

Development Brief 
 
November 2021 
 
 

Page 165



  

LEGAL\52451314v3 

1. Introduction ................................................................................................................................ 1 

2. The Scheme .............................................................................................................................. 2 

2.1. The Vision ......................................................................................................................................................................................... 2 

2.2. Site and Situation ........................................................................................................................................................................... 2 

2.3. Vacant Possession ......................................................................................................................................................................... 5 

3. Development Proposals ............................................................................................................ 6 

3.1. Land Uses .......................................................................................................................................................................................... 6 

3.2. Development Framework Mix of Uses .................................................................................................................................. 7 

4. Key Objectives ........................................................................................................................... 8 

4.1. Introduction ..................................................................................................................................................................................... 8 

4.2. The SPD.............................................................................................................................................................................................. 8 

4.3. Investment Objectives ................................................................................................................................................................. 8 

4.4. Sustainability Objectives ............................................................................................................................................................ 9 

4.5. Bus Solution and Movement Strategy ................................................................................................................................ 10 

4.6. Winchester Public Realm Strategy report 2021 ............................................................................................................ 11 

4.7. Design and Placemaking .......................................................................................................................................................... 11 

4.8. Archaeology .................................................................................................................................................................................. 12 

5. The Opportunity ....................................................................................................................... 13 

5.1. The Partnership Approach ..................................................................................................................................................... 13 

5.2. Role of the Development Partner ........................................................................................................................................ 13 

5.3. Social Value and Engagement with Stakeholders ......................................................................................................... 14 

6. Planning Context ..................................................................................................................... 16 

7. Adjacent Land Ownerships ...................................................................................................... 17 

8. Reference Documents ............................................................................................................. 19 

9. Appendices .............................................................................................................................. 20 

9.1. Location information ................................................................................................................................................................ 20 

9.2. Demographics .............................................................................................................................................................................. 20 

9.3. Residential and commercial market overview .............................................................................................................. 20 

9.4. Public Realm Framework ........................................................................................................................................................ 20 

9.5. Bus Brochure ................................................................................................................................................................................ 20 

9.6. Development Proposal Pack .................................................................................................................................................. 20 

9.7. Archaeology Statement ............................................................................................................................................................ 21 

9.8. Planning Statement ................................................................................................................................................................... 24 
 

 

  

 

 

 

 

Page 166



  
 

1 
LEGAL\52451314v3 

 

Foreword from Laura Taylor, Chief Executive of Winchester City Council:  

 

‘As a place to live, work and visit, Winchester is second to none.  

Once the capital of England, steeped in history and heritage, we are a proud cathedral City 

with an eye on the future. International business and global brands already call Winchester 

and our district their home and we have bold plans to further develop our retail, leisure and 

business offer to attract new investment, bringing jobs and opportunity to our fabulous City. 

Couple this with a highly skilled workforce, two universities, high average earnings and fast, 

efficient transport links to London and beyond by road or rail, it’s no surprise we feature 

regularly in best places to live surveys.  

The opportunity to work with the City Council to transform the central area of Winchester is 

without compare. We have taken stock of the impact of the pandemic and stand poised to 

create new vibrancy in our City through regeneration with sustainability at its heart. We want 

to provide solutions to the challenges of rebuilding a high street economy – commercially and 

through a cultural offer, integrate City centre living, deliver true sustainable transport options 

actively reducing our carbon footprint and retain young people in our City though innovative 

employment options’  

  
 

 

 

1. Introduction 

Page 167



  
 

2 
LEGAL\52451314v3 

2.1. The Vision 

The transformation of the central Winchester regeneration (CWR) site is of key strategic importance to the 

Council and the people of Winchester. The vision for the area is for a mixed-use, pedestrian friendly quarter 

that reflects the distinctive character of Winchester City Centre, supports a vibrant retail and cultural / 

heritage offer which is set within an exceptional public realm and incorporates the imaginative re-use of 

existing buildings. 

This vision is set out within the Central Winchester Regeneration Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) 

2018. The strategic objectives and core requirements of the Council set out within this document were borne 

out of an extensive community and stakeholder engagement process which enabled this collective vision to 

be produced. The development offers opportunities to introduce a variety of new uses and spaces, revitalise 

others and reimagine the functions for the site that brings new life to the City centre. It is an opportunity to 

create an exceptional proposal that is supported by the community, provides a balance of offers and creates 

an inspirational legacy for live work and leisure in a city centre context.  

The Council is seeking to procure a Development Partner to turn this vision into reality. It is critical that the 

Development Partner shares the passion for transformational development that is sensitive to the heritage of 

an ancient cathedral City and is prepared to commit for the long term. Commitment to the vision for the City 

is essential as well as an unfaltering commitment to sustainability and engagement across Winchester’s 

varied communities.   

2.2. Site and Situation 

CWR site is located in the heart of the City including the bus station, The Broadway, St Clements, Kings Walk 

and the Friarsgate car park. The land backs on to the River Itchen, which runs to the east of the site. The 

development comprises circa 3.68 acres (1.49 ha) of land located within the centre of Winchester and consists 

of two separate boundaries.  

The map below shows the boundaries of the defined site, which would be subject to the development 

agreement:  

2. The Scheme 

Page 168



  
 

3 
LEGAL\52451314v3 

  

 

The area outlined in red represents the defined site to be governed by the Development Agreement, therefore 

representing the area to be brought forward for development. The area to be included in the Development 

Agreement includes only Council-owned land excluding the M&S leased land and is referred to as the ‘defined 

site’. Areas A and B comprise 3.68 acres (1.49 ha). The area hatched denoting WCC freehold, highways 

adopted and access rights to St Clements Surgery comprises 0.06 acres (0.02 ha). 

Page 169



  
 

4 
LEGAL\52451314v3 

 

The area outlined in black illustrates the area defined in the CWR Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) 

which includes the Middle Brook Street Car Park, the Brooks Shopping Centre, Kings Walk block, Friarsgate 

Medical Centre, the Bus Station and the Broadway. The area comprises 11.48 acres (4.65 ha).  

         

        SPD Boundary  

Page 170



  
 

5 
LEGAL\52451314v3 

 

The area outlined in blue illustrates the area considered by the CWR development proposals, which includes 

Kings Walk block, Friarsgate Medical Centre, the Bus Station and Middle Brook Street Car Park. The outer area 

comprises 6.45 acres (2.61 ha). The development proposals are attached in Appendix 9.6 of this Development 

Brief.  

 

2.3. Vacant Possession  

Vacant possession can be secured by December 2024, where required, and subject to the provision of the bus 

solution. A detailed tenancy schedule has been provided as part of the procurement pack.  

 

 

 

 

      

      Development Proposals  

Page 171



  
 

6 
LEGAL\52451314v3 

The development proposals have been prepared by the Council, working with advisors JLL and Arup, to set 

out plans for taking forward the future development of the defined site. The development proposals are an 

interpretation of how the Council’s investment objectives can be delivered in alignment to the SPD. The 

development proposals have been underpinned by a massing study, cost plan and viability assessment to 

ensure that the investment objectives are deliverable.  

 

The Council undertook a period of consultation on the draft development proposals from 11 November 2020 – 

12 January 2021, where they consulted with local residents, businesses and stakeholder groups.  

3.1. Land Uses 

The development proposals present a vibrant mixed-use destination as demonstrated by the indicative 

illustration below: 

 
(Source: ARUP, 2021) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3. Development Proposals  

Page 172



  
 

7 
LEGAL\52451314v3 

3.2. Development Framework Mix of Uses 

 

The development proposals reflect the following mix of uses, shown in comparison with the mix deliverable as 

per the upper limits of the SPD quantum:  

 

Mix as per SPD Quantum Mix as per Development Proposals 

 

 
(Source: ARUP, 2021) 

 

NOTE: The development site does not comprise the full area covered by the SPD and the development 

proposals do include land which is not currently within the Council’s control and not therefore included in this 

procurement.  

 

The development proposals’ use allocation, illustrated above, sits within the upper and lower boundaries of 

the use ranges outlined in the SPD. The mixed use category in the above charts consists of leisure, culture, 

hotel and commercial/office use. 

 

The development proposals provide a framework for delivery. The indicative GIA quantums outlined below 

are specific to the defined site which would be the subject of the Development Agreement and comprise 

approximately: 

 

 Circa 180,000 sq ft of residential of which a minimum of 40% is to be affordable; 

 Circa 80,000 sq ft of mixed-use space; 

 Circa 25,000 sq ft of retail and F&B space.  

 

Further detail on the development proposals can be found in Appendix 9.6.   

 

The Development Partner will be required to work with the Council to build on and optimise the 

development proposal to design a high-quality scheme in accordance with the SPD. 

Page 173



  
 

8 
LEGAL\52451314v3 

4.1. Introduction 

This section of the Development Brief describes the key objectives and core requirements of the Council 

under the Development Agreement.  

4.2. The SPD 

The SPD is derived from 18 months of research and analysis, working with residents and local organisations 

through extensive consultation to establish a vision that will revitalise this central area of the City and provide 

a place that can be enjoyed by everyone. The nine objectives of the SPD are in summary as follows: 

 

Objectives 

Objective 1 Vibrant Mixed-Use Quarter 

Objective 2 “Winchesterness” 

Objective 3 Exceptional Public Realm 

Objective 4 City Experience 

Objective 5 Sustainable Transport 

Objective 6 Incremental Delivery 

Objective 7 Housing for All 

Objective 8 Community 

Objective 9 Climate Change and Sustainability 

 

 

The Council requires the development of the site to deliver the vision and objectives set out within the 

SPD.  

4.3. Investment Objectives 

The list of investment objectives below incorporates the themes identified in the SPD and JLL’s Competitive 

Positioning Study (provided in bidder information pack) and are specific to the development site. These 

investment objectives formed part of a public consultation which took place in November 2020 - January 21 

and were adopted by the Cabinet in March 2021. 

The Council requires the appointed Development Partner to deliver the following:  

4. Key Objectives 

Page 174



  
 

9 
LEGAL\52451314v3 

(Source: CWR Strategic Outline Case, 2021) 

4.4. Sustainability Objectives 

The Council declared a climate emergency in June 2019 and is intending for the Winchester district to be 

carbon neutral by 2030.  

In addition to the information below, bidders must adhere to the following policy documents (links in 

references):  

 The Carbon Neutrality Action Plan 2020-2030  

 The Biodiversity Action Plan 2021 

 Air Quality Supplementary Planning Document 2021 

The Green Economic Development Strategy (Council Plan 2021) was adopted in November 2021 and sets out 

the Council’s latest policy objectives. The strategy provides a road map of practical steps to transition to a 

greener, inclusive and more technologically driven, creative economy. An economy where existing businesses 

can grow sustainably; new businesses can be created and thrive, particularly those operating in the green 

growth sectors, and high quality job opportunities are provided for all demographics across the district. This 

strategy and any other future policy documents will need to be considered and adhered to by the 

Development Partner.   

The Green Economic Development Strategy seeks eight outcomes:  

 Investment Objective Description 

1 Work Provide creative, flexible workspaces to help grow start-up businesses and allow 

like-minded professionals to support each other by sharing skills, ideas and 

resources. 

2 Live Provide housing suitable for a range of people, including young people and 

families. A mix of private and affordable housing (40%) is needed with new 

homes for key workers and homes for rent. 

3 Play Create high quality exceptional public places where people want to spend time, 

to enjoy outside spaces, to experience new things, to celebrate heritage and 

culture and to get involved in something that interests them. 

4 Student and young 

person experience 

Create a mix of uses which is attractive to students and young people, which 

encourages them to visit the centre of Winchester instead of going elsewhere 

and gives them reason to want to stay in the City beyond their time at university 

or in other forms of education. 

5 Overnight tourism Create an attractive night-time offering to complement the existing City 

quarters and encourage residents and tourists to visit the area in the evening. 

6 Sustainable 

development 

Work towards the City carbon neutrality target through choice of building 

materials, measures to minimise energy use, re-use of buildings where 

appropriate and encouraging suitable modes of transport. 

Page 175



  
 

10 
LEGAL\52451314v3 

No. Objectives 

1. Increased business density and diversity 

2. Higher skills and productivity 

3. Reduced socio-economic and spatial inequality 

4. More affordable, sustainable, and flexible housing stock 

5. Net CO2 emissions reduced to zero 

6. Greener transport and less congestions 

7. More local renewable energy 

8. Increased biodiversity and green infrastructure 

(Source: Council Plan, 2021) 

The development is required to positively contribute towards the Council’s sustainability objectives and 

adhere to the aims in the above policy documents (alongside the Council Plan) by delivering a best-in-class 

sustainable development for the district, consider sustainable transport patterns, green public spaces and 

enable the sustainable growth of the area. The development will be expected to address the requirements of 

the NPPF for street trees, Green Infrastructure standards and bio-diversity net gain requirements. Deliverable 

targets for carbon reductions should be considered including embodied carbon, whole life carbon, operational 

energy and in use performance, as a demonstration of the Council’s ambition for a net zero carbon trajectory. 

The Development Partner is required to commit to the principles outlined in the Council’s Vision and deliver 

high environmental performance, strong energy efficiency and ecological credentials through the 

development of the site and the performance of the completed buildings.   

 

4.5. Bus Solution and Movement Strategy 

In addition to the below, bidders should refer to the Bus Travel in Central Winchester document found at 

Appendix 9.5. 

The Winchester Movement Strategy 2019 (WMS) provides the overall framework for transport improvements 

across Winchester City over the next 20-30 years. The proposals include improvements to the City centre 

through changes to the one-way system. The push for sustainable modes of transport will be supported by 

the introduction of high-quality cycle/walking improvements that will contribute to form a network of routes.  

Winchester Bus Station currently forms part of the development site. The redevelopment of the site requires 

the reprovision of bus facilities. In order to facilitate the development and secure vacant possession of the 

existing bus station, the Council has undertaken significant collaboration with the bus operators and 

Hampshire County Council to arrive at a solution that retains the most used bus stops in the heart of the City 

(e.g. Silver Hill and Tanner Street) and creates new on-street bus stops as part of public realm improvements 

to the City’s streets. A bus solution for the City centre has been agreed as a way forward to facilitate 

Winchester’s transport needs and to enable the site to be redeveloped. 

The diagram below is an extract from the Bus Travel in Central Winchester document produced by Winchester 

City Council and Hampshire County Council. This document sets out the strategic intent for bus travel in 

relation to the development site. The diagram shows the location of bus stops identified for the bus solution.  

Page 176



  
 

11 
LEGAL\52451314v3 

The Council requires the development of the site to deliver the bus solution for the City centre.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(Source: Bus Travel in Central Winchester) 

Future Winchester Mobility Hub 

There is the intention to create a consolidated public transport hub at the Winchester Railway Station 

comprising train, park and ride, bus stops, cycle hub and foot paths. The objectives of the mobility hub include 

improved first/last mile connectivity to public transport, improve air quality, and promote health and 

wellbeing of the users. The proposals are currently under evaluation and do not sit within the development 

site, but an incoming Development Partner is expected to support the wider ambition to reduce the current 

reliance on travel by private car and improve the environment for pedestrians and cyclists across the City.  

4.6. Winchester Public Realm Strategy report 2021 

Arup have produced the Winchester Public Realm Strategy report 2021 which outlines the Council’s 

requirements for the development in the context of the SPD guidance. The Winchester Public Realm Strategy 

document complements the SPD by adding further detail to the objectives and sets parameters for the 

development of the various areas of public realm within the development site. The framework emphasises 

the need for sustainability within its objectives. This includes sustainable transport, increasing green space 

and park like amenities, enhancing biodiversity, managing stormwater, and achieving zero carbon.  

 

The Council requires the development to align with the principles outlined in the Winchester Public 

Realm Strategy report 2021. 

 

 

4.7. Design and Placemaking  

Street Key  

   Tanner Street  

   Silver Hill  

   Friarsgate  

   Broadway  

Page 177



  
 

12 
LEGAL\52451314v3 

The Development Partner is required to ensure exemplary design quality, standards and placemaking 

approach is embedded and delivered throughout the development. 

These objectives are outlined in the Central Winchester Regeneration SPD which seeks to ensure that the 

special qualities found in the heart of Winchester are preserved and enhanced and that any future 

development is of a high-quality design, coordinated and sustainable. The use of different architectural 

practices is required, and the use of local practices is encouraged where appropriate. The Development 

Partner is required to design the scheme in accordance with the Council’s High Quality Places SPD 2015.  

Designs will be expected to comply with the guidance set out in the National Design Guide to address the 10 

characteristics of Well Designed Places and apply the principles to the local context. 

There needs to be a coherent narrative for the design approach, informed by the context, history and culture 

that is easy to articulate to communities, their representatives and stakeholders.  

Through the ITPD stage it is expected that Bidders will submit CVs for their lead architect and public realm 

consultant. It is expected that the Development Partner will appoint further architectural practices or design 

consultants in collaboration with the Council as the project progresses.  

4.8. Archaeology  

Bidders should refer to the Archaeology Statement found at Appendix 9.7 for further information.  

Archaeology is an important aspect of the site and the heritage of Winchester. An Archaeology Advisory 

Panel was established in 2017 to ensure that the Council was supported by expert advice and opinion on this 

matter.  

The Development Partner would be required to work with the Council, the Archaeology Advisory Panel and 

appoint archaeological consultants/ specialists who are suitably qualified and skilled in dealing with 

extensively stratified urban settings.  

Key points:   

 The Council is committed to ensuring that a robust programme for the identification of 

significant archaeological remains, their conservation in situ and, if appropriate, their recording 

by excavation, is incorporated in any development proposals submitted for planning permission.  

 Council expects that, attached to any planning consent, a condition(s) will require a programme 

of archaeological excavation of an appropriate scope and scale to fully mitigate the impact of 

development. 

  A Development Partner must be fully aware of the potential archaeology and historic 

environment of the site itself and the site’s context within the historic city and to include a 

heritage statement in any planning permission submission.  

 The Council is committed to the involvement of all appropriate stakeholders and the local 

community as a whole in developing an approach to the development of CWR. Key stakeholders 

include the Council, the Archaeology Advisory Panel, Historic England, Hampshire Cultural Trust 

and the University of Winchester as well as the involvement of the local community and the 

wider public.  

 

Page 178



  
 

13 
LEGAL\52451314v3 

5.1. The Partnership Approach 

The Council is seeking to identify a partner with which it can enter into the Agreement to ensure the delivery 

of the development. The Council is inviting bids in order to select a Development Partner with the right skills, 

resources, commitment, approach and proven track record, with similar projects, to deliver the Council’s vision 

and investment objectives for the development and the Winchester district. The Council’s required approach is 

to enter into a Development Agreement with a Development Partner, which provides a structure in which 

objectives, roles and responsibilities are clearly delineated.   

The Development Partner will provide its development expertise, equity investment and access to private 

funding. The Development Partner will fund and deliver the site (including residential, commercial, cultural 

uses, public realm and infrastructure). It is envisaged that the Development Partner would bring forward the 

development in stages by drawing down land on a long leasehold basis.  

The Council currently receives an income stream from the site which if removed presents affordability 

concerns for the Council.  In relation to the transfer of land, the Council will  consider a financial structure 

which provides an income stream or a mixture of capital receipt and income stream.   The Council is open 

to consider alternative approaches and structures, that provide innovative solutions in relation to income 

replacement from the existing site, that are proposed and developed through the competitive dialogue 

process, provided they are in line with the key legal principles.  

5.2. Role of the Development Partner 

The task:  

The Development Partner will undertake a wide range of activities including: creating site proposals, design 

and securing a planning consent, funding and / or raising of development finance, procurement of third party 

contractors and supply chain management, delivery of development in phases and marketing and attraction 

of occupiers / residents.  

Key roles:  

 Design, in conjunction with the Council, an exemplary quality scheme in accordance with the SPD and 

other relevant planning policy; 

 Ensure that sustainability and net zero carbon design is embedded within the site proposals and 

future functionality of the space delivered; 

 Undertake, in conjunction with the Council, community engagement and consultation at key 

milestones leading up to the submission of the planning application; 

 Consultation, communication and where necessary negotiation with Key Stakeholders and residents;  

 Work alongside the Council, Hampshire County Council (Transport Authority) and the bus operators 

to ensure the delivery of the bus solution; 

 Work alongside the Council, Archaeology Panel and relevant stakeholders and advisors to ensure best 

practice approach to preservation in situ of archaeology;  

 Obtain planning permission(s) for development phases in a logical sequence;  

 Ensure exemplary quality design and delivery, using the best available talent and ideas;  

5. The Opportunity  

Page 179



  
 

14 
LEGAL\52451314v3 

 Enact a meanwhile use strategy; 

 Undertake procurement of third party contractors and supply chain management; 

 Undertake demolition, site remediation and enabling works to prepare the site for development;  

 Incorporate innovation and future proofing associated with building safety, construction quality, new 

technologies, construction techniques and use of digital;  

 Deliver all necessary enabling infrastructure including the on-street bus solution, pedestrian and cycle 

friendly infrastructure, sustainable transport/movement enhancements;  

 Deliver exemplary quality public realm which enhances links and permeability across the City; 

 Fund (or source funding) and develop the scheme; 

 Brand, promote and market the opportunity; 

 Ensure long term stewardship, management, curation and activation of the completed development; 

 Maximise the value of the proposition to ensure best consideration for land transferred from the 

Council to the Developer; 

 Optimise long term values; and  

 Create an environmental and sustainability strategy that protects the long-term value of the 

opportunity.  

5.3. Social Value and Engagement with Stakeholders   

The Council has held several public Open Forums (most recently in November 2021) and undertaken a period 

of public consultation throughout November 2020- January 2021 on the development proposals and method 

of delivery of the development site. There is public support in favour of the re-development of the site and the 

proposed mix of uses outlined in the Council’s development proposals.   

Bidders are required to consider approaches that will enhance the community, social, cultural and heritage 

values of Winchester. Your response should consider how it will: 

 Support and enhance local economic wellbeing; 

 Enhance the retention of young people and graduates;  

 Support and promote SMEs (local where possible) in the supply chain; 

 Promote employment and training opportunities (in development and in legacy); 

 Support student visits, work experience and apprenticeship opportunities especially via links to 

Winchester based education institutions;  

 Enhance sustainability and support the Council in the delivery of policy objectives in this area;  

 Create a new destination that will complement and not compete with the existing City offer; 

 Expand the range of night time economy offer of activities and venues;  

 Increase the length of dwell times and increase overnight stays of visitors; and 

 Enhance the historic built environment.  

The Council expects to lead all community engagement up to the point that a Bidder is successfully appointed. 

After that point the Development Partner will lead community engagement, with appropriate consultant 

Page 180



  
 

15 
LEGAL\52451314v3 

expertise, and in conjunction with the Council. As a minimum, stakeholders, community groups, residents and 

businesses are to be consulted about: 

 

a) The approach to archaeology  

b) The design concept 

c) The detailed design at pre-application stage 

d) The final design 

 

 

Page 181



  
 

16 
LEGAL\52451314v3 

Bidders should refer to the Planning Statement found at Appendix 9.8 for further information.   

Bringing Forward Development Proposals for the Site  

Paragraph 1.3.6 of the CWR SPD states: 

“Planning Applications submitted will be expected to demonstrate how they have taken account of their site 

context, through the submission of appropriate supporting statements, assessments and illustrative material 

addressing physical characteristics of buildings and spaces within their wider and immediate contexts and the 

public realm. Contextual assessments should address the area within and around the CWR area to include, but 

not limited to, sunlight/daylight studies, close and distant view studies and the pattern of existing buildings, their 

skylines, vertical and horizontal rhythms, etc. All assessments should clearly illustrate how they have informed 

the proposal in terms of massing, heights, proportions, materials, etc” 

Due to the site’s location within a Conservation Area and its close proximity to listed buildings, an outline 

application for the entire site is not appropriate as a more comprehensive assessment of a proposed 

development’s impact on surrounding heritage and other matters is required.  

A hybrid approach is considered to be suitable in relation to the submission of planning applications for the 

site. This will involve an application for the whole site seeking full planning permission for the first phase of a 

proposed development, with proposals for the remainder of the application site submitted in outline form.  

The application would be supported by statements, assessments and illustrative material to demonstrate how 

the development proposed addresses the context of the site and its wider setting in line with requirements of 

paragraph 1.3.6 of the CWR SPD. The application would include a phasing plan which provides details of the 

proposed timing for the development of the parts of the site including those areas which are not subject to 

full application details. Any elements of a scheme subject of a planning application which do not accord with 

the guidance provided in the CWR SPD will need to be explained and justified as part of the application. The 

Council will need to consider the planning merits of any elements which are at variance to the SPD when 

undertaking its planning assessment of the application.  

The Council, as local planning authority, expects the development partner to hold pre-application discussions 

prior to the submission of any planning applications and complete a Planning Performance Agreement. 

 

 

6. Planning Context  

Page 182



  
 

17 
LEGAL\52451314v3 

 

  

Adjacent Land Ownership 

C - Brooks Shopping Centre Middle Brooke/St George’s Street – The Council hold the Freehold title for the 

site. Brooks Shopping Centre is let to Catalyst Capital on a long lease expiring 28
th

 January 2116.  

7. Adjacent Land Ownerships 

Page 183



  
 

18 
LEGAL\52451314v3 

D - Middle Brook Street Car park – The Council hold the Freehold title for the site.  

E - St Clements Surgery- Owned by Tanner Street Limited and in current use as an NHS doctor’s surgery. A 

legal right of way of occupiers of the St Clements Surgery to gain access to and from the surgery by foot or 

with vehicles over a very small section of Coitbury House. 

F - Woolstaplers’ Hall 90 Lower Brook Street- Owned by Marks & Spencer PLC and used for storage and 

goods access.  

G - M&S car park – the Council hold the Freehold title for the site. The site is let to Marks & Spencer PLC on a 

long lease expiring 29
th

 April 2099 with the current use being Marks & Spencer car park.  

H - TBC- WCC understand that this site has changed ownership in 2021. New owner to be confirmed.  

 

Land Assembly Considerations 

 
The Council is of the view that the development can come forward without the need for any further land 
assembly to be undertaken.  
 
Should the appointed Development Partner wish to explore land assembly options to extend the site area the 
Council should be consulted on the intent prior to any approaches to neighbouring land owners or lease 
holder being made. It is intended that the Development Agreement will include a draft CPO indemnity 
agreement to provide security for cost for the Council in the form of an indemnity from the Development 
Partner in the unexpected event that the Council be required to undertake the use of its CPO statutory 
powers. 
 

Page 184



  
 

19 
LEGAL\52451314v3 

Please click on the live links below to access the documents.  

 Air Quality Supplementary Planning Document, adopted October 2021 

 Arup (2021) Winchester Public Realm Strategy Report. Prepared for Winchester City Council. 

 Carbon Neutrality Action Plan 2020 - 2030 

 Central Winchester Regeneration Development Proposal – Public Participation presentation November 2020 

 Central Winchester Regeneration Strategic Outline Business Case  

 Central Winchester Regeneration Supplementary Planning Document, Adopted June 2018 

 City of Winchester Movement Strategy  

 Council Plan 2021 Edition  

 High Quality Places Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) 2015 

 Invest in Winchester 2021 

 JLL Competitive Position Report 2019 

 Kings Walk Feasibility Study July 2020 – Turner Works and Worthwhile Works 

 Melvin Gold Consulting Ltd. (2020) Study of Market Demand and Estimated Financial Performance for a 

Potential Hotel in the City of Winchester, Hampshire. Prepared for WCC.  

 National Planning Policy Framework 

 Planning Practice Guidance 

 Strategic Housing Market Assessment, Iceni Projects ltd on behalf of the Council, 2020 

 The Biodiversity Action Plan 2021 

 The Carbon Neutrality Action Plan 2020-2030  

 The Local Plan Part 1 – Joint Core Strategy (2013) 

 The Local Plan Part 2 – Development Management and Site Allocations (2017) 

 WCC position statement on nitrate neutral development 2021 

 Winchester BID Annual Review, 2020 – 21 

 Winchester Council Plan 2020 – 2025 (2021 Edition)  

 Winchester District Green Economic Development Strategy - Cabinet Report (October 2021) 

Winchester District Ten Year Green Economic Strategy 2021 - 2031 

 Winchester Hotel Market Fact File, 2019  

 Winchester Vision 2020  

8. Reference Documents 

Page 185

https://www.winchester.gov.uk/assets/attach/31474/Final-SPD-Sept-2021.pdf
https://www.winchester.gov.uk/no-listing/carbon-neutrality-action-plan
https://www.winchester.gov.uk/assets/attach/27702/CWR-Development-Proposals-Public-Consultation-Presentation.pdf
https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/documents/s16181/CAB3303%20Appendix%20D%20Strategic%20Outline%20Case.pdf
https://www.winchester.gov.uk/planning-policy/winchester-district-local-plan-2011-2036-adopted/supplementary-planning-documents-spds/central-winchester-regeneration-spd
https://www.hants.gov.uk/aboutthecouncil/haveyoursay/consultations/winchestermovementstrategy
https://www.winchester.gov.uk/about/strategies/council-strategy
https://www.winchester.gov.uk/planning-policy/winchester-district-local-plan-2011-2036-adopted/supplementary-planning-documents-spds/high-quality-places-spd-adopted
https://www.winchester.gov.uk/business/invest-in-winchester
https://www.winchester.gov.uk/assets/attach/27741/City-Wide-Competitive-Position-Report-2-.pdf
https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/documents/s13093/CAB3271%20APDX%20D%20Kingwalk%20Feasibility%20Study%20FINAL%2017%2008%2020.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/national-planning-policy-framework
https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/planning-practice-guidance
https://www.winchester.gov.uk/assets/attach/23240/Winchester-District-SHMA-Report-FINAL.pdf
https://www.winchester.gov.uk/assets/attach/27834/100_biodiversity-_action_plan_2021-web.pdf
https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/documents/s10128/Carbon%20Neutraility%20Action%20Plan%20presnetation%20-%204%20March%202020%20V2.pdf
https://www.winchester.gov.uk/planning-policy/winchester-district-local-plan-2011-2036-adopted/local-plan-part-1-joint-core-strategy-adopted-march-2013-local-plan-review-2006
https://www.winchester.gov.uk/planning-policy/winchester-district-local-plan-2011-2036-adopted/local-plan-part-2-development-management-allocations
https://www.winchester.gov.uk/planning/wcc-position-statement-on-nitrate-neutral-development
https://winchesterbid.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2021/03/9398bid_annualreview2021_v6_web-compressed.pdf
https://www.winchester.gov.uk/about/strategies/council-strategy
https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/documents/s17195/CAB3319%20Winchester%20district%20green%20economic%20development%20strategy.pdf
https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/documents/s17195/CAB3319%20Winchester%20district%20green%20economic%20development%20strategy.pdf
https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/documents/s17196/CAB3319%20App%201%20Winchester%20GEDS%20Final%20Draft.pdf
https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/documents/s17196/CAB3319%20App%201%20Winchester%20GEDS%20Final%20Draft.pdf
https://businesshampshire.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/12/WINCHESTER-HOTEL-MARKET-FACT-FILE-2019.pdf
https://www.onegreatwin.com/


  
 

20 
LEGAL\52451314v3 

9.1. Location information  

9.2. Demographics  

9.3. Residential and commercial market overview  

9.4. Public Realm Framework  

9.5. Bus Brochure  

9.6. Development Proposal Pack 

  

9. Appendices 

Page 186



  
 

21 
LEGAL\52451314v3 

9.7. Archaeology Statement   

Page 187



  
 

22 
LEGAL\52451314v3 

DRAFT CWR Archaeology Statement 
  

Winchester City Council fully recognises the rich archaeological heritage of the historic city and its surrounding 

area. This heritage survives both as below ground archaeological remains and as historic buildings and 

monuments, many of which enjoy statutory protection as Listed Buildings or Scheduled Ancient Monuments. 

In particular, the Council recognises that nationally, and possibly internationally, significant archaeological 

remains, representing at least 2000 years of history, will survive on the Central Winchester development site. 

This view is supported by a desk-based assessment commissioned by the Council in 2017 which reviewed 

previous archaeological investigations in the development area and its environs, most notably the Lower 

Brook Street excavations of 1962-71 and The Brooks site of 1987-8. In addition, a geoarchaeological borehole 

survey and deposit model of the area undertaken in 2021 showed that there is a considerable depth of 

archaeological deposits which are likely to be well preserved; a programme of hydrological monitoring and 

assessment is also currently underway across the site. The City Council is committed to ensuring that a robust 

programme for the identification of significant archaeological remains, their conservation in situ and, if 

appropriate, their recording by excavation, is incorporated in any development proposals submitted for 

planning permission. 

The City Council recognises that archaeology and the historic environment can be a key driver in building 

community identity and creating a sense of place as well as enhancing the visitor experience. The Council 

subscribes to national government’s view, as expressed in the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 

that local authorities should adopt a positive strategy for the conservation and enjoyment of the historic 

environment (including archaeological remains) when dealing with planning matters. In the case of the Central 

Winchester development, the City Council expects that prospective developers will make themselves fully 

aware of the potential archaeology and historic environment of site itself and of the site’s context within the 

historic city. Any proposals submitted for planning permission will be required to include a heritage statement 

which demonstrates this awareness and sets out clearly how any impact on archaeological remains and the 

historic environment will be managed in line with the city’s local plan policies, the Central Winchester 

Archaeology Advisory Paper and the National Planning Policy Framework. 

The Council is committed to the involvement of all appropriate stakeholders and the local community as a 

whole in developing an approach to the development of the Central Winchester site. This approach will ensure 

their interests and concerns as far as archaeology and the historic environment are properly addressed. The 

Council will ensure that in respect of these matters the development process will be as transparent as possible. 

In line with well-established planning procedures set out in the NPPF, the Council expects that, attached to 

any planning consent, a condition(s) will require a programme of archaeological excavation of an appropriate 

scope and scale to fully mitigate the impact of development. Any excavations will be carried out by a 

professional archaeological contractor with the appropriate experience and capacity in line with guidelines 

adopted by the Chartered Institute for Archaeology. It is expected that development proposals and 

archaeological mitigation will include proposals for community engagement, where possible, and other 

related aspects of the project. Before any planning condition is discharged, the results of the excavations will 

be fully analysed and prepared for professional publication and dissemination to wider audiences in accessible 

formats. 

 

References: 
 
Available on the Winchester City Council website:  
 
Central Winchester Regeneration Project Archaeological Desk-Based Assessment – Patrick Ottaway 2017  

Page 188



  
 

23 
LEGAL\52451314v3 

Central Winchester Regeneration Geoarchaeological and Hydrogeological Desk-Based Assessment – ARCA 2020  

Central Winchester Regeneration Project: Geoarchaeological Stratigraphic Interim Report– ARCA 2020  

Central Winchester Regeneration Project: Updated Interim Integrated Geoarchaeological Report – ARCA 2021 

  

Page 189



  
 

24 
LEGAL\52451314v3 

9.8. Planning Statement  

 

 

 
  
  

Page 190



  
 

25 
LEGAL\52451314v3 

CWR Planning Statement  
 
Bringing Forward Development Proposals for the Site  
 

Paragraph 1.3.6 of the CWR SPD states  

“Planning Applications submitted will be expected to demonstrate how they have taken account of their site 

context, through the submission of appropriate supporting statements, assessments and illustrative material 

addressing physical characteristics of buildings and spaces within their wider and immediate contexts and the 

public realm. Contextual assessments should address the area within and around the CWR area to include, but not 

limited to, sunlight/daylight studies, close and distant view studies and the pattern of existing buildings, their 

skylines, vertical and horizontal rhythms, etc. All assessments should clearly illustrate how they have informed 

the proposal in terms of massing, heights, proportions, materials, etc”  

Due to the site’s location within a Conservation Area and its close proximity to listed buildings, an outline 

application for the entire site is not appropriate as a more comprehensive assessment of a proposed 

development’s impact on surrounding heritage and other matters is required.  

A hybrid approach is considered to be suitable in relation to the submission of planning applications for the 

site. This will involve an application for the whole site seeking full planning permission for the first phase of a 

proposed development, with proposals for the remainder of the application site submitted in outline form.  

The application would be supported by statements, assessments and illustrative material to demonstrate how 

the development proposed addresses the context of the site and its wider setting in line with requirements of 

paragraph 1.3.6 of the CWR SPD (see above). The application would include a phasing plan which provides 

details of the proposed timing for the development of the parts of the site including those areas which are not 

subject to full application details. Any elements of a scheme subject of a planning application which do not 

accord with the guidance provided in the CWR SPD will need to be explained and justified as part of the 

application. The Council will need to consider the planning merits of any elements which are at variance to the 

SPD when undertaking its planning assessment of the application.  

The Council, as local planning authority, expects the development partner to hold pre-application discussions 

prior to the submission of any planning applications and complete a Planning Performance Agreement details 

of which are viewed at; https://www.winchester.gov.uk/planning/pre-application-service.  

Planning policy context:  

National  

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) was published in March 2012 and sets out the government’s 

planning policies across England. It was revised in July 2018 and updated in February 2019. Most recently, it 

was revised in July 2021. The NPPF promotes competitive town centre environments which provide customer 

choice and a diverse retail offer whilst reflecting the individuality of the place. A range of other uses are 

expected to support the viability and vitality of the town centre, including leisure, offices, markets and a wide 

choice of quality homes. The Planning Practice Guidance was published to support the national framework 

and inform on explicit planning issues.  

The NPPF and Planning Practice Guidance prioritise sustainable development and set out core principles for 

the design of the built environment, requiring local authorities to seek opportunities to meet the development 

needs of the area through the planning process.  

The National Design Guide was published in October 2019 and updated in January 2021 and provides 

guidance to support well-designed development to achieve places that are beautiful, enduring and successful. 

Whilst all parts of the National Design Guide are to be followed, specific guidance is provided on context, 

Page 191



  
 

26 
LEGAL\52451314v3 

identity, built form, movement and public spaces which are key considerations for the development of this 

site.  

Local – Development Plan and Emerging New Local Plan  

The development plan for the CWR site is the Winchester District Local Plan Part 1 – Joint Core Strategy (2013) 

and the Local Plan Part 2 – Development Management and Site Allocations (2017) against which all 

applications in Winchester are considered and development proposals expected to accord with:  

The Local Plan Part 1 – Joint Core Strategy (2013)  

The Local Plan Part 1 is the Council’s long term strategic plan for development within Winchester District, and 

includes the strategic vision, objectives and the key policies needed to achieve sustainable development 

across the district to 2031. It identifies the amount of development, broad locations for change, growth and 

protection, including allocating strategic sites. The Council adopted the Plan in March 2013.  

Development proposals shall meet the requirements of Local Plan Part 2 unless there are material 

considerations that indicate otherwise, and include the following policies as of key relevance:  

 DS1 – Development Strategy and Principles  

 WT1 – Development Strategy for Winchester Town  

 CP1 – Housing Provision  

 CP2 – Housing Provision and Mix  

 CP3 – Affordable Housing Provision on Market Led Housing Sites  

 CP6 – Local Services and Facilities  

 CP8 – Economic Growth and Diversification  

 CP10 – Transport  

 CP11 – Sustainable Low and Zero Carbon Built Development  

 CP13 – High Quality Design  

 CP16 – Biodiversity  

 CP17 – Flooding, Flood Risk and the Water Environment  

 CP20 – Heritage and Landscape Character  

 CP21 – Infrastructure and Community Benefit  

 

Affordable Housing Provision, Local Plan Part 1 (Policy CP3) states that all development which increases the 

supply of housing will be expected to provide 40% of the gross number of dwellings as affordable housing. The 

Council have confirmed that this threshold will also apply for applications within the CWR development site.  

The Local Plan Part 2 – Development Management and Site Allocations (2017)  

The Local Plan Part 2 allocates land to deliver the development strategy for new housing, economic growth 

and diversification set out in Local Plan Part 1 and provide planning policies which relate to the assessment of 

the details of development proposals. The Local Plan Part 2 was adopted by the Council in April 2017.  

Development proposals shall meet the requirements of Local Plan Part 2 unless there are material 

considerations that indicate otherwise, and include the following policies as of key relevance:  

 WIN1 – Winchester Town  

Page 192



  
 

27 
LEGAL\52451314v3 

 WIN2 – Town Centre  

 WIN3 – Views and Roofscape  

 WIN4 – Silver Hill Mixed Use Site  

 DM2 – Dwelling Sizes  

 DM7 – Town, District and Local Centres  

 DM14 – Masterplans  

 DM15 – Local Distinctiveness  

 DM16 – Site Design Criteria  

 DM17 – Site Development Principles  

 DM18 – Access and Parking  

 DM19 – Development and Pollution  

 DM20 – Development and Noise  

 DM24 – Special Trees, Important Hedgerows and Ancient Woodlands  

 DM26 – Archaeology  

 DM27 – Development in Conservation Areas  

 DM28 – Demolition in Conservation Areas  

 DM29 – Heritage Assets  

 

Emerging Local Plan  

The Council is in the process of preparing a new Local Plan that will cover the period up to 2039. Consultation 

has taken place on a Strategic Issues & Priorities (SIP) document which concluded in April 2021 

(https://www.localplan.winchester.gov.uk/). The analysis of the representations is currently taking place and 

the outcome of the consultation will be reported through the Local Plan Advisory Group by the end of 2021. 

Whilst the Council is at the very early stages of preparing a new Local Plan, the importance of creating high 

quality sustainable places and opportunities to support and enhance the town centre are being embedded in 

the new Local Plan. A number of Local Plan design workshops are taking place before Christmas 2021 to assist 

the Council with taking these important issues forward.  

The timetable for preparing the new Local Plan is included in the Local Development Scheme 

(https://www.winchester.gov.uk/planning-policy/winchester-district-local-plan-2018-2038-emerging/local-

development-scheme).  

Central Winchester Supplementary Planning Document (SPD)  

CWR SPD was adopted by Winchester City Council on 20th of June 2018. The CWR SPD supplements the 

policies within the adopted Local Plan (Parts 1 and 2) and in Section 1 (Aims & Objectives) the document sets 

out a Vision, Objectives and Planning and Urban Design Framework for the future development of the Central 

Winchester Regeneration Area.  

High Quality Places SPD  

Page 193

https://www.localplan.winchester.gov.uk/
https://www.winchester.gov.uk/planning-policy/winchester-district-local-plan-2018-2038-emerging/local-development-scheme).
https://www.winchester.gov.uk/planning-policy/winchester-district-local-plan-2018-2038-emerging/local-development-scheme).


  
 

28 
LEGAL\52451314v3 

A High Quality Places SPD was adopted by the Council in March 2015. This SPD sets out the expected 

principles of good urban design and provides guidance for developers as to how to apply Local Plan Policy 

CP13 (High Quality Design ) and Policy CP20 (Heritage and Landscape).  

Air Quality Strategic Planning Document  

The Air Quality SPD was adopted in October 2021. This SPD sets out the Council’s requirements for reducing 

air pollution emissions from new development and preventing human exposure to poor air quality on all land 

that is either in or within 1km of the Winchester built up area which includes the CWR red line area.  

Other Relevant Plans and Strategies  

City of Winchester Movement Strategy  

The City of Winchester Movement Strategy was endorsed by the Council in March 2019. This joint policy 

document developed by Hampshire County Council and the City Council sets out an agreed vision and long-

term priorities for travel and transport improvements in Winchester over the next 20 – 30 years.  

City of Winchester Vision 2020 – 2030  

The City of Winchester Vision 2020 – 2030 was adopted by the Winchester Town Forum January 2021. The 

vision statement identifies five key themes relating to the evolution of the town area over the next decade and 

is about how change happens across the city and not just what needs to change. This is relevant when 

considering the methods to be used to engage and consult with the public and other stakeholders as plans for 

CWR come forward.  

Winchester Conservation Area  

The entire central Winchester regeneration area is located within the Walled City character area of the 

Winchester Conservation Area. There are no listed buildings within the red line area. Key heritage based 

policies in the adopted Development Plan include; policies DM26, DM27, DM28 and DM29.  

The Winchester Conservation Area Project contains a Conservation Area Appraisal, Review and Strategy. 

Development proposals should have regard to this information when preparing development proposals along 

with conservation policies set out in the NPPF and in particular Section 16 “Conserving and enhancing the 

historic environment. Further details are available at; https://www.winchester.gov.uk/historic-

environment/conservation-areas/winchester-conservation-area-project-2003  

Nitrogen Neutrality  

Most forms of residential development are required to be nitrogen neutral. Any development which proposes 

additional overnight accommodation is required to be supported by a Nitrogen Budget Calculator which 

determines the amount of additional nitrogen discharged into the wider environment.  

Mitigation should properly ensure the development does not adversely affect the protected water 

environment of the Solent. Such measures will be secured by planning condition and/or a section 106 legal 

agreement to ensure that the mitigation required is delivered in perpetuity (usually a minimum period of 80 

years) prior to development being brought into use. Mitigation is a requirement of the Conservation of 

Habitats and Species Regulations 2017.  

At present, many developers are purchasing nutrient credits from third parties (mitigation land owners) where 

mitigation is not feasible on site. Credits must be agreed with the Council as providing adequate mitigation for 

the scheme and secured by s106 agreement as part of the planning permission.  

A Position Statement must set out how developers consider the nitrogen neutrality issue was adopted by the 

Council in January 2020 and updated in July 2021. The current position can be found on the Council’s website  

https://www.winchester.gov.uk/planning/wcc-position-statement-on-nitrate-neutral-development  

Page 194

https://www.winchester.gov.uk/historic-environment/conservation-areas/winchester-conservation-area-project-2003
https://www.winchester.gov.uk/historic-environment/conservation-areas/winchester-conservation-area-project-2003
https://www.winchester.gov.uk/planning/wcc-position-statement-on-nitrate-neutral-development


  
 

29 
LEGAL\52451314v3 

Planning History  

Additionally relevant is the planning history of the site which may be viewed on the Council’s website.  

Community Infrastructure Levy  

The Community Infrastructure Levy is covered through a variety of legislative and associated amendments. 

The interpretation of the CIL Regulations are dependent upon the development proposal and hence are not 

covered by this statement. 

 

Page 195



This page is intentionally left blank



Central Winchester Regeneration
Development framework
October 2021

P
age 197



‘two grids’

2DRAFT

Concept diagram

P
age 198



3DRAFT

Land uses

P
age 199



DRAFT 
4

Ground Floor Plan

P
age 200



5

Building retention
OS licence 100019531

Massing - showing heights and uses

DRAFT 

P
age 201



Development Framework Quantum

PREVIOUS FRAMEWORK

Total area (GEA)  32,167 SQM

6

SPD QUANTUM

TOTAL (GEA) 50,700SQM
*This is the upper range of the suggested quantum of 

development outlined in the SPD

8,700
17%

29,000
57%

13,000
26%

RETAIL & F&B RESIDENTIAL MIXED-USE

*Mixed-use consists of leisure, culture, hotel AND commercial/office use 

DRAFT

DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK 
WITH KINGS WALK 

DEMOLOSHED

Total area (GEA)  32,091 SQM

19,250
60%

2,457
8%

10,385
32%

RESIDENTIAL RETAIL AND F&B MIXED-USE

P
age 202



7

Site accessibility and movement

DRAFT

P
age 203



8

Proposed bus route

DRAFT

P
age 204



9

Public Realm Strategy

DRAFT Illustrative plan from the Public Realm Report

P
age 205



10

A

A

B

B

DRAFT

Sections

P
age 206



11

Existing Proposed

View A
- Along Middle brook street

OS licence 100019531

DRAFT

Residential

Workspace

Hotel

Active ground floor

Cultural Workspace

Winchester Cathedral

P
age 207



12

Existing Proposed

View B
- From existing bus station

OS licence 100019531

DRAFT

Residential

Workspace

Hotel

Active ground floor

Cultural Workspace

Guildhall

P
age 208



13

Existing Proposed

View C
- Friarsgate road

OS licence 100019531

DRAFT

Residential

Workspace

Hotel

Active ground floor

Cultural WorkspaceP
age 209



14

OS licence 100019531

Existing Proposed

View D
- From Joyce Gardens

DRAFT

Residential

Workspace

Hotel

Active ground floor

Cultural WorkspaceP
age 210



15

1

2

3

45

6

6

6
7

8
9

10

11
12

13

13

12

11

10

9

8

Improved setting to King Alfred Statue

Bus movement restricted to turning at Busket Lane

Broadway transformed to a key public space

Woolstapler’s Hall

Shared surface and opened waterway along 
Riverside Walk

New and improved crossings

Site available for new development

The Brooks Shopping Centre

Improved public realm and view of Cathedral along 
Middle Brook Street 

Retained and refurbished Antiques Market 

Tanner Street – Shared surface

Bus service and active ground floor along silver Hill

Public space with view to Guildhall

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

Building Typologies

DRAFT

Guildhall

Friarsgate

Eastgate Street

N

P
age 211



16

Architecture

DRAFT Chapter House - Lichfield

Northstowe New Town - Cambridgeshire

Northstowe New Town - Cambridgeshire

P
age 212



17

Bus canopies

DRAFT

Bus canopy - USA Bus canopy - Canda

Bloomcanopy - USA

Glass bus canopy

Street canopy with lighting at night

Aarau bus station - Switzerland

Park shelters - USA

P
age 213



 -

 10,000,000

 20,000,000

 30,000,000

 40,000,000

 50,000,000

 60,000,000

 70,000,000

 80,000,000

 90,000,000

 100,000,000

0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70

Gr
ee

nh
ou

se
 g

as
 e

m
iss

io
ns

 (k
gC

O
2e

)

Year in lifecycle

Lifecycle greenhouse gas emissions of Winchester regeneration options
'Carbon as usual'

 Development Framework Kings Walk Retained  Development Framework Kings Walk Removed

Assumptions:
• Energy intensity of different building/space types is extracted from BEIS building energy efficiency survey (BEES)
• Embodied carbon of construction associated with new and retrofit buildings extracted from Arup project embodied carbon 

calculator (PECC)
• Carbon emissions associated with demolition extracted from RICS whole life carbon assessment for the built environment

Embodied carbon of 
CWR development = 

15,756tCO2e

Cumulative lifecycle 
emissions of refreshed 

WCR development 
assuming carbon 
emissions remain 

unchanged = 
92,507tCO2e

DRAFT

Carbon Calculations

P
age 214



 -

 20,000,000

 40,000,000

 60,000,000

 80,000,000

 100,000,000

 120,000,000

0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70

Gr
ee

nh
ou

se
 g

as
 e

m
iss

io
ns

 (k
gC

O
2e

)

Year in lifecycle

Lifecycle greenhouse gas emissions of Winchester regeneration options
'Carbon as usual'

 Option 1 'Business not as usual'  Option 2 'Homes for all'  Option 3 'Destination max'  Option 4 'Hybrid'  St Clements Retained  Kings Walk Demolished

Assumptions:
• Energy intensity of different building/space types is extracted from BEIS building energy efficiency survey (BEES)
• Embodied carbon of construction associated with new and retrofit buildings extracted from Arup project embodied carbon 

calculator (PECC)
• Carbon emissions associated with demolition extracted from RICS whole life carbon assessment for the built environment

Embodied carbon of 
CWR development = 

15,756tCO2e

Cumulative lifecycle 
emissions of refreshed 

WCR development 
assuming carbon 
emissions remain 

unchanged = 
92,507tCO2e

DRAFT

Carbon Calculations

P
age 215



Assumptions:
• Carbon emissions associated with electric and non-electric fuel sources decrease uniformly to zero between now and 2030

Embodied carbon of 
refreshed WCR 
development = 

15,756tCO2e

Cumulative lifecycle 
emissions of refreshed 

WCR development 
assuming carbon 

emissions decrease 
unfirmly to 2050 = 

34,644tCO2e

DRAFT

Carbon Calculations

 -

 5,000,000

 10,000,000

 15,000,000

 20,000,000

 25,000,000

 30,000,000

 35,000,000

 40,000,000

0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70

Gr
ee

nh
ou

se
 g

as
 e

m
iss

io
ns

 (k
gC

O
2e

)

Year in lifecycle

Lifecycle greenhouse gas emissions of Winchester regeneration options
'Net Zero 2050'

 Development Framwork Kings Walk Retained  Development Framework Kings Walk Removed

P
age 216



 -

 5,000,000

 10,000,000

 15,000,000

 20,000,000

 25,000,000

 30,000,000

 35,000,000

 40,000,000

 45,000,000

0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70

Gr
ee

nh
ou

se
 g

as
 e

m
iss

io
ns

 (k
gC

O
2e

)

Year in lifecycle

Lifecycle greenhouse gas emissions of Winchester regeneration options
'Net Zero 2050'

 Option 1 'Business not as usual'  Option 2 'Homes for all'  Option 3 'Destination max'
 Option 4 'Hybrid'  St Clements Retained  Kings Walk Demolished

Assumptions:
• Carbon emissions associated with electric and non-electric fuel sources decrease uniformly to zero between now and 2030

Embodied carbon of 
refreshed WCR 
development = 

15,756tCO2e

Cumulative lifecycle 
emissions of refreshed 

WCR development 
assuming carbon 

emissions decrease 
unfirmly to 2050 = 

34,644tCO2e

DRAFT

Carbon Calculations

P
age 217



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

  

United Kingdom | June 2021 

CAB3322 – Appendix I 
 

 
  

Strategic Outline 
Case 
Winchester City Council 

Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

 

Page 219



  
  

  

  

Strategic Outline Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

Contents 

 

Commercial in confidence draft- Not for circulation 
2 

1 Executive summary 4 
 

1.1 Introduction 4 
1.2 Strategic case 5 
1.3 Economic case 5 
1.4 Commercial case 7 
1.5 Financial case 8 
1.6 Management case 8 
1.7 Project management arrangements 8 
1.8 Gateway review arrangements 9 
1.9 Recommendation 10 

2 The Strategic Case  11 
 

2.1 Strategic context 11 
2.2 Organisational overview 12 
2.3 Business strategies  12 
2.4 Existing arrangements 15 
2.5 City needs 15 
2.6 Potential business scope and key service requirements 16 
2.7 Main benefits criteria 16 
2.8 Main risks 17 
2.9 Constraints 17 
2.10 Dependencies 18 

3 The Economic Case  19 
 

3.1 Introduction 19 
3.2 Critical success factors (CSF) 19 
3.3 The long-listed options 20 
3.4 Assessment 1: Solution options 20 
3.5 Assessment 2: Implementation options 25 
3.6 Assessment 3: Solution delivery options 27 
3.7 Assessment 4: Funding options 42 
3.8 The long list: inclusions and exclusions 43 
3.9 Short-listed options 44 
3.10 Short-listed options 46 

4 The Commercial Case  47 
 

4.1 Introduction 47 
4.2 Required services 47 
4.3 Potential for risk transfer 47 
4.4 Proposed contract lengths 48 
4.5 Procurement strategy and implementation timescales 48 

5 The Financial Case 49 
 

5.1 Overview 49 
5.2 Financing Assumptions/ Key inputs 49 
5.3 Impact of Kings Walk capital expenditure 50 
5.4 Assessment of affordability 50 
5.5 Sensitivity Analysis  51 
5.6 Summary/Conclusion 51 

Page 220



  

  Commercial in confidence draft- Not for circulation 
  
 3 

6 The Management Case  52 
 

6.1 Introduction 52 
6.2 Project management arrangements 52 
6.3 Use of special advisers 53 
6.4 Gateway review arrangements 54 

7 Sources 55 
 

8 Appendices 57 
 

8.1 Appendix A – Phasing Options 1 57 
8.2 Appendix B - Development Proposal  63 
8.3 Appendix C – Site Boundaries  65 
 

 

Page 221



  
 

 Commercial in confidence draft- Not for circulation 

Strategic Outline Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

 4 

1.1 Introduction 

A Strategic Outline Case (SOC) is required for a Gateway review 1 by the Winchester City Council 

(WCC) for the Central Winchester Regeneration (CWR) programme. This programme is following 

the recommended Green Book approach to developing business cases to support programme and 

project decisions as outlined in the below table.   

Business case development process 
Stage Stage 0 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 
Stage outcome  Strategic 

Assessment 
 Strategic Outline 

Case 
 Outline Business 

Case 
 Full Business 

Case 
Stage activities  Determine the 

strategic context 
 Scoping the 

scheme 
 Making the case 

for change 
 Explore the 

preferred way 
forward 

 Planning the 
scheme 

 Determine 
potential value 
for money (VfM) 

 Preparing for the 
potential deal 

 Ascertaining 
affordability and 
funding 
requirement 

 Planning for 
successful 
delivery 

 Procuring the 
solution 

 Contracting for 
the deal 

 Ensuring 
successful 
delivery 

5 Case Model 
completeness 
expectation 

   Strategic 50% 
 Economic 40% 
 Commercial 20% 
 Financial 30% 
 Management 

10% 

 Strategic 80% 
 Economic 70% 
 Commercial 60% 
 Financial 60% 
 Management 

50% 

 Strategic 100% 
 Economic 100% 
 Commercial 

100% 
 Financial 100% 
 Management 

100% 
Gateway review 0: Strategic 

assessment 
1: Business 
justification 

2: Delivery strategy 3: Investment 
decision 

Guide to developing the project business case 

To date, there has been significant work done on developing the development proposals and a 

wide range of stakeholder engagement, including public consultation. This has enabled the CWR 

project team to provide an SOC report that has progressed elements of the 5 Case Model beyond 

the required level of completeness, including the level of detailed assessment of the scope and 

solution delivery short-listed options and the progress made on the financial appraisal. 

Approval of this report will therefore enable the CWR project team to progress through Stage 2 

more expediently and onto the Full Business Case in Stage 3, following which the development 

can be implemented. 

 

 

1 Executive summary 

Page 222



  
 

 

Strategic Outline Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    5 

1.2 Strategic case 

1.2.1 The strategic context 

WCC seek to fulfil the strategic intent and investment objectives of the Supplementary Planning 

Document through the development and regeneration of the Central Winchester site. 

1.2.2 The case for change 

The case for change has been outlined in two primary sources, the Central Winchester 

Regeneration Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) and the Winchester City Council Plan 

2020- 25. These documents aligned in outlining the key areas that need to be addressed and have 

been consolidated into the project’s investment objectives: 

# Investment Objective Description 
1 Work Provide creative, flexible workspaces to help grow start-up businesses and 

allow like-minded professionals to support each other by sharing skills, ideas 
and resources. 

2 Live Provide housing suitable for a range of people, including young people and 
families. A mix of private and affordable housing is needed with new homes 
for key workers and homes for rent. 

3 Play Create high quality exceptional public places where people want to spend 
time, to enjoy outside spaces, to experience new things, to celebrate 
heritage and culture and to get involved in something that interests them. 

4 Student and young person 
experience 

Create a mix of uses which is attractive to students and young people. Which 
encourages them to visit the centre of Winchester instead of going elsewhere 
and gives them reason to want to stay in the city beyond their time at 
university. 

5 Overnight tourism Create an attractive night-time offering to complement the existing city 
quarters and encourage residents and tourists to visit the area in the 
evening. 

6 Sustainable development Work towards the city carbon neutrality target through choice of building 
materials, measures to minimise energy use, re-use of buildings where 
appropriate and encouraging suitable modes of transport. 

 

1.3 Economic case 

The purpose of the economic dimension of the business case is to identify the proposal that 

delivers best public value to society, including wider social and environmental effects. 

The economic case outlines the options considered in 4 primary assessment categories: 

 Solution options – choices in terms of specifications and coverage of the development (the 

“what”) 

 Implementation options – choices in terms of the delivery timescale (the “when”) 

 Solution delivery options – choices in terms of method of delivery (the “how”) 

 Funding options – choices in terms of financing and funding (the “who”) 

These have all been categorised on a continuum from “business as usual” through to “do 

maximum” approach with each option assessed against the following key critical success 

factors: 

Page 223



  
 

 

Strategic Outline Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    6 

1. Alignment to city needs 

2. Alignment to the Supplementary Planning Document 

3. Alignment to the Investment Objectives 

4. Achieving the benefits optimisation 

5. Affordability 

6. Obtaining planning permission 

1.3.1 The long list 

The long list across all assessment categories is included in the table below, along with the 

summary finding: 

Option Descriptor Finding 
Assessment 1: Solution 
1.1 Do nothing Excluded. Will result in the city 

centre continuing to degenerate 
1.2 Do minimum Excluded. Will not result in the 

required vibrant mixed-use quarter 
1.3 Do more than minimum Excluded. Will not result in the 

required vibrant mixed-use quarter 
1.4 Do maximum Included. Option most closely 

aligned with the investment 
objectives 

Assessment 2: Implementation 
2.1 Single Phase Excluded. Not aligned to SPD 

phased development approach 
2.2 Incremental Included 
Assessment 3: Solution delivery 
3.1 Disposal- Freehold or Long Leasehold Excluded. Insufficient control of the 

development and alignment to SPD 
3.2 WCC to bring forward Kings Walk Creative Quarter and deliver 

the on-street bus solution. Remaining land parcels disposed of 
on a Freehold basis and brought forward by multiple developers 

Excluded. Insufficient control over 
the development of the sold land 
parcels. 

3.3 WCC to bring forward Kings Walk Creative Quarter and deliver 
the on-street bus solution.  Followed by a development 
agreement with one development partner to bring forward the 
remaining land parcels in the defined site 

Excluded. High WCC expenditure 
and resource requirement. Lack of 
market appetite for reduced 
developable area 

3.4 WCC to bring forward Kings Walk Creative Quarter. 
Development Agreement with one development partner for the 
remainder of the defined site 

Included as shortlisted option 

3.5 Contractual agreement (i.e. development agreement) across the 
defined site with one development partner 

Included as preferred option 

3.6 WCC acting as master developer Excluded.  Significant cost, risk and 
resource requirements.  

Assessment 4: Funding 
4.1 Private funding Included as a blend of both private 

and public funding is preferred 
4.2 Public funding Included as a blend of both private 

and public funding is preferred 
 

Page 224



  
 

 

Strategic Outline Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    7 

1.3.2 The short list 

The outcome of the detailed analysis where the advantages and disadvantages of each option 

were weighed up resulted in the following short-listed options.  Option 3.5 is the preferred option 

which will be taken through to the OBC and FBC stages. 

Assessment 
category 

Included options 

Solution Option 1.4 Do maximum 

Implementation Option 2.1 Incremental implementation 
 

Delivery Option 3.4- Shortlisted  
WCC to bring forward Kings Walk 
Creative Quarter. Development 
Agreement with one development 
partner for the remainder of the site 
 

Option 3.5- Preferred  
Contractual agreement (i.e. development 
agreement) across the defined site with 
one development partner 

Funding Blend of private & public funding 

 

1.4 Commercial case 

The purpose of this section of the SOC is to assess the required resources and the principles of 

the procurement strategy against the shortlisted and preferred options. 

1.4.1 Procurement strategy 

The Commercial Case section of the SOC outlines the proposed deal structure in relation to the 

shortlisted and preferred options outlined in the Economic Case. The detailed consideration of the 

Commercial Case only takes place at OBC stage. However, this SOC contains an initial, less 

detailed overview of the proposed procurement route. 

Subject to approval of the preferred delivery route option 3.5, WCC will require the procurement of 

the following primary contract: 

 A development partner, for the defined site, on the basis of a development agreement 

1.4.2 Required services 

In addition to the above primary contracts, WCC are likely to require additional specialist services 

as follows: 

 Internally (support required for the following WCC teams): 

 Legal 

 Estates 

 Finance 

 Procurement 

 Externally, the following support is required: 

Page 225



  
 

 

Strategic Outline Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    8 

 Continued strategic advisor support is required at a programme level 

 Specialist resource to prepare the Outline Business Case (“OBC”) and Full Business Case 

(“FBC”)  

 External legal advice 

 Communications support 

 

1.5 Financial case 

To assess the financial impact of both shortlisted options, an affordability model has been 

developed to illustrate both the overall capital cost of each option (showing the peak Council 

funding requirement) and the impact on the Council’s annual revenue budget.   

 

In summary, the shortlisted options (3.4 and 3.5) will require a Gap Funding position (assuming no 

borrowing). Option 3.4 would require a gap funding (external grant, developer contributions or 

additional council contribution) of £7.9m and option 3.5 £4.8m. Although these gap funding 

amounts would not require any Council borrowing, they would still generate a negative revenue 

position across the life of the scheme.  Neither options can generate a positive revenue position 

(Discounted NPV) with any amount of gap-funding. 

 

Sensitivity analysis has also been completed which show that there is a 71% chance Option 3.4 

produces a positive net capital position, 99% for Option 3.5. The percentage chance of achieving a 

net positive revenue position for both options is less than 1%.  

1.6 Management case 

This section of the SOC addresses the ‘achievability’ of the scheme. Its purpose is to set out the 

actions that will be required to ensure the successful delivery of the scheme in accordance with 

best practice. 

 

1.7 Project management arrangements 

The project will be managed in accordance with the council’s major projects and programme 

management requirements PRINCE 2 methodology. A decision approval body (WCC cabinet) and 

a project team incorporating a core team supplemented with specialist service leads. 

1.7.1 Outline project plan 

The below project plan outlines the key tasks and their expected dates: 

 

Page 226



  
 

 

Strategic Outline Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    9 

 
Winchester public participation presentation 

1.8 Gateway review arrangements 

The WCC cabinet will sign-off all Gateway reviews. Cabinet have confirmed that the CWR project 

team can request cabinet meetings to undertake these reviews on an ad hoc basis and that they 

do not need to align with the current scheduled cabinet meetings. The key gateway review points 

are as follows: 

Gateway Reviews 
Gateway Descriptor Review report Expected review 

date 
Gateway 0 ‘Strategic Assessments’ on an ongoing 

assurance of programmes at the start, 
delivery and closing stages 

Included in Strategic Outline 
Case 

21 July 2021 

Gateway 1 ‘Business Justification’ prior the detailed 
planning phase. 

Strategic Outline Case 21 July 2021 

Gateway 2 ‘Delivery Strategy’ prior to the 
procurement phase. 

Outline Business Case Autumn 2021 

Gateway 3 ‘Investment Decision’ prior to contract 
signature. 

Full Business Case Spring/Summer 
2022 

Gateway 4 ‘Readiness for Service’ prior to ‘going 
live’ and implementation of the If 
scheme. 

  

Page 227



  
 

 

Strategic Outline Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    10 

Gateway Descriptor Review report Expected review 
date 

Gateway 5 ‘Operational Review and Benefits 
Realisation’ following delivery of the 
project, establishment and/or 
decommissioning of the service 

  

Guide to developing the project business case 

 

1.9 Conclusion 

This Strategic Outline Case touches on elements within all 5 of the Cases: Strategic, Economic, 

Commercial, Financial and Management. Significant work has been done to analyse and evaluate 

the solution, and solution delivery options. The conclusion of this work is that the preferred option 

3.5, a contractual agreement with a single development partner across the defined site, be 

presented to the WCC cabinet for a recommendation on the way forward, which may include the 

development of the Outline Business Case and Full Business Case for the preferred option only.  

 

Signed: 

Date:  

 

Senior Responsible Owner 

Project team 

  

Page 228



  
 

 

Strategic Outline Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    11 

2.1 Strategic context 

WCC seeks to fulfil the strategic intent and objectives through the development and regeneration 

of the Central Winchester site (referred to throughout this document as CWR). 

The vision includes plans for attractive buildings, streets and places designed and laid out with 

Winchester character and scale to preserve what makes our city special and what we’ve begun to 

call ‘Winchesterness’. By bringing a balance of restful and active spaces in the heart of the city 

and opening up the culvert to the east of the site, we will create public realm that is a positive 

legacy for the city. 

Creating a new bus solution and, in the longer term, routing buses away from The Broadway and 

High Street to allow for environmental improvements to accommodate markets and other street-

based activities, the regeneration of the area will aim to serve the whole community in a balanced 

approach. 

2.1.1 Development Site Boundaries 

The map below shows the boundaries of the site.  

 

 The area outlined in red illustrates the area defined in the Central Winchester Regeneration 

Supplementary Planning Document (SPD)  (see section 2.3.2 in this document). This includes 

areas such as Middle Brook Street Car Park, the Brooks Shopping Centre and The Broadway.  

 The area outlined in green illustrates the area within the Central Winchester Regeneration 

development proposals, which includes Middle Brook Street Car Park but excludes St 

Clements Surgery. This is shown in greater detail in Appendix A and B.  

2 The Strategic Case  

Page 229



  
 

 

Strategic Outline Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    12 

 The area outlined in blue represents the defined site that would be included within a 

development agreement. This includes only WCC-owned land and excludes the M&S leased 

land. 

For the purpose of this Strategic Outline Case, all development options (long list and short list) 

refer to only the land within the blue line and is referred to as the ‘defined site’.  

 

2.2 Organisational overview 

WCC is a local authority in Hampshire and manages a wide variety of services for its residents 

and visitors. WCC have responsibility for planning, housing, waste collection, Council Tax and 

Business Rates collection, leisure services, tourism, benefits administration and many more 

services. 

 

2.3 Business strategies  

2.3.1 WCC 2021 Refresh of the Council Plan 2020-25 

The Council Plan 2020-25 was refreshed for 2021 and adopted by Council on 24 February 2021.  

It sets out the priority outcomes for the Council and identifies the important issues that will be 

addressed over the life of the Plan through the work of the Council and its partners. 

The Council Plan is focused on five key outcomes that WCC want to achieve in the coming years 

in a way that is consistent across their aims. These priority outcomes are: 

 Tackling the climate emergency and creating a greener district 

 Homes for all 

 Vibrant local economy 

 Living well 

 Your services, Your voice. 

The outcome of WCC’s combined aims will be a district where everyone enjoys the opportunities 

and quality of life that come from living in the Winchester District. 

 

2.3.2 CWR Supplementary Planning Document objectives 

The Central Winchester Regeneration Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) was developed 

to ensure that the special qualities found in the heart of Winchester are retained and enhanced 

and that any future development is of a high-quality design, coordinated and sustainable.  

The SPD derives from relevant planning policies from the National Planning Policy Framework 

(NPPF), the Local Plan Part 1 (March 2013) and the Local Plan Part 2 (April 2017), particularly 

policies within the LPP2 which include WIN2 – Town Centre, WIN3 – Views & Roofscape, WIN4 – 

Silver Hill Mixed Use Site, DM15 – Local Distinctiveness, DM26 – Archaeology, and DM27 – 

Page 230



  
 

 

Strategic Outline Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    13 

Development in Conservation Areas. The NPPF and Planning Practice Guidance prioritise 

sustainable development and set out core principles for the design of the built environment, 

requiring local authorities to seek opportunities to meet the development needs of the area 

through the planning process. 

The NPPF promotes competitive town centre environments which provide customer choice and a 

diverse retail offer whilst reflecting the individuality of the place. A range of other uses are 

expected to support the viability and vitality of the town centre, including leisure, offices, markets 

and a wide choice of quality homes. 

The nine objectives of the SPD are: 

 Objective 1 – Vibrant Mixed-Use Quarter 

 Objective 2 – “Winchesterness” 

 Objective 3 – Exceptional Public Realm 

 Objective 4 – City Experience 

 Objective 5 – Sustainable Transport 

 Objective 6 – Incremental Delivery 

 Objective 7 – Housing for All 

 Objective 8 – Community 

 Objective 9 – Climate Change and Sustainability 

Progress on CWR supports the council plan priorities by working to deliver a vibrant new mixed-

use development that will be creative and innovative to help reach the net carbon zero targets for 

WCC by 2024 and for the wider Winchester District by 2030. The CWR Supplementary Planning 

Document (SPD) details aims and objectives for the scheme and a planning and urban design 

framework which are in alignment with the council plan priorities. 

The scheme will deliver towards the homes for all priority through the residential element of the 

development. It will support a vibrant local economy by working to fill the gap of affordable and 

flexible commercial space, enhancing the evening economy offer and creating an area aimed at 

attracting and retaining the young and creative talent in the City. 

The SPD covers the area within the red line site boundary shown in the map in Section 2.1, as 

well as in Appendix C.  

2.3.3 The case for change and investment objectives 

Whilst we aim to achieve cost neutrality, it is recognised that financial gain or aim to make a profit 

is not an objective for the CWR project. The SPD sets out a vision and objectives for the area. The 

SPD is derived from 18 months of research and analysis, working with residents and local 

organisations through extensive consultation to establish a vision that will revitalise this central 

area of city and provide a place that can be enjoyed by everyone.   

Research which followed the adoption of the SPD has further broadened our understanding of 

gaps in the market and how the central Winchester area can help to address these. 

Page 231



  
 

 

Strategic Outline Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    14 

JLL undertook a Competitive Positioning study in 2019 which assessed the strengths, 

weaknesses, opportunities and threats for the city. The analysis has shown that the structure of 

Winchester’s population is not balanced in terms of age demographics. There is an ageing 

population living within Winchester and the city struggles to retain young talent due to a lack of 

affordable living opportunities, workspace and employment. 

This imbalance, plus the impact of the COVID19 pandemic on the national economy will pose 

significant threat to Winchester’s prosperity and resilience. It is vital we invest now to ensure the 

city continues to attract people to live, shop, visit and work.  

The following objectives have been identified to help address the issues which are currently 

contributing to Winchester’s imbalanced age demographic whilst delivering to the SPD objectives 

and fulfilling the vision which so many helped to shape. 

 

List of investment objectives 
 

The list of investment objectives were determined by reviewing the SPD and applying these 

through a process of competitive position analysis and the ‘Three Scenarios’ work. These 

investment objectives formed part of a public consultation in November 2020 and were also 

reviewed by key WCC stakeholders in May 2021.  

 
# Investment Objective Description 
1 Work Provide creative, flexible workspaces to help grow start-up businesses and 

allow like-minded professionals to support each other by sharing skills, ideas 
and resources. 

2 Live Provide housing suitable for a range of people, including young people and 
families. A mix of private and affordable housing is needed with new homes 
for key workers and homes for rent. 

3 Play Create high quality exceptional public places where people want to spend 
time, to enjoy outside spaces, to experience new things, to celebrate 
heritage and culture and to get involved in something that interests them. 

4 Student experience Create a mix of uses which is attractive to students and young people. Which 
encourages them to visit the centre of Winchester instead of going elsewhere 
and gives them reason to want to stay in the city beyond their time at 
university. 

5 Overnight tourism Create an attractive night-time offering to complement the existing city 
quarters and encourage residents and tourists to visit the area in the 
evening. 

6 Sustainable development Work towards the city carbon neutrality target through choice of building 
materials, measures to minimise energy use, re-use of buildings where 
appropriate and encouraging suitable modes of transport. 

WCC stakeholder engagement 

 

 

 

2.4 Existing arrangements 

 Dated area 

Page 232



  
 

 

Strategic Outline Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    15 

The CWR area is a dated area of the city centre. Many buildings are vacant, unsightly and have 

fallen into disrepair. Businesses are struggling due to lack of footfall / desire from others to move 

into / visit the area.  

 Antisocial behaviour and squatting 

Issues with antisocial behaviour and squatting are not uncommon, creating security issues and 

further costs for the council. 

 Cost to council 

The council currently pays out large sums of money towards business rates and maintenance fees 

for unoccupied buildings.  

 Friarsgate Medical Centre – c. £65k per annum; and 

 Kings Walk – c. £25k per annum non recoverable service charge plus significant ongoing 

maintenance costs  

 Unbalanced age demographic 

A Competitive Position Study to assess the strengths, weaknesses, opportunities and threats for 

the city has demonstrated that the structure of Winchester’s population is not balanced in terms of 

age demographics. There is an ageing population living within Winchester and the city struggles to 

retain young talent due to a lack of affordable living opportunities, workspace and employment 

opportunities. 

 COVID-19 impact on tourism and wider economy 

The impact of COVID-19 on the national economy along with the reduction in tourism income 

poses a significant threat to Winchester’s prosperity and resilience. In order to address this 

Winchester will need to consider ways to encourage and attract overnight tourism. 

 

2.5 City needs 

 Rejuvenation of the city centre 

Without investment into the area, ongoing costs and issues referred to above will continue to 

escalate, the imbalance within Winchester’s age demographic will continue to increase and 

recovery from the pandemic will be compromised.  

It’s therefore vital we invest now to ensure the city continues to attract people to live, shop, visit 

and work. 

 COVID-19 Pandemic recovery 

There is a need to work towards ensuring Winchester’s recovery from the COVID-19 pandemic, 

whilst recognising the challenges this pandemic poses to resources and the financial situation 

across the local government sector.  

 

 Mitigate council reputational risk 

Page 233



  
 

 

Strategic Outline Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    16 

Residents and local organisations have been waiting a long time for the area to be improved. The 

council has promised to regenerate - there is a reputational risk to the council if it fails to do so 

now. 

 

2.6 Potential business scope and key service requirements 

The scope of the proposal is to redevelop the Central Winchester site in line with the strategic 

objectives outlined in the Council Plan and SPD. A “Do Nothing” option is presented as a baseline 

with three different options considered under the redevelopment proposals. The options 

considered are as follows: 

List of potential project scope options 
Do nothing Do minimum Do more than minimum Do maximum 
Continue managing and 
operating the area in the 
current way 

Demolish Friarsgate 
Medical Centre and 
develop into interim public 
space 

Demolish Friarsgate 
Medical Centre and 
develop into interim public 
space and refurbish Kings 
Walk to provide a creative 
quarter 

Redevelop the defined site 
into a mixed-use node 

WCC and JLL 

 

2.7 Main benefits criteria 

This section describes the main outcomes and benefits associated with the implementation of the 

potential scope in relation to the city needs. 

 Improve employment opportunities  

 Create flexible workspaces to help grow start-up and small businesses 

 Enhance the local economy / assist in recovery from COVID19 impact 

 Reduce issues with antisocial behaviour 

 Provide housing for all 

 Improve the night-time offering 

 Encourage sustainable movement 

 Minimise energy use 

 Resilience to impacts of climate change such as flooding 

Satisfying the potential scope for this investment will deliver the above high-level strategic and 

operational benefits.  

These benefits will help to address the gaps identified in the Competitive Positioning analysis 

whilst fulfilling the aspirations of the SPD. 

 

 

Page 234



  
 

 

Strategic Outline Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    17 

2.8 Main risks 

The main risks to the project are: 

Main risks and mitigating actions 
Risk Mitigating action 
Lack of timely decision on the preferred option for 
delivery to realise benefits 

Ensure sufficient stakeholder engagement prior to 
presentation of the SOC to council for decision in 
July 21 

The development does not deliver on the SPD and 
Investment Objectives 

WCC to ensure that a delivery model is selected that 
ensures alignment to the SPD 

Pushback from the neighbouring landlords and 
residents excluded from the current proposal, could 
delay or impede the project 

Stakeholder engagement with the neighbouring 
landlords and residents 

General economic risk of there being lower than 
expected take-up of the developed facilities 

Detailed market research and advanced marketing 
to secure the right mix of tenants 

Political risk of failing to deliver the project Deliver meanwhile uses to show short-term progress 
and activation of the site  

WCC and JLL 

 

2.9 Constraints 

The project is subject to the following constraints: 

 Affordability 

It is important to consider the affordability in the context of the council’s overall financial position 

and one of the key principles of the CWR project is that overall it is cost neutral to the council. 

 Viability 

It is important to consider the viability of the site. The mix of uses which meet the investment 

objectives for the project will likely not return the highest land value to WCC.  

 COVID-19  

The current pandemic may have an impact on how quickly we can move forward with the 

development. In the short term this may involve issues related to funding and resource. The 

impacts of the pandemic longer term are currently unknown but this is likely to involve further 

decline in the already struggling retail market as well as presenting challenges for housing and 

changes to working patterns / operations. The development proposals have been created to 

enable flexibility across the different mix of uses and the phasing. 

 Funding 

The council will be looking to apply for relevant funding grants at appropriate points as the 

development moves forward. The funding available and the success of any applications submitted 

will have an impact on how quickly we can move forward with certain elements of the scheme. 

 

2.10 Dependencies 

Page 235



  
 

 

Strategic Outline Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    18 

The project is subject to the following dependencies that will be carefully monitored and managed 

throughout the lifespan of the scheme. 

 Winchester Movement Strategy 

The development proposals for the site include a solution for bus traffic which will work within the 

existing road network and current one – way system in the city. This solution is proposed for the 

short to medium term. As the outputs from the Movement Strategy come forward and the 

development progresses there is an opportunity to revisit the solution for the bus operations and 

potentially re-route the buses away from the centre of the site. The council continues to work 

closely with Hampshire County Council to ensure proposals for CWR and the outputs of the 

Movement Strategy are aligned. 

 Landownership and tenancies 

Within WCC’s ownership, some parts of the site will be available for redevelopment sooner than 

others, and further careful thought will need to be given to how the development might come 

forward in a series of phases which takes this into consideration, for example the provision of an 

alternative solution for buses to gain vacant possession of the existing bus station. The council will 

work closely where relevant with the tenants and other landowners as the proposals are 

progressed. 

 Climate change 

The council’s Carbon Neutrality Action Plan commits the council to review its own activities to 

reach carbon neutrality by 2024 and sets the same ambitious goal for the wider district by 2030. 

Consideration of the carbon emission impact of development, transport implications and the 

sustainability of the scheme is therefore critical to the development process. 

Page 236



  
 

 

Strategic Outline Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    19 

3.1 Introduction 

In accordance with the Capital Investment Manual and requirements of HM Treasury’s Green 

Book (A Guide to Investment Appraisal in the Public Sector), this section of the SOC documents 

the wide range of options that have been considered in response to the potential scope identified 

within the strategic case. 

 

3.2 Critical success factors (CSF) 

The key CSFs for the project where developed iteratively over time through a mix of key 

stakeholder engagement and public participation. The final set of CSFs were presented to WCC 

Cabinet on 15 June 2021 and were endorsed by them at this meeting. 

These CSFs have been used alongside the investment objectives for the project to evaluate the 

long list of possible options. 

Critical Success Factors 
CSF  Descriptor 
1 Alignment 

to City 
Needs 

How well the option satisfies the existing and future needs of the city as identified in the 
Competitive Positioning Study as well as the council’s 5 key outcomes as outlined in the 
Council Plan 2020-25, namely: 
 Tackling the climate emergency and creating a greener district 
 Homes for all 
 Vibrant local economy 
 Living well 
 Your services. Your voice. 

2 Alignment 
to the SPD 

How well the option aligns to the 9 key objectives in the CPD, namely: 
 Vibrant Mixed-Use Quarter 
 “Winchesterness” 
 Exceptional Public Realm 
 City Experience 
 Sustainable Transport 
 Incremental Delivery 
 Housing for All 
 Community 
 Climate Change and Sustainability 

3 Alignment 
to the 
Investment 
Objectives 

How well the option is aligned to the 6 Investment Objectives, namely: 
 Work 
 Live 
 Play 
 Student and young person experience 
 Overnight tourism 
 Sustainable development 

4 Achieving 
the benefits 
optimisation 

How well the option assists in improving the local economy in areas such as: 
 Job creation and employment opportunities 
 Increase in rates and taxes 
 Tourism economy benefits 
 Delivery of affordable housing  

3 The Economic Case  

Page 237



  
 

 

Strategic Outline Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    20 

CSF  Descriptor 
5 Affordability Assessment on the council’s ability to fund the required level of expenditure – namely, the 

capital and revenue consequences associated with the proposed investment. 
6 Obtaining 

planning 
permission 

Ability of the proposed solution to meet planning requirements and obtaining the 
necessary planning permission promptly 

7 Mitigating 
Political 
Risk  

Political risk of not delivering on public declarations in a timely manner  

WCC and JLL 

 

3.3 The long-listed options 

The long list of options was generated from a number of key stakeholder workshops and events 

including with WCC cabinet members and a public participation forum. 

The evaluation was undertaken in accordance with how well each option met the investment 

objectives (as listed in the Strategic Case) and the CSFs.  

The long list of options for this development was generated using the Green Book options 

framework. This generated options within the following four key categories of choice, which have 

been assessed in a linear process: 

1. Solution options – choices in terms of specifications and coverage of the development (the 
“what”) 

2. Implementation options – choices in terms of the delivery timescale (the “when”) 

3. Solution delivery options – choices in terms of method of delivery (the “how”) 

4. Funding options – choices in terms of financing and funding (the “who”) 

 

3.4 Assessment 1: Solution options 

3.4.1 Introduction 

In accordance with the HM Treasury Green Book and Capital Investment Manual, the “do nothing” 

option has been considered as a benchmark for potential value for money (“VFM”). 

An infinite number of options and permutations are possible; however, within the broad scope 

outlined in the strategic case, the following main options have been considered: 

 Option 1.1 – Do nothing: Continue operating the area in the same way 

 Option 1.2 – Do minimum: Demolish Friarsgate Medical Centre and prepare temporary public 

realm 

 Option 1.3 – Do more than minimum: Per option 1.2 plus redevelop Kings Walk into a “Cultural 

Quarter” 

 Option 1.4 – Do maximum: Redevelop the defined site in line with the WCC SPD  

 

Page 238



  
 

 

Strategic Outline Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    21 

3.4.2 Option 1.1 – Do nothing  

The option of ‘do nothing’ would be to continue managing and operating the defined site in the 

current way.  

Advantages 

The main advantages are:  

 Investment from the council is minimised (although this includes continuing to incur costs 

associated with anti-social behaviour and unused buildings – see below) 

 Continue to benefit from existing income streams  

 There will be less disruption than for any of the other options as there will be no demolition or 

development work 

Disadvantages 

The main disadvantages are that: 

 Does not achieve any of the Investment Objectives, City Needs objectives or Critical Success 

Factors 

 There is a reputational risk to the council if a decision is made to do nothing, the city has been 

waiting for the area to be regenerated for many years and the council has made a commitment 

to seeing it through 

 The area will continue to decline, and buildings will continue to deteriorate / fall into disrepair 

 The council will continue to incur costs associated with the maintenance of dated buildings 

which are no longer fit for purpose and / or in use 

 The council will continue to incur costs for business rates associated with buildings which are 

not in use 

 Issues and associated costs to the council related to antisocial behaviour will continue and, in 

all likelihood, become worse 

 The imbalance identified in Winchester’s age demographic will continue if no action is taken to 

encourage younger generations to stay  

 Little to attract people to the area will not help Winchester recover from the COVID-19 

pandemic  

 

3.4.3 Option 1.2 – Do minimum 

Demolish Friarsgate Medical Centre and convert it into a temporary public realm. 

Advantages 

The main advantages are:  

 WCC will be seen to be doing something to change/develop the area 

Page 239



  
 

 

Strategic Outline Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    22 

 Reduction in the ongoing maintenance costs for the Friarsgate Medical Centre (approximately 

£65k per annum) 

Disadvantages 

The main disadvantages are:  

 Does not achieve or meaningfully contribute towards the achievement of the SPD or 

investment objectives 

 Demolishing a single building is unlikely to redress the general decay in the area 

 Improving the public realm is unlikely to be sufficient to attract people back into the city centre 

 This option does not contribute to providing housing or enabling a vibrant mixed-use quarter  

 WCC could face reputational damage for doing too little and under-delivering on their stated 

strategic objectives 

 

3.4.4 Option 1.3 – Do more than minimum 

Demolish Friarsgate Medical Centre and convert it into a temporary public realm. Refurbish Kings 

Walk into a “Creative Quarter”.   

The Kings Walk refurbishment will create a range of artistic/ makerspace, studios and workspaces 

aimed at the creative industries and provide areas that support SMEs.  This is an internal 

refurbishment to bring it in line with current occupational needs and demands, as opposed to a 

comprehensive redevelopment. 

Advantages 

The main advantages are:  

 Reduction in the ongoing maintenance costs for the Friarsgate Medical Centre (approximately 

£65k per annum) 

 WCC will be seen as positively contributing to creating enabling work opportunities 

 The mix of artistic/ makerspace, office and studio space will assist with developing the vibrant 

mixed-use site envisioned in the SPD 

 The type of space being developed is likely to create employment opportunities and a work 

environment for the younger demographic 

 Refurbishing Kings Walk is likely to increase footfall in the area possibly resulting in a decrease 

in anti-social behaviour and squatters   

Disadvantages 

The main advantages are:  

 A large portion of the CWR area will remain undeveloped, so will not meet the SPD 

requirements 

Page 240



  
 

 

Strategic Outline Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    23 

 Whilst developing Kings Walk contributes towards creating a mixed-use precinct through 

providing office and creative/maker space, it does not address the housing or cultural 

requirements 

 Creating workspace targeted at the younger demographic without creating appropriate housing 

and cultural elements is likely to result in the desired outcomes not being achieved 

 

3.4.5 Option 1.4 – Maximum option 

Develop the defined site in line with SPD. This will include a range of workspaces, retail, housing, 

entertainment, cultural and public realm spaces.   

WCC has undertaken work to arrive at a development proposal for the site. The development 

proposals have aligned to the Competitive Position work undertaken by JLL and have been 

produced in line with the guidance of the SPD. The development proposals were subject to public 

consultation in December 2020- January 2021 and received a significant level of support from the 

public.  

The development proposals present a vibrant mixed-use destination as demonstrated by the 

illustration below:  

 

This is also shown in greater detail in Appendix A and B.  

 

Advantages 

The main advantages are:  

 Implementing this option at the defined site will meet the strategic objectives of the SPD 

 This development will result in a vibrant mixed-use destination 

Page 241



  
 

 

Strategic Outline Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    24 

 The provision of a range of housing options and co-working spaces will encourage the younger 

demographic to remain in Winchester 

 The inclusion of a hotel and entertainment facilities is likely to result in increased overnight 

tourism for Winchester 

 Development of the defined site will result in increased employment opportunities, a reduction 

in vacancy rates and antisocial behaviour and squatting which will all positively impact the 

WCC finances 

 Delivery of a high-quality public realm 

 Pedestrianisation of the area will also provide sustainability and reduced carbon footprint 

advantages 

Disadvantages 

The main advantages are:  

 A redevelopment of this scale may result in some disruption  

 A larger upfront capital investment is required 

 

3.4.6 Overall conclusion: Solution options  

The table below summarises the assessment of each option against the investment objectives and 

CSFs. 

Summary assessment of Solution options 
Criteria Option 1.1 

Do nothing 
Option 1.2 
Do minimum 

Option 1.3 
Do more than 
minimum 

Option 1.4 
Do maximum 

CSF1: Alignment to city needs 

Tackling the climate 
emergency and 
creating a greener 
district 

0 1 1 3 

Homes for all 0 0 0 3 

Vibrant local 
economy 

0 1 1 4 

Living well 0 1 2 4 

Your services. Your 
voice 

0 1 2 3 

CSF2: Alignment to SPD 

Vibrant Mixed-Use 
Quarter 

0 1 2 4 

Winchesterness 0 1 1 3 

Exceptional Public 
Realm 

0 1 1 3 

City Experience 0 1 2 4 

Sustainable 
Transport 

0 0 0 3 

Incremental Delivery 0 1 2 4 

Page 242



  
 

 

Strategic Outline Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    25 

Criteria Option 1.1 
Do nothing 

Option 1.2 
Do minimum 

Option 1.3 
Do more than 
minimum 

Option 1.4 
Do maximum 

Housing for All 0 0 0 3 

Community 0 1 2 4 

Climate Change and 
Sustainability 

0 1 1 3 

CSF3: Alignment to investment objectives 

Work 0 0 2 3 

Live 0 1 1 3 

Play 0 1 1 3 

Student experience 0 1 1 3 

Overnight tourism 0 0 1 3 

CSF4: Achieving the benefits optimisation 

Employment 0 0 3 4 

Rates and taxes 0 0 1 4 

Tourism economy 0 0 1 4 

CSF5: Affordability 

>= breakeven 0 0 1 3 

CSF6: Obtaining planning permission 

Appropriate 
planning permission 
for full site 

0 1 2 3 

CSF7: Mitigating Political risk 

Risk of not 
delivering a solution 
for Winchester  

0 1 2 4 

SUMMARY 0 1 2 3 
JLL analysis 

Key: 0 = No impact; 1 = Little impact; 2 = Some impact; 3 = High impact; 4 = Maximum impact 

Of the four options considered, only the “do maximum” option meaningfully contributes to 

achieving the strategic objectives of SPD and the CWR investment objectives.   

The “do maximum” proposal includes a range of office/ commercial space, housing, retail, 

entertainment and cultural elements as set out in the Development Proposal.  This proposal is the 

one that will be taken forward as the preferred option for future analysis in the Outline Business 

Case (OBC). 

 

3.5 Assessment 2: Implementation options 

3.5.1 Introduction 

Following the selection of the preferred project scope, this range of options considers the choices 

for implementation timing. Two options were considered: 

 Option 2.1 Single phase 

 Option 2.2: Incremental 

Page 243



  
 

 

Strategic Outline Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    26 

 

3.5.2 Option 2.1: Single phase 

This option assumes assumed that the whole scheme is delivered as one single phase. All the 

required services could be delivered within the initial phase(s) of the project. 

Advantages 

The main advantages are that:  

 Timing advantage as speed of delivery to end state will most likely be quickest under this 

option 

 

Disadvantages 

The main disadvantages are that:  

 Potential lack of developer market demand due to obligation to deliver as a single phase 

 The previous Silverhill scheme proposed a single developer approach which would have seen 

the redevelopment brought forward in one single phase, this was amongst a number of 

reasons this previous scheme was discounted 

 The aspiration set out in the CWR SPD is to deliver the scheme incrementally – the council 

faces strong criticism if this approach is not pursued 

 Some parts of the site won’t be available for redevelopment at the same time as others  

Conclusion 

This option goes against the guidance set out in the CWR SPD to deliver in an incremental 

manner.  

 

3.5.3 Option 2.2: Incremental  

This option assumes that the implementation of the required services would be phased on an 

incremental basis. This means that land parcels would be developed on a phased basis.  

Advantages 

The main advantages are that:  

 The SPD indicates a preference for the site to be brought forward in phases using multiple 

developers, architects etc. Using a single development partner for the defined site will achieve 

the same goal through: 

o Retaining the incremental approach of delivery in phases 

o Enabling better integration of multiple design inputs from multiple stakeholders and 

architects 

o Enabling better sharing of infrastructure and public realm related costs across land 

parcels 

Page 244



  
 

 

Strategic Outline Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    27 

o Ensuring cross-subsidy across the site whereby higher value uses can enable the 

delivery of lower value uses 

 Some parts of the area cannot be brought forward immediately due to existing tenancies, 

landownership and traffic and public transport arrangements – a phased approach will enable 

work to begin on the parts of the area that can be brought forward now, unlocking other parts 

of the area and enabling regeneration to come forward sooner 

 A key element to this is the bus station, until buses are transferred to the proposed on-street 

solution much of the defined site cannot be developed 

Disadvantages 

The main disadvantages are that:  

 There may be negative implications for existing tenants and businesses as surrounding parts 

of the area are brought forward for delivery – the council should ensure there is a strategy in 

place for these tenants and businesses to minimise disruption  

 Some of the larger developers may be less interested if the site is carved up into smaller 

sections that will be brought forward in phases 

 Some parts of the site my remain undeveloped for some time 

Conclusion 

This option, incremental development, is aligned to the CWR SPD and enables the development 

to progress in the parts of the area which can be brought forward sooner, unlocking other parts in 

the process. 

 

3.5.4 Overall conclusion: implementation options 

When deciding on the preferred implementation option, the overarching requirement was extracted 

from the SPD which required a phased approach to the regeneration of Central Winchester.  

Option 2.1: Single phase 

This option has been discounted because it goes against the guidance set out in the CWR SPD.  

Option 2.2: Incremental  

This option is preferred because it is aligned to the CWR SPD.  

 

3.6 Assessment 3: Solution delivery options 

This range of options considers the options for Solution Delivery in relation to the preferred scope 

and implementation timing.  

A wide range of options were considered against the following key criteria: 

Solution Delivery selection criteria 
Criteria Descriptor 
Cost What is the expected level of direct cost to WCC 
Control How much control does WCC have over the development 

Page 245



  
 

 

Strategic Outline Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    28 

Criteria Descriptor 
Planning risk How much of the planning risk lies with WCC 
Development risk How much of the development risk lies directly with WCC 
Resourcing / expertise Does WCC have the required internal resources/expertise 
Speed How well does the delivery option align to the required delivery timelines 
Return (profit share) What level of profit share return will WCC receive 
Return (land receipt) What level of land receipt returns will WCC receive 
Market appetite What is the likely market appetite for the Solution delivery option 
JLL 

It was recognised that six delivery options should be examined in further detail: 

This range of options are included in the below table, using an illustrative continuum from lesser 

council control to greater council control: 

Delivery options continuum 
 
 

Option 3.1 Option 3.2 Option 3.3 Option 3.4 Option 3.5 Option 3.6 
Disposal- 
Freehold or Long 
Leasehold 

WCC to bring 
forward Kings 
Walk Creative 
Quarter and 
deliver the on-
street bus 
solution. 
Remaining land 
parcels within the 
defined site 
disposed of on a 
Freehold basis 
and brought 
forward by 
multiple 
developers 

WCC to bring 
forward Kings 
Walk Creative 
Quarter and 
deliver the on-
street bus 
solution.  
Followed by a 
development 
agreement with 
one development 
partner to bring 
forward the 
remaining land 
parcels within the 
defined site 

WCC to bring 
forward Kings 
Walk Creative 
Quarter. 
Development 
Agreement with 
one development 
partner for the 
remainder of the 
defined site 

Development 
agreement 
across the 
defined site with 
one development 
partner 

WCC acting as 
master developer 

JLL 

JLL carried out an exercise to further investigate the positives and negatives of each of these 

options in relation to criteria listed above. Details of which are set out below. 

All options assessed below refer to the defined site (within the blue line site boundary), as outlined 

in Section 2.1.1 and Appendix C.  This is land within WCC ownership. 

3.6.1 Option 3.1 – Disposal- Freehold or Long Leasehold 

This delivery route involves WCC selling the site on the open market. A redline would be put 

around the boundary of the defined site. Then marketing particulars would be produced alongside 

a dataroom information pack which would be available for potential purchasers.  

WCC would offer the site to the market on a freehold basis (this would be preferred by the market) 

or leasehold (with a recommended minimum of 250 years +). A lease term less than 250 year 

would potentially negatively impact on the level of market interest and the land receipt received by 

WCC.  

Potential purchasers would be invited to bid for the land on an unconditional basis.  

Lesser control 

Lesser risk 

 

Greater control 

Greater risk 

 

Page 246



  
 

 

Strategic Outline Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    29 

It should be noted that the market would deliver a mix of uses that optimise value and not 

necessarily deliver the Development Proposals.   

 

Advantages 

The main advantages are:  

 WCC receive a land receipt upon sale of the land 

 Opportunity to drive competitive tension in the market which may result in an enhanced land 

receipt  

 The purchaser will be required to extinguish the existing overage agreements. NOTE. This 

would likely be reflected in the land value reported. 

 An element of control is retained through the WCC planning department 

 No delivery risk borne by WCC  

 No cost associated with development borne by WCC  

 Potential ability to benefit from overage arrangement if such agreement forms part of the sale  

Disadvantages 

The main disadvantages are:  

 Loss of control over the chosen delivery scheme as the delivered development will be driven 

by highest market returns and not necessarily aligned to the wider benefits required by the 

WCC’s investment objectives  

 Lack of certainty over timing of delivery  

 Reputational risk - lack of participation in the delivery means it would be difficult for WCC to be 

associated with any positive reputational benefits (i.e. successful delivery of the mixed-use 

scheme). However, this works both ways and may also be a positive depending upon the 

outcome of the scheme. 

Conclusion 

This delivery route does not provide certainty over timing of delivery or control over the type of 

scheme that is delivered. There is no certainty that this route would meet investment objectives or 

critical success factors.  

 

3.6.2 Option 3.2 - WCC to bring forward Kings Walk Creative Quarter and 
deliver the on-street bus solution with remaining land parcels disposed of 
on a freehold basis and brought forward by multiple developers 

Overview of delivery route  

Planning: To deliver the on-street bus solution and public realm upgrade works surrounding Kings 

Walk WCC’s Planning Department have advised that this would require WCC to submit a hybrid 

planning application for the defined site with detailed first phase(s).  

Kings Walk Delivery by WCC:  

Page 247



  
 

 

Strategic Outline Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    30 

WCC is responsible for delivering Kings Walk through upgrading the building to a leasable 

standard and securing a partner to operate the building on a 15-year lease. The operator partner 

would be responsible for delivering the creative quarter vision. As with all options explored, this is 

an internal refurbishment to bring it in line with current occupational needs and demands, as 

opposed to a comprehensive redevelopment. 

Bus Solution delivery by WCC:  

WCC to be responsible for delivering the on-street bus solution. This would involve re-formatting 

the curb lines, re-formatting roads and traffic flows and installing the on-street bus stops 

associated signage, amenity and public realm upgrades. WCC would also work with Hampshire 

County Council and the bus operators to ensure integration with the wider movement strategy.  

Freehold disposal of two sites:   

This involves WCC selling the left hand and right hand sites on the open market. A redline would 

be put around the boundary of each site for sale, marketing particulars would be produced 

alongside a dataroom information pack which would be available for potential purchasers.  

WCC would offer the sites to the market on a freehold basis with planning permission secured. 

Potential purchasers would be invited to bid for the land on an unconditional basis. Potential 

purchasers could bid for one site or both sites.  

Advantages 

The main advantages for each element are as follows:  

Kings Walk:  

 Certainty of delivery  

 Certainty of timescales  

 Potential to secure grant funding to support delivery 

Bus Solution:  

 Certainty of delivery  

 Certainty of timescales  

 Potential to secure grant funding to support delivery 

Freehold disposal of two sites:   

 WCC receive a land receipt upon sale of the land parcels  

 An element of control is retained through the WCC planning department 

 No delivery risk borne by WCC  

 No cost associated with development borne by WCC  

 Potential ability to benefit from overage arrangement if such agreement forms part of the sale  

Disadvantages 

Planning: This is an overall disadvantage to this route. To deliver the on-street bus solution and 

public realm upgrade works surrounding Kings Walk, we understand that this would require WCC 

to submit a hybrid planning application for the defined site with detailed first phase(s). This would 

Page 248



  
 

 

Strategic Outline Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    31 

require significant cost, resources and expertise. Upon the grant of planning consent WCC would 

be required to extinguish existing overage arrangements.   

The main disadvantages for each element are as follows:  

Kings Walk:  

 WCC responsible for securing an operator partner to deliver the Creative Quarter vision  

 WCC would be required to bring the building up to a lettable standard. This would involve 

capital expenditure by WCC 

 This route still assumes an internal refurbishment to bring Kings Walk in line with current 

occupational needs and demands, and does not comprise a comprehensive redevelopment 

 ‘Gateway’ to the site would be left un-developed for 15 years.  

 Some parties view the Kings Walk building as unattractive  

 No comprehensive redevelopment of the KW site as part of CWR 

Bus Solution:  

 WCC would be required to plan and deliver this solution. This will require significant capital 

expenditure and expertise.  

 WCC required to negotiate with neighbouring freehold/long leaseholders to secure a 

successful on-street solution. This has both a cost and an expertise implication.  

 By delivering the bus solution in isolation of the wider development, cohesion across the site is 

limited and also accessibility for development on the remaining plots is potentially impacted.  

Freehold disposal of two sites:   

 Lack of certainty over timing of delivery  

 The land receipt received would be reduced, due to the compromised nature of the sites and 

restricted access caused by the WCC delivery of the bus solution. 

 Reputational risk - lack of participation in the delivery means it would be difficult for WCC to be 

associated with any positive reputational benefits (i.e. successful delivery of the mixed-use 

scheme). However, this works inversely and may be a positive depending upon the outcome of 

the scheme.  

 Market attractiveness - due to the reduced size of the plots, we perceive there would be a lack 

of national developer interest.  

 Planning - due to WCC being required to secure a hybrid consent for the defined site in order 

to deliver Kings Walk and the bus solution, there is a risk that the developer market would not 

want to deliver the Council secured planning consent. 

 Potential loss of control over the delivered scheme as a purchaser can ultimately submit a 

revised planning application 

 Lack of cohesion across the public realm 

Conclusion 

Page 249



  
 

 

Strategic Outline Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    32 

This delivery route requires a high level of WCC capital expenditure, resource and expertise and 

does not provide certainty over timing of delivery or assurance of a comprehensive and cohesive 

development is delivered. There is no certainty that this route would meet investment objectives or 

critical success factors. 

 

3.6.3 Option 3.3 - WCC to bring forward Kings Walk Creative Quarter and 
deliver the on-street bus solution.  Followed by a development agreement 
with one development partner to bring forward the remaining land parcels 
within the defined site.  

Overview of delivery route  

Planning: To deliver the on-street bus solution and public realm upgrade works surrounding Kings 

Walk we understand that this would require WCC to submit a hybrid planning application for the 

defined site with detailed first phase(s).  

Kings Walk Delivered by WCC:  

WCC self- deliver Kings Walk through upgrading the building to a leasable standard and then 

securing a partner to operate the building on a 15-year lease. The operator partner would be 

responsible for delivering the creative quarter vision.  This is an internal refurbishment to bring it in 

line with current occupational needs and demands, as opposed to a comprehensive 

redevelopment. 

Bus Solution delivered by WCC:  

WCC would be responsible for delivering the on-street bus solution. This would involve re-

formatting the curb lines, re-formatting roads and traffic flows and installing the on-street bus stops 

associated signage, amenity and public realm upgrades. WCC would also work with HCC and the 

bus operators to ensure integration with the wider movement strategy.  

Wider Site Delivery:  

This route involves WCC procuring a developer partner through a competitive tendering process 

for the WCC ownership, excluding Kings Walk and the on-street bus solution (and associated 

public realm). This would involve a likely 9-12 month partner selection process to secure a 

development partner to bring forward the right and left hand side parcels of land by way of a 

contractual agreement with WCC.  

The contract between WCC and the development partner would set out the role and 

responsibilities of both parties. All development agreements have slightly different approaches; 

however, in principle this involves the selected development partner ‘drawing down’ phases of 

land for development. Upon the drawdown of land WCC would receive a land receipt. This land 

receipt would benefit from the enhanced value created through the successful planning consent 

that WCC secured. The development partner would be responsible for providing/sourcing 

development funding and delivering each phase of the scheme. WCC maintains an element of 

control as outlined in the contract between the parties. Development costs and risks are 

transferred to the development partner.  

Advantages 

The main advantages for each element are as follows:  

Page 250



  
 

 

Strategic Outline Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    33 

Kings Walk:  

 Certainty of delivery  

 Certainty of timescales  

 Potential to secure grant funding to support delivery 

Bus Solution:  

 Certainty of delivery  

 Certainty of timescales  

 Potential to secure grant funding to support delivery 

Wider Site Delivery:  

 WCC may benefit from a high land receipt due to planning already having been secured; 

however, this assumes that WCC secure a planning consent that the developer market wants 

to deliver. 

 WCC retain an element of control through the development agreement.   

 WCC transfer development risk to the development partner.  

 WCC transfer cost of development to the development partner.  

Disadvantages 

Planning: The following are the overall disadvantages of this route.  To deliver the on-street bus 

solution and public realm upgrade works surrounding Kings Walk, we understand that this would 

require WCC to submit a hybrid planning application for the defined site with detailed first 

phase(s). This would require significant cost, resources and expertise. Upon the grant of planning 

consent, WCC would be required to extinguish existing overage arrangements.   

The main disadvantages for each element are as follows:  

Kings Walk:  

 WCC responsible for securing an operator partner to deliver the Creative Quarter vision  

 WCC would be required to bring the building up to a lettable standard. This would involve 

capital expenditure by WCC.  

 This route still assumes an internal refurbishment to bring Kings Walk in line with current 

occupational needs and demands, and does not comprise a comprehensive redevelopment. 

 ‘Gateway’ to the site would be left un-developed for 15 years.  

 Some parties view the Kings Walk building as unattractive  

 No comprehensive redevelopment of the Kings Walk site as part of CWR 

Bus Solution:  

 WCC would be required to plan and deliver this solution. This will require significant capital 

expenditure and expertise.  

 WCC required to negotiate with neighbouring freehold/long leaseholders to secure a 

successful on-street solution, which requires both capital expenditure and resource/expertise.  

Page 251



  
 

 

Strategic Outline Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    34 

 By delivering the bus solution in isolation of the wider development, cohesion across the site is 

limited and also accessibility for development on the remaining plots is potentially impacted. 

Wider Site Delivery:   

 Potential loss of market appetite due to reduced size of developable land (as it would be a 

challenge to deliver comprehensive development without control of the bus solution and Kings 

Walk site). 

 Accessibility for the development of the remaining plots may be impacted. 

 Risk that WCC do not secure a market facing planning consent that the private sector is 

motivated to deliver. 

 A development partner would not have full control over the site which we anticipate would limit 

market appetite. This would likely be reflected negatively in land receipts received.  

 There would be some loss of control; however, there is the ability to influence key aspects of 

the development through the contract.  

 Lack of cohesion across the public realm. 

Conclusion 

This delivery route requires WCC to secure planning for the site and fund the delivery of the Kings 

Walk and the bus solution. It is likely that there will be a lack of developer market appetite to 

develop the remaining land parcels, due to the reduced size of the developable land, accessibility 

challenges and reduced ability to deliver comprehensive and cohesive development. There is also 

no certainty that this route would meet investment objectives or critical success factors. 

 

3.6.4 Option 3.4 – WCC to bring forward Kings Walk Creative Quarter with a 
Development Agreement with one development partner for the remainder of 
the defined site 

Overview of delivery route  

Kings Walk Delivered by WCC:  

WCC self- deliver Kings Walk through upgrading the building to a leasable standard and securing 

a partner to operate the building on a 15-year lease. The operator partner would be responsible for 

delivering the creative quarter vision.  As with all options, this is an internal refurbishment to bring 

it in line with current occupational needs and demands, and does not comprise a comprehensive 

redevelopment of Kings Walk. 

Wider Site Delivery:  

This route involves WCC procuring a development partner through a competitive tendering 

process for the WCC ownership excluding Kings Walk. This would involve a likely 9-12 month 

partner selection process to secure a development partner to bring forward the site, excluding 

Kings Walk, but including the interim bus solution, by way of a contractual development agreement 

with WCC.   

The development agreement between WCC and the development partner would set out the role 

and responsibilities of both parties. All development agreements have slightly different 

Page 252



  
 

 

Strategic Outline Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    35 

approaches; however, in principle this involves the selected development partner securing a 

planning consent for the site and then ‘drawing down’ phases of land for development. Upon 

the draw-down of land, WCC would receive a land receipt. This land receipt would benefit from the 

enhanced value created through the successful planning consent. The development partner is 

responsible for providing/sourcing development funding and delivering each phase of the scheme. 

Therefore, development cost and risks are transferred to the development partner. 

WCC maintains an element of control as outlined in the contract between the parties. Additional 

control can be secured for the Council as part of the development partner bidding process where 

WCC can set out the “redlines” and deal structure and ensure that alignment to the Council’s 

objectives is central to the evaluation process. This will then form the basis of the development 

agreement and so expectations of both parties are clear from the outset. 

  

Advantages 

The main advantages for each element are as follows: 

Kings Walk:   

 Certainty of delivery   

 Certainty of timescales   

 Potential to secure grant funding to support delivery  

Wider Site Delivery:  

 WCC transfer development risk to the development partner 

 WCC transfer cost of development to the development partner  

 Planning and development risk transfer 

 Lower WCC resourcing/expertise requirement 

 Development partner ‘draws down’ land in phases and pays WCC land receipt at point of 

transfer 

 Ability to benefit from development partner’s market and delivery expertise when both parties 

collectively draw up the masterplan 

 WCC benefit from potentially receiving a higher land receipt once planning consent is granted  

 A well-recognised tool by the market for more complex sites 

 Development partner is responsible for delivering interim bus solution  

 Development partner has control over the whole defined site and is therefore able to balance 

viability across uses efficiently  

 WCC retain an element of control through the development agreement   

 WCC has control over the development partner selection process and can choose a partner 

that shares the same aspirations for the site 

Disadvantages 

Page 253



  
 

 

Strategic Outline Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    36 

The main disadvantages for each element are as follows:  

Kings Walk:  

 WCC responsible for securing an operator partner to deliver the Creative Quarter vision  

 WCC would be required to bring the building up to a lettable standard. This would involve 

capital expenditure by WCC.  

 This route still assumes an internal refurbishment to bring Kings Walk in line with current 

occupational needs and demands, and does not comprise a comprehensive redevelopment. 

 ‘Gateway’ to the site would be left un-developed for 15 years.  

 Some parties view the Kings Walk building as unattractive  

 No comprehensive redevelopment of the Kings Walk site as part of CWR 

Wider Site Delivery:   

 There would be some loss of control; however, influence over key aspects would be retained. 

 Relying on contract if performance falters/market conditions change 

 Up-front and on-going governance requirement 

Conclusion 

This route provides WCC with an acceptable level of control over delivery and timings. This route 

is able to meet the investment objectives and the critical success factors. 

 

3.6.5 Option 3.5 – Development agreement across the defined site with one 
development partner 

This route involves WCC procuring a development partner through a competitive tendering 

process. This would involve a likely 9-12 month partner selection process to secure a development 

partner to bring forward the site by way of a contractual agreement with WCC.  

The development agreement between WCC and the development partner would set out the role 

and responsibilities of both parties. All development agreements have slightly different 

approaches; however, in principle this involves the selected development partner securing a 

planning consent for the site (hybrid with detailed first phase) and then ‘drawing down’ phases of 

land for development. Upon the drawdown of land WCC would receive a land receipt. This land 

receipt would benefit from the enhanced value created through the successful planning consent. 

The development partner is responsible for providing/sourcing development funding and delivering 

each phase of the scheme. Therefore, development cost and risks are transferred to the 

development partner. 

WCC maintains an element of control as outlined in the contract between the parties. Additional 

control can be secured for the Council as part of the development partner bidding process where 

WCC can set out the “redlines” and deal structure and ensure that alignment to the Council’s 

objectives is central to the evaluation process. This will then form the basis of the development 

agreement and so expectations of both parties are clear from the outset. 

Page 254



  
 

 

Strategic Outline Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    37 

This route is different to the previous ‘Henderson’ scheme for a number of reasons:  

The previous failure was due to three main issues: What is different this time: 

The developer was a majority landowner  WCC is now the majority landowner and, through a DA, 

can regulate required steps and responsibilities  

WCC had no choice and there was no procurement 

process to choose a best in class 

WCC can choose a preferred development partner to 

deliver against their criteria and work with them to 

optimise the current proposals 

There was ambiguity over planning WCC has adopted the SPD and has also developed the 

CWR Development Proposals recently consulted on 

 

Advantages 

The main advantages are that: 

 WCC transfer development risk to the development partner 

 WCC transfer cost of development to the development partner  

 Planning and development risk transfer 

 Lower WCC resourcing/expertise requirement 

 Development partner ‘draws down’ land in phases and pays WCC land receipt at point of transfer 

 Ability to benefit from development partner’s market and delivery expertise when both parties 

collectively draw up the masterplan 

 WCC benefit from potentially receiving a higher land receipt once planning consent is granted  

 A well-recognised tool by the market for more complex sites 

 The development partner is responsible for delivering interim bus solution 

 The partnership has control over the whole of the defined site and is therefore able to balance 

viability across uses efficiently  

 WCC retain an element of control through the development agreement mechanisms  

 WCC has control over the development partner selection process and can choose a partner 

that shares the same aspirations for the site 

Disadvantages 

The main disadvantages are that: 

 There would be some loss of control; however, influence over key aspects would be retained. 

 Relying on contract if performance falters/market conditions change 

 Up-front and on-going governance requirement 

 No comprehensive redevelopment of the Kings Walk site as part of CWR 

Conclusion 

Page 255



  
 

 

Strategic Outline Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    38 

This route provides WCC with an acceptable level of control over delivery and timings. This route 

is able to meet the investment objectives and the critical success factors. Whilst delivered via one 

development partner, this route still enables incremental and phased delivery with multiple 

stakeholders and design teams (as desired in the SPD). This route retains the opportunity/ability 

for WCC and the chosen development partner to appoint specialist entities to deliver phases 

and/or blocks, whilst retaining overarching control as outlined in the development agreement. This 

route also enables better sharing of infrastructure and public realm related costs across land 

parcels and allows for cross-subsidy across the site enabling higher value uses to support the 

delivery of lower value uses (such as affordable housing and community spaces).  

 

3.6.6 Option 3.6 - WCC acting as master developer 

Overview of delivery route  

This route involves WCC bringing forward the development by acting as master developer across 

the site. This route assumes that WCC is responsible for masterplanning the site prior to securing 

a hybrid planning consent with detailed first phase(s).  WCC fund and deliver enabling 

infrastructure, including the on-street bus solution, prior to procuring multiple development 

partners to deliver single plots by way of development agreements.   

This route requires WCC to fund the upfront and site-wide costs (i.e. planning, on-street bus 

solution, public realm and infrastructure to provide serviced plots). The individual serviced plots 

that would be taken to the market would be small in scale and, therefore, we perceive there to be 

very limited national developer interest and the nature of developer procurement processes may 

also serve to act as a deterrent to regional and local interest.  

Advantages 

The main advantages are: 

 WCC retain control of the timing of Kings Walk delivery as the potential first phase.  

 Level of control over site (noting master developer is not the same as direct delivery). 

 WCC receive land receipts when phases of land are drawn down. 

 WCC transfer development risk to the development partner(s). 

 WCC transfer cost of development to the development partner(s).  

 WCC retain an element of control through the development agreements.  

Disadvantages 

The main disadvantages are that:  

 WCC responsible for all up-front costs  

 No comprehensive regeneration of the Kings Walk site 

 WCC hold planning risk  

 Very significant WCC resource/expertise requirement  

 High degree of complexity given multiple parties/phases  

Page 256



  
 

 

Strategic Outline Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    39 

 Reduced national developer appetite given reduced scale of individual opportunities 

 Potential loss of regional and local market appetite due to onerous procurement process and 

small plot sizes  

 Intensive/ continuous governance requirement 

 Relying on contract if performance falters/market conditions change 

 Do not benefit from development partner’s expertise when drawing up the masterplan and 

securing planning. 

 

Conclusion 

This route is highly complex and carries significant upfront costs and risk, as well as a requirement 

for a high level of resource and expertise. This route does provide WCC with an acceptable level 

of control over delivery and timings and has the potential to meet the investment objectives and 

the critical success factors. This route would likely not attract strong interest from the developer 

market.  

  

Page 257



  
 

 

Strategic Outline Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    40 

3.6.7 Overall conclusion: Solution delivery options 

Summary of Solution delivery options 
 Option 3.1 Option 3.2 Option 3.3 Option 3.4 Option 3.5 Option 3.6 
Descriptor Disposal- 

Freehold or 
Long 
Leasehold 

WCC to bring 
forward Kings 
Walk Creative 
Quarter and 
deliver the on-
street bus 
solution. 
Remaining 
land parcels 
disposed of 
on a Freehold 
basis and 
brought 
forward by 
multiple 
developers 

WCC to bring 
forward Kings 
Walk Creative 
Quarter and 
deliver the on-
street bus 
solution.  
Followed by a 
development 
agreement 
with one 
development 
partner to 
bring forward 
the remaining 
land parcels 
in the defined 
site 

WCC to bring 
forward Kings 
Walk Creative 
Quarter. 
Development 
Agreement 
with one 
development 
partner for the 
remainder of 
the defined 
site 

Development 
agreement 
across the 
defined site 
with one 
development 
partner 

WCC acting 
as master 
developer 

Cost 4 1 1 3 4 0 
Control 0 2 3 3 3 4 
Planning risk 4 0 0 3 3 0 
Development 
risk 

4 2 2 4 4 2 

Resourcing / 
expertise 

4 1 1 3 4 0 

Speed 1 1 1 2 3 2 
Return (profit 
share) 

0 1 1 1 0 0 

Return (land 
receipt) 

3 2 2 2 2 2 

Market 
appetite 

4 2 1 3 4 0 

Total Score 
(out of 40) 

24 12 12 24 27 10 

JLL 

Key: 0 = Least favourable/negative impact; 1 = Some impact; 2 = Positive impact; 3 = High positive impact; 4 = Maximum favourable 

impact 

 Option 3.1 – Disposal- Freehold or Long Leasehold 

This option has been excluded as WCC will have little control over what a developer(s) will 

deliver, other than through WCC Planning Department, and it is likely that the final product will not 

align with the Investment Objectives. This route will likely achieve a higher land receipt as we 

expect there to be strong market appetite and developers will bid for the site based on a mix of 

higher value generating uses than the mix set out in the development proposal. This route would 

not require WCC to take any planning or development risk and does not require a high level of 

resource or expenditure by WCC. Because this route is unable to provide certainty of delivery of 

the investment objectives and critical success factors it has been discounted, despite scoring 

highly on the above assessment.  

Page 258



  
 

 

Strategic Outline Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    41 

 Option 3.2 - WCC to bring forward Kings Walk Creative Quarter and deliver the on-street bus 

solution. Remaining land parcels disposed of on a Freehold basis and brought forward by 

multiple developers 

This option has been excluded as WCC would have little control over what the developer(s) will 

deliver on the sold land parcels, other than through WCC Planning Department, and it is likely that 

the final product will not align with the Investment Objectives. This route would require WCC to 

secure a hybrid panning consent for the whole defined site and invest capital and take delivery risk 

in relation to Kings Walk and the on-street bus solution. There is likely to be a reduced level of 

market appetite for the smaller plots and when developed there is a risk of a lack of cohesion 

across the site as a whole.   

 Option 3.3 - WCC to bring forward Kings Walk Creative Quarter and deliver the on-street bus 

solution.  Followed by a development agreement with one development partner to bring 

forward the remaining land parcels in the defined site.  

This option has been excluded as WCC would retain some control over the development; 

however, there may be some complexity in WCC delivering portions of the development 

themselves and a lack of market appetite for remaining land. This route would require WCC to 

secure a hybrid panning consent for the whole defined site, invest capital, and take delivery risk in 

relation to Kings Walk and the on-street bus solution. The perceived lack of market appetite for the 

site, for a development agreement delivery route, is a significant limitation and is due to the 

reduced scale of developable land (as WCC would be delivering both Kings Walk and the bus 

solution land).  

 Option 3.4 – WCC to bring forward Kings Walk Creative Quarter. Development Agreement with 

one development partner for the remainder of the defined site  

This option has been shortlisted as WCC would retain some control over the development via the 

development partner procurement process and the deal structure outlined in the development 

agreement. However there is complexity and significant cost associated with WCC delivering the 

Kings Walk element of the development themselves. WCC transfer the planning and delivery risk 

to the development partner for the wider site. There may be a reduction in market appetitive due to 

WCC delivering Kings Walk themselves.  

 Option 3.5 – Development agreement across the defined site with one development partner  

This option has been shortlisted as the preferred option as it enables development to be 

brought forward in a comprehensive manner by one party, whilst also allowing WCC to retain 

some control over the development through the development agreement. In addition, WCC has 

control over the development partner selection process and can therefore choose a partner that 

shares the same aspirations for the site. This route still enables the opportunity for phased delivery 

and bringing forward projects on individual sites by multiple design and contractual teams, as 

envisaged in the SPD. This route would ensure the optimal outcome for the site as it would ensure 

the cross-subsidy of high value uses to support the delivery of lower value uses and the 

comprehensive delivery of the associated public realm. We envisage this route to be acceptable to 

the market and capable of ensuring competitive tension through the procurement process.  

 Option 3.6 - WCC acting as master developer 

Page 259



  
 

 

Strategic Outline Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    42 

This option has been excluded because the full cost and planning risk will remain with WCC and 

this route would require a high degree of expertise. This route may deliver a comprehensive 

scheme, but the risks are significant and we envisage the smaller, consented, land parcels would 

not be desirable by the market on a development agreement delivery route due to lack of scale. 

This route performs poorly against the delivery route assessment criteria at 3.5.7.  

 

3.7 Assessment 4: Funding options 

The final options assessment is to determine the sources of funding for the development. 

3.7.1 Introduction 

This range of options considers the choices for funding and financing in relation to the preferred 

scope, solution, method of solution delivery and implementation.  

The SPD outlines the vision and objectives for the site and gives guidance on quantum of uses, 

heights, massing and quality of design and public realm (section 3- Planning & Urban Design 

Framework). The preferred development proposal outlined under “options assessment 1: Scope” 

closely aligns with this requirement.  

Finding investors both private and public that are aligned with this proposal will be a top priority. 

The aim would be to find funding providers that want to invest in Winchester for the long term and 

want to bring about the transformation not just for the CWR site but for the benefit of the wider 

local community and economy. 

The options are as follows: 

 Option 4.1: Private funding 

 Option 4.2: Public funding 

Note: where it is agreed that the scheme will be publicly funded as part of the capital expenditure 

programme, it will be unnecessary to consider the use of alternative methods of finance. However, 

where the funding mechanism has not been agreed this set of options may still have a use for 

appraisal purposes – for example, as in the case of central versus local funding. Furthermore, it 

should also be noted that the use of private finance does not simply consist of Public Private 

Partnerships (PPP) and the Private Finance Initiative (PFI). In this context, the use of financial 

leases and operating leases, and other forms of rental payment might also be considered, 

together with sponsorship arrangements. 

This SOC provides an overview of the funding options available for consideration at a strategic 

level. The final funding option will largely be determined by the financial requirements and 

affordability as set out in the OBC. 

 

3.7.2 Option 4.1: Private funding 

Page 260



  
 

 

Strategic Outline Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    43 

Private sector funding would be secured through the selection of an appropriate development 

partner to enter into a development agreement. The assessment of the private sector partners 

ability to fund the development would form part of the selection process criteria.  

3.7.3 Option 4.2: Public funding 

In order to support delivery, the council will seek external funding where possible. Some funding 

considerations include: 

 EM3 LEP 

Liaising and preparing bids where appropriate to submit when funding streams/grants become 

available. This is mainly around commercial elements such as work/maker spaces and potentially 

transport infrastructure through Growth Funding. This may also include liaising and collaborating 

with colleagues at HCC with regard to access to funding streams around wider city regeneration 

projects and the WMS. 

 Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) 

The council has funding available through the CIL funding mechanism and will therefore look at 

the general strategic approach to allocation of this fund across a range of projects. Elements of the 

CWR scheme that could benefit from CIL funding are: 

 Long term public realm improvements across the whole area, including lower High Street 

and Broadway 

 Funding of the on-street bus provision and associated public realm, including highway 

works and infrastructure provision 

 Homes England; liaising and preparing bids where appropriate to submit when funding 

streams/grants become available around affordable housing in particular.  

There may be other funding opportunities from other sources as the project moves forward and 

the council will continue work to identify these and utilise where possible. 

 

3.7.4 Overall conclusion: funding 

At a strategic level, the WCC’s preference is for a blend of both private and public finance. 

Drawing on both sources of funding will likely be required in order to make the scheme financially 

viable.  

The exact form of the funding model to be followed will be assessed in greater detail during the 

OBC and FBC process, but for the purpose of this SOC, a blended funding option is being put 

forward as the preferred option.  

 

3.8 The long list: inclusions and exclusions 

Page 261



  
 

 

Strategic Outline Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    44 

The long list has appraised a wide range of possible options (solution, implementation, solution 

delivery, and funding) detailed in the below table. The table below provides a summary of all 

inclusions and exclusions which have been outlined in detail in earlier chapters of this SOC.  

Summary of inclusions and exclusions 
Option Descriptor Finding 
Assessment 1: Solution 
1.1 Do nothing Excluded. Will result in the city 

centre continuing to degenerate 
1.2 Do minimum Excluded. Will not result in the 

required vibrant mixed-use quarter 
1.3 Do more than minimum Excluded. Will not result in the 

required vibrant mixed-use quarter 
1.4 Do maximum Included. Option most closely 

aligned with the investment 
objectives 

Assessment 2: Implementation 
2.1 Single phase Excluded. Not aligned to SPD 

phased development approach 
2.2 Incremental Included 
Assessment 3: Solution delivery 
3.1 Disposal- Freehold or Long Leasehold Excluded. Insufficient control of the 

development.  
3.2 WCC to bring forward Kings Walk Creative Quarter and deliver 

the on-street bus solution. Remaining land parcels disposed of 
on a Freehold basis and brought forward by multiple developers 

Excluded. Insufficient control over 
the development of the sold land 
parcels. 

3.3 WCC to bring forward Kings Walk Creative Quarter and deliver 
the on-street bus solution.  Followed by a development 
agreement with one development partner to bring forward the 
remaining land parcels in the defined site 

Excluded. High WCC expenditure 
and resource requirement. Lack of 
market appetite.  

3.4 WCC to bring forward Kings Walk Creative Quarter. 
Development Agreement with one development partner for the 
remainder of the defined site 

Included as shortlisted option 

3.5 Development agreement across the defined site with one 
development partner 

Included as preferred shortlisted 
option 

3.6 WCC acting as master developer Excluded. Requires significant 
capital expenditure, resources, and 
expertise.  

Assessment 4: Funding 
4.1 Private funding Included as a blend of both private 

and public funding is preferred 
4.2 Public funding Included as a blend of both private 

and public funding is preferred 
JLL 

3.9 Short-listed options 

The below table provides a summary of the included elements to be considered for the short-list. 

An illustrative financial analysis of these options has been prepared and coupled with a final 

review against the project’s critical success factors will determine the preferred shortlisted option 

to be taken forward to the OBC. 

 

Page 262



  
 

 

Strategic Outline Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    45 

3.9.1 Shortlisted Options 

As assessment categories 1 (scope), 2 (implementation) and 4 (funding) are identical across all 

included options, the assessment category 3 options have been used as the included options 

descriptors. 

Included options for short-list consideration  
Assessment 
category 

Included options 

Solution Option 1.4 Do maximum 

Implementation Option 2.1 Incremental implementation 
 

Delivery Option 3.4- shortlisted  
WCC to bring forward Kings Walk Creative 
Quarter. Development Agreement with one 
development partner for the remainder of 
the defined site 
 

Option 3.5- preferred 
Development agreement (i.e. contractual 
Joint Venture) across the defined site with 
one development partner 
 

Funding Blend of private & public funding 

JLL 

 

3.9.2 Financial analysis for included options – See exempt Appendix G of CAB3303 

 

3.9.3 Assessing the included options against the critical success factors  

Solution Option 1.4 - Do maximum 

Implementation Option 2.1 Incremental implementation 
 

Delivery Option 3.4- shortlisted  
WCC to bring forward Kings Walk Creative 
Quarter. Development Agreement with one 
development partner for the remainder of 

the defined site 
 

Option 3.5- preferred  
Development agreement (i.e. contractual 
Joint Venture) across the defined site with 

one development partner 

Funding Blend of private & public Blend of private & public 

CSF1: Alignment 
to city needs 

4 4 

CSF2: Alignment 
to SPD 

4 4 

CSF3: Alignment 
to investment 
objectives 

4 4 

CSF4: Achieving 
the benefits 
optimisation 

3 3 

CSF5: 
Affordability 

1 3 

CSF6: Planning 2 3 

Page 263



  
 

 

Strategic Outline Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    46 

Solution Option 1.4 - Do maximum 

Implementation Option 2.1 Incremental implementation 
 

Delivery Option 3.4- shortlisted  
WCC to bring forward Kings Walk Creative 
Quarter. Development Agreement with one 
development partner for the remainder of 

the defined site 
 

Option 3.5- preferred  
Development agreement (i.e. contractual 
Joint Venture) across the defined site with 

one development partner 

Funding Blend of private & public Blend of private & public 

permission   

CSF7: Political 
Risk 

3 2 

Total (out of 20) 21 23 

Key: 0 = Least favourable/negative impact; 1 = Some impact; 2 = Positive impact; 3 = High positive impact; 4 = 

Maximum favourable impact 

 Option 3.4 

Included as a shortlisted option. This option delivers well against the CSF’s however it does 

require significant capital expenditure by WCC to deliver Kings Walk and is therefore deemed as 

less affordable to the Council.  

 Option 3.5 

Included as the preferred option which will be assessed further at OBC stage. This option 

delivers very well against the CSF’s.  

 

3.10 Short-listed options 

Option 3.5 has been identified at the preferred option and will be carried forward into OBC stage 

for further appraisal and evaluation. Shortlisted option 3.4 and excluded long listed options have 

now been discounted and excluded from further assessment.  

 

Page 264



  
 

 

Strategic Outline Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    47 

4.1 Introduction 

The Commercial Case section of the SOC outlines the proposed deal in relation to the delivery of 

the shortlisted options outlined in the Economic Case. The detailed consideration of the 

Commercial Case only takes place at OBC stage. However, this SOC contains an initial, less 

detailed overview of the proposed procurement route. 

Subject to the approval of the preferred delivery route, WCC will require the procurement of the 

following primary contract: 

 A development partner, for the defined site, on the basis of a development agreement 

4.2 Required services 

In addition to the primary contracts, WCC will also procure required support as follows: 

 Internally (support required for the following WCC departments): 

 Legal 

 Estates 

 Finance 

 Procurement 

 Externally, the following support is required: 

 Continued support from JLL/ Arup is required at a programme level 

 JLL specialist resource to prepare the Outline Business Case (“OBC”) and Full Business 

Case (“FBC”)  

 External legal advice 

 External financial advice 

 Communications support 

More details of the requirements will be set out in the OBC. 

 

4.3 Potential for risk transfer 

We have addressed the potential risk transfer under the solution delivery assessment section of 

the Economic case. A more detailed analysis of risks takes place at OBC stage. 

The general principle is to ensure that risks should be passed to ‘the party best able to manage 

them’, subject VFM. 

 

4 The Commercial Case  

Page 265



  
 

 

Strategic Outline Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    48 

4.4 Proposed contract lengths 

The following contract lengths will be considered: 

 Development partner - long term agreement.  

4.5 Procurement strategy and implementation timescales 

WCC adopts a fair and transparent approach in its procurement activities and will ensure all 

potential suppliers are treated equally when competing for business. 

When procuring contracts WCC follows all current UK and European legislation and regulation 

relating to public procurement. The Council also has its own Contracts and Financial Procedure 

Rules. However, it must be noted that following the UK's exit from the EU and the end of the 

transition period on 31 December 2020, a Government review of legislation governing public 

procurement has begun and changes, which will come into effect during 2021 and beyond. The 

Council will adapt its processes accordingly. 

WCC procurement follows four main principles: 

 Value 

 Compliance 

 Fairness  

 Social and Environmental 

The aim is to seek a seek a balance between obtaining best commercial value, operating within 

the law, acting transparently, reducing impacts on the environment and improving the community 

and services provided to our residents. 

It is anticipated that the following primary contract may be procured: 

 A development partner, for the defined site, on the basis of a development agreement 

Any procurement exercise will follow the council’s Contract Procedural Rules and PCR2015. 

 

 

Page 266



  
 

 

Strategic Outline Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    49 

5.1 Overview 

The City Council controls significant assets within the Central Winchester Regeneration Area and 

in recent years has invested over £15m on site assembly, including: 

Friarsgate Medical Centre £5,267,675 

Bus Station £4,776,542 

Kings Walk & Middle Brook St (JDS assets) £5,000,000 

 £15,044,217 

These assets generate a net income of almost £550,000 annually. The financing costs of the 

above assets and the impact of losing the current income generated from the assets need to be 

taken into account when assessing the affordability of any development option. 

To assess the financial impact of both shortlisted options, the affordability model set out in this 

section has been developed to illustrate both the overall capital cost of each option (showing the 

peak Council funding requirement) and the impact on the Council’s annual revenue budget.  The 

financial case takes account of: 

(i) Residual land values 

(ii) Income Stream Generation 

(iii) Existing WCC costs/income in relation to: 

 Car Parks: 

a. Friarsgate Surface Car Park (Long Stay):  Phase 2 

 Bus Station (includes Access / Offices / Café):  Phase 2 

(iv) Other Non-Investment Property: 

 Middlebrook St Properties:     Phase 2 

 Kings Walk and Antiques Market:   Phase 1 

 Friarsgate Medical Centre:     Phase 2 

 Coitbury House:       Phase 3 

 

5.2 Financing Assumptions/Key Inputs 

(i) PWLB Interest Rate: 2.1% 

(ii) MRP Period: 48 years 

(iii) MRP Rate: 2.1% 

(iv) MRP Profile: Annuity 

(v) Discount Rate: 6.09% 

(vi) Capitalised interest: Zero 

(vii) Income losses timeframe: 

 Car Park & Bus Station: For the life of the scheme 

 Kings Walk and Antiques Market: 10 years 

5 The Financial Case 

Page 267



  
 

 

Strategic Outline Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    50 

 Middlebrook Street properties: 25 years 

 

5.3 Impact of Kings Walk capital expenditure 

Section 3.7.2 sets out the analysis of the residual land values of the shortlisted options as well as 

the financial structure of the operator agreement for Kings Walk under option 3.4. The table 

included in that section (see exempt appendix) highlights the impact of WCC capital expenditure 

requirement for the refurbishment of Kings Walk on the overall ‘value’ of the site to WCC. Given 

the significant costs borne by the Council in Option 3.4, it is evident that this route does not deliver 

the most financially advantageous option for WCC. 

 

5.4 Assessment of Affordability 

In summary, each option will require a Gap Funding position (assuming no borrowing). Option 3.4 

would require a gap funding (external grant, developer contributions or additional council 

contribution) of £7.9m and option 3.5 £4.8m. Although these gap funding amounts would not 

require any Council borrowing, they would still generate a negative revenue position across the life 

of the scheme.  Neither options can generate a positive revenue position (Discounted NPV) with 

any amount of gap-funding.  The following dashboard highlights these findings. 

Base case Dashboard included in Exempt Appendix G of CAB3303 

 

It is possible to generate a moderately positive land value and capital receipt from both options, 

with option 3.5 achieving a far more positive value.  However, the dashboard illustrates that both 

options, based on the retention of the Kings Walk building as a creative hub, have a significantly 

negative revenue impact and are not affordable.  Whilst option 3.4 has a less negative impact, it 

should be noted that the market rents based on soft market testing are unproven for the 

Winchester market. There is a significant risk therefore that actual rents could be lower than 

projected. 

The cumulative revenue position based on the projections set out in section 3 are illustrated 

below: 

Page 268



  
 

 

Strategic Outline Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    51 

 

 

5.5 Sensitivity Analysis  

Sensitivity analysis of both options has been undertaken by running a “Monte Carlo Simulation” 

which is used to estimate the possible outcomes given an uncertain event. The analysis 

demonstrates a risk adjusted position with 95% confidence based on the inputted parameters. 

This exercise outputs a ‘Downside’ position, which is effectively the 5th percentile result from the 

simulation analysis and is intended to reflect the outcome if market conditions considerably 

diverge from predicted base case assumptions. 

Sensitivity (Monte Carlo Simulation) table included in exempt Appendix G of CAB3303 

 
 
The results show that there is a 71% chance Option 3.4 produces a positive net capital position, 

99% for Option 3.5. The percentage chance of achieving a net positive revenue position for both 

options is less than 1%.  

 
 

5.6 Summary/Conclusion 

The financial modelling of both options indicates that the proposal to refurbish the existing Kings 

Walk building in phase 1, which forms the basis of both option 3.4 and 3.5, is not affordable for the 

Council.  With costs over £6m to refurbish the building to a suitable standard to operate as 

“creative space”, the proposals result in relatively low capital values and an insufficient income 

stream to achieve a positive “net present value” for the scheme.   

 

-£18,000k

-£16,000k

-£14,000k

-£12,000k

-£10,000k

-£8,000k

-£6,000k

-£4,000k

-£2,000k

£0k

£2,000k

20/21 30/31 40/41 50/51 60/61 70/71

Cumulative Revenue Position 

Option 1 Option 2

Page 269



  
 

 

Strategic Outline Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    52 

6.1 Introduction 

This section of the SOC addresses the ‘achievability’ of the scheme. Its purpose is to set out the 

actions that will be required to ensure the successful delivery of the scheme in accordance with 

best practice. 

 

6.2 Project management arrangements 

The project will be managed in accordance with the council’s major projects and programme 

management requirements PRINCE 2 methodology. 

 

6.2.1 Outline project reporting structure, project roles and responsibilities 

The WCC internal project team will be as follows: 

 Decision approval body 

The WCC Cabinet will sign-off on all required project approvals 

 Core team 

 Programme Sponsor: Cllr Kelsie Learney - Cabinet Member for Housing and Asset 

Management 

 Programme Director: John East – Interim Strategic Director – Place 

 Head of Programme: Veryan Lyons  

 Project Manager: Rachel Robinson 

 Project Manager: Dan Lowe 

 Specialist service leads 

 Geoff Coe – Corporate Head of Asset Management  

 Richard Botham – s151 Officer 

 Liz Keys – Corporate Head of Finance 

 Catherine Knight – Service Lead-Legal 

The final programme terms of reference, roles and responsibilities will be unpacked further as part 

of the OBC. 

 

6.2.2 Outline project plan 

6 The Management Case  

Page 270



  
 

 

Strategic Outline Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    53 

The document below sets out the project stages and the tasks within each stage. An explanation 

as to what each task involves has been provided with estimated timescales: 

 

 

Illustrative timeline for the project 

 
Winchester public participation presentation 

The timeline for the development deliverables will be confirmed at the Outline Business Case 

stage.  

 

6.3 Use of special advisers 

Special advisers have been used in a timely and cost-effective manner in accordance with the 

Treasury Guidance: Use of Special Advisers. Details are set out in the table below:  

Specialist advisers 
Specialist area Adviser 
Financial JLL / 31Ten  
Technical JLL / Arup 
Procurement and Legal Browne Jacobson LLP 

Page 271



  
 

 

Strategic Outline Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    54 

Business assurance JLL / Arup 
Business case JLL 
Communications TBC 
WCC 

6.4 Gateway review arrangements 

The WCC cabinet will sign-off all Gateway reviews. Cabinet have confirmed that the CWR project 

team can request cabinet meetings to undertake these reviews on an ad hoc basis and that they 

do not need to align with the current scheduled cabinet meetings. The key gateway review points 

are as follows: 

Gateway Reviews 
Gateway Descriptor Review report Expected review 

date 
Gateway 0 ‘Strategic Assessments’ on an ongoing 

assurance of programmes at the start, 
delivery and closing stages 

Included in Strategic Outline 
Case 

21 July 2021 

Gateway 1 ‘Business Justification’ prior the detailed 
planning phase. 

Strategic Outline Case 21 July 2021 

Gateway 2 ‘Delivery Strategy and Business 
Justification’ prior to the procurement 
phase. 

Outline Business Case Autumn 2021 

Gateway 3 ‘Investment Decision’ prior to contract 
signature. 

Full Business Case Spring/Summer 
2022 

Gateway 4 ‘Readiness for Service’ prior to ‘going 
live’ and implementation of the scheme. 

  

Gateway 5 ‘Operational Review and Benefits 
Realisation’ following delivery of the 
project, establishment and/or 
decommissioning of the service 

  

Guide to developing the project business case 

 

 

Signed:  

Date: 

 

Senior Responsible Owner 

Project Team 

 

Page 272



  
 

 

Strategic Outline Case Central Winchester Regeneration Project 

    55 

The following sources have been referenced in the development of this SOC: 

 Winchester Strategic Planning Document 

 Central Winchester Regeneration Supplementary Planning Document, Adopted June 2018 

 Kings Walk Feasibility Study July 2020 – Turner.Works and Worthwhile Works 

 Winchester Council Plan 2020 – 2025, 2021 Edition 

 Central Winchester Regeneration Development Proposal – Public Participation presentation 

November 2020 

 Winchester Procurement and Contract Management Strategy 2020 -2025, published April 2020 

 Winchester Hotel Report – October 2020 – Melvin Gold Consulting  

 WCC City Wide Competitive Position report Q4 2019- JLL  

7 Sources 

Page 273



  

 

  

Page 274



  

 

8.1 Appendix A – Phasing Options  
  

8 Appendices 

P
age 275



  

 

Source: JLL & Arup in Central Winchester 

Regeneration Development Proposal – Public 

Consultation, November 2020 

  

Phase 1  

P
age 276



  

 

Source: JLL & Arup in Central Winchester 

Regeneration Development Proposal – Public 

Consultation, November 2020 

 

Phase 2  

P
age 277



  

 

Source: JLL & Arup in Central Winchester 

Regeneration Development Proposal – Public 

Consultation, November 2020 

 

Phase 3  

P
age 278



  

 

Source: JLL & Arup in Central Winchester 

Regeneration Development Proposal – 

Public Consultation, November 2020 

 

Phase 4  

P
age 279



  

 

Source: JLL & Arup in Central Winchester 

Regeneration Development Proposal – Public 

Consultation, November 2020 

 

8.2 Appendix B - Development Proposal  

Phase 5  

P
age 280



  

 

  
Source: JLL & Arup in Central Winchester Regeneration Development Proposal – Public 

Consultation, November 2020 

 

P
age 281



  

 

8.3 Appendix C – Site Boundaries  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

P
age 282



  

 

 

P
age 283



T
his page is intentionally left blank



CAB3322 – Appendix J 

 

Minute Extract from The Scrutiny Committee held 6th December 2021 – item 6. Central 

Winchester Regeneration (CWR) Outline Business Case. 

  

RESOLVED:  

The committee agreed the following comments be passed to Cabinet. 

1. regarding the section relating to technical questions, that the questions be 

reviewed to ensure they are focused on the people who delivered the relevant 

example rather than the company. 

2. “Design” is imperative, and it was requested that the 1,000-word count limit be 

reviewed to enable demonstration of this. 

3. capital - the evaluation of financial standing will be assessed elsewhere, the 

committee requested that clarification of this be provided. 

4. how would the Council ensure that local people are involved in the 

development? 

5. could further clarification be provided regarding the arguments of freehold vs 

leasehold? 

6. could the adherence to carbon neutrality plans be firmed up in some of the 

descriptions? 

7. within appendix G where it refers to the sources in the business case - what are 

the assumptions and sources as referenced in the economic business case? 

8. the impact of an archaeology challenge had not been referenced and should be 

acknowledged in the risks 

9. consider that the project removes the use of compulsory purchase order powers. 

10. could the naming of the phases be reviewed to void confusion? 

11. page 129, suggested to use the names of posts rather than names of officers 

12. reference of archaeology statement and whether the wording could be improved 

to make it clearer. 

13. regarding repayment costs, could confirmation be given that there is no 

borrowing requirement to fund the project? 

14. additional narrative required i.e., to demonstrate the bigger picture, how did we 

get here and where are we going? 

15. could clarity be provided on how we would engage as part of the procurement 

process? 

16. suggested that the archaeology report be appended to the Cabinet report 

17. within the economic case, could the background sources be listed? 

18. could clarification be provided regarding financial phasing? 

19. could clarification be provided regarding phases for the whole site and phasing in 

defined site financials? 

20. suggested that a review of the risk register be undertaken and the risks around: 

the developer going “bust”, partial development and legal challenge 

21. requested that CWR be brought back to Scrutiny committee as an interim update 

item – i.e., early new municipal year. 

Page 285



CAB3322 – Appendix J 

 

 

Page 286


	Agenda
	7 Central Winchester Regeneration (CWR) Outline Business Case (less exempt appendix)
	CAB3322 Appendix A Draft Stage 1 Selection Questionnaire Suitability Technical Questions
	CAB3322 Appendix B Draft Stage 2 Evaluation Award Criteria
	CAB3322 Appendix C Draft Commercial Principles Paper
	CAB3322 Appendix D Draft Outline Business Case
	CAB3322 Appendix E
	CAB3322 Appendix F CWR Risk Register
	CAB3322 Appendix G Draft Development Brief
	CAB3322 Appendix H CWR Development Proposals
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14
	Slide Number 15
	Slide Number 16
	Slide Number 17
	Slide Number 18
	Slide Number 19
	Slide Number 20
	Slide Number 21

	CAB3322 Appendix I Strategic Outline Case
	CAB3322 Appendix J Draft Scrutiny 061221 Extract of Minutes


